ASSOCIATE OF ARTS/OREGON TRANSFER DEGREE (AA/OT)

The AA/QT is a program of study that community
college students can follow to fulfill all their lower
division general education requirements for a
bachelor’s degree at an Oregon University System
(OUS) institution. It is an agreement between the
Oregon State System of Higher Education and
Oregon’s community colleges to provide transfer of
community college coursework to an OUS institution.

Completion of the AA/OT Degree can lead to junior
standing, for registration purposes, for any student
admitted to a university in the OUS (University of
Oregon, Oregon State University, Portland State
University, Western Oregon University, Southern
Oregon University, Oregon Institute of Technology
and Eastern Oregon University). The AA/OT does not
necessarily meet specific institutional, departmental,
or major requirements with regard to courses or
grade point average. Students may transfer between
108 and 128 community college credits to four-year
OUS institutions. Students should plan carefully with
the four-year institution to which they plan to transfer
in order to meet individual institutional requirements.
Students considering transfer to private and out-of-
state institutions will find the AA/OT to be excellent
preparation for upper division study.

REQUIREMENTS

Upon enrolling at Southwestern, students need to
be ready for college-level mathematics, writing and
science in order to complete the AA/OT in two years. If
students lack the necessary skills, Southwestern offers
excellent preparatory courses and tutorial assistance
to help them get on track quickly.

FOUNDATIONAL REQUIREMENTS
LEARNING OUTCOMES

Upon successful completion of this program the
student will be able to:

WRITING

* Read actively, think critically, and write
purposefully and capably for academic
and, in some cases, professional audiences.

* Locate, evaluate, and ethically utilize
information to communicate effectively.

12 SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE 2011-2012

* Demonstrate appropriate reasoning in
response fo complex issues.

INFORMATION LITERACY
* Formulate a problem statement.

¢ Determine the nature and extent of the information
needed to address the problem.

* Access relevant information effectively and
efficiently.

* Evaluate information and its source critically.

* Understand many of the economic, legal, and
social issues surrounding the use of information.

SPEECH/ORAL COMMUNICATION

* Engage in ethical communication processes that
accomplish goals.

* Respond to the needs of diverse audiences and
contexts.

* Build and manage relationships.
MATHEMATICS
* Use mathematics to solve problems.

* Recognize which mathematical concepts are
applicable to a scenario, apply appropriate
mathematics and technology in its analysis, and
then accurately interpret, validate, and
communicate the results.

HEALTH, WELLNESS AND FITNESS
* Evaluate and assess physical fitness needs.
* Create an effective physical conditioning program.

* Evaluate how well a physical training program
works and how to make adjustments to improve it.

* Understand strength, flexibility, speed and
power.

DISCIPLINE STUDIES LEARNING OUTCOMES

Upon successful completion of this program the
student will be able to:

ARTS AND LETTERS

* Interpret and engage in the Arts and Letters,
making use of the creative process to enrich the
quality of life.

e Critically analyze personal values and ethics within
the stream of human experience and expression to
engage more fully in local and global issues.

(“Arts and Letters” refers to works of art, whether
written, crafted or designed, and performed, and
documents of particular poignancy and
significance in statement or design.)

SOCIAL SCIENCES

* Apply analytical skills to historical and
contemporary social phenomena so as to explain,
evaluate, and predict human behavior.

* Apply knowledge and experience critically so as to
realize an informed sense of self, family,
community, and the diverse social world in which
we live.

SCIENCE, MATH, COMPUTER SCIENCE

e Gather, comprehend, and communicate scientific
and technical information in order to explore ideas,
models, and solutions and generate further
questions.

Apply scientific and technical modes of inquiry,
individually, and collaboratively, to critically
evaluate existing or alternative explanations, solve
problems, and make evidence-based decisions in
an ethical manner.

Assess the strengths and weaknesses of scientific
studies and critically examine the influence of
scientific and technical knowledge on human
society and the environment.

CULTURAL LITERACY

* |dentify and analyze complex practices, values, and
beliefs and the culturally and historically defined
meanings of difference.
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GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS

Complete a minimum of 90 credit hours and all
courses must be passed with a grade of ‘C’ or better.
Students must have a minimum cumulative GPA of 2.0
at the time the AA/OT is awarded. Complete 30 of
the last 45 credits at Southwestern before the AA/OT
degree is awarded.

Successfully complete the following: Courses (except
for elective credits) must be selected from the list of
approved courses for the AA/OT Degree (see page
14). The list is available on the following pages and
in the Admissions, Student First Stop Center, the
Educational Support Programs and Services (ESPS) or
from the program advisor.

Students may take any college-level course that would
bring total credits to 90 quarter hours including up to
12 credits of college designated Career and Technical
Education (career-technical) courses. Note: Please
see page 104 for a list of careertechnical alpha
prefixes offered at Southwestern. A maximum of nine
(9) credits of PE185 may be applied to the AA/OT
degree.

ASSOCIATE OF ARTS/OREGON TRANSFER DEGREE (AA/OT)

Courses that are developmental in nature (designed to Complete the graduation application process one
prepare students for college transfer courses) are not term prior to the term of completion (i.e., spring term
applicable to this degree. graduates must apply during winter term.
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FOUNDATIONAL Note: All courses must be completed with a grade of 'C' or better. ELECTIVES
REQUIREMENTS Cultural Literacy: Students must select one course from any of the discipline studies that is designated as meeting the
statewide criteria for cultural literacy. Courses indicated with a * meet Cultural Literacy requirement.
WRITING (3 COURSES) ARTS AND LETTERS SOCIAL SCIENCES SCIENCE/MATH/ Students  may take any
WR121, WR122 and | Three (3) courses chosen from | Four (4) courses chosen from COMPUTER SCIENCE college-level  course that

WR123 or WR227. (Must
complete with a grade of
'C' or better)

Note: Information Literacy is
included through embedding
the appropriate content and
analytical activity in  courses
that count toward the writing
Foundational Requirement.

two or more disciplines.

Note: A second year foreign language
may be included, but not first year.

ART115, 116, 117, 131,
132,133, 191, 192, 204, 205,
206, 225, 244, 250, 251, 252,
253, 254, 255, 281, 282, 283,
284, 285, 286, 291, 292

MATHEMATICS

(1 COURSE)

MTH105  or higher,
excludingMTH211. (Must

complete with a grade of
'C' or better)

ASL201, 202, 203

ENG104, 105, 106, 107%,

108™,109*, 201, 202, 203,
204, 205, 206

GER201, 202, 203

SPEECH/
ORAL COMMUNICATION
(1 COURSE)

SP100, SP111, SP112,
SP217,SP218 or SP219

(Must complete with @
grade of 'C' or better)

HUM204*, 205, 206*
1203, 205,215,217
MUP105

MUS101, 102,103, 111, 112,

113, 201, 202, 203, 205%,
206,211,212, 213, 261, 262,
263

PHL10T, 102, 103

HEALTH, WELLNESS AND
FITNESS (3 CREDITS)
PE185 (3 courses) or

One (3 credit course)
HE250 or PE231

(Must complete with @
grade of 'C' or better)

SP100, 111, 112, 217%, 218,
219, 220*
SPAN201, 202, 203
WR214, 214T, 241, 242, 243

two or more disciplines.

ANTH101, 102, 103, 2217%,
222%  223% 230% 2317%,
232%*

CJ101

ECON201, 202

ED169, 258*

GEOG105™
HDFS140%, 222, 229, 247
HST101, 102, 103, 104%,
201, 202, 203, 240

PS201, 202, 203
PSY100, 201, 202, 203, 228,
231% 237, 239, 240
SOC105, 204, 205, 206,
208%, 210%, 213%, 221,
243

Wws101*

Four (4) courses from at least two
discplines including at least three
(3) laboratory courses in biological
and/or physical science.

LABORATORY COURSES:

BITO1, 102, 103; 142; 201,
202, 203; 231, 232, 233, 234

CHEM 221, 222, 223
G201, 202, 203
GS104, 105, 106, 107, 108

PH201, 202, 203; 211, 212,
213

OTHER APPROVED COURSES:
BIT140, 149

BOT201

CHEM110

CS160, 161,162, 261

ENGR111, 112, 201, 202, 203,
211,212,213

G146, 207, 220, 221, 246,
291

MTH105, 111, 112, 212, 213,
231, 232, 241, 242, 243, 251,
252, 253, 254, 255, 256, 260,
265

would bring total credits to
90 quarter hours including
up to 12 credits of college
designated ~ Career  and
Technical Education (career-
technical) courses.

Note: All courses must be completed
with a grade of 'C' or better.

Please see page 104 for a list of
career-technical ~ alpha  prefixes
offered.

A maximum of nine (9) credits of
PE185 may be applied to the AA/OT
degree.

Three (3) credit hours of PE185
may be granted toward the AA/OT
degree for completion of military
basic training. A copy of the military
transcript or DD-214 is required.

Courses numbered 199/299  will

qualify as elective credit only.

SUPPORTIVE COURSES

Note: The college has determined
that the following supportive courses
may be necessary fo assist students to
successfully complete their program.
They will count as electives only.
CIS125W, HD0529, 100, 112, 140,

147, 152, 154, 204, 215, 208,
HET12, LIB127, OAI21, RDIOI,
102, 103.

A maximum number of 45 credits is
allowed for basic, developmental,
or supportive courses under federal
financial aid guidelines.

SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE 2011-2012
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PROGRAM NOTES

1. Community colleges may not add requirements at
the local level. The total credits should not exceed the
number required to meet these course requirements
within the college’s credit structure.

2. Writing courses must meet the specific course
outcomes as identified by Oregon Writing and English
Advisory Council. In addition, the group of courses
that is sufficient for meeting this requirement must,
together, provide all of the content recommended by
the Oregon Writing and English Advisory Committee
(OWEACQ), including a research component.

3. Although they are important in terms of preparation,
courses that are developmental in nature are designed
to prepare students for college-level work and are

not counted in the 90 quarter hours required for the
AA/OT.

4. The "Foundational Requirements" above represent
minimal skill competencies. As such, they may be open
to demonstration of competency. Each community
college is encouraged to establish how students may
demonstrate competency in lieu of completing the
course(s).

5. Computer Science courses used in the Science/
Math/Computer Science area must meet Oregon
Council of Computer Chairs criteria for a science
course. See list of courses at (Oregon Council of
Computer Chairs). Math courses listed in the Science/
Math/Computer Science area must meet the outcomes
and criteria for Mathematics.

6. All Foundational Requirement courses and Discipline
Studies courses must meet the statewide outcomes and
criteria for the specific area.

7. The second year of a foreign language, but not the
first year, may be included among courses that count
toward the Arts and Letters requirement. American Sign
Language (ASL) is considered a foreign language.

8. WRI115 may be included in the AA/OT degree
as an elective providing that the WR115 course at
the community college has been approved by the
Department of Community Colleges and Workforce

ASSOCIATE OF ARTS/OREGON TRANSFER DEGREE (AA/OT)

Development as meeting statewide learning outcomes
for the course.

9. The principal advantage of the AA/QOT is that it fulfills
the lower-division (freshman / sophomore) General
Education requirements for baccalaureate degrees at
all OUS institutions. It does not necessarily meet all
of the degree requirements that an OUS institution
might have beyond the requirements for majors. The
AA/QT guarantees that all General Education credits
that a student earned will be accepted as the General
Education requirements at the receiving institution.

10. In some cases, students may also be able to use
AA/OT General Education courses to meet certain
lower-division requirements in their intended majors.
However, caution is required since the AA/OT degree
was not intended for this purpose. Students who have
a major in mind and also want fo maximize the amount
of AA/OT coursework that will count toward it, should
work closely with an academic adviser and make use
of the ATLAS system when designing their AA/OT
degrees. For students intending to become teachers,
specific recommendations on structuring their AA/OT
degrees are given at: How to become an Oregon
Teacher. General transfer information is available at:
http://www.ous.edu/stucoun/prospstu/transfer.php

11. Because the amount of coursework required for
an AA/QOT degree corresponds to two academic years,
degree recipients are considered juniors for purposes
of registration at an Oregon University System
institution. Students should keep in mind, however,
that the AA/OT does not guarantee that two additional
years will suffice to earn a baccalaureate degree, that
is because the AA/QOT does not give students junior-
standing in their majors. Neither does it guarantee
entrance info a competitive major. Students may
need to take additional introductory work to prepare
for certain majors and should check with an advisor
regarding availability at their local community colleges.
In addition, it’s not uncommon for students to change
their majors and find that they must go back and take
infroductory work in the new area.

12. Students and academic advisers should recognize
that although the AA/OT provides an excellent
structure for many students—particularly those who
are unsure of their primary academic focus—it is not
ideal for everyone. In particular, it does not articulate
well with certain majors such as engineering, biological
and physical sciences, and the fine and performing
arts. Students contemplating these majors cannot
easily accommodate their highly-specific prerequisite
coursework into the AA/OT framework. In general, an
AA/OT recipient who is pursuing any course of study
that is credit-heavy at the major lower- division level
may have to take additional lower-division coursework,
specific to the major, affer transfer. Students
contemplating such majors should consult closely with
an advisor.

SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE 2011-2012
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ASSOCIATE OF APPLIED SCIENCE DEGREE (AAS) CAREER-TECHNICAL PROGRAMS

REQUIREMENTS

24

Associate of Applied Science (AAS) is a state approved
associate degree that is intended to prepare graduates
for direct entry intfo the workforce. AAS may also
help to prepare students for career advancements,
occupational licensures, or further study toward a
baccalaureate degree.

RELATED INSTRUCTION
(GENERAL EDUCATION) OUTCOMES

Upon successful completion of this program the
student will be able to:

COMMUNICATION

* Engage in ethical communication processes that
allow people to accomplish goals.

* Respond to the needs of diverse audiences and
contexts.

¢ Build and manage personal and community
relationships.

COMPUTATION

* Analyze and evaluate real-world problems in a
logical manner.

* Model, analyze, and solve real-world problems
in o mathematical context.

* Utilize technology for analyzing and evaluating
real-world problems.

HUMAN RELATIONS

* Understand the importance of goal setting,
planning, and the impact of a positive mental
outlook in both ones personal and professional
life.

* Recognize and respect diversity as a vital
component of effective human relation skills.

SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE 2011-2012

COMPUTER LITERACY

* |dentify different types of computers, the
components of a personal computer (including
internal components such as microprocessors)
and how these components work together.

¢ Perform functions common to all Microsoft
Windows applications with an emphasis on the
common functionality between the two Microsoft
Office applications, Microsoft Word and Excel,
including: start and exit either the Word or Excel
application, modify the display of toolbars
and other on-screen elements, use online help,
and perform file management, editing,
formatting and printing functions common to
Word, Excel, and most Windows applications.

¢ |dentify common terminology associated with
computer networks and the Internet.

* |dentify components and benefits of networked
computers, the difference between different

types of networks (LAN and WAN).

* Describe how computer networks fit into
other communications networks (like the
telephone network).

GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS

Complete a minimum of 90 credits of specified
courses (see individual curriculum for listing) with
a minimum Grade Point Average (GPA) of 2.0.
However, the student must achieve at least a ‘C’ grade
for each course in the major. The program areas may
designate other courses in which the student must
achieve a ‘C’ or better. Complete 30 of the last 45
credits at Southwestern before the AAS is awarded.

Complete the graduation application process one
term prior to the term of completion (e.g., spring term
graduates must apply during winter term).

Industrial mechanics, 1972.

www.socc.edu



RELATED INSTRUCTION (GENERAL EDUCATION)

Courses must be selected from the approved list of Related Instruction (General Education) courses.

HEALTH AND WELLNESS

Three one credit PE185
courses or one (3 credit
course) HE250 or PE231
(Must complete with a
grade of 'C' or better)

Note: Three (3) credit hours
of PE185 may be granted
toward an Associate degree
for completion of military
basic training. A copy of the
military transcript or  DD-214
is required.

A maximum of & credits of
PE185 may be applied to the
AAS degree.

WRITING

Three (3) credit hours
at a level equivalent to
WR115 or higher. (Must
complete with a grade of
'C' or better)

WRT115, 121,122,123,
214, 2147

ORAL
COMMUNICATION/
SPEECH

Three (3) credit hours
at a level equivalent to
SP100 or higher. (Must
complete with a grade of
'C' or better)

SP100, 111, 112, 217,
218,219

MATHEMATICS
(COMPUTATION)

Three to four (3-4)
credit hours at a level
equivalent to MTH70 or
higher. (Must complete
with a grade of 'C' or
better)

MTH70, 80, 85, 94,
95,97,105,111, 112,
212, 213, 231, 232,
241, 242, 243, 251,
252, 253, 254, 255,
256, 260, 265

HUMAN RELATIONS

Three (3) credit hours or
as specified in the AAS

degree program.

(Must complete with a
grade of 'C' or better)

BA285

PSY201, 203, 100

COMPUTER LITERACY

Four (4) credit hours

(Must complete with a
grade of 'C' or better)

CIS120 or demonstrated
proficiency.

COMPLETE THE ABOVE REQUIREMENTS PLUS ELECTIVES

The balance of the requirements may not be a prerequisite course to the degree/program requirements and may not include remedial or developmental courses.
Prerequisites are designated in each program.

SUPPORTIVE COURSES

Note: The college has determined that the following supportive courses may be necessary to assist students to successfully complete their program. They will count as electives only. CIS125W, HD0529, 100, 112,
140, 147, 152, 154, 204, 208, 215, HE112, LIB127, OA121, RD101, 102, 103

Note: A maximum number of 45 credits is allowed for basic, developmental, or supportive courses under federal financial aid guidelines.

www.socc.edu
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Academic Advising (Educational Support Programs & Services)
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Academic Advising

Academic advising provides students with advisor assignment and changes for students, schedule
planning, degree information, academic and financial aid petition assistance.

Academic advisors are vital to the process of course selection and program planning. Any student who is
enrolled full-time, pursuing a degree or certificate program, or receiving financial aid should have an
academic advisor assigned by the Educational Support Programs Department in Stensland Hall. Academic
advising for the Curry Program is available by appointment through the local offices in Brookings, Gold
Beach and Port Orford.

m Advisors help students clarify the relationship between their personal goals and program of study.

m Advisors help students understand the requirements of classes and the options within programs.

m Advisors work with students to evaluate the outcome of the placement tests and determine appropriate
course placement.

Southwestern's goal for advising is to assist students in the process of developing a career or education
track.

Within the Educational Support Programs and Services department, the counselors offer the following
academic advising services:

m Help students learn about Southwestern's programs and services

m l|dentify college procedures

m Obtain up-to-date information (curriculum sheets) about requirements for Southwestern Oregon
Community College programs and degrees

Plan course schedules to meet personal needs and program requirements

Help facilitate the transfer process

Solve scheduling difficulties or problems

Identify ways to do well in class and feel satisfied about school

Top of Page 4 E-mail & printer Friendly

http://www.socc.edu/esps/pgs/advising/
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Academic Calendar .
Academic Calendar

Academic Departments
Faculty Academic Calendar 2011-12 (499 KB)

Class Schedule . o
Academic Organizational Chart (23 KB)

College Catalog The Academic Calendar is subject to change. Please check the Schedule of Classes each term for

Course Descriptions registration and distance learning information. For questions or updates to this page, please contact Anna
Chavez in the Office of Instruction.
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Introduction

Southwestern’s Academic Master Plan will:

e be developed with the participation of faculty and staff of the college

e identify and describe the instructional priorities of the college for the next 4-6 years

e recommend an action plan, steps for implementation, performance measures and list of
resources needed for each priority

e provide a framework for decision making and resource allocation

e align with and support the college’s Strategic Plan

The Academic Master Plan is intended to serve several purposes:

» To establish priority initiatives that enhance and expand instruction and student
learning.

» To advance the college’s work on: 1) operational initiatives that improve the
college’s effectiveness, and 2) transformational initiatives that help move the
college in new, strategic directions.

* To align work and resources across the college with the success of students as the priority

* To provide a focus for planning in academic and student services divisions of the
college.

» To provide guidance to other college areas as they develop plans that support
the Academic Master Plan.

* To provide ongoing assessment, accountability, and continuous improvement
measures that will guide future decisions affecting student learning at every
level throughout the college.

» To provide guidance for developing the college budget.

* To support the college’s core themes and mission fulfillment and meet accreditation
standards.

* To help drive the college’s Master Plan for facilities and resources.

* To cultivate a climate that supports and enhances diversity in teaching and
learning.

Brecke Academic Plan Information January 19, 2012 Page 1



Environmental Scan
The Academic Master Plan will benefit from an environmental scan which will include:

+ analysis of general demographic trends in Southwestern’s service area

» U.S. Census Bureau data

» current status on achievement of completion, quality and connections (to be provided by
college staff)

 identification of future community needs and opportunities based on interviews, any
community/business surveys , labor market information and other available data

+ enrollment management information

» the college’s Education Outcomes

+ accreditation info

* trends in community colleges

* Oregon education trends

Brecke Academic Plan Information January 19, 2012 Page 2



Tentative Timeline as of January 18, 2012
December — Team members identified and recruited
January 20" —Introduction/Purpose approved by Executive Team and sent to Brenda
January — First meeting January 25 3-5pm — Introduction to Academic Plan/Purpose of plan,
Process for developing academic plan discussed, basic college information as part of
environmental scan shared
February- Team discussing in divisions the purpose and options for process
March- Finalize process for developing academic plan/ share environmental scan
April — 3 meeting environmental scan

May— 4th meeting begin identifying priorities (strategic directions for learning)

Sept in-service — Time dedicated to further discussion (Large event where draft priorities shared
and ideas for action plans, implementation etc gathered)

Brecke Academic Plan Information January 19, 2012 Page 3
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Live Link as ot February 1, 2012:

http://www.league.org/services/Academic_Planning.htmi

HOME SEARCH SITE MAP EVENTS CALENDAR LEAGUE STORE

LEAGUE SERVICES HOME ACADEMIC MASTER PLANNING

MISSION OBJECTIVES

SERVICE OFFERINGS i
TOPICS BY ALPHA There are many ways that the development of an academic master plan can be

TOPICS BY CATEGORIES achieved. The process selected must fit the culture and context of the
CUSTOMERS institution. Two options are below. Each option may be adopted in whole or in
TESTIMONIALS part or elements of either process may be selected and combined.

PRICING

REQUEST A SPEAKER Assumptions:

WHAT CLIENTS HAVE TO SAY
OUR ADVANTAGE

EE A LEAGUE CONSULTANT

e Environmental scanning has been done as part of the college plan.

CONTACT US o o o .
e The vision, mission, and strategic direction of the college has been

decided upon in the college strategic planning process.

e The college’s strategic plan will provide a framework for the academic
master plan and will include some component (strategic directions or

_J PRINT THIS PAGE . . .
goals) that relates directly to the instructional program.

e A Task Force of managers, faculty, classified, and students, including
key decision makers will be established.

Role of the Task Force:
e Consults on process and adopts process that fits the college culture
e Responsible for content of the academic master plan
e Leads elements of the process
e Analyzes and synthesizes information
e Formulates strategic directions and goals
e Develops robust communication systems for feedback

e Makes recommendations and decisions

Role of the Consultant:
e Designs process in consultation with the Task Force
e Responsible for implementation of the process

e Facilitates large scale events, if necessary. (This can also be
accomplished by an internal staff person or local facilitator.)

e Debrief of events with Task Force and Chief Academic Officer

e Assistance with analysis and synthesis of work products that lead to
development of academic master plan

http://www.league.org/services/Academic Planning.html 12/22/2011
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e Facilitates Task Force

What the Academic Master Planis . . .

e An academic master plan (Learning Plan) provides a framework for
decision making and resource allocation in the instructional areas of

the college.

e The academic master plan allows other units of the college to develop
plans that support achievement of the Learning Plan.

e The academic master plan supports teaching and learning.

e The academic master plan is a "30,000 foot level" look that provides
future directions and goals for the institution.

What the Academic Master Plan is not . . .

e The academic master plan is not a means to reduce the budget
although it should set clear priorities.

e The academic master plan is not a prioritized list of instructional
programs.

Option 1

With this option most or all of the work is done by the Task Force and a draft
academic master plan is then disseminated to the college community for
feedback. The feedback is then reviewed and changes made to the academic
master plan as appropriate. The Task Force takes responsibility for the content
of the academic master plan, communication of the academic master plan, and
sharing with the community how the feedback has been used. Representatives
of key groups may be responsible for communicating with their constituents
during the development of the academic master plan.

Key Components
e Organization of the Task Force
e Understanding of the college's strategic plan
e Strengths and weaknesses of instructional programs

e ldentification and review of other pertinent planning documents and
inputs

e Analysis and synthesis of strengths and weaknesses and other
information

e Define strategic directions based on above
e Develop high level goals

e Design communication plan

http://www.league.org/services/Academic Planning.html 12/22/2011
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e Publish draft academic master plan
e Receive and process feedback

e Complete academic master plan (Learning Plan)
Option 2

In this option the role of the Task Force is to guide and steer the process and
analyze and synthesize work done by a larger representation of the college
community. The Task Force is still responsible for content but they elicit this
content from a variety of activities that bring in other voices.

Key Components
e Organization of Task Force
e Understanding the college's strategic plan

e Large scale event that brings together faculty and staff (number to
be determined) to participate in a series of exercises resulting in rich
data that contributes to development of the academic master plan by

the Task Force.

e Use of Appreciative Inquiry methodology (Dream, Discover, Design,
Deliver) that focuses on what is working and what the college wants
more of.

e Task Force identifies and reviews other pertinent planning documents
and inputs

e Task Force analyzes and synthesizes information from large scale
event and other information

e Task Force defines strategic directions based on above

e Task Force develop high level goals

e Task Force publishes draft academic master plan

e Large scale event to review and comment on academic master plan
e Task Force processes feedback

e Task Force completes academic master plan (Learning Plan)

Meetings

The number of meetings required will depend on the option selected, the level
of functioning of the Task Force, and the level of agreement. Outlined, only as
a guideline, are the kinds of items that can be covered during meetings.
Beyond the first meeting it is very difficult to predict what will happen. The
sequence of events will probably hold true but the timing (number and length
of meetings) is very dependent on the Task Force itself).

Meeting 1

http://www.league.org/services/Academic Planning.html 12/22/2011
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Setting the Stage

e Ground rules for the Task Force
e Discussion and agreement on charter for Task Force
e Discussion and agreement on design
e ldentification of information needed
e Timeline for completion of work
Meeting 2 (If Option 1 is selected)
e Development of planning assumptions
e Strengths and weaknesses analysis
e Develop strategic alternatives
e ldentify priority issues
Subsequent Meetings
e Develop strategic directions and goals

e Develop key result areas

Meeting 2 (If Option 2 selected)
e Development of planning assumptions

e Design large scale event (approve process, content questions,
attendees, etc.)

Subsequent Meetings
e Analyze information from event
e Develop strategic alternatives
e ldentify priority issues
e Develop strategic directions and goals

e Develop key result areas

A more specific plan of work with timelines and key dates is developed
following preliminary decisions with and by college leaders about the process.

To find out more, email Ed Leach or call (480) 705-8200, x233.

HOME | SEARCH | SITE MAP | iStream | LEAGUE STORE | WEBMASTER
League for Innovation in the Community College
4505 East Chandler Boulevard, Suite 250 - Phoenix, Arizona 85048 - Voice: (480) 705-8200 - Fax: (480) 705-8201
Copyright © 1995 - 2011 League for Innovation in the Community College. All rights reserved.
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Core Theme: Access - Planning Exhibit

Access planning includes activities to meet core theme objectives by actively pursuing beneficial
partnerships, new academic programs, and auxiliary enterprises, along with new and improved facilities
and infrastructure. Access planning is one of several considerations that relate to other planning processes
occurring across campus. Consideration is given to how to ensure access for students and the community
as aligned with the mission and core theme objectives. Planning for the access core theme involves short
and long term planning as evidenced by the multiple initiatives discussed within this chapter.

The Access core theme was developed to support the mission to provide quality education that serves the
educational and cultural needs of our students and communities. The description statement for this core
theme is:

Access is the pathway to learning opportunities for students and the community members
through support services and diverse delivery methods.

This core theme has two objectives:

Al. Access to multiple learning opportunities
A2. Support services for students, staff, and community

This core theme has two associated strategic plan goals:

Goal 1: Ensure access to diverse learning opportunities
Goal 2: Provide access to support services for students, staff, and the community

This core theme has four annual priorities (APs) established by the Board in July 2011 for the academic
years 2011-12 and 2012-13:

1.1: Provide student access for financial assistance to pursue their educational goals.

1.2: Support diverse learning opportunities for students and the community.

2.1: Implement software and other technology to support learning opportunities and services.

2.2: Develop and implement initiative to increase access to services for students to increase
enrollments and FTE.

This core theme currently has seven planned accomplishments (PAs). These are established each year by
the individual units and the reporting units and are aligned with the APs and the strategic plan goals. For
academic year 2011-12, these are:

1.1A: Expand access to financial assistance.

1.2A: Encourage the development of delivery systems that meet the needs of students in various
communities.

2.1A: Conduct needs assessment of services and facilities to meet ADA requirements.

2.1B: Purchase and implement new or enhanced hardware/software.

2.2A: Support opening new Curry Campus.

2.2B: Enhance and increase access to services and programs.

2.2C: Create a comprehensive enrollment process and guidelines.


http://www.socc.edu/accreditation/pgs/bm~doc/ex-access-unit-plans.pdf

The following is a narrative of the Access Core Theme broken out by standards 3.B.1 and 3.B.2 of how
we plan, deliver, and monitor our degrees, programs, courses, services, and delivery systems to address
the core theme and objectives in order to meet our annual priorities and strategic plan goals. Each section
illustrates the alignment of core themes and objectives with strategic plan goals and the associated 2011-
12 annual priorities and planned accomplishments. Within each section, specific planning initiatives are
discussed to illustrate how planning is consistent with the comprehensive planning process and is aligned
with core themes and objectives in conjunction with the strategic plan, annual priorities, and planned
accomplishments.

Each planning initiative is directly followed by a table that maps the initiative to the core theme
objectives and the success indicators along with program and services outcomes at the institutional,
reporting unit, and unit levels as appropriate. The initiative is also mapped to the associated strategic plan
goal, annual priority, and planned accomplishments for 2011-12. Prior year annual priorities and prior
year planned accomplishments are also identified when appropriate. The following table is an
example of a mapped initiative for the core theme access as illustrated in the exhibit for standard
3.B.1 (contribute to objectives):

Core Theme Objectives: Al and A2

Increase FTE (SI 1) and Enrollment (SI 2)
Increase course offerings (SI 3)

Improve community and student satisfaction of
services (SI 4)

Strategic Plan Goals: 1 and 2
Annual Priorities: 1.2 and 2.2
Planned Accomplishments: 1.2A, 2.2B, and 2.2C

Prior Year Planned Accomplishments: 1.3A

The following table is an example of a mapped initiative for the core theme access as illustrated in the
exhibit for standard 3.B.2 and within standard 4.B.1 (aligned with and contributes to program outcomes
and services outcomes):

Core Theme Objectives: Al and A2
Reporting Unit Goals:

Enrollment Management: Increase access to
learning opportunities; quality student services

Strategic Plan Goals: 1 and 2

Instructional Administration — Provide diverse
learning activities

CTE: Increase learning opportunities

Unit Outcomes:

CTE programs: Support program completion and
student success

Admissions: Increase access to learning
opportunities

Student First Stop Center: Provide online
enrollment services

Annual Priorities: 1.2 and 2.2
Planned Accomplishments: 1.2A, 2.2B, and 2.2C

Prior Year Annual Priorities: Increase FTE by
3%

Prior Year Planned Accomplishments: Increase
high school student college course enrollments
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Academic Planning

In February 2009, Southwestern was awarded a three year, U.S. Department of Labor — Employment
Training Administration (DOLETA), Community Based Job Training Grant (CBJT) in the amount of
nearly $1.2 million dollars as a result of planning processes that identified a local need for qualified
workers in the manufacturing/welding industry. Access to welding training is provided by a $400,000
mobile training lab, which includes an eight station computer lab with Solid Works software, simulators,
and four live welding stations for hands-on training and career awareness demonstrations. In addition, the
lab has a Virtual Motion Welding Simulator and a Robotic Welding Trainer. The Mobile Welding Lab
provides onsite access to state of the art welding equipment for all of the College’s ten school districts and
provides welding instructors at the high schools with on-site training. By September 30, 2011, access to
this opportunity was provided to 19 instructors and 513 high school students through grant funded
capacity building activities. The lab is also available for on-site contracted training for business and
industry throughout Oregon. Further, the lab has been to state and county fairs, career fairs, and other
related community events. The program director and Instructors have visited nearly 100 potential business
and industry partners to promote the program and the mobile welding lab. Securing the CBJT grant
supports and contributes to:

Core Theme Objectives: Al and A2 Strategic Plan Goals: 1 and 2
Increase FTE (SI 1) and Enrollment (SI 2)
Increase course offerings (SI 3)

Improve community and student satisfaction of
services (SI 4)

Financial support — SENSE (SI 6)

Increase work experience opportunities (SI 14)

Annual Priorities: 1.2, 2.1, and 2.2
Planned Accomplishments: 1.2A, 2.1A, 2.1B,
and 2.2B

Since February of 2010, joint meetings have been held with the superintendents, principals, the College’s
instructional leaders, admissions, and high school relations staff to plan appropriate course offerings on
the high school campus to increase access to additional offerings for high school students. The results of
these meetings have been increased offerings in the College Now program that provides students the
opportunity to take College courses concurrently with their high school program via diverse delivery
methods, including face to face, on-line, and hybrid course offerings. This program encompasses Dual
Credit, Enhanced Options (where Southwestern courses are offered on the high school campus by college
instructors), and Expanded Options where high school students take courses on the Southwestern campus.
These relationships have resulted in over 735 high school students taking Southwestern courses while
concurrently enrolled at their local high school—an increase of nearly 21% for 2010-11. Planning for
additional access to meet the needs of high school students to take college classes supports and
contributes to:

Core Theme Objectives: Al and A2 Strategic Plan Goals: 1 and 2
Annual Priorities: 1.2 and 2.2
Planned Accomplishments: 1.2A, 2.2B, and 2.2C

Increase FTE (SI 1) and Enrollment (SI 2)
Increase course offerings (SI 3)

Improve community and student satisfaction of
services (SI 4)

Strategic Plan 2010-11:

Annual Priority: 2.3 - Increase FTE

Planned Accomplishments: 2.3b - Increase
opportunities for indistrict high school students
through Dual Credit, Enhanced Options, On-line
and Credit Recovery.
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A pilot program for assisting students who had tested into remedial level course work in math and writing
was instituted in the fall of 2011. This program has consisted of four days of intensive skill building
workshops in math and writing, with retesting after the workshops; the intent of the skill building was to
move the students at least one course level higher. The pilot program was limited to twenty students so
that progress and assistance could be managed and monitored in an effective and appropriate manner.
Follow up with each of the participants has been conducted by a professional staff member in the
counseling department throughout fall term of 2011 with plans to continue throughout the remainder of
the academic year. The premise is that this individual attention in a cohort model will result in improved
academic performance and persistence with a potentially at-risk segment of our student population. Data
will be analyzed for term to term persistence and yearly retention over the next year. If results show this
project to be effective, the plan is to begin discussions around how to expand the program to include more
students and staff. The decision to pilot this program supports and contributes to:

Core Theme Objectives: Al and A2 Strategic Plan Goals: 1 and 2
Increase FTE (SI 1) and Enrollment (SI 2)
Improve community and student satisfaction of
services (SI 4)

Annual Priorities: 1.2 and 2.2
Planned Accomplishment: 1.2A and 2.2B

Administrative Planning

The College Foundation has also pursued beneficial partnerships as evidenced by securing additional
scholarship monies from the Miller Foundation Scholarship Program over the past three academic years,
increasing access for students through financial awards. The Foundation was able to meet the scholarship
program requirements for academic years 2009-10, 2010-11 and 2011-12 by planning a targeted matching
funds campaign. The additional monies have resulted in an increase of $300,000 in available scholarships
over the past three years for full and part-time students seeking an associate degree or program certificate;
over 300 students have benefited from the additional scholarship monies in the last three years. The
focused efforts of the Foundation to raise additional scholarship funds support and contribute to:

Core Theme Objective: Al Strategic Plan Goal: 1
Increase FTE (SI 1) and Enrollment (SI 2) Annual Priority 1.1
Financial support — SENSE (SI 6) Planned Accomplishments: 1.1A

Facilities Planning

The opening of a new facility in Curry County to replace the current building located in Brookings took
place in January 2012. This building allows for a full spectrum of education and training offerings
including college transfer, professional-technical training, business development, adult basic education,
and lifelong learning opportunities. It is expected that this facility will enable enrollments and FTE in
Curry County to nearly double from just more than 200 FTE to approximately 400 FTE within the next
three years by allowing for additional offerings and support services for students, staff, and the
community. Unduplicated enrollment in 2010-11 was 1809 and FTE was 211. Planning for the Curry
Campus was a long term goal identified when Curry County re-joined the district in 1995. The
construction of a new building in Curry County increases access to diverse learning opportunities for
Curry County residents. The construction of a new facilities increases access to learning opportunities by
supporting and contributing to:

| Core Theme Objectives: Al and A2 | Strategic Plan Goals: 1 and 2 |
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Increase FTE (SI 1) and Enrollment (SI 2)
Increase course offerings (SI 3)

Improve community and student satisfaction of
services (SI 4)

Annual Priorities: 1.2, 2.1, and 2
Planned Accomplishments: 1.2A, 2.1A, 2.1B,
and 2.2B

3.B.2

Planning for Core Theme programs and services guides the selection of contributing components
of those programs and services to ensure they are aligned with and contribute to achievement of
the goals or intended outcomes of the respective programs and services.

Administrative and educational support units/departments meet annually to identify initiatives for the
upcoming year to support recruitment and retention endeavors in alignment with the enrollment
management and recruiting plan. Data from the SENSE and CCSSE surveys, along with enrollment data,
is used to make decisions as to where to focus the efforts of the staff and the program and services
initiatives.

Academic Planning

Improving access to online allied health courses and programs have been a focus of planning over the last
five years. The Online BNA program was developed to create a statewide systems approach to increase
training capacity through a coordinated, collaborative effort to ensure student access and completion,
especially in rural and underserved communities in Oregon. The goal was to have the program available
to all eight rural community colleges throughout the state. The effort is coordinated through Southwestern
and serves students enrolling in courses at Southwestern and at Blue Mountain Community College,
Linn-Benton Community College, and Umpqua Community College. The Nursing Program has campuses
in both Coquille and in Brookings, where students receive their didactic content via IPTV, broadcast live
and interactive from the main campus in Coos Bay. Students engage in their clinical experiences in their
local communities. Students participate in simulation learning experiences on the Coos Bay campus,
interacting with faculty and classmates in the Coos Bay campus lab. This distance delivery system
provides the students with opportunities to know their local community’s healthcare system, facilities,
and providers, and also to benefit from the knowledge and experience of the full-time SWOCC nursing
faculty. The Pharmacy Technician Program is another example of a program that is available online.
Assist students to complete the program near their city of residence aligns with and contributes to:

Core Theme Objective: Al Strategic Plan Goal: 1
Reporting Unit Goals:

Enrollment Management: Ensure support for
access and to meet students expectations
Instructional Administration: Make strategic
about programming and resources

Integrated Technology Services: Maintain
technology and services to meet student needs
Presidential Administration: Promote access to
learning opportunities

Annual Priority: 1.2
Planned Accomplishments: 1.2A

Unit Outcomes:
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Admissions: Increase enrollments and FTE
Allied Health: Gap in stated goals or planning
Instructional Supervision: Develop delivery
systems that meet the needs of students in various
communities.

Nursing: Gap in stated goals or planning

Administrative and Technology Planning

The College has also begun the process of moving to a new Enterprise Resource Planning system,
Jenzabar, an integrated system to manage student, faculty, and operational information. The decision to
move to a new platform was initiated by planning within the Integrated Technology Services unit, the
end-users of the management system, and the ITGC. Requests for Proposals were submitted by various
service providers and were examined and vetted by all of the effected units and reporting units of the
College. When fully implemented in fall 2012, this new system will provide access to enhanced services
and communication for students, staff, and the community by allowing for improved processes in student
financial aid, registration and records, student recruitment, admissions, advising, student life, and
community outreach. Processes will also be improved in human resources along with business office
functions and processes. These enhancements will be possible through the use of portals allowing
students and staff to access varied information within the system from a single screen (versus multiple
screens, as in the old system). The planning of the new management system is aligned with and
contributes to:

Core Theme Objective: A2 Strategic Plan Goal: 2

Reporting Unit Goals:

Educational Support Programs and Services:
Provide access and services to support a diverse
student population

Enrollment Management: Ensure processes
support access and timely responses
Instructional Administration: Provide high quality
service to students and staff

Integrated Technology Services: Maintain
technology to meet the needs of students, staff and
community

Presidential Administration: Support strong
infrastructure

Unit Outcomes:

Early Childhood Education: Further develop
online advising

Financial Aid: Use new portals for students to
access FA information

Instructional Services: Encourage delivery
systems that meet the needs of a diverse student
population

Student First Stop: Provide access to multiple
transactions through individual portal

Student Life: Create on line new student
orientation programs

Annual Priority: 2.1
Planned Accomplishments: 2.1B, and 2.2B




The planning for the College Now programs (that allow upper level high school students to earn college
credit) documented internal processes and resulted in the development of a new handbook for students
and instructors. The College Now student handbook delineates the rights, privileges, and responsibilities
for the students’ new role as a Southwestern student to guide them in their entry into a college class. The
instructor handbook offers guidance on Southwestern policies, processes, and procedures to ensure the
delivery of an authentic college experience for the students. When the program was first initiated, the
lack of formal documentation of the internal processes to enroll students, for instructors to grade students,
and for the purchase of books led to delayed student registrations and late book purchases. The process
was reviewed during the summer of 2011 and a new process was put into place for 2011-12 based on
feedback from high school representatives, students, instructors, and internal staff responsible for
processing registrations and book purchases. Planning additional access opportunities for high school
students to take college classes by providing appropriate resources is aligned with and contributes to:

Core Theme Objectives: Al and A2 Strategic Plan Goals: 1 and 2
Reporting Unit Goals:

Enrollment Management: Increase access to
student services and quality learning opportunities
Instructional Administration: Provide quality
service to students and faculty

Presidential Administration: Promote access to
learning opportunities for students and the
community

Unit Outcomes:

Admissions: Increase enrollments and FTE

Allied Health: Work with high schools to recruit
students into Allied Health careers

Bookstore: Implement textbook rental program
Criminal Justice: Extend courses to high schools
via enhanced options

Workforce Development: Integrate College Now
services into Career Education and Workforce
Development

Annual Priorities: 1.2 and 2.2
Planned Accomplishments: 1.2A, 2.2B, and 2.2C

Strategic Plan 2010-11:

Annual Priority: 2.3 - Increase FTE

Planned Accomplishments: 2.3b - Increase
opportunities for indistrict high school students
through Dual Credit, Enhanced Options, On-line
and Credit Recovery.
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Introduction

Community college Adult Continuing Education (ACE) programs are committed to lifelong
learning and the needs of adult learners by providing a wide variety of innovative, high quality,
community driven, and affordable courses. They contribute to community, workforce, and
economic development, and citizenship goals, and support the Oregon Benchmarks (Oregon
Progress Board) for the economy, education, civic engagement, social support, and public
safety. Adult continuing education programs often provide a gateway to collegiate level
coursework and successful entry into the workforce.

The Catalog of Adult Continuing Education (ACE), formerly known as the Catalog of Other
Reimbursable Courses, encompasses a wide variety of non-credit courses in workforce
development, health, and safety. The primary purpose of this catalog is to help college staff
determine the reimbursability of an ACE course.

If a course is comparable to one in this catalog, the college can offer the course without
requesting pre-approval from the Department of Community Colleges and Workforce
Development. Adult Continuing Education (ACE) courses need to be distinguished from
recreation or hobby courses. While offered by community colleges, recreation and hobby
courses do not receive state funding. Recreation and hobby courses can only be offered on a
cost-recovery/self-support basis.

This catalog features an ACE course “At-A-Glance” page, a description and list of eligible
reimbursable courses, an explanation of the Oregon OCCURS system and ACE reporting
steps, and a resource section. We hope that you find its organization and content useful.



Adult Continuing Education (ACE) Courses At-A-Glance

Must:

= Support the Oregon Benchmarks (Oregon Progress Board) in the following areas: economy,
education, civic engagement, social support, and public safety.

= Be atleast 6 hours on a single topic

= Have direct instruction: dedicated faculty, structured learning experiences, and a curriculum

(syllabus, course outline, etc.)

» Be specifically designed for adults 16+ years.

= Be Independent of professional technical or lower division curriculum.

Reimbursable ACE Courses

Non-Reimbursable Courses

Eligible ACE Courses

O

O

Workforce-courses designed to help people

succeed in the workplace

v' (Basic) Literacy Skills: pre collegiate skill
building instruction for adults (e.g. remedial
math and writing. Academic courses
numbered under 100.)

v' Languages: conversational foreign languages
and American Sign Language

v’ Life Skills: courses that build personal and
interpersonal, parenting, college success, and
financial skills (e.g. life transitions, financial
management) Doesn't include cooking

v' Technology: instruction dealing with the use
and operation of computers and software,
PDAs, Geographic Information Systems (GIS)

v' General Workforce: Anything that meets the
intent, but doesn't fall into the other categories

Health and Safety: courses that promote safety

and health practices over a lifetime.

v' Health: fitness courses, yoga, First Aide/CPR,
nutrition, and general health topics.

v/ Safety: driver education, Marine Board
licensing, safe operation of power tools, safe
pesticide, self-defense, beginning swimming
used for water safety.

OCCURS Reporting

o}

O

Document and report all ACE reimbursable
courses to CCWD using activity code 3.6.

If a significant number of underage students (16
years and under) are enrolled, set up two different
sections: one for enrolled adults and the other for
underage students.

(Self-supported through local & student fees)

Ineligible Courses

o

O

Hobby: courses that engage individuals in the
collection of objects or in the production of works.
(e.g. stamp collecting, woodworking, holiday,
cooking, club-like activities).

Recreation: courses that engage individuals in a
physical activity across a lifespan (e.g. river
rafting)

Non-Credit Arts (e.g. photography, water color
painting)

Non Credit Sciences (e.g. geology, astronomy)
Non Credit Social Sciences (e.g. history,
psychology)

Open lab, shop or gym (Unstructured learning
experiences)

Physical education: a sport or activity where
competition is possible

No alcohol or other controlled substance (e.g.
wine making

Hunter Safety

Home Improvement to support a recreation or
hobby

Can’t be used to teach or promote astrology,
occult or religion

Dance as a major portion of the instruction.
Alternative medicine, hypnosis

Advising, counseling (Doesn't have direct
instruction.)

OCCURS Reporting

o

o

Document and report all non-reimbursable
courses to CCWD using activity code 5.1.
Course numbers and titles are local decisions.

Updated 11/2/05




OCCURS REPORTING

Every year the continuing education data is submitted to the Department of Community
Colleges and Workforce Development and warehoused in Oreqgon Community College
Unified Reporting System (OCCURS), a collaboratively designed and maintained database
relating to the 17 Oregon community colleges. Unit record student data from each of the
colleges, along with course, program, financial, and other supporting data, are submitted to the
central OCCURS office where the data are compiled into aggregate and summary reports.
This information is exchanged with the Performance Reporting Information System (PRISM),
the Oregon Department of Education’s Office of Educational Improvement and Innovation
Management Information System (OPTEMIS), and other statewide data systems. The purpose
of OCCURS is to collaboratively define and implement a standardized database which will
allow community colleges to:

a. Provide data back to the individual community colleges for use in educational planning

and improvement, conducting research on the effectiveness of community college

programs, maintaining records, and providing support services.

b. Provide comparable data for effective and timely response to state and federal reporting

requirements.

For further information on OCCURS, see
http://www.odccwd.state.or.us/textonly/occurs/default.htm. Code eligible Adult Continuing
Education (ACE) courses with the 3.6; non-eligible courses use the code 5.1. The Department
of Community Colleges and Workforce Development reviews requests annually to assure
course compliance.




255 Capital St. N.E., PSB
Salem, Oregon 97310

Adult Continuing Education (ACE) and Developmental Skills Courses

New Course Application
If a course is not listed in this catalog, the College may apply for ACE or Developmental Skills course
approval by completing this application and returning it to the Department of Community Colleges and
Workforce Development or sending an email to CCWD with all of the required elements listed in this
form.
Community College:

Course Title:

Course Number:

Course Description: (For Developmental Skills courses attach a course outline.)

Type of Course: (Check each category.)

O Adult Continuing Education (ACE) O Developmental Skills
O Workforce: O Adult Basic Education
3 Literacy O GED
3 Languages O Adult High School Completion
3 Life Skills O English as a Second Language or
O General Workforce EL/Civics Education
O Health and Fitness O Developmental level for students who
0 Safety lack sufficient background to make

satisfactory progress in regular
courses of the institution.
3 Preparation for Citizenship

Assurance:
| certify that this course meets the criteria and standards established by the State Board of Education: be primarily for adults
(16 years and older), be of least 6 hours of instruction on a single topic and independent of professional technical or lower
division curriculum, and have direct instruction. This course has been entered into our records as eligible for state
reimbursement and will remain in effect until the course is revised, no longer offered by the institution or disqualified because it
no longer meets eligibility requirements for adult continuing education or other reimbursable courses.

Chief Academic Officer Date

This course has not been approved for the following reason/s:

Department of Community Colleges and Workforce Development Authorized Representative Date

4



Eligible Reimbursable Courses Description

Statutory authority for colleges to offer this type of course is covered in ORS 341.425.
Implementation requirements are set forth in Administrative Rule 581-43-300 as excerpted
below and at (http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/rules/OARS_500/0AR_581/581_043.html).

In 2002, additional restrictions were placed on the use of state funds to support ACE courses.
Adult continuing education workforce, health and safety courses are eligible for state
reimbursement. Not eligible for state funding, but can be offered on a cost-recovery/self-
support basis, include: non-credit arts, sciences, and social sciences courses, open labs,
shops, or gyms, physical education courses where competition is possible, courses that use
alcohol or controlled substances, hunter safety courses, and courses teaching or promoting
astrology, an occult or a religion. Hobby and recreation courses have never been eligible for
state reimbursement; they can be offered on a cost-recovery/self-support basis.

Reimbursement is given only for courses that have at least six hours of direct instruction. An
hour is defined as a 60-minute period of which no more than 10 minutes can be spent for a
break or passing period. It is difficult to offer a course with more than six reimbursable hours
per day. Time spent for travel or meals do not count.

Courses must be designed for adults (at least 16 years old). Colleges are not expected to track
all students’ ages, so if a few under-aged students enroll, they need not be deducted from the
FTE count. If a significant number of underage students are enrolled in the course, submit one
enrollment section for the adults and another non-reimbursable enrollment section for the
underage student population.

The assignment of course numbers and titles are the responsibility of the local institution. Each
eligible [for reimbursement] ACE course is organized and alphabetized within each eligible

content area: Workforce: Literacy, Languages, Life Skills, Technology and General Workforce,
Health, Fitness (non-

. Optional ACE Course Numbers
competitive), and

Safety. Workforce
Literacy (Basic) 0.500 — 0.599
Developmental Skills Languages 0.600 — 0.649
courses (ABE, GED, Life Skills 0.650 — 0.699
ESL, High School Technology 0.700 — 0.749
Completion, General Workforce 0.775 —0.849
Eg?;i%?glr)‘da?;yt icall Health and Fitness 0.850 — 0.899
yPIcally | safety 0.900 — 0.999

attached to programs.
Course numbers (0.745 — 0.774, Alpha 1-98) are not included the above optional ACE
numbering system. They are eligible for state funding as Other Reimbursable Courses.



'S|IMS pue s1daduod Jsisew sjuapnis djay 01 papasu Sse enbuill HELEY .
ysiueds pue ysijbu3g ul pajuasaid uonesedaud ||iys oiseg 38v | 'd S|IMS diseg ynpy 005°0 11 M
6°G-0'C SapelD .SYSVI/SISvd | 1I9AS7] :
022-T02 12 Sapns Joj uogeredaid [ys oiseg| OePRUHRIBULUIBSE | ) oo ynpy| 0050 | LT | dM
6°8-0'9 s8peID :SYSVO/SISVd | [I9AS7] :
S£2-02Z T siuapns Joj uoneredaid [ipis diseq PISUBARY siipfs oiseg ynpy| 0090 | LT dAM
6°¢T-0'6 S9peI9 :SYSVO/SISvd Arepuodas T I9Aa7] 0050 11 aM
/GZ-9€¢ 1e sjuapnis Joj uonreredaid s dised SIIMS dlsegq npy S|IMS diseg Inpy
uononasul (uononusu| paisissy RELER

palsisse-laindwod pazifenpiAipul Buisn sanijigesip buiuses)
pue [eaisAyd yum sjuapnis JoJ uononsul S||iys aiseg

jandwod anndepy) Ivov siiis diseg ynpy| 0050 | T 1AM

uonduossag ISANOID 9[11L 8s.1no) ajdwes 9}l |elduUdD) "ON 8SIn09) | 8po)H

S3SUNOI ADVHALIT ITdINVS

‘diysuaznio pue ‘uoneonpa

_ . . 92101IOM
[eluawdojanap ‘uoneredald g3o ‘ebenbue] puodas e se ysibu3 ‘uons|dwod (o1seg) Aoreuall 111 105.15-UO

SH ‘s|IMs Apms pue Bulusea] ‘9aualds ‘aaualds [e1o0s ‘yrew ‘Bunum ‘Buipesy np N
uonduasaqg 9L apon Aiobajen

(21SVE) ADVHALIT :IDHOANUOM

"82I0PI0M\ [BIBUDD pue
‘ABojouyoa] ‘s|INS a4 ‘sabenbue] ‘(o1seg) Aoelall] :SUONLIISSE|D proIq 9AI 01Ul paziueblo ale S8SIN0J 32I0PI0N "doe|dyiom
3y} ul paadans 0} pasu ajdoad sanijige feuosiad pue s||ixs ‘abpajmou 8yl Juasaldal SBSIN0D 32I0PIOA HPBII-UON :uonduosaq

340404 XHO0OM

Buipung aje}s 1o} 9|q1b61|3 sasino (3JV) uoneonp3 Buinunuo) }npy




‘9210plom ay1 ul 81adwod 01 Aousioljoid abenbue| ysibug
papaau alinbae 1o ‘Auanonpold siayl anoidwi ‘sassasoud
1o ‘syonpoud ‘ABojouydal ‘siuswalinbal aoe|dyiom

ul sabueyd yum adsuepiodde Ul SISNI0OM JNpe JOo S||IXS
oIseq arepdn 1o apeibdn juswadueape laated loy Ajljenb
ABojouyoal ybiy yum jooial sauisnpul lisyl Jaye pakojdwa

NELER

Aels uswAojdwa J1an19q 10 Mau urelqo ‘siaytew pom|  Aoeuai aoe|dyIopn 0050 111 4M
. SIIMS diseg Inpy
ul a1adwod Ansnpul djay :01 1apJo ul S||Ivs diseq aJinboe
0] paau oym sjnpe aAIas 01 paubisaq ‘aoe|dyiom Buibueyd
3y Jo suawalinbal ||I4s pasealoul ayl buissalppe
Alreinanted ‘sqol jenjoe o) a1elal Apoalip 1eyl siuswalinbal
Aoelall arelidoidde se [jom se sjnpe 01 S||Is Jiom Buiyoeal
saziseydwsa 8sIn0d siy} ‘siakojdwa yum uoneloge||od uj
(819ereay uonduosaq oN) Buipeay | 19797 0050 111 =
. il . SIS disegq Inpy
6'T-0 sepel9 :SYSVO/SISvd ) | 1I9AS7] :
00Z MO[aq S1USpNIs 1o} Uoreredaid [|fs diseq Roeiai-aid siipis diseg ynpy| 0090 | LT AM
‘uonedlyIIBd AJNde) ou Yum Ssioiny 101N 1 Kovian NERER .
Jaajun|oA Jo pred Ag Buuioiny dnoub |jews 1o [enpiAipu| ni " S||IMS 2iseg ynpy 0050 11 M
6'G-0'C Sapelo 'SYSVYO/SISvd| arelpsuwlaiul/buluuibeg | 19A8T 0060 1 M
022-T0Z ¥e sjuapnis Joj uolreredaid |pjs diseq sdaor SIIMS diseg Inpy
6'T-0 sepel9 :SYSvO/SISvd ) | 1I9AS7] :
00 Mojaq SUBPMIS Jo} uoneredaid (b oiseg  CUIUUIPRA-3Id SEOL Iy yiceg ynpy| 0050 | LT | AM
"JaYy1ab01 pjIyo pue walted pue ‘uonedsnpa pue uoddns
Bunuated ‘synpe 1oy} S||IXS 2ISkq ‘uoieINpPa pooyp|Iyd NELER .
AlJea sainyes) »JoMasino) “uoneanpa pooyp|iyd pue Aoesan Aure S|IMS 2Iseg Jnpy 00S°0 1n M
‘quased ‘ynpe Jo weiboid pajelbajul pue pasnoo}-Ajiweo
uonduosag 3SUN0ID 3111 8sino) ajdwes 9J}1 |eJdudn "ON 9S4n09H 9po9n




‘AIB1Se\ [enlu] Jo 81ed1ila) e ulea 01 82UsIdS X
, _ . 1915e N |ooyos .
[e100S pue ‘9ausIds ‘sanewsayrew ‘ysibu3 ur Aousioyoid PIIU 10 SIBILUILS Bid 1N 2050 1 4M
pJsemol Buiiom Juapnis Joj uoneredald sapinoid [ERIU] JO 91EaURISD UPIH APV
‘Al91Se|\ padueApy JO I 00UIS |
91ed1}I11aD B ulea 0] A1esSadau SjuawaAaIyde arelisuowap SOUBADY 10 BRI Bl 1N 2050 1 4M
01 oljojiod asedaid 01 sjuapms 1o Allunpioddo sapinoid P PV HiHSO YOIH APV
S|eob 00UOS |
1@aJed pue |[euoieonpa S,)uspnis ay) se [|am Se AJlunwwod|  32IAI8S Alunwiwo) uBiH NPy 2050 111 4M
3y} 01 S8INQIIU0I 1eY) ddualladxa Jaajun|oA pasinladng .
‘9o12e.d pue Aloayl Y10/\-01-|00YIS salelbalul
Teyl siakojdwa pue ‘uonnysul [eUoNLINPS ‘SJUBPNIS
Buowre diysiaunred anissalboid sapinold 'sieob 1sased LONEONDT SATRISd0o |ooyos .
pue [euoednpa S,uapnis ayl 01 ae|al eyl sasualladxa eanp3 sl 9 ybiH Npy c0s’0 11 M
yiom annonpoud ybnolayy Bulures| yum saipnis Wooisse|d
Bunreibalul ABarens uoneonpa painionis pasialadng
‘weuboud jooyos ybiy abs|joo ayi Jo suoneldadxa
pue saniunuoddo ay) 01 1snlpe suspnis buidjay
1e pawire SsallAloe 1aylo Jo ‘siayeads ‘swjl) ‘sain1og| Jo p—— [ooyos .
S91I8S B SapIN0Id “Alunwiwod ay) pue aba)j0d Allunwiwod Nejslo SHY ybiH yNpy c0s'0 111 4M
ay1 Aq paiayo swelbouid pue S821AI8S SNOLIBA 8] 0] pue
Bumas 8ba]j09 AnunNwiWOd 3y} 01 JUBPNIS Y} SBINPOIIU|
6°8-0'9 Sapelo .SYSVYI/SISvd suonodalo) :
GEZ-022Z e swapnis Joj uonesedald |ys diseg PSOUBAPY SUORDSII0O S|IMIS oIseg NPy 1050 11 4M
6°G-0'C SapeID SYSVYI/SISYd| 8relpawliaiul/buluuibag SUOI1991100 1050 A M
022-102 Ye sjuapnis 1o} uonesedaud xS oiseg SuUO0NY8.I0D S|IMS 2Iseg Jnpy
6'T-0 sepel9 :SYSVO/SISvd ) suonodaLI0) :
00 Mo[eq SIUaPMIS Joj uoneredaid [ibjs oiseg|0H!IUIP2A-81d SUOIOBLOD g o 51cpg ynpy| TOSO | LT | 4M
uonduosag 3SUN0ID 3111 8sino) ajdwes 9J}1 |eJdudn "ON 9S4n09H 9po9n




"MOJag pue [ooyas ybiy aiseg T

‘uonninsuod ‘s'N 8yl Jo Apnis SIS “|00LIS
B S9pN|ou| ‘SjUsWUIdA0b [e20] pue ‘alels ‘[euoijeu ay) 1USWUIBA0S uedlldwy | T 61 . n GOS0 111 4M
ul SuaznId Jo 9|0l pue ‘uoneltado ‘ai1N1oNAs ay) Sadnpoau| YPIH INPY
EERVEIRS
*9S1N09 pajelbajul 55UBI rew paildd pue yrey .
3UO 01Ul PBaUIGWIOD 32UBIJS [elauds) pue Y palddy PS8 UIeN paliddy palddy :jooyos v0s'0 11 M
ybIH NPy
‘o)l AepAiana ETCIEIY
Ul 8Injelsy| JO S0UBABISI PUB BN[eA BY) puelsIspun L oo ueolBWY .
‘sjuawigje asolud Ajnuapi 01 Aljige ayl sdojanaq “ewelp pue Jedon Hally ;|]ooyos €050 11 M
‘Anaod ‘uonaly Buipnjoul ‘ainjelall] uedBWY Sa2NpPoIU| ybiH ynpy
S 19197 SYSVO e Aousladwod 10} uononnsul Bunm ge Bunum By | 2080 | 1| dm
ooyo
SEZ SYSVO 18 Aousradwios Joj uononnsu Buipesy qe1 Buipeay sm_w_:,u_:w/* 2050 | LA | 4m
ooy
52 SYSVO Ie Aousladwo 10} uononasul yren qe yrew By | 2050 |1 | dm
"uonoNJISul
Arepuodas yim (ue|d uobaip ayl '6'8) aousuadxa| welbold JUBWSSOSSY |ooyos .
3JI| puUB YJ0M PaJUBLINIOP JO JUBLISSSSSE UoNeUIqUIOD 2ouauadx3 o ybiH INpy c0s'0 1n M
B Yum 1Ipald jooyds ybiy ynpe apinoid o1 welbold
"1IpaJd [00oyds ybiy 1ynpe auo se pardiiosuel agq Aew |00Yy2S .
$9sIn02 abenbue| ublalo) [9A8] 869]|02 Aue JO S)IpPaId XIS sbenbue ublaiod ybiH ynpy c0s0 11 M
"1IPaJd |00yds ybiy jnpe auo se paydudsuel) |ooydos .
ag Aew sasIn0d Jajsuel] [aA9] ab3)|02 Aue Jo Supald XIS Hpaid end ybiH Npy c0s’0 11 M
uondiosag 3SUYNOID 3111 8sino) ajdwes 3)}IL |eJauan "ON 9s4n09H apoH




1)

"MOJ3( pue [ooyds ybiy aiseg T

‘'swig|go.id uonesiuNWWOod UOWWO0D BA|0Sa ;uonesiunwwo)
pue ssasse 0] salbarels saziseydw3 ‘Buipeal pue ‘Bunum| SIS uoneIIUNWWO)D ;|looyos 9050 111 4M
‘Bujeads ‘Buiualsi| ybnoiyl S||IMs uoneauNwwod sanoidw| ybiH ynpvy
'SS9204d uonezIfeINI_U 3y Ul [enpIAIpUl 8Y] 1SISSe 0] SalelS SOIAID :|00Y9S .
palun ayl ul Juswulanob Jo wioy pue AIoiSIy ay) SABAINS diysuazmd ' ybiH ynpy S0S°0 11 M
"Juswiuianob ]
. . SOIAID :J00Y9S .
JO SayourelIq 9AIINJSXT pue eipnr ‘aAle|sIiba] ay) JUBWUIBA0Y) SN T Bin 1N GOS0 111 4M
Buipnjoul saipoq ednijod reuoneu Jo uoneiado ay) SABAINS YOIH INPY
'S$9SS920.4d pue ainonas ‘uonisodwod Sy-aine|siba alels )
SJIAID [JooYydS :
uobalO ayl 01 usAIb uonuane [eldads yum saipoq eanijod JUBWIUIBA0Y) alelS T 6 G0S0 111 4M
[euoneu pue ayels ‘[eao| Jo uonelado [eandeid ayl SAeAINS YPIH APV
uonediunwwod dnolb pue jeuosiad
‘lauuosiad pue pasueul Se yons siun feuoneziuebio
‘JuawuIan0b [e20] uo abueyd 21ILIOUOIB0ID0S
1O S108JJ8 aY] ‘Sainjonas [eluawulanob pajejal pue SOIAID :|00YdS .
Bujuiy reonijod Jo uswdojaAap Byl SMAIASY "Salllunwwod HUSWLISA0D €907 ' ybiH INpy S0s°0 11 M
1ayjo 01 uonealdde pue [aA9] a1e1s ayi 1e suoneadldwi
aAeY Jey] SalliAloe [B20] SBpN|oU| "SUSZNID uedlsWwy JO
saiAnoe AepAiana ay) 1094 eyl SuolNNsul [ed0] SMaINSY
‘uonelaidiaiul [euonniIsuod
0 JnNsal e se uolne|sifa] pue ‘quawulanob Jo sayouelq salels ;SOINID :|o0YdS .
aAlINdaxa pue [eipnl ‘anne|siba) ay) Aq uonelaidisiull payun ayl JO uonNIISU0D ybiH ynpy S0s°0 11 M
S¥ ‘sfenpiAipul 0 Buiueaw sy ‘uolnNIISUOD 'S'N By} SalpnIS
“JUBWIUIBA0D
A9 Aep 1ussaud Jo swajgold pue s1oadse snolea i
. SJIAID [JooYydS :
3Y] U0 SasN204 "Saliniuad ay) JaA0 padojanap uaaq uswiuIan09) Al T 6 G050 111 4M
aAey Jeyl seapl Jofew ay) Buimalnal pue 19eU0) [e100S UPIH NPV
JO BuLo0q 8yl yum buluuibaqg uswuianob [eao| shkening
uondiosag 3SUYNOID 3111 8sino) ajdwes 3)}IL |eJauan "ON 9s4n09H apoH




17

"MOJag pue [ooyas ybiy aiseg T

buiil J01509 SOIWOU09]
ayl pue ‘Buipuads 1ouap ‘sabem ‘ABojouydel ‘siuswAed Jo SOILIOU0DT JO ASAINS T ._.oo;o.w 8060 T M
aoueleq ‘saxe) ‘Jamod Buiseyaind ‘uonejul se yons saidoy : m_ n
sapnjoul :AWou02a ay) aauanjjul 1eyl SJUSAS SaONPOoJIU| UPIH INPY
. SOIWOU09]
spoliad [ea110]sIy 01 ayejal asoyl Moy pue uostredwo) T - 00UD .
‘swa|go.d 1uaLInd pue SolIWouo9a Arelodwaluod SASAINS|  [ed0]SIH ‘SoILoU02] sm_I ﬂ:w,q 8050 11 M
‘Buipuelsiapun o1uUaIdS snoinaid 55UBID
Ou 10 3| yum spuapnis 1oj suonealdde pue sajdiound SaISeq S0UBIDS tﬁmm . o.owow 1050 T M
90UBI0s [elauab saonposu] “uosiad ayelsy| Ajeoynualos : : Y 6 | N Y
B 2W023( 0] papaau s||Is pue abpamouy ayl sdojaaaq YPIH INPY
Aa1o0s ERIETIS
pue ‘siaaled ‘ABojouyoal ‘saaualds [edisAyd uaamiaq 22UB10S [e2ISAU stwm ._o.osom 1050 T M
sdiysuonejal ayl sapnjou| ‘uosiad ajeisll| A|eolynualos : : 6 . N
B 8Wo029( 0} papaau S||INS pue abpamouy ayl sdojaaaq UPIH INPY
*A18100S pue ‘s1aaled ‘Abojouydal ‘adusids
usamiaq sdiysuonejals ayi sepnjou| ‘Aueloq pue Abojoiq ;90UBIS
0 sassa204d pue ‘sme| ‘salioayl ‘sajdiound ‘sydaouod 92UBI0S 9JIT yue3 :jooyos 10G°0 111 4M
o1JnuaIds Jolew ayl sadnposu| ‘uosiad arelall| Ajealnualds ybiH INpy
B 8Wo029( 0} papaau S||INs pue abpamouy ayl sdojpaaq
"SOILLIOUODD puk ‘8in]nd ‘JUSWUOIIAUD S0UBIDG
a1 Jo sdiysuone|ai-1aiul ayl pue :A6oj02a pue adusIds 0UBIOS [EIUBLILOIAUT stwm ._o.osow 050 T JM
jo sajdiound ay) saulwex3 ‘uosiad arelall| Ajjealnualds . : bl . N
B 2Wo029( 0] papaau S||INs pue abpamouy ayl sdojaaaq UPIH INPY
. . , 31008 SaouaIdS
pue ‘sigaled ‘ABojouyda) ‘aaualds uaamiaq sdiysuone|al 22UBIDS ULET Emmm_ 00s | 1050 1 M
ay1 sepnjou| ‘Awouosise pue ‘Abojoab ‘Ansiwayd ‘saisAyd : 6 . n
J0 suoneoldde Ajrep pue sajdioulid d1seq syl sadnposu| YPIH INPY
uonduosag 3SUN0ID 3111 8sino) ajdwes 9J}1 |eJdudn "ON 9S4n09H 9po9n




4}

"MOJaq pue [ooyds ybiy aiseg ‘T

;Sorewayrey
"‘9ourIUD 963||02 10 papaau S||IS dreigable sdojanaq Z elgab|y :jooyos eIS°0 111 4M
ubiH NNpY
‘'suonenba [euonoel) pue suondel) dleigable N
‘syjonpoud pue si01oe} ‘suonenba ajdwis ‘siaquinu Jo 21056 T _Hoo oE N .
soluadoud pue suonelado [eluswepun) JnNoj ayl ‘siaquinu | B1G90V m__ ;:w €150 11 M
paubis ‘seinwuoy yum Buieap sonewayrew ayl sAkaning YPIH INPY
: SdlrewsyreN
sayoeoidde a .
oreigabe Buisn s|is Buinjos-wajqold sdojenag T elgably cmﬂuﬂww< €150 11 M
"BOLIBWY YINOS pue ‘1se3 a|ppIN 9y} ‘BISY ‘@dlY JO SOIPNIS
so|doad .mm_u:_oc_ ‘abe1s [eqo|b e uo co_%N__S_.o mwo:.cobc_ UOREZIIALD PHOM _mﬂw___mw_ w__ww_@ow ¢1s’0 11 M
‘A1a120s [eqo|b SaIpMIS
3y} JO SolWou029 pue ‘ainynd ‘Aydesboab ays Jo s1oeduwl SaIpMS A0S _mpw_.w. L00y0S | 2150 T M
pue usamiaq sdiysuone|al Arejodwaluod pue |[edallolsiy : B : n
ay1 Jo uoneinaidde pue Buipueisiapun ue sdojaaaq YPIH INPY
‘sase|je ;Aydeiboas
pue sdew Jo asn ay) pue ‘plaom ayi Jo suolbal Jofew ‘yue3 Aydeiboas plopn :|jooyos TIS0 111 4M
19ue|d ay) Jo sainles] [einynd pue |eaisAyd ayl saulwex3 ybiH INpy
‘A18100S Asesodwialuod 10} aouedIUbIS £101SI 0 ;MOISIH :looyds .
S1l pue pliom ay Jo JuawdojaAap [ea1I01SIYy Yl SMIIASY 1S1H PHOM ybiH ynpv 015°0 11 M
*A19100S Alesodwialuod 10) 8ouUedYIUDIS S pue £I01S] ;MOISIH :jooyos .
S81e1S Palun 8y} JO Juawdo|ansp [ESLOISIY SU) SMBIASY BIH SN bt ynpy | 0TS0 | L dM
BaH :jo0yd
(‘alqe|rene uonduosap oN) UresH H;Hr@_ng__:_om S| 6050 | 11 | 4am
uonduosag 3SUN0ID 3111 8sino) ajdwes 9J}1 |eJdudn "ON 9S4n09H 9po9n




€T

"MOJag pue [ooyas ybiy aiseg T

‘Ajewouobin S
pue Anawoab Arejuswa|a ul sagsualiadxa Alojonpoaul T _H Wen .
Se ||]aM Se se|nwioj pue suonenba yum 3iom [euonippe ITHEA m_oocom €150 111 M
SapN|oul pue S||IXS | Sonewayle\ diseg saenunuod UPIH NPV
"Swi9|qoid piom pue ‘sejnuwiioy
pue suonenbs ‘sydeib ‘yuadiad ‘Buipunoj pue Bulioloe)
‘uoniodold pue onel ‘uswainseaw ‘suoijoel) [ewidap Hmo%EmsE_\/_ .
pue SuondeJ) UOWWOI ‘Siaguinu 3joym yim uonelado I e |00UOS €150 11 M
[eluswepun; ‘uonelawnu Jo swaisAs :saziseydw3 eiqabe UBIH 3INpY
Jo Apnis ay) 10j siseq e se sassadold dnawyllie Smalnay
‘Buinjos wivjgold pue ‘sadeys A15W09S Hmomﬂm%cmowm_\/_ €160 A 1M
‘suloned oswoab asn pue aziubooal 0] Alljige sdojanag sm__._ NPy
‘'swia|qoud aAj0s 0] uoneindwod pue ‘s)daduod HmomaEmEm_\,_ i
uonelawnu ‘siaqunu Aldde pue asn 01 Aljige sdojanaq WEW [elstesD sm_m_u.m_uﬂw_w,q €150 11 M
: solewsayle
aANnoadsiad Joawnsuod wo.y UIEW JOWNSUOS T - 00U9S €150 T M
so|dwexs pue suoneoljdde Buisn 8SIN02 Yrew [elauas yBIH INPY
"eIgabe buluulbaqg pue yrew [elausab
woJj sjool buisn suonnjos aindwod pue azAjeue 0] papasau Hwo%EoEm_\/_ .
s||Ms ay1 dojanap sjusapnis djay o1 pasn ale sjosloud Ure payddy |00UdS €150 11 M
UO SpueH ‘sonewaylew Jo sasn [eanoelid ay) saonpoau| UBIH 1INpY
‘suoljelieA pue suolenba snoauelnwis
‘suonenba Jeaul| Jo swaisAs ‘uonouny ayisoddo pue
aslaAul buiydeub ‘suonouny ‘suonejal ‘syonpoud ueisaue) 6 Hmo%EmEm_\,_ .
‘sanfenbaul ‘suonenba eoipes sjdwis ‘soneipenb Bulnjos Il E1a3b1v m_oocum €150 11 M
‘sjusuodxa [euoiel ‘sjealpel Jo vigable ‘Sadipul uans YPIH HNPY
pue ppo ‘s[ealpel Jo dlBWYIe ‘S1aquinu [eal Saonpo.u|
uonduosag 3SUN0ID 3111 8sino) ajdwes 9J}1 |eJdudn "ON 9S4n09H 9po9n




14’

"MOJaq pue [ooyds ybiy aiseg ‘T

. adualadx3y
S|eob Jaaled pue [euoneINPS SJUBPNIS By} )
MIOM paINoNIS .
Se ||]am Sk AJlunwwod 8y} 01 S8INgLIu0d Jeyl aduauadxs|  82IAI8S Allunwiwo) - 00Y9S €I50 1n 4M
1991un|oA pasiAladns 1oj 1pald jooyos ybiy Sapinod ;
JUNJOA pasi } 1PaJ3 |00YIs ybiy sspinoid YBIH INPY
‘9onoe.d pue A1oay) 310/\-01-|00Y0S salelbalul
Teyl siahojdws pue ‘uonnyisul [eUORERINPS ‘SJUBPNIS ;9ouauadxg
Buowe diysiaunred anissalboid sapinold 'sjeob Jaased LONEONDT SATEIad0o MIOM painonns .
pue [euonednpa s,uapnis ay) 01 ae|al eyl saoualladxa eanp3 sl 9 :|looyas 8150 11 M
MJom aAnonpoad ybnouayl Bulures] yim saipnis wWooisse(d ybiH yNpy
Buneibayul ABarells uoneanpa painionils pasialadng
‘'suonenis ajl| pue yiom AepAiana ;Abojonos
ul uonesldde eanoeud 0] s1Jdaduod soie|ay ‘ainynJ INo ABojoloos :jooyos .TIS0 111 4M
ul Juapine swa|goud Arelodwaluod Jo Apnis ayl Seanposu| ybiH yNpy
‘poads pue uoisuayaidwod BUIDRS Hmmwcmomm_ .
Buipeal asealoul 0] paubisap sI 8SIN0I SIYL IPESY 00UdS 9150 11 M
ybiH npy
‘'suolnenyis al| pue 3lom AepAlana ul uonedldde
[eanoeid 01 s)Jdaduod sare|ay ‘AbojoyosAsd paldde H\Go_oco\ﬁn_ .
_ . . . ABojoydAsd j]ooyds SIS0 | 11 | dm
pue ‘IoIABYaq [ewiue ‘Yieay [elusw ‘Alpeuosiad ‘Uuonows
. _ . h UBIH yNpy
uondaaiad ‘Buuiyy ‘Buluies| ‘uoneAnow SaaNPoIU|
: . uoneonp3
aAnnadwod UON "Bl aInsIg| JO aSh aAI108Yd pue yljesy Loneanp3 [ealsk mo_ﬁm KU 100UD .
‘ssaull} ‘Auanoe [eaisAyd Buojayl| 1oy salbarells saonpou| : b3 [E21SAUd ! .sm_ﬁ_h._a:.rc% S| vis0o 11 M
*Aepo] S|o0yds ul pasn [Sorewayrey
saonoeld pue Areingedoa yrew diseq ay) buipueisiapun|  sonewayle\ UIapoin :|looyas €IS0 1n 4M
ul paisaJalul syualed 1o} soiewsyliew uiapow saulwex3 ybiH ynpv
'S9JBIS PaluN By} Ul Juswainseaw Jo plepuels pSOnEWaUEN
B se WalsAs o_bm_\/_ ayl m.c_w: l1o] }jnpe ay1 saJsedald WansAs dsN |00UOS €150 11 M
UbIH JNpY
uonduosag 3SUN0ID 3111 8sino) ajdwes 9J}1 |eJdudn "ON 9S4n09H 9po9n




qaT

"MOJag pue |jooyds ybiy aiseq ‘T

INEUCE
‘Anaod o swioj pue ‘sajAls ‘sijuawald ayl areloaidde JluBpedy .
pue Amuapi 01 Alljige syl sdojanap pue Anaod saonpoau| Anaod |[ooyos S15°0 11 M
ybiH npy
‘'sladed wuo) 10) yoseasal paseq o____c_w>wn.v_
Alnbui pue ‘aaneald ‘anisensiad pue onAreue quawnbiel (Bunupp) z uonisodwo) 100 _oo v GIS'0 111 4M
pue 9jA1s :Buipnjoul s||iys Bunum reandeid sdojaaaq |00UdS
ubiH INpy
JuauIBA0Idw sydelbere Bunupn :jooyd
aousjuas pue Juswdojaaap ‘ainjoniis ydeibered sapnjou| . Mm mc_ﬂ T .m_>> _: Uss Y150 111 4M
‘Bunum ydelbered Aiojisodxa d1Seq Ul UOONIISUI SBPIAOIH 199113 bUlM UPIH INPY
‘buljjads
pue s||iXs [ealueyossw ‘uonisodwod ‘sasodind Bunum Bunupa :jooyss .
paziseydwsa pue abenbue| ysijbug ayj Jo sansLvloRIRYD wawanoiduw buntim | * ybiH 1npvy v150 11 M
ay1 sAanung “saloualolap Bunum saipawal pue ‘sasoubeiq
‘Buipeal jooud
pue swAuowoy Bunods|as ‘uonaNASUOI pIom ‘uonerounuold Bunupn :jooyas .
‘“Yoene plom aiseqg :sapnjou| ‘swajqoid buljjads fenpiaipul T juswanoldwi Bugads | ¥ ybiH ynpy V150 11 M
pue [elauab yioq uo Bunenuadsuod Aq Bulads sanoidw
"S[|IYS uoledIUNWWOod UsIM 8Sealdul pue OUnLIAA [J00y2S .
‘Arejngedon ‘Buljjads anoidwi 01 papaau S||I4S Sluasald wawanoiduw buiads ybiH ynpvy V150 11 M
Bbunupa :jooyds
"a|ge|reAe uondiiosap o Saouaud T :
(aiqel hdiosep ON) es Wiy npy | TS0 | LT | dm
1USLIdO[RASD sydeibere Bunupa :jooyd
ydeibesed pue ainjonins asuauas pue ‘uoneniound 0 scm wmocnm_ Us T .Hm_>> _: Uss Y150 111 4M
‘rewwrelb buissans s||iqs bunum oiseq sdojanaq Hoys p Wes YOIH }NPY
] bunu ;jooyss .
a|gejreAe uonduosap o S2IUO T
(‘a1qey! nduosap oN) luoyd UBIH 1NpY ¥1S°0 11 4M
uonduosag 3SANOID 3111 8sino) ajdwes 9311 |eJduUdD) "ON 9S4n09H apoH




97

€-2Z 1dS "ysibu3 ur uonedunwwod elo
J1Seq 1sow ay} AJuo aAjoAul Teyl sqol |aAal-Aus aunnol
3|puey ue) ‘swioj payldwis uo uonewlojul [euosiad diseq
3llIM UR) "Spaau ajelpawwl 03 pare|al saselyd ajdwis pue abenbue]
spJom 1ybIs 2ISeq JO Jaquinu pajili| B pue siaquinu pue Buluuibag puo2as 9TS0 1 4M
SI8)19| S8IUM pue Speay 'Sadusluas pue saselyd paulies) V SV ys||bu3
aIseq Buisn sanljige uoneaiuNwwod elo a|dwis awos aney
Aew :spaau ajelpawiwi 0] paje[al suonenis ul ANouip
3WOS YlIM UuoNduN} oym sjuspnis Joj paubisap uononnsul
‘pauwi| Alpwanxa
ale sa2i0yd uawAoidw3 "ys)bu3 ul uoneIIUNWWO USNLIM obenbue
1o [eJo asinbai 10u op 1eyl sqol |aAsl-Anua aunnol Alaa KoR151-51 U095 .
a|puey ue) -abenbue| Aue ul a1elall| 10U 10 SPIOM pPale|os! 1-ald P S 9150 11 M
M3} e pue ainisab ybnoliyl Ajuo seresiunwwo) "ysijbu V sV usiibu3
ul ‘[re 1e JI ‘Arewiuiw uonouny oym sjuapnis 1oy uononsu|
T-0 1dS "ysibu3 ul uoned21uNwWWwo9
[e4o asnbal jou op 1ey sqol |aAs|-Aua sunnol
AJuo 3jpuey Ue) ‘SSalppe pue sWweu UMO 3llIM Ue) "SPIOM Benb
1ybIS uowwWod SpueISIapUN pue Speal pue ‘siaquinu 5 SbENbUE .
pue sIana| SallIM pue saziuboday uayo pareadal uuuibag puo29s 9150 11 M
pue Amo|s uayods saselyd pautes| aiseq 01 spuodsal pue v sV uslibuz
SySe ‘Spaau alelpawiwl 01 parejal suonenis ul Aem payiwi|
AJBA e ul uonouny oym spuapnis 1o paubisap uonanisu|
: - Il [9AS7]
LSGZ-SEC S[9N97 SYSVD SIwBpedY
‘Arejnqeoon pue uonelaidiaiul ‘uoisuayaldwod yoene S|IMS Buipeay ._oocom GIS0 111 4M
piom Buidojanap ul s|ixs Buipeal [eluswepuny salddy UBIH NPy
uonduosag 3SUN0ID 3111 8sino) ajdwes 9J}1 |eJdudn "ON 9S4n09H 9po9n




LT

) abenbue
S8SIN02 1IpaJd 963|102 01 1S3 woly Buluonsues) 1S3 uonisuel] DU9SS 9150 1 M
J0 ssa20.d ay) syuapnis 1S3 1sIsse 01 paubisap uonanisu| v sy usibug
'S92IN0Sal JO 3SN J|gIX3|} pue 1UBIJIYS ‘S82IN0SaI pue
Spaau Allunwwod uo paseq ubisap a|qixayl} ‘sjusuodwod
aA0Qe Jo uonelBbaul ‘1ay1abol pliyo pue juased ‘uoneonpa abenbue]
pue uoddns Bunualted ‘synpe 1o} S|IXS dIseq ‘uoneonpal 1S3 Aoelal Ajlwe puooas 9TS'0 111 4M
pooyp|iyo Apeas :sojdiounud Buipinb pue siusuodwod V SV ysIjbu3
Inoj apnjoul sweibold ‘uoneasnpa pooyp|iyd pue
‘quased ‘ynpe Jo weiboid pajelbajul pue pasnoo)-Ajiwed
+/ 1dS 'Spaau }i0Mm
199W 0] Aoeindode ajgeuoseal Yium ‘swioj pue ‘suodal ‘sbo)
Se yons ‘syse) bunum pue buipeas wiopad ue) -ongnd
ayl yum 1oelalul pue sasAojdwa o) yooqpuey sjdwis e
peal ‘suononisul usnum ajdwis pue [elo BulMo||0) SBA|OAUI
Teyl YI0M 3|puey ueD ‘SUOIBSIBAUOD Pale|al-}IoM BullNol abenbue]
pueisiapun ‘suoneadidde qol pue sw.oj uonewlolul 1S3 pasueApy puooas 9TS 0 111 4M
[ed1paw 1IN0 |1} ued ‘sjaqe| pue ‘sydelb ‘sureys aunnol V SV ysibu3
194d1a1ul ued ‘syoalgns AepAiana uo sjelsrew payldwis
-uou 1aidiaqul pue peal ue) 'saidol Jeljiwe) uo auoydajol
3yl Uo 31edluNWwWod pue Bulueaw eisuab Ajue|o ued
‘SUOINENIIS YIOM puR [BID0S pue [eAIAINS Ul Apuapuadapul
uolouNy UBd oYM SJUSpPNIS 10} paubisap uononnsu|
uonduosag 3SANOID 3111 8sino) ajdwes 9J}1 |eJdudn "ON 9S4n09H 9po9n




8T

‘s1sa] JuswdojaAa@ uoneoanp3 [eiauas ay)
aAl 8y} ssed 0} papaau S|INS HIOM PUY )17 ‘SUY ay) pue
ainyeJall] ‘SalpnIS [e190S ‘9uaIdS ‘YrelN ‘Bunupa ‘ysibus
ul ‘sanijioe) suonoallod 1e papiroid uoneredald [|IMS dised

suonvalI0D-a3o

d3ao

LTG0

111

AM

"Yle\ pue ‘ainjelai ‘@dualos ‘salpnis [e1o0s
‘SIS Bunup :seale 1S81 39 oAl [[e Ul paaddNns 0} pasu
[I.NOA s||xs Buuiyy pue Buipeal [euonippe ayl dojaaaq

uonesedald 3o

d3ao

L1950

11

aM

'S]1S9l EwEQo_®>®O

uoneanp3 |eiauas) ayl aAll 8yl ssed 01 papaau
SIS YIOM puy 8J17 ‘SUY 8y} pue ainjesd) ‘saipnis
[e100S ‘9oUBI0S ‘YN ‘Bunupn ‘ysiibuz ui ‘sanijioe)
[euO11081109 JO Sjuapnis 10} uoneredald (XS dlseg

d3ao

d3ao

LTG0

111

AM

'SIeal {7 JO wnuwiuiw e 10} Juspisal ‘S'N e

aq pue pJted uaalb e aney ‘(apelb G-) D |9A9] 1S3 1€ d1IM
pue peal 0] 3|ge aq P|NOYS SIUSPNIS "USNLIM IO A|elo -1s8)
diysuazino sn ayi axel 01 sjuapnis saredald sse|d siyl

diysuazno

abenbue
puooas
V sV ysl|bu3

9190

111

AM

"8210110M 3y} Ul 818dwod 03 AliAnonpold Jisy)

anoiduwi ‘sassasoud Jo ‘sponpold ‘Abojouydal ‘sjuswalinbal
aoe|dyJom ul sabueyd Yyim adueplodde Ul SIaxIom

Jnpe Jo S||Ms diseq arepdn o apeibdn JuswadsueApe
1aaJed 1oj Ajpenb ‘ABojouyoal ybiy yum |joolal sasnpul
l1ivy) Jaye pakojdwa Aeis quawAojdwa Janaq 1o mau ure1qo
‘s1oxrew plaom ul 81adwod Aisnpul djay 031 J8pIo Ul SIS
aIseq pue Aouaioijold abenbue| ysibu3 papasau alinboe

0] paau oym sjnpe aAIas 01 paubisaq ‘aoe|dyiom Buibueyd
3y Jo suawalinbal ||Ixs pasealoul ayl buissalppe
Alreinanted ‘sqol jenjoe o) a1elal Apoalip 1eyl sjuswalinbal
Aoelall arelidoidde se [jom se sjnpe 01 s||ixs Jiom Buiyoeal
aziseydws ‘siakojdwa yum uoneloge|oo ul ‘sweiboid

1S3 Aoelan aoe|dyJop

abenbue
puooas
Vv sV ysl|bu3

9190

111

aM

uonduosag 3SUNOD

3111 8siIn0) ajdwes

a1 |esauan

"ON 9S4n09)

apo)




67

‘'suonoallp buimojjoy pue ‘asodind
e 10} Bulpeal ‘sureyd pue sydelb bunaidiaiul ‘uonew.soyul
Bulureras pue Buiziuebio ‘Bunosjas ‘Buneoo| ul s|Ms spling

SIS Apns

SIIMS BunjuiyL

8190

111

AM

‘Buinjos wiajgolad pue ‘Buluueld ‘108)8 pue
asne? ‘sisAjeur [ea160] ‘BuuIyl [eoN1ID Ul S||IS sdojaaaq

S|IMS Busuiy L

S|IMS Bunuiy L

8150

111

AM

‘Buinjos wiajgo.ad pue ‘Buiuueld ‘198)8 pue
asned ‘sisAjeue [ea1bo| ‘Bujuiyl eonuo ul s|s sdojeaaq

S|IMS Bunuiy L

SIIMS BunjuiyL

8190

111

aM

‘suonoalp

Buimol|o} pue ‘@aualajul ‘s||is aduajuas ‘Buluoseal
SI9A0) "ealJe 1ualuU0d Aue 0] palidde pue s1xa1uod
Buinjos wajqoid ul pasn suoneltado Bupjuiyl saziseydw3

S|IMS Bunuiy L

S|IMS Bunuiy L

8150

111

4M

"suonoallp

Buinmo||o] pue ‘@aualajul ‘S||IYs adualuas ‘Buluoseal
S1aA0) "eale Juauod Aue 0] paldde pue s)xa1u09
Buinjos wajgoid ul pasn suoneltado Bupjuiyl saziseydw3

S|IMS Bunuiy L

SIIMS BunjuiyL

8190

111

AM

‘salbojeue pue ‘Buiuoseal aAnoNpul

pue aAnonpap ‘bulousanbas ‘erep buusplo ‘uonew.olul
1UBAS|a) WOJ) JueAd|al Bululwialap ‘suonsanb Bunels pue
BulAnuapi ‘suonaniisul Buimo|jo) sapnjou ‘Buiajos wajgo.d
pue Bupjuiyl [eanio 1oy sanbiuyoal pue S||IYS suasald

Buiurea aAnoayg

S|IMS Bunuiy L

8150

111

4M

"S||MS pue s1deduod Jslsew Ssjuspnis
djay 01 papaau se ysiueds pue ysibu3 ul pajuasaid
a3o abenbue| ysibu3 ayi o) uoneredald ||Ivs dlseq

a3ao renbuiig ysiueds

d3ao

LTG0

111

4M

"s1sa] Juswdojana@ uoneonp3 [eiauas) ay)
oAl 8y} ssed 0] papaaul S|INS HIOM PUY )i ‘SUY 8y} pue
aInJesa)l ‘salpniS [e190S ‘9dusIds ‘YreN ‘Bunun ‘ysibu
ul ‘sail|ior) SUoNJ81109 e papiroid uoneredaid ||INS diseg

Sg0r-d4o

d3ao

LTG0

111

=

uonduosag 3SUNOD

311 8sino) ajdwes

a1 [eiduaD

"ON 9S4n09)

apo)




0¢

"saselyd uoWWod pue SadudUSS

JO MOJ} [eUOITBSIBAUOD pue uolelounuold saziseydws abenbue

uoiesIsAuo) ysiuulS 1090 ‘A =

:saouoiuas ajdwis pue saselyd awos Buipnjoul ubialo
‘spiom 00G Ajdrewixoidde o1 Jsuuibaq syl sadnposu|
‘Buyeads
pue ‘Buiuals)| ‘Buljjads Aq pajjouo0d uonedunuoid ouelads abenbue .
‘SJUBUOSUOD paluadde aAll Bulpnjoul ‘sajni adI1seq } 3 ubialo4 109°0 Vi M

ay1 ul uononnsul ybnoayr abenbue| Areljixne siyl SMainay

‘'soselyd uowwod pue Saduauss
JO MOJ} [eUOleSIBAUOD pue uonelounuold saziseydwa abenbue
. uonesIanuo) ysiued
'saouaguas ajdwis pue saseiyd awos bBuipnjoul ubialo4
‘spiom 00G Ajrewixoidde 01 Jsuuibaq ay) sadnposu|

1090 ‘A =

‘'saselyd AepAlans pue sadualuas

JO MOJ} [euoneSIaAU0D pue uonerounuoid saziseydws abenbueT

UolesSIaAU0D asaulyd T090 ‘A =

‘saousiuas ajdwis pue saselyd awos Buipnjoul ubialo4
‘spiom 00G Ajrewixoidde 01 Jsuuibaq ay) saonposu|
‘uonelounuold saziseydwa
. abenbue .
saouauas ajdwis pue saselyd awos Buipnoull  UONBSIBAUOD dlgely ub12104 T09'0 v 4M

‘spiom 00G Ajrewixoidde 01 Jsuuibaq ay) saonposu|

‘asn spoylaw ajjreug .
[euosiad pue uonduosuel) 1o} WISAS g||relg ayl sjuasald| :paddedipueH Ajensia WansAs ayireig | 009°0 A M
uonduosag asino)n 9sIno) 9|11 a|dwes | 93] |esdua) "ON 9s1n09) apo)H
s9s.1no) abenbue ajdweg
‘'sabenbue| ubis pue ublalo- sabenbue v Hﬂohmwv_.ﬁﬂﬁ
uonduosaqg oL apony Aiobajen

S3OVNONVT -30HOANHUOM




T¢

‘uonelounuold saziseydwa
) ) abenbue .
‘{saoualuas ajdwis pue saseiyd awos Bulpnoul ‘SPIOM|  UONBSISAUOD UBaI0 uBl10- 1090 v 4M
uealoy 005 Ajlerewixoldde 03 Jsuuibag ay) saanpoau| .
‘uonelounuold saziseydwa
) ) abenbue .
‘saoualuas ajdwis pue saseiyd awos Bulpnjoul ‘splom| uonesianuo) asaueder UBIBI0 T09'0 A 4M
asaueder 005 Aj@rewixoidde 01 Jauuibaq ayl seanpoau| 19104
‘'saselyd AepAians pue S82UB1UBS JO MO|)
[euonesiaAuod pue uonelounuold saziseydwsa ‘suonenis abenbue .
3JI-01-an4) pue ‘sainjoid ‘enbojelp ybnoiyy Arejngeson UONESISAUOD UElEl] ublaioo 109°0 Vi M
pJOM-00/ Uele]] diseq e 01 Jauulbaq ayl Seanpou|
‘|]oeus| ul bulaaes ajiym subis Aressadau
Buipeal ‘Buibpo| pue syuelnelsal Bulpul) ‘suonoalip abenbue .
Buipueisiapun ‘suonsanb Bupjse ul [njasn Arejnqedoa UORESISALOD M3IGaH ubialo4 1090 A M
pPIOM-00G MaIQgaH 2lseq e 0] Jauulbag ay) saonpoau|
‘uonelounuold saziseydwa
) ) abenbue .
{saoualuas ajdwis pue saseiyd awos Bulpnoul ‘SpIOM|  UONBSISAUOD Y9319 uBl10+ 1090 A 4M
005 Y9919 Ajdrewixoidde 01 Jauuibaqg ayl sadnpou| .
‘'saselyd uewlas
uayods 10 uanum ajdwis 03 asuodsal ul 8a110vId SapINOId abenbue .
‘'suianed Jewwelb pue splom pasn Ajapim Jo Arejngqedson UONESISAUOD UelISS ublaioo 109°0 Vi 4M
pPJOM-00/ UewISD diseq e 01 Jauulbaq ayl Seanpou|
‘saselyd uowwod pue Saoudluas JO MO}
[euonesIaAu0d pue ‘uoneldunuold saziseydw3 “slelarew abenbue .
paiulid ajdwis Buipeal pue Bulualsl| ybnoiyl sasuaiuss UONESISALOD Lousid ubialo4 1090 A M
pue ‘saseliyd ‘A1e|ngeooA youai4 d1seq e sadnpoau|
"1IpaJo [0oyas ybiy 1npe auo se paldiuasuel) aq Aew abenbue
$9s1n02 abenbue| ublaio) |aAs| 863)|02 Aue Jo slpald XIS abenbue] ublaiod ublaio T09°0 v 4M
uonduosag asino) 9sIn0) 3|11 a|dwes | 3L |[esdud9) "ON 9S1n09H 9po9n




(44

‘piom uaxods
ay) buinidalad ul aanoeud pue ‘yosads Jo suebio ay)
JO solsLB19RIRYD 9|]ISIA ‘UONRAISSO JO S1amod Buisealoul Buipeay di Buipeay di 2090 V1 4M
‘@ouapluod buidojansp sapnjoul ‘Buipeal dij ul pasn
sonbiuyoal yum ynpe Buueay Jo piey Jo Jeap ayl siurenboy
"UOIBSISAUO0D Puluuibag abenbue 1090 v M
uo siseydwa yum abenbue| yspng ayl S8aNpoJiu|| [euonesiaAuo) ysmung ubialo4
‘'saseJyd uowwoo
pue Sadualuas JO MOJ} [eUOBSISAUOD pue uonepunuoid abenbue .
saziseydwsa ‘Spiom ysipams 000T Ajrewixoidde UONESISAUOD USIpaMS ublaioo 109°0 Vi M
0] Arejngeoon Bulpeals pue Bupjeads sasealou|
"UONBSIBAU0D HIUEMS abenbue 1090 v JM
uo siseydwa yum abenbuej Ijiyems syl saonpou| i ubialo4
‘'soselyd uowwoo pue Saduauss
JO MOJ} [eUOIESIBAUOD pue uoieldunuold saziseydwa LONESIaAUOD ysileds abenbue 1090 v JM
'saouauas ajdwis pue saselyd awos Bulpnjoul ‘SpIoM : : ubialo4
ysiueds 005 Ajl@rewixoidde 01 Jauuibaq ayl seanpou|
‘uonelounuold saziseydwa sBenbue
‘saouaiuas ajdwis pue saselyd awos Buipnjoul ‘SpJOM|  UONBSIBAUOD URISSNY B L T09°0 v 4M
ueissny 05/ Ajl@rewixoidde 03 Jauuibaq ayl seonpoau| ublaiod
‘reuarew pajuld ajdwis Buipeal oBenbue
pue uonnadal ‘Buiualsi| ybnoliy) sasuauas pue saselyd| uonesianuo) asanbnuod UBISI0 T09°0 v 4M
‘Are|ngedoA asanbnliod d1seq e 03 Jauulbag ayl saonpouiu| 19104
‘uonelounuolid saziseydwa
) ) abenbue .
‘saousjuas ajdwis pue saselyd awos Buipnjoul ‘Spiom| uonesIsAu0) uelbamiIoN UBIB.I0 TO9'0 v 4M
ueibamioN 005 Ajerewixoidde 01 Jauulbag ayl seonpoau| 19104
) uiier pue abenbue .
ysibu3 usamiaq sdiysuone|al saziseydw3 ‘Arejngqedon une UBISI0 T090 V1 4M
pue Jewwelb uo S|P 8d110eId pue uoINPOIU| 19104
uonduosag asino) 9sIn0) 3|11 a|dwes | 33l |[esdud9 "ON 9S4n09H 9po9n




e

"UONoNJISUI dISeq 10} ‘puljg a8y} 1o} 82IASp Bulpeal 21U0.199|9
ue ‘(JausAu0) 8jnoe ] 0l [eandQ) uoseldo ayl sesn

Abojouyoa |
:paddeaipueH Ajensia

pung syl
1o} ABojouyda |

709°0

‘A

=l

.'SOM] Buixe)

AjqLuel, ayl Jo 1IN0 uonelisniy ayl axyel pue s||Ms abenbue)
0] spes| Jey) uawdo|anap ureliq Ajjea asueyus ued

subis Jo AlaueA e Buisn 'Spiom ash 0] a|ge aJe Aay) a10jaq
Buo| subis Buisn 1g|ppol 10 Ageq JINOA yim aresiunwiwo)

Ageg InoA yum
Mlel 01 MoH :subis Ageq

abenbue ubis

€090

V1

AM

"subIs QOG JO uonepunoy
alseq e sapnjou| ‘sbulueaw ASAUOD 0] SjusWSAOW
Apoq pue ‘suoissaldxa [eloe} ‘sainisab swiwoiued
‘Burjjads Jabuyy ‘subis rewlo) Buisn uoneIIUNWWOD

[enuew Jo walsAs abenbue| ubis-puey sdojanaq

abenbue ubis uedllawy

abenbue ubis

€090

‘A

=l

"UOITBSIBAUOD JISeq

ul 1sisse 0} saselyd AepAians pue 1ageydje uoneauNWWwoo
[enuew ayl Sapnjou| ‘Jeay lou saop Ing ‘subls oym

uosJad e yum arediunwiwod syuapnis djiay ||Im 8SIn0d SIyL

abenbue ubis uedllawy

abenbue ubis

€090

‘A

=

uonduosaqg 9sino)

8sIno0) 9111 ajdwes

ajIL [eJaU9D)

"ON 9S4n09)H

apoH




144

PIYd
|[ooyasaid ayl 01 uonejal ul suoneloadxa syl sazAjeue d
ue p|Iyd 8y 01 uone|al ul 3joJ Ssjuated ay) saulwexy SUONE|oY justudoleAsd TG9'0 S 4M
P R . . _ . . [elualed pue 1ajooyodsald pIIYD
ymmolb emoa|jo1ul pue feuonowsa ‘[eaisAyd s,pjiyo
a1 bunoaye sio1oe) ayl Jo ssauareme Jarealb e sdojanaq
‘Aliwrey eio)
dU1 JO Spaau ay] Sk ||oM Se Spaau S,p|Iyd 8yl 198w 0] MO BuiuresT Juawdojanad :
Ui o sp y Il p PIY3 3y s_ocm sdiysuone[ey ‘siuelu| oIuD TS990 S 4M
pue sjuejul Jo JuswdodAap 8yl INoge ules| [|IM SjuspnIs
. sdiysuonejay .
(‘a1qejrene uonduosap oN)|  sdiysuoire|ay aAISNqyY 0590 s1 4M
aNISNQY
"3JI| UMO
S,9U0 J3A0 |011U09D 0 Bulpea| abueyd Joj salbalens sapnjou|
‘palojdxa aq |Im [enxas pue [euonowsa |eaisAyd se yons (SISLID Ul UBWOAN) sdiysuonejoy .
‘sulaned asnge 2i10ads “sdiysuone|al aAnebHoau ul USWOM UBWON pasngy AAISNQY 059°0 s M
3OS X20| 0] pual leyl suoisuawip Alpeuosiad enpiaipul
pue ‘si010e} [eID0S ‘Saduan|jul pooyp|iyo AJes saulwex3
‘asnge p|Iyd Jo uonuanalid ay) saziseydw3
"PIIY2 8Y1 pue }npe ayl Ylog 1o} S82IN0Sal adurisISSe sdiysuonejoy .
pue jnpe aAisnge ay) Jo sonsiisloeleyd Aljeuosiad PIYD pashav ANISNQY 059°0 ST M
‘asnge Jo s109ya [eaIsAyd pue [euonows ayl saulwex3
uonduosag asino) 9sIn0) 3|11 a|dwes | 33l |[esdud9) "ON 9S4n09H 9po9H

S3SUNOD ST1MS 34T A1dINVS

‘Bunabpnq pue ‘uswabeuew [eloueul ‘ssa20ns ab9)|00 pue SIS Bl 92I0PI0M
suonisueny 3yl ‘sdiysuonejal jeuosiadiaiul ‘Juswabeuew Joineyaq ‘Bunuaied IS =T s UpaJo-UON
uonduosag oL apooy Aiobajen

STIIMS 3417 -3OHOAMHOM




q¢

‘'salnpaoo.d
Apoisno pjiyo pue sjuswamas Auadoud ‘sajfis al|| [emauay pue 8240AIQ 321oAIQ 9690 S1 4M
Mmau Buliojdxa sapnjoul a210AIp Jo Buluesw ay) saulwex]
‘BuiAp pue yreap Jo s1oadse [eaibojoydAsd pue spoadsy [ea1BOjoUIASH .
[e100s Jo uolteulexa YBnoiy) Yyresp inoge sepminre umo, . Buikg % yread | 5590 S M
:BulAg pue yreag
13y Jo siy Japisuod 0] Allunuoddo ue juapnis ay) Sapinoid
‘Buleay-4|as 10} Spoylaw pue Sso| Jo sabeis ayl Jo Ss07 yum Buieag )
UoISSNISIJ "Yieap pue JuswaAealaq salojdxa asinod siyl| :doysyiopn Juswanealag buika  wread | 559°0 ST M
"UOIIBIUOJJUOD pUB BDI0A JO BUO] ‘UoNJRIB)UI
aAnoays ‘abenbue| Apog se yons saibarels oioads 55UBIBA LI5S RS uonnjosay .
uJea| ||IM SjUapnIS “IoM pue awoy Je pasn ag ued eyl 190 §19S [EGISA 101)JU0D v59°0 ST M
S||IMS pue ssauaseme apinoid 0] paubisap sI 8sIn09d SIyL
46U
ale noA 1eyy Buinoid Jo reob ayr ysinbuijai 01 ssaubuljjim
e pue puiw uado ue yum doysxiom siyy yoeoudde uonnjosay .
01 Ssaubuljjim e 1211Juod Bulajosal ul S||ixs dojonap wiuod AureaH 191]juo)d v59°0 ST M
01 ssaubuljim e :salsinbalald ‘ade|d)Iom ay) ul pue awoy
1e Joineyaq aAnanpo.d olul Jabue uin) 01 sdals Jnoj utea
: uonnjossy :
101}JU02 BuiAjOoSal JO SAem SnoLBA SIBPISUOD|  UONN|0SaY 101JU0D JOIUOS ¥59°0 S1 4M
Juawdojanap Arejngedsoa pue ‘buljjads ‘bunum ‘Buipeal <9991
:S$S829NS 963|092 10} papaau uonisinboe abenbuel Jo s|Is| uonesedald abo|j0D wmm__oow €690 ST 4M
pale|alialul Yyl ul uononsul aAlsuayaldwod sapinoid
"S9IIAIBS/SD2IN0Sal P
9069]|02 Jo asn pue s||I}s Apnis ‘Quawabeuew| aba|j0) 01 uonevIusBLIO @.Hmmw__ouo 2590 S 4M
aw ‘sassans aba||0o 01 Bunsnlpe ul Sjuapnis sISISSY
uonduosag asino) 9sIn0) 3|11 a|dwes | 33l |[esdud9 "ON 9S4n09H 9po9n




9¢

‘Bunua.ed
pue Aljesow ‘Aupenxas ‘Juswulanob ‘ABojouyosl ‘Awouods
3yl Jo 9]0l 8y pue ayl| Ajiwe) a10|dXa |[IMm SJUBpnIS

a1 Ajjwed

a1 Ajjwed

83990

S

AM

‘aJed buipinoid

10} suondo pue sdiysuone|al/sajos Ajiwe] ‘sasueul)
‘Aouspuadap pasealoul sjuated ‘(uoissaidap ‘sso|
Alowaw) swajqoid eaibojoyaAsd ‘sabueyo/yieay jeaisAyd
‘sjuated Buibe 01 suonoeal INOA apnjoul PaIaA0d Sanss|

uased
Buiby INOA pue noA

ale)D lap3

L5990

S

AM

‘'ssaualeme Allunwwo) (9 ‘aAnoe bulaq

J0 syduag (g ‘uonesiunwwo) (y ‘@ouadsiuiway (g ‘sreob
Bumes (z ‘uawabeuew a7 (T aJe saniAnde ayl ‘sieak
Jare| ul aJI| Janaq e o) paubisap saniAnoe xis salo|dx3

uswijynd
[enpIAIpU| pue JUBWaINaYy

ale)D lap3

L5990

S

4M

‘'sleak abe juswainal ay) buunp
A1bajul oba pue Alnuapl-yas ‘sajol Jo Bulbbnl ayl salojdx3

SSa2JNS 10} mw_mwawbm
Juswialilay J=9lagd

ale)D lap3

L5990

s

=l

‘saneA diysuonejal pue yieay ‘jeba| ‘reioueul

SI9A0D "yreap Joj bulredaid pue ‘ajl| pue suonisuel) awoy
Buisinu ‘yuawaunal Jo sabus|jeyd jeuonows pue [eaisAyd
ybnouy siuased Buibe djay 01 moy uies| ||IMm Sjuapms

Sjualed buiby Bunsissy

ale)d J1ap|3

L1990

$1

4M

"auljoap [eaisAyd

pue [e120s ‘[ealbojoydAsd pioae 0] moy uo suonsabbns
yum ‘sadA10a121s pue saydlo ‘suonensn||i oLU0ISIYy
‘suonduosap ased sapn|ou| ‘uosiad Jap|o ay) Bunosye
SaouaNn|jul [e4n]Nd pue [eld0s ‘[ealbojolq ay) salo|dx3

Buiby

ale)D Jlap3

L5990

S

aM

"S3JIAISS 9JI7 JO pu3 pue ‘Sanss|

adouerINSU| 7 [elIoURUIH ‘3)IT Ja1eT 01 pare|ay Sanss| [eba
‘s Jawleyz|y 'b'a ‘sso Alows|n Bulby fewloN ‘SadIAIaS
1oddns % BuisnoH ‘10 01 awil] S| usypn Buimouyy
:apnjoul saido] "Ajap|a ayl Joj ased djay [|Im 8SIn09 Syl

sonss| buiby

ale)D lap3

L5990

S

=

uonduosaqg 9sino)

8sIno0) 9111 ajdwes

ajIL [eJaU9D)

"ON 9S4n09)H

apoH




Lc

‘Buiseyaind asim pue ‘syybu pue

SME| Jawnsuod ‘Bunew-uoisiosp Ajlwey) ‘Bunabpng Ajwey
‘Buiuueld eloueuly abuel Buoj :swajqoid [eroueuly Ajiwe)
alelpawiwi Bululaduod suoisioap Bunjew ul pue sadsueuly
Ajiwrey Buipuey ul s|jis dojaasp sluapnis sdjay asinod siyL

Ajwreo
‘quawabeue|n ASUo

Buluue|d
[eloueulH

6990

S

4M

"92IAI8S 10 1onpoud e ajowoid 10 ||3S 10U SB0p 8SIN0D
‘A11IN23S [e120S aye] 01 uaym pue ‘Buluue|d areisa/xe)
‘@ouelInsul a1ed wial-buo] Ang 01 Jaylaym ‘sjuswisaul
INOA a1edo||e 1saq 01 moy ‘1se| [|Im Aauow JnoA Buoj

moy Bunseoalo) pue ‘quawainal Jaye bunpiom ‘Bunabpng
Se Yyons ‘passalppe a(q [|IM Saal1}al JO SUISdU0I uowwo)D

Juswialnay Jnok 19910.d
01 Buluue|d eroueui

Buiuue|d
[eloueulH

6990

S

4M

"Juswialnal aa4j-AlIoM pue Sjemelpylim wns

-dwin| 4o} Buluue|d ‘s108y8 S1I pue JUBWISAAUI ‘@aurINSUI
Bunenpreas ‘uonejjul ‘sbuines Jo ajol ayl sepnjou| ‘dais
-Ag-dais ybnoiyr noA sepinb 44Q v ‘ue|d jeroueuly jreuosiad
e Buidojonap 01 yoeoudde aaisuayaidwod e s sse|d

Buiuue|d [eloueulH

Buluue|d
[eloueulH

6990

S

4M

‘Buisnoy 1502 mo| pue buiAng 10eU0D

‘suoIONPap Xe) 8WooUl ‘SOILIOU0IS JBWNSUO0D JISkq
sapnou] 186png J1Ivy) yo18.41s ‘000‘6$ pPue 000‘G$ Usamiaq
aWooul [lenuue ue yum ‘sjuapnis diay [jim uspnis ay L

AjwreH
pue [enpiAlpu] 1ebpng

Buluue|d
[eloueulH

6990

$1

4M

‘puoq snoluowuey e wioj 01 buipueisispun

pue uoddns paau uaip|iyd pue synpe juediiubis
‘syjuaseddals ‘sauepunNog pue suonedadxa ‘sajni ‘sa|ol
Ajlwrey mau bBuidojonap sueaw saljiwe] Jo Buipus|q ayL

Ajwred papus|g ayL

a)I7 Ajlwred

8990

S

4M

"SSaJ]S JO Sawn Bulpuey pue ‘uonedIuNwWwod

‘sa|oJ [ejuased ‘sanijigisuodsal Ajiwe} ‘suone|al
plIyo-1uased 01 uowwod swajqoid Ajiwe) Buipnjoul
‘Aliwre) sy uiyum sdiysuone|al [euosiadiaiul SI9aA0D

sdiysuonejoy Ajiwe-

a1 Ajjwed

83990

s

=

uonduosaqg 9sino)

8sIno0) 9111 ajdwes

ajIL [eJaU9D)

"ON 9S4n09)H

apoH




8¢

"I0M JO plJoM 8y} Ul A||njSS829NS BAIAINS pue So1110d 99! sdiysuonejoy .
‘uonowo.d e 186 ‘pakojdwa Aeis 01 moy ules| |[IMm SJuspnIS wiod 990 [euosiadialu| €99°0 ST M
‘Aunnonpoud jeuoissajouid pue [euosiad anoidwil
pue ‘swajgqo.id ajdoad an|0s ‘saAj@SWaY] purisIapun q d
lanaq wayr diay ||im 3] ‘siagqwaw Ajiwej 1o sioqybisu oldoad ol sdiystoielsy £99°0 ST 4M
. . & : | yum ss800ns Bulnaiyoy | euostadialul
S1UBPNIS ‘SISYI0M-09 ‘S3SS0( NaIYIp Yyum sdiysuone|al
[Nyssa29ns dojaAap swuspnis djay [|IM 8SIn0d SIyL
‘AloAnaonansuod Jabue Buisn oy saibarens sapinoid
pue ‘sjuswidwod Bundaosoe Jo spoylaw ‘A|dwod o)
. uonesiuNwwo) .
sainssald Bunsisal 10} sAkem ‘Uojwodsip Bulea) J0) suoseal| Bulurel] SSBUBAIISSSY U 2990 S 4M
) [euosiadialu|
sozAeuy ‘suonenyis reuosiadialul 01 uonedldde Jiay)
pue sanbiuyoal loineyaq aAIasse sjuasald 8sinod SsiyL
‘saonoeld 186pnqg bunenbal
(SHO) saime1s pasinay uobalO ayl pue ‘sinoke| sjousIg
_ S95S820.d .
pue swJoy arendoidde ‘sassasoid 186pnqg [eluswepuny [erads/redidiuniy T99°0 S1 4M
. _ _ . 1UBWUIBN0D
SMaInay ‘Adljod pue ‘|0o0104d ‘sajni adueUly JUBWUIBAOH Bunabpng
[e20] pueisiapun syjuapnis djay ||Im asInod SIy L
‘PIIYd Y1 pue ‘1axiomased ay) ‘sjuated 191S0} JO S9|0J BULUSIR
ay1 apnjoul soido| “abe Aue Jo ualp|iyod 181S0J JO Slualed| Jeulwas jualed 19104 hw <o d 0990 S1 4M
12150} Jo sainsea|d pue swa|qoid ayl SI8A0D 8SIN0)D 1504
‘Buiuue|d arelse pue ‘S1snJ ‘[|IM SIBA0D 8SIN0) “uonenlis Juswabeue Buiuue|d .
[e1oURUI UMO J19Y) SSBSSe 0] MOy uleg| ||IM Sluapnls|  ASUOI\ |nJSSadIns [eloueulH 659°0 ST M
uonduosag asino) 9sIn0) 3|11 a|dwes | 33l |[esdud9 "ON 9S4n09H 9po9n




6¢

"uonoas sabenbue| ayy ul punoy ose si
asIn0d JejIWIS) ‘s||Ms abenbue| 01 spes| 1ey) Juawdol|onap
ureiq Ajes asueyua ued subis Jo A1aleA e bBuisn Ja|ppol 10
Ageq 1191 yum arediunwiwiod swualed djay |jim 8s1nod Siy L

Ageg InoA yum
el 01 MoH :subis Ageg

Bunuaied

G990

S

AM

‘suone|nbal D3S sassnasIp pue suonedlgnd JuswiSaAul
sAaAINg "uonenjes erep |eloueul) ‘Buipel pue Bunsaaul
10} pasn sanbiuydal 1SnJ) JUBWISAAUI pue puoq ‘uonenjens
3203s ‘uoneiado abueyoxa }201S SI9A0D 3SIN0I SIYL

JUBWISaAU|
spuog pue s}201S

SJUBWISAAU|

799°0

S

AM

‘Buiuueld
3]e1Sa pue Xe) [enpIAIpuUl pue Spunj [eninw ‘1ay4ew %201s
‘A111N23S [BID0S ‘SUONNIISUI JIPBID ‘UPSID JIBWNSUOD JO asn

asim ‘diysiaumo areisa |eal ‘s1abpng [euosiad saziseydwa
9SIN0) "JBWNSUO0D URILIBWY 3Y) 01 9|ge|ieAe saniunuoddo
JUBWISBAUI pue Buines aAleulale alojdxa |[Im sjuspms

[eJau99) ‘SJUBWISaAU|

SJUSWI]SOAU|

799°0

S

4M

"JLIOM 18U 8Sealoul pue ‘s1asse 108104d ‘saxe] 8anpal o)
sanbiuyoa) sassnosig ‘spuoq [edidiunw pue 019z ‘sjelaw
snoloald ‘sdiysiauned panwi ‘sueld Juswainal ‘s,vH|
‘@oueINSUI 81| ‘Spuny [eninw ‘saninuue spuoq ‘S)201s

Ul 1S8AUI 0} UBYM pue MOY :SapNjou| 'Saxe] pue uoiejul

JO S108))8 ay) pue ‘(sysu) apis umop ayi ‘(suimai ybiy)
apis dn ay) ‘syuswisaAul puelsiapun o) Jauuibaq ayi sdjaH

Sjuawisanu| buluuibag

SJUSWI]SOAU|

799°0

s

=l

‘sdiysuoijejal uelsisal
-101}JU0D 813D 0} MOY pUe ‘Wio} Buie) wolj Ssuo Mau
1uanaid ‘S1o1)JU0D BAj0Sal 0] Sanbluyda) ures) ||IM SluspnS

S191)juo) Ajreq buinjosay

sdiysuonejoy
[euosiadialu|

€990

S

4M

uonduosag 3SUNOD

311l 8sino) ajdwes

ajIL [eJaU9D)

"ON 9S4n09)H

apoH




0€

"SSe|[d 1jeld e 10U SI SIYlL ‘2

"sabe jualayIp JO ualp|Iyd 10} 3|qeINS pue ajes _ .
ale 1eyl sAo1 ayew pue aseyaind 01 moy juased smoys uaIpiyd ‘shoL Lunuared S99°0 ST M
's1eak 74z 10 abe ay) Japun S19|ppo} 10) .
pa1Ns SalllAllOe SNoLIBA 0] Sjualed sadnpoajul 8SIN09d SIY L sdiysuone|ay JaIPpo.L bunuared 599°0 ST M
‘diysunod pue ‘bunep
‘sO1j02JBU ‘joYyoIJe ‘uoneanpa xas se soido) salo|dxa 1 sdiusuonEloN 56RUSS BULUSIR .
‘Aljigisuodsal Bundadoe pue ‘sjeob Jaaled ‘uonedlunwwod 1stonelRY Hssl uhtisled 599°0 ST M
abeuaa) ‘sanjeA Ajlwe) sassnasIp 9SIN0d SIYy L
‘Bunuared dais Jo swa|go.id uawisnlpe reuonows
pue [ejuaw ‘reaisAyd ayl punole palojdxa aq ||IMm suonenls .
[enjoe pue [eanaloayl "PaAo| pue ‘pardadde ‘ayenbape bunuared dais bunuared 599°0 ST M
|93} 01 :Spaau Jualeddals Uo SN0} |IM 3SIN0ID SIYL
"UJI92U0I JO Seale [enplAlpul pue sjppow buiajos-wajqoud
Ajiwrey ‘s[|ys uoedIUNWIWOI ‘Bumas ajni sapnjau| “s||Xs Bunuated o|buis Bunuated G990 S1 4M
Bunuased annisod anoidwi 01 salbajens ules) [|IM SJUBPNIS
‘U991 J1Iayl yum 19adsal 1anag pue ‘Bulpueisiapun iarealb uda] JNOA YUAA
B ‘uoneaiunwiwod panoidwi ureb [jim siuared ‘sajol juared| AjaANISOd arediunwwo) Bunuased G990 S1 4M
sauljapal eyl Abarens Buiyoeod e apinoid ||IM 8SIN0D BYL| pue 101ju0) abeuen
"Juswysiund juawiysiund Bunuarey 5990 - oM
1noyum auldiosiq Jo sdais aiseq Inoj ayl usea noyuAn auldiosiq :
Juawdojanap
Aoeuay| s,pliyd s18y1 ainjelsay| Bunog|as ul ‘ualp|iyd BunoA| ainielal] pue ualip|iyd Bunuased G990 S1 4M
yum Bunpiom siaylo pue sjualed oy djay [eonoeud siayo
‘Aejd Aay) se suonenyis bulurea| ul ualp|iyd BulAjOAUl sowes
JO sSpoyiaw sapnou| ‘uaip|iyo abe jooyos 1oj saweh 6 Bunuaied G990 S1 4M
Buluies] axew 01 Moy saple 1o siaydea) ‘sjuated sSmo UlLleST] pue UsIpiuo
. | 94 1 Moy sapl yoea) 's) us
uonduosag asino) 9sIn0) 3|11 a|dwes | 33l |[esdud9 "ON 9S4n09H 9po9n




1€

uonejuawnbie Bupuiy L reanud
JO 21moNAs ayl pue uoisensiad Jo salbarens| bHuluoseay Jo Jomod BUIAG .
ay1 saulwex3 ‘Bupjew-uoisioap pue Bulajos wajqosd| syl :Bupnjuiyl [eanud arvcm .o_h S 899°0 ST M
0] paljdde se Buluoseal Jo Jamod ay) suasald asinod siyL 1901d
BupjuiyL reanud
("s|crejrene uonduosap oN) Buinjos wajgoid % Buinjos 899°0 s 4M
wa|go.d
*10IABYS(Q UMO S,9U0
01 salidde uonoelaul yons moy pue ‘Bulaqg-jlam/ssau|l
‘uoeladooo/121jjuod ‘uoedIuNWWod ybnoiyl uondeialul BUIAO Bupjuiyl [eanud
uewny salpnis 'Saoueiswnalg Buinjos-wajqold pue INOS pue Buinjos 899°0 S1 4M
wa|goud reuosiadialu)
[euonenlIS ul SUoIoRal pue sapnjilie [euoowss saullexa wa|goid
:Buinl Aep-01-Aep ul 1911Ju0d 8j0J pue SojoJ [euosiadialul
pue [euosltad sassasse suapnis djay [|IM 8SIn09 SIYy L
‘ooe|d1oyew ay)
ul sanljigisuodsal pue sybu pue ‘sadlAIas pue spoob Jo SouBUl
aseyaund ‘upalio ‘Buiuueld [eroueuly jo uonealdde eonoeud ddueUIH [eUOSIad _mcowaun__ 1990 ST 4M
SapN|ou| "aWOodUI [eNPIAIPUI JO 3SN 1UBIJIYS Y] 0] [eNUSSSD
abpajmouy pue S|[I4S dISeq S8INPoJUl 8SIN0I SIY L
"SOILIOUODT pue dIURUIH [RUOSIBd Sarelbalul 8sInoI Sl soluioueag/eouetly Souely :
. ap 14 | d ! IyL [euosiad feuosiag 1990 S 4M
ouih listp SSOUBANJYT .
abeuew 01 sAem |njasodind alow ul paisalaiul suoAue Juswabeue swi] [RUOSIOg 9990 ST 4M
10} sanbiuyoa) pue spoylaw [eanoeld SIa0 3SIN0J SIYyL
‘'sanbiuyoa) buluies)
[NJSS829NSs pue ‘swajgo.d [euonowsa ‘sspnine ‘slqey SSOUBAIYS
uo siseydwsa yum Buipueisiapun-}|as e BuidojaAsp apnjoull  SSBUBAIN0BYT [euOSIad _mcom.anﬂcm_ 9990 S1 4M
s21do ] ‘suonen)is 81| JBAO |0JUOD pue SSaUdAIaYs ‘1amod
reuosiad Jo asuas e dojanap suapnis djay ||Im asinod Ssiyl
uonduosag asino) 9sIn0) 3|11 a|dwes | 33l |[esdud9 "ON 9S4n09H 9po9n




(43

‘a1eqo.d pioAe pjnoys Aayl Aym pue

‘S||IM pue SISNnJ] Jo SU0d pue soid ay) ures| [IM sluspms ¢SISTIL BUINT 917 TRUM SIIIM PUe SISTUL| £29°0 ST M

"SS920NS 01Ul Sa)eISIW Wiojsuel pue ‘saniunyoddo
OJul SyoeqIes winy ‘Buuabull Inoyum ureaT , premioy Buljrey,, pJemio Buijreq suonisuel | 2/9°0 s 4M
A11 "10UUBD BUOJE SBSS3IINS L) SUOSSI| Saydea) ain|eH

"2InsIa| pue YIom
‘aberrew ‘Alenxas ‘Bunualsed se sealse Yyons ul USWOM so|0y bBuibuey)d suonisuel | 2.90 S 4M
pue uaw Jo sajoJ Buibureyd ayl SMaIAal [|IM SJUBpNIS

‘A18120s s,Aepo)

ul abueyd ayl Jo ainieu syl puelsIapun [|IM SJUspnIS abueyd suonisuelL ¢L9°0 ST M
'SSal1S 9dnpal 01 Spoylaw Yum 5 Juswabeue .
suonisod ssans ybiy ul sfenpiaipul sapinoid 8sIn09 SiyL JUSWSLEUBIN SSOAS ssals 1290 s M
"W SISLD
Bulnp pue |aAg| paureisns e uo adod 0] Alljige asealoul
ued 1ey) Buissans-ap Jo Spoylaw Se ||aM Se sapnine suonipuo)d Juswabeue .
pue si01oe] [ealbojoyoAsd oul siybisul siayQ "saibarens| pue bupnuiyl ‘bBuiuirean ssals 129°0 ST M

Buissans-ap pue S|00] JO 18S B YlIM Sjuapnis sapiaoid
9sIn09 sIy ‘suonisod ssans ybiy ul suosiad 0] paseas

"‘@oueInsul pue bunabpng ‘sysel pjoyasnoy

Buiwiopad ‘Buiyrolo jo sredas pue Bulues|o ‘uoneredald
pue uo1193|8s pooj ‘uoieuodsuel) ajgeljal ‘ainyuiny salwouod3/bulai] 9jbulis | Buinig 9lbuls | 0290 S 4M
pue siauenb BuiAl 8jgelns Bulpul) :awoy wol) Aeme
BuiAll Jo S2ISe(q Byl YlM Sjuapnis sapinoid 8sinod siyl

‘Allunwwod ay) ul swajgo.d

aoel 01 AlAnIsuas dojanap 01 Japlo ul saAndadsiad
SsoAoadsiad .
[e2160]0120S WoJ} suole|al adel Jo Buipuelsiapun peolq suone|ay Allloulp 6990 S1 4M
. [einynonnin

© SaAI9) ‘sdnolb Aluouiw wol) suosiad yum AjaAndaya
3J0W aredluNwWwwod suapnis djay [|IM 8sIn0d Syl

uonduossag 9sino) 8sino)d 911l ajdwes | 8yl |eldaudn "ON @Sin0) | 9po)




€€

IO

pue |00yos 10} A1essadau S||I)S aIem)0s pue arempiey soiseg Jaindwod

Jaindwod ai1seq sdojanap sjyuapnis sdjay asInod siy

"101e19d0/1IBUMO BY) AQ pawlopad aq ued ey Aljigisuodsal asIno)

dourUalUIRW palinbal Jo Ss10adse |[e SI8A02 8SIN0D SIYl| [edlueydal\ 10|id dleAlid

‘991bap [euoissajoid e Buaas 10u SjuapnIs IoJ

|00Y9S punolib e SI Siyl "uoneulwexs Usilum uonelsiuiwpy

uoneIAY [elapa- ay) 1o} uolreredald ul ABojoioaraw

pue uonebineu ‘@ouewlopad Yelolre s|ielap 8sinod Siyl

461l JusWINIISUI 0}

1suiad suonenboy uoneiAy [ei1opa- pue spie uonebineu
‘swaisAs Juswniisul Yyelalre Buipnjoul Juspms buney |[00Y9S punolo)

juswinIsu| ay) 104 palinbal abpajmouy Jo Seale [[e Sapnjou||  JusWNJISU| UORIAY

‘uoneulwexa uanum Buey uswnisu| y4 8yl 10} 10|id

[e10J8WWO0) 10 BleAlld pasuadl] ayl sasedald 8sinod siyL

suoneolddy

Jeindwon TOL0 1 4M

uoneny 0040 1 4M

|00YIS punol9 siojid uoneiny 0040 1 =

uoneiny 0040 1 =

uondiiosag asino) 3]11L 8sino) ajdwes | 831l |elauadn) "ON 8SIn0) | 8po)H

S3ASUNOI ADOTONHIAL ITdINVS

Buiwwelbold aiseq ‘epeibdn » iredas ‘100yss|gnon-Od ‘(ooyas punoib jopd 321010 M
‘uonesado sdo ‘bBuipreoghay ‘sweisboid aremyos snouea ‘siaindwod Jo asn UpaI2-UON

uonduasaqg oL apon Aiobajen
ADOTONHOAL -:32H0AMHOM

ABojouyoa ] 1

e

a1 Aq paulanob se ainpadolid areqold pue suonelapisuod SaJnpadold
Xe] ‘aouelllayul Joj S)Juswndop 1snJa) pue |Im e Bulredaid a1eqolid pue s|In
Ul UoIONISUI SJUdpPISal UobalO SIayo 8sIN0I SIyL

SllM pue sisnill €/9°0 S =

uondiiosag 9sino) 3]11L 8sino) ajdwes | a3l |elauadn) "ON 8SIn0) | 8po)H




143

‘buiddiys pue ‘buibeyoed ‘921A18S JawoISNo
‘sg9) pue Buioud ‘spe uonone aAndaye ‘salbarens buoud — sioreladO ssauisng suoneolddy .
pue sajes apnjoul saido| ‘Aega Se yons salls uonane||fews 1oj suonony auljuQ| Jaindwo)d 1040 1 M
BUIUO BSN SIBUMO SSauIsng |fews d|ay [|IM 8SIN0J Syl
("e|gejrene uonduosap oN) Buiysignd gamm suoned||ddy TOL0 1 4M
: e S Jaindwo)d
'ssa20.4d uonods|as ayl
pue aJjemyos ‘asempiey 1aindwoa042I1W SIBA0D "Ssiaindwod S191NdWO020I2IN suoneolddy .
ul punoiboeq ou 1o 3l Yum sfenpliaipul 0} suonedidde 0] uononpo.u| Jaindwo) 1040 1 4M
lIay] pue s1aindwo20.21W S8INPOJIUI 8SIN0I SIY L
'asn juapnis pue [euosltad ‘pjoyasnoy 1o} a|qejrene uonoales suoneolddy .
sJ21ndwod awoy Jo UoII9|as Saulwexa asInod SIy | :s19Indwo) awoH Jaindwo) 102’0 1 M
"S3J10Y2d 9J/eM)yos aAI108y 8 bunjew 1oy sassadoid| uonenjead pue mainey | suonediddy .
J0 sg|dwexa pue uonewlojul Jiseq suasald asinod siyl| a4emyos Jaindwo) Jaindwo) 102’0 1 M
‘'suonedljdde ssauisng
suoneolddy .
[lews pue awoy uo snaoj yum Bulwwelboud pue abenbue| abenbue teindwo) sondwon T0OL0 1 4M
Jaindwod e ul s|is dojansp swuapnis djay |Im 8sIn0d SIy L
‘'suoneoldde welboud olyioads aresisuowap ||IM 8sIn0d ayl| suonedlddy Jaindwo) m“%ﬂmw_h_mw,q TOL0 1 4M
uonduosag asino) 3111 8sin0) a|jdwes | 331 |[esd3ud9) "ON 9S4n09H 9po9n




Ge

‘ge| uado ue se dn 18s aq 1ouue? 1] ‘salbojouyds) pale|al pue ‘sassadold [ealuydsal quswdinba Jo asn ay) yoea) 1snw 8sIno) ‘g

's1daouod buipjam Jo uoneoldde

uo-spuey apnjoul 01 S|IMs Buipjam J1ayl anoidwi 01 Bunuem
uosJad 10 Japjam a2IA0U 8y 01 palealb sI uononnsu| Buipjan
‘9or|d)JIom ay1 10} Sassad04d Buipjam 9| pue auajfiade
‘uabAX0 ‘aJe 211109|3 JO SN ajes ay] uleg| ||IM SlUapnIS

cABojouyoa |

Juawdinb3 €020 1 =

‘'spoylaw buunioejnuew Jo syoadse
SholLIeA pue sjuawadloulal Buipnjoul ‘sse|blagl) Jo sadAy sse|biaqi4
pue ‘sasn ‘SaAlIppe ‘Suisal 0} SJUBPNIS SBONPOIIUL |[IM SIY L

cAbojouyoda |

awdinbg | €040 1 4M

‘'saulbua asay: Jo sued Juauodwod ay)
Apms 01 Allunuoddo ue apinoid pue uonelado Jo Alosayl ayl
J0 abpajmouy ureb sadualladxa WO0ISSe|D pue Alojeloqge] (81940
'S)uUN asay) uo siredal pue syuswisnlpe a2IAI8S Joulw| 1IN0 7 OM] ) Jreday
Bunew ul sainpasoid Jadoud sapinold ‘saulbus auljoseb| 7 aoueualule|y aulbul
9]9A2-1n0J pue 3]942-0M] JO Jredal Joulw pue asueu3UIRW
‘uonesado syl Yum JuspnIsS sy sazieljiure) ||Im siy L

cAbBojouyoa |

wswdinbg €020 1 =

(‘awiure 01 pea| Ajuessadau jou

[ sse[d A1o1onpoaul SIY1) ‘Swood uononpold pue wool
Ire ay1 ui uawdinba uo Bulures) uo-spuey pue WOOoISSe|d
sopn[oul 8sino) “uonelado Areiql aisnw Jaindwod pue
Buniodal J1jen pue Jayjeam ‘Yoreasal dlsnw op 01 9|ge aq
pue Jaindwod Jre-uo ayl pue Areiqi| ayj asn 01 Moy uiea)
os|e |IIm Aayl ‘Buidaay piodal DD pue ‘Bulurel) adloA asn
laplodal pue a|geiuln ‘auoydosoiw Buipnjoul ‘uonelado
woo. Jre 104 sanbiuyoal Bunelado odiseq pue olpel oignd Jo
Aioisiy pue Aydosojiyd ayl utes| |im jusapnis -bBunseopeolq
olpel Allunwwod 0] SJUdPNIS S8INPOJIUI BSIN0I SIYL

Bunseopeo.ig cAbojouyoa |

olpey AHunwwo) ewdinbg | €040 1 M

uonduossag 9sino) 91L 8sino) ajdwes | a1l [esoudn) "ON 8SIn0) [ 8po)H




9¢

‘8sInod Aqgoy e 10U SISIYL v

‘'suone|nbal inarewe (DDH)

UOISSIWWOD UoNeIIUNWWOo) [eldpa- Se ||am Se uohelado | 9p0D pue ,9P0D pue
pue A1inaJio oipel [eanoead ‘syjusuodwod 1IN olpel| Alosayl oipey Jnarewy | Aloayl oipey
‘A108Y1 21UOID3|S puR [BI11233 JISe( SISA0D 3SIN0J SIYL

€020 1 =0

"'Spaau 18y} 198w ||IM Tey)

1UN B 199|8S 8U0 aAeY 1,Uop oym asoyl djay 03 pue ‘1anaq
11 3sn Sd9 e aney Apealre oym asoy djay 01 papuaiu|
‘AoeIndoe urelurew 01 moy pue ‘Aoeinaoe ‘ABojoulwial
Sd9 SIBA0D ‘SO InoA 0] sdew woly pue ‘sdew

uo suonisod 10|d Aj1981102 01 (Sd9) waisAS Buiuonisod
[eqo|9 ® JO sainjea) JIseq ayl uiea| [|IM sjuapnis

SswolsAS ABojouyoa |

Buiuomsod [eqo|o Buiddepy c0L0 1 =)

uonduossag 9sino) 91L 8sino) ajdwes | a1l [esoudn) "ON 8SIn0) [ 8po)H




LE

‘'sanbiuyoa) yaseas qol pue ‘yoseasal qol buiop ‘abenbue)
awNsal sassnasIq 's||s bunum gol-ayi-uo se ||am se 5 wawdojanag .
‘uoiepuUBWIWOdA JO SIBNS| ‘SIBN8| JBA0D ‘sawnsal Bunlm qor Sti 10} BUBLM Jaale) 9LL°0 AMD M
10} syew.o} pue suoneoldde oiseq Saonpo.iul 8SIN09 SIY L
‘qol au
pJemol apnine aAnisod e uoj Aressadau s|iys diysuonejal
[euosiadiaiul pue uoneauNWWOod 8yl saquasad Buidos) Juswidolans
‘09/Ao|dwa ue ul 1oy Burjoo) sI 1akojdwa ue Jeym ‘mainisiul e BUIbUIL *STO 19A9d 9,0 4M9O | 4M
ue JoJ Buiredald ‘awnsal e Bunum pue buuedaid ‘ssasoud pue bulpul4 -sqor 1931€9
yoteas qol ayi 1oy buredaid sapnjouj "s||iys reuonednado
[enpiAlpul BunaxJtew Joj sanbiuydal sA8AINS 8SIN0d SIY L
‘Abajens bunaxsew pue bununy-gol s1oy) wawdojanag .
1o} swinsal paysijod e ayeald sjusapnis djay ||IM 8sIn09 SIy L DunLm SWNSHY laale)d 9LL°0 AMO | dM
‘s191s16a1 |e1oads pue syo00q ysed Anad SWwaISAS
‘sjuswiale]s [eloueuly ‘siabpa) ‘sjeusnol sepnjoul “walsAs Buidaayyoog Bununoooy G/.°0 4MO | 4M
Buidaaxyooq Anua-a|gnop ayl saulwexa asInod SIy L » Buidaaypoog
‘s109loud annoe ul bunediomued Ag waisAs bununoooe SWalsAS
Su ybnoiy) erep e Jo mojy 3y} sazAjeuy "suoisioap Bununoooy [euabeuen Bununodoy G/.°0 4MO | dM
Juswabeuew Bupfew ul pasn SI )l MOY Sapn|oul pue WalsAs . : bud
Bununoosoe ue Jo uonelado ay) saziseydwa 8sIN0I SIYL 3 buldaex00d
uonduosag asinomn 3111 8sino) ajdwes | 3pI] |esdud) "ON 9S4n09H 9po9

SASUNOI FJUOIMUOM TVHIANTO FTdINVS

wawdojanap dnoub 10 feuoneziuebio ‘1sespeolq/bunjesads olgnd
‘suonejal Jawoisnd ‘swelboud [edluyossl feuoissajold Jo uoniod 1pald-uou ‘s||IxS

yoteas qol ‘Buiures; 1oin] ‘uonelojdxa Jaated ‘ujoid 1oy Bunum ‘Bulures) sakojdwa . LHM mﬂao_mm\wwm_w 4dM9O m_uo%t_.h%%
‘quawabeuew Jaajunjoa ‘Buipiing (s diysiapes| ‘Bunaysew ‘uoisialadns PHOM | S HPaIO-UON

‘Bunum juelb quawabeuew 7 dn uels ssaulsng |fews ‘Buidaayyoog
uonduasaqg 9L apon  Aiobajen

(suoneonisse|D 1ayi0 dYL Uj paIsno) 10N)
JOHOAMHOM TVHINTD -FOHOIAMHOM




8¢

‘qol au

pJemol apnie aAnisod e uoj Aressadau s|iys diysuone|al
[euosiadiaiul pue uonedIuNWWOod 8yl saquoasag
‘00/Ao|dwa ue ul 1o} Bujoo) sI 1akojdwa ue reym ‘mainiaul
ue 1o} Bunredald ‘swnsal e Bunum pue Bulredaid ‘ssadsoid
yoteas qol ayi 1o} Buredaid sapnjouj *s||Is [euonednado
[enpiaipul Bunayrew 1oj sanbluyods) sASAINS 8SIN0I SIY L

Buidaayy
pue Buipuld :sqor

uonelo|dx3
laare)

L0

dMO

AM

‘'sad/A1 yeuoure snoLen ay)
pue sadIAIas 1ybij-ul ‘jpuuosiad ybijy-ul 1o sjuswalinbal
Buuy ‘A101s1y Jisy) ‘saulldre snoLeA ay) JO MBIAIBAO UY

Slovle)
Juepuany wbi4-u

uonelso|dx3
laale)d

1.0

dMO

4M

'ssa204d Buiobuo ue Se uond3|as 19aled pue YIOM JO SWId)
Ul ylog [enpIAIpul 8yl Je SY00| :S[eob [euoijedoA-[euoneasnpa
Buiysijgelss Jo swua)l ut Aujeuosiad pue [enusiod

‘sapninde ‘sisalajul [euosiad salo|dxe [|Im SJuspnis

uonelo|dx3 1sale)d

uonelso|dx3
laale)n

L0

dMO

4M

"SuUOISIoap
199Jed pawlojul aew pue ‘suoiednddo SNoLeA 10}
suoneledalid pue AlISIaAIp 8yl puelsiapun pue ‘aoe|dyiom
a1 Jo siusawalinbal ay) aziubooal ‘s||IYS pue sadualladxa
3Jl| 9zAreue 0} uapnis ayl djay ||Im 8sIn09 SIy L

uolreanp3 1sale)d

uonelo|dx3
laare)

L0

dMO

AM

‘uonisod |ans|-Alua ue ojul uonisuell Asea ue 1o}

Buiuren punoibxoeq pue s1as [|IMs Aressadau ayl apinoad
0] papualul SI 8SIN0I SIY] ‘suolenys [eloueuly s,Aepol

ul pasn ABojouydal ayl mainal pue ‘Abojoulwlal pue
so101j0d Yueq uowwod urejdxs ‘yuawdojaaap pue ymoib
[euoissajoud JO s)BuaQ 8y} uIea| ‘92IAISS JBWoIsnd Je||e1s
apinoud ‘mainiaqul gol Buluuim e oy aredald ‘1akojdwa
[enualod e asooyd 01 Moy sapnjou| ‘Bupjueq Jo plIOM

ay ul a|ge|reAe sanunuoddo Jaaled salojdxa 8sinod SsIyL

Buueg
ul JaaJse)d InoA buluuibag

uonelio|dx3
laale)

L1110

dMO

4M

uonduosaqg 9sino)

311l 8sino) ajdwes

ajIL [eJaU9D)

"ON 9S4n09)H

apoH




6€

"S||I4S UonedIUNWWOD

pue ‘Juawuolinua Bulurea| aanisod ay ‘Buluueld

u0SS9| ‘sfeualew Jo uoneziuehlo pue uonodalas Buipnjoul
saonoeud Buiyoeal aAndays apirod ||IM 8SIN0D SIYL

SIIMS
Buiyoea] 7 uoneonp3

uoneonp3

6,0

dMO

=

‘suonsanb bupse

pue Buiusisi| Jo e ayl pue Buljel A1ols ‘elpaw ‘saweb
uoneNwIs ‘spieoq unajing se yons asusuadxa Buluses)
ay) ul AJIAnoe dAIeald JO 8sn ay) sure|dxa ||IM 8SIn09 SIy L

SaNIANOY
aAlleal) 7 uoneanps

uoneonp3

6.0

dMO

=Tl

"S||I4S uonezIelo0s pue ‘|jedal
‘S|IIMS Jojow ‘uonenussuod s,yuedosed eyl Buinoidwi
10} salbarens aAnodaya sianlbaled sapinoid 8sInod SIyL

asl101ax3 aAnubo)

uoneonp3

6.0

dMO

AM

"S|IIMS 321AI8S 1aW01snd anoldwi 0] paubisap SI 8sInN09 SIyL

suone|ay Jaindwo)d

suonejay
lawoisn)

8.L°0

dMO

AM

‘uoneonp3

laale) 10}) saAnodalqo palinbal sepnjou) JuawAojdwa

-J|9s pue suonelodiod ul saniunuoddo Jaaled ‘ssaulisng Jo
uoljouUNy pue 8j0J 8y} 0] JUBPNIS BY] SBINPOJIUI BSIN0I SIYL

ssaulsng JO PlIOAA

uonelio|dx3
laale)

LL1°0

dMO

4M

‘uoneuIwexa
asual| Joj Aloresedald aq 01 papualul 10N "S81eJIPUAS pue
Juswabeuew ‘a1e1So [Bal Ul SjuswisaAul ‘Buisieldde ajeisa

[eal ‘s1s02 Buiso|d ‘1ayo ayl Bunfew ‘sasueuly 10} S83IN0S
‘@oueINSUIl 311} pue Spaap ‘me| 1oejuod ‘suonduosap [eb9)
‘solewayrew ae1sa |eal ‘diysiaumo puej Jo Aioisly ‘a1elss
[eaJ 0] UOIONPOJIUI Ue ‘SWIB) 91e1Sa [eal JIseq SI9A0D pue

SJ19aJed 9)e1sa |eal 0] JUSPNIS aY] SBINPOJIUI BSIN0I SIYL

uonelso|dx3
laare) arelsy [eay

uonelso|dx3
laale)

LL1°0

dMO

AM

‘AIAeald reuosiad pue

3JOM J331UN|OA ‘UOIeINPS ‘SI9aJed JO SWIS) Ul SoAleusle
Jnsieal 1e s)oo| :Bunsal pue asuepinb jeuoissajoid

YUM sallljige pue S1salalul ‘sanjen salojdxa 1| "SoAl| JIsy)

ul suonoalip mau Bujaas suapnis djay [|IM 8SIN0I SIYyL

SINpY Joj Buluueld aji

uonelio|dx3
laale)d

LL1°0

dMO

=

uondiosag 9sino)

311l 8sino) ajdwes

a|jIL |esauan

"ON 9S4n09)

apoH




oy

"S9SIN0J .
Alajes Jayem yoeal 0} Moy Sjuapnis sayoes) asinod Joponasul Aiajes Jarem uoheanp3 6,20 | M4D | d4M
‘plenbayl| e g 0] MOy SIUBPNIS S8Ydea) 8sIN0D Buiures) prenbay uoneonpg 6220 | MAD | 4AM
(‘s|qejrene uonduossp oN)  AlosylL ureig by uoneonp3 6.0 | MdD | dM
‘pasredwi Ajjensia 1o buueay Jo ‘jeap ale mmhm_ovsrwmwwmm%& LOIESN .
oym sjenpiaipul 1o saibarens Bulioin sapinoid 8sIn09d Syl [ENSIA _o _u. : ! Heanp3 6.L°0 M4D | M
BurreaH ‘yeaq :buuoiny
‘'sjuapnis bulioin Apeale
3sS0U} 10} 21UljD wa|gold SapInoid S||IXS Jaquinu pue S99198.14 BULIOIN - .
‘abfenbue] puodas e se ysi|bu3 ‘bulads ‘Buipeal ise yons old bulioinl nesonp3 6.L°0 M4D | M
$109[gns 10J S||1s Buiyoes) auo-uo-auo SMaIABI 8SIN0D SIY L
‘Buuioin ou Jo ami| yum
S10]N] J83JUN|OA 10} paubisap SI 8SIN0) "I0IN) B 8wW028(q| J0IN] e 8g 0] uleaT] uoneonp3 6220 | MAdD | AWM
0] noA yoea) 01 spoyiaw dais-Ag-dals uses) |Im sjuspnis
(‘alqe|rene uonduosap oN) Aiosy Buiures uoneonp3 6.0 | MdD | dM
(*ajqejreae uonduosap oN) salhis uoneonp3 6220 | AMD | 4AM
. U Bulusea pue Buiyoea | :
‘'sayoroidde Buiyoea) g|qissod Jo
uonelo|dxa Jalq ‘uonenjeAs lisyl pue seale dlWapede pue sanljigesiq P .
[eluawdojanap Jo suondiosap ‘ABojoulwial a1seq Buipnoull Buluiea 01 uondNPo.U| Heanp3 6.L°0 M4D | M
‘sanljigesip Buluses) Jo pialy 8y}l JO MBIAIBAO Ue SI SIY L
uonduosag asino) 3111 8sin0) a|jdwes | 331 |[esd3ud9) "ON 9S4n09H 9po9n




1A%

‘sasodind esauab 10} 9ouaipaqo/bulurel)
Bop apnjoul 10U S0P 1| "SPaau [e1dads YIM S[enpIAIpul
10} sBop apinb 10} Ajfeaiioads S||IMS uo SBsSNJ0) 8SIN0I SIYL

Buiures] boq apino

Buiures |
Boq@ apino

¥8L°0

dMO

=l

‘uoissnasip dnoib

pue ‘sdiysuone|al [euosiadialul ‘s||I¥S uoEIIUNWWO
lIay1 anoadwi uapnis ayl djay [im pue sdnoub yim
AjoAnoaye bunplom 1oy sanbluydal saulwexs asinod Siyl

wawdojana@g dnoio

wswdojanag
dnoio

€810

M4

4M

‘paJanod os|e sjesodoud Bujues pue Buimainey
‘sjesodoud Bunenpeas pue bulredald Aq sjesodoud
[NJSS822NS 31lIM pue dojaAap 01 MOy ules| ||IM Sluapnis

Bunupn resodoud

Buisrey pun4

¢8L°0

M4

4M

"Jaulalul 8y} pue sadinosal
Areiqu Buisn uonewojul JueIb yoreasal 0] moy buluies|
wads aq ||Im swi swos ‘Buniodal pue Juswabeuew

1ueIb ‘S92IN0Ss Bulpuny JO UOIRAIND ‘JUBWBA|OAUI

pJeoq ‘uononnsuod xipuadde arelidoidde ‘suondo

Tew.o} ‘Bunum aAndaye ‘Yyoseasal uo sdi uiea ‘uonepunoy
pue aresodiod Buipnjoul S821nos Buipuny Jo uonealuapI
uo siseydw3 ‘suoneaidde uelb |NJSS829NS BILIM|

pue saniunyuoddo juelh 109]9S 01 MOY UJes| ||IM Sjuspnis

«Bunum
1ueI9) pue buisrelpun

Buisrey pun4

¢8L°0

MO

4M

'9SIN09 SIY} 0} ausinbalaid se

S92IAIBS Joluas ybnoiyy uoneusuo ay) a1a|dwod pjnoys
SIaUMO M3 ‘siabeuew juapisal pue siapinoid awoy
12150} ||e 10} 8SIn0J palinbal ‘pajosuods a1e1s e S Syl

19pINOId BWOH 181S0H

are)d
3WOH 181504

18L°0

ED)

4M

‘'swajqoud resow Aresodwaluod jo buinjos pue
Buipueisiapun ayl 01 uonealdde Jiayl pue saiyle bulAuapun
S1da2u09 [elUBWEPUN) BY) SBUIWEXd 8SIN0I SIY |

soIyg

oIyl

0820

M49

4M

uonduosaqg 9sino)

311l 8sino) ajdwes

ajIL [eJaU9D)

"ON 9S4n09)H

apoH




4%

(‘e|gejrene uonduasap oN) 1auuew
[eba| pue uonannsuod [euded ‘|duuosiad ‘@aueul)
uoneonpa BululdadU0I SallIAOR pue ‘AJluNWwWod a8yl pue

SIaqWaN

jyels ayy qwuapualuiadns ay) 0l piseoq ayl jo diysuonelall preog |00yos 10j Me soidor [e6a7 | 982°0 | AMO | dM
aYl ‘s1o1sIp jooyas ayl 01 bulurenad me| uobalO
‘Jaguiaw pJeod |ooyds ayl Jo 3|01 ay) a10|dxa [|Im sluapnIS
‘Ajige) 10}
pue uonehijqo 19enu09d ‘e1eqold ‘Me| Jueual-piojpue] ‘siybu
1011palo-101gap ‘Me| suoie|al dnsawop ‘uondaloid sybu meT Ajiwe- soido] eba1 | 9820 | AMO | 4AM
[IAID SNSJaA suonenbal [elusawulianob siano) “Ajiwe) ayl
JO SIaquiawl || s1oaye Ul se me| uobBalO Apnis |Im SluapnlS
‘lenpiaipul paddeaipuey ay) Bunoaye| . 592IN0saY _u_cm .
SME| pue Sanssl Jualind mc.u h.o aWOS JOA0D (1M 3sIN09 SIYl|, sanliqisuodsay "s)ybly | soidol [eba1 | 982°0 | AMO | dM
'SpaaN [e10ads yum pliyo
‘lenpiaipul paddeoipuey ayy Bunoaye| . 592IN0Say c_cm .
SME| pue Sanssl Jualind ms.u. %.o SWOS JOA0D 1M 9SIN02D SIYL|, saniiqisuodsay 'sybly | soidoL [eba7 | 98.2°0 AMO | dM
'SpaaN [e10ads yum piiyo
‘ue|d |nJssa29ns e ubisap 01 Moy uies| uoneIuswaldu|
IIM SluspNIS "saldljod uondy aAewIY Bunusws|dwi Ue|g Loy SATRLLIY soidoy [efe7 | 9820 | 4AMO | dM
ul Juswabreuew Jo 9]0 BYl SBSSNISIP 3SIN0IJ SIYL . . .
‘Bunjew-uolIsIdap pue
‘uswabeuew awin ‘uonebajop ‘sassads0id uoneIIUNWWOD dysiopea
‘101)u02 Buibeuew ‘Buipjing wea) ‘sonslialoeIRYD m>;omtm_ 10 SOINQUNY diysiepean G8/°0 4MO 4M
pue sa|A1s diysiepes| ‘diysiapes| pue Juswabeuew : :
U3aMIa( S92U3IBIP BY) IN0Oge ules| ||IM Sluspnls
*A12100S Juasald uo aduanjjul ay) pue
1sed ay) ul diysiapes| pue Jamod Jo S108))8 8yl SM3IAS .
.whmmhmoc_:%m.muwo:%ho%_Mmmwmomc mw_p >mE¢m£cQEw5.cmw__ Jamod pue diysiapesT diysiapea’y S8L°0 AMO | HM
Jo sanienb ay) Jo ssaualeme ue sapinold 8SIN0d SIyL
uonduosag asino) 3111 8sin0) a|jdwes | 331 |[esd3ud9) "ON 9s4n09H apoH




1%

(*ajqejrene uonduosap oN) S9I01S Bunaxre 8810 dMO | dM
. s |re1ay Joy Bulures) ssfes .
‘Aunnonpoud Jaylom pasealdul Jo) Aressadau| uoneAno buidojaasg Uawabeue .
S|IMs reuoneAnow dojansp sjuapnis djay |IM 8SInN02 SIYL|  :S|INS Juswabeue|p } N1 Z8L0 | MO | dM
‘Aianonpoud
uoneAnoN buidojanaq .
19)10M asealoul 0} S||IMS [euoneAnow Buidoaaap| . wawabeuelN | /820 | AMOD | M
'S|IMS uawabeue|p
ul sanbluyoa)l pue spoylaw sjuasald asinod siyL
‘uonoe Areundiosip pue
‘sjesreidde ‘aouewlopad pasoidwi 1oy Bulyoeods ul s||ins
pue ‘s1deou0d ylomwea] ‘A10ay) [eUOIRAIIOW JO MBIAIBAO
) wawdojanag
sapn[ou| ‘wea) 3Jom ayl ojul aaAojdwa Buieibajul .
. , aakojdw3 pue JuswabeuelN | 282°0 | 4AMO | dM
pue ‘sprepuels asuewlouad Bumas ‘suonejusiio sureldx3 5
) ) . uigels sanessiuiupy
saoualajal bupjoayd pue ‘Buimalaialul ‘suonedldde
Bulusalos ‘sjuswasiuaApe ‘sisAfeue qol Buipnjoul
‘seakojdwa Bunoajas pue Buninidal SIBA0D 8SIN09 SIYL
‘Yieay [euonednddo pue ‘uoieuIwLdSIP ‘UOIPUOD 10e4 pue .
gol ‘uolun Buipaebai sybu saa)10M SABAINS 8SIN0J SIYL| MeT ul SiIybly SIaxIoN soidoy (eba7 | 9820 AMO | dM
(‘a|crejrene uonduosap ON)|  dreqolid pue S| soido] [efa7 | 9820 | AMD | dM
‘Suonuaaul feutbuo SI0JUBAU| 10} Sjudle soido] |ebas :
yum synpe 1o} ssadoud jualed ay) salojdxa 8sinod Ssiy L 10} d idoL [Ebe | 98,0 | d4MD | dM
‘SareIs
palun 8yl ul suedldwy aAleN Jo snieis [eba| anbiun ay) .
10 Buipuelsiapun [el1auab Sapinold ‘Sireye uelpu] Jo Me| 8y} MET DLWy SAlEN sodo] [eba7 | 982°0 | 4MD | M
jo sajdipuld 2iseq pue A101SIy 8y} S8oNPO.IIUI 8SIN0I SIY L
‘'sanssl [eba| pue swaisAs [eoipnl aAnesedwod swaisAs [eha soido 1 1efo .
pue 1IN0J puelsiapun suapnis djay ||IM 8sInod Siyl S [Eba1 IdoL [Eba7 | 98,0 | 4MD | dM
‘S)pne SY| pue ‘Buiuoz ‘Bupjueq Jawolisnd
. . . laumQ ssauisng .
SU0N29||09 ‘uonesuadwod ,SIaxIoAA ‘uonelado ssauisng soido] eba7 | 9820 | AMO | 4M
[fews ay) 10} meT
[rews Buluiaouod sajdiound [eba| syuasaid 8sIn09d Syl
uonduosag asino)n 3111 8sin0) a|jdwes | 331 |[esd3ud9) "ON 9S4n09H 9po9n




144

~uawAo|dwa Buiyaas syuapnis 1o} salbarens sapinoid
0S[e 8sIn02 ay] "wsljeuolssajoid pue ‘Buljy ‘siawo1snd
10 sjuald Bunsaib ‘auoyd ayl Buamsue Buipnjoul
sanljigisuodsal pue sysel yia|oasiuondadal/Aielaldas
2ISk( S19A092 1] "Jels uoddns e se palojdwa uaag Janau
Sey OYyM aUu0aWosS 10} 3SIN0I S||IYS 3210 dIseq © SI Siyl

ainpadolid
9 S2219RId 32O

saoljoeld 9210

1610

dMO

AM

"Spaau JUapn]S 0} pPalojie] Sl 8SIN0d 8yl ‘Saulydoew pue
wawdinba 8210 Jo suonelado diseq ures| ||IM SlUspNS

SauIydeN 21O

saoloeld 9210

1610

dMO

4M

(‘a|gejrene uondiosap ON)

Buneloyo suods

Buneloyo

0640

dMO

4M

‘apew aJe suoisloap poob

pue ‘1awW ae saAndalqo ‘panjoaul ase syuedioired ainsua 0)
uoISSnasIp 10 Bunaaw e ayel|ioe) 0] MOY uIes) ||IM Sluspns
‘sue|d uonoe uo dn-mojjo} 01 salnuiw 01 epuabe wouy
Juswabeuew HBunsaw Jo S10adse |je SI9A0D 9SIN0I SIYyL

1uswabeue\ bunasy

Juswoabeuey
Bunas|n

68.°0

dMO

4M

‘sdais uoisIoap

Jo AQ1alreA e ybnoayy Ajjeaneioowsp pue Apuaidiye dnolib e
Buipes| Jo spoylaw ayl saziseydw3 ‘sajni Arejusweljred Jo
saonoeld woolsse|d ybnouyl Jauuew Alisplo ue ul Bunasw
e Bunonpuod 1o} sanbiuyosal saonpoaiul 8sIN09 SIY L

sainpasold
Arejusweled

Juawabeue
Bunas|n

68.°0

dMO

4M

joJow pue ‘ubisap pe ‘bunm

Adoo ‘peq wouy spe poob Buiziuboosal ‘s1axtew ‘aduaipne
BuiAjnuap! Buipnjoul ‘ssaulsng azIS wnipawy/|fews ay)

1o} uejd Buisiuaape pue dojaaap 01 Moy uled) [|IM SJUspnIS

ssauisng InoA Bunowolid

Bunaxten

88L°0

dMO

4M

‘ue|d uonoe bunaxsew eonoeld 1ng ‘aidwis e pjing
pue salfarelis pue soiseq Buipueiq uses| ||IM Sjuspnis

bunaxteN pue buipueig
1O S|eluswepun4

Bunaxten

88L°0

dMO

=

uondiiosag 9sinon

9111 8sino) ajdwes

ajIL |esauan

"ON 9si1n0)

apoo




1%

'91A1s Bunum anosdwi pue ‘syaxtew Ajnuapl ‘seapl A101S puly SiadedsmaN .
‘SI91LIM doUR|-93l) Sk Ul Yealq 01 MOY uiea| |[IM Sjuspms pue sauizebe ,oulstiand €60 | M4D | d4M
01 Buyjlas pue Bunum
(‘s|qejrene uonduossp oN)|  Buiurel] JsaunjoA SWOIJ UON | 260 | M4dD | dM
‘swnipaw Alo1gnd Jaylo pue
sjods olpel ‘sallols smau Jo sjuawubisse eanoeid sapn|ou|
‘"AL pue olpel ‘siadedsmau se 4yons eipaw JoO s1salalul suoneziueblQ .
pue spaau JenaiJed saziseydw3 “salouabe [eloos [e100s 1oy Adiignd SH0id UON ¢6L0 AMdD M
pue sy 1d ‘sayainyd ‘sqnjo ‘sjooyas se yons suoneziuebio
1o} Ao1ignd Buiindas Jo spoylaw sapinoid asinod siyL
Ay
uoneAjes ‘ssol) pay ‘sreudsoy areis ‘YAQ ‘Siuswiredap
yireay angnd :apnjoul sapuabe aidwes ‘suonaipsunl say)
uIyum suaznio bunsisse Ajreioueuly Jo bulurel) ‘buldsunod| suoneziuebliQ 1joid-UoN |  SIjold UON 26.°0 4MO | 4dM
‘uonelljigeyal ‘arejjom ayl o1 diysuone|al 11ayl pue
suoneziueblo pue salpuabe a1gnd ujoiduou Jo Auoyine
pue sanljigisuodsal ‘suonouny ay) s|ie1sp 8sInod Syl
"JJe1S pue S1891un|oA ‘ualp|iyd ‘syuased yum Buijiom SI931UNIOA BUIDES .
1o} s||vs diysiapes| dojaaap siuapnis djay |[Im SN0 SIYyL HNIoA bulpesT SH0id UON ¢6L0 AMO | HM
"sal|iwe] J1ay) pue sjuaned Bulures ]
[II Ajreuiwaal 0] asuelsisse pue uoddns euonows apianoid A 991d S1jold UON 26,0 M4d9 4M
pue ylim a1eaiunwiwiod siaajunjon sdjay asinod siyl 1991UN|OA 9910SOH
‘asn [euosltad 1oj s|is BuidAy a1seq seanposiul 8SIN09D SIYL BuidA L soaanoeld adlo| T62°0 4MO | 4M
*ABojoulwlal pue sainpadoud ‘Buly aiydeiboab pue Buijy
108lgns ‘Buljly 8d2uspuodsaliod duswnu ‘sajni anaqeydre sanbjuyoa] Buii4 saonoeld adlo| T62°0 4MO | 4dM
Buipnjoul ‘sanbiuyoda) Buljil 21Seq SM3IABI 8SIN0IJ SIYL
(‘airejrene uonduosap oN) pueyjelg saopoeld PO| T6L0 | AMO | 4M
uonduosag asino) 3111 8sin0) a|jdwes | 331 |[esd3ud9) "ON 9S4n09H 9po9n




9y

'S9SIN0J

(-o18 ‘saunonuis ‘sajlis ‘uoneziuebio “6'8) ouIMm 01 Moy, Jou ate Aay “Buiysignd jo s1oadse ssauisng ay) Yyoeal 1snw 8sIn0) ‘v

‘'sasnoy Jo buioueuly

pue ‘uonanusuod ‘ssadsold BuiAng dois-Ag-dais ayl Siano)
‘'saseyaind awoy asIm ayew 1o awoy Umo Jiay] 19'uod
(2) pue ‘uononusuod asuapisal Ajlwe-a1buls JO SJUBWS|
[enuassa ayl pueisiapun (T) 01 Wayl ajqeus |[Im eyl
abpamouy pue S|IMS Yyum spuapnis sapinoid asinod siyl

apINg siapjing
pue si1aAng sawoH

are)s] [eay

¥6.°0

dMO

AM

'SJUBWINJ0P JuBWASEa pue Sjuawalels buiso|d ‘sabebiow
pue sajou ‘saouelesld s ‘Buniodal upald ‘sji ueo)
S9ssalS ‘saiadoid [eas BulkaAuod ul pasn sjuswnisul
eba| pue sainpadsoid ul UONONJISUI SI9JJ0 8SIN0I SIY L

saladold [eay
Ul SaINpadoid MoJIsT

arels] [eay

¥6.°0

dMO

=

‘'swelboid ueo| JoAngawoH awl] 1Si14 pue

aauelsiIsse JuswAed umop 1oj sjuswalinbal salsies sse|o
paljiias-a1e1s syl 218 ‘ueo| e buunoas ‘Juabe aleisa
[eal e yum Bupjiom 0] uoneniis [eloueul) JINoA buizAjeue
woJ} :ssas0.id BulAng swoy ainus ayl SI8A09 3SIN0I SIY L

BulAng awoH Jo sOgV

arels] [eay

¥6.°0

dMO

=l

"1ouaul ayl ybnoayl
soes pue buiysignd-jas saziseydw3 "00q J18y1 buljes
pue Buiysiignd o1 yoeoidde paudwis e uresj ||Im Sluspns

Bulysijand 1susem|

,oulysiiand

€60

dMO

AM

‘9oualadxa
pue 3lomawel} dISeq e SapIn0ld ‘So|dile auizebew
UOoIIOIIUOU pue UOoNJl BIIM SJUBpNIS djay |IM 8SIN0D SIYL

auizebe ‘Bunupn

,ouysiand

€6L°0

dMO

4M

‘'spoyiaw buinbniio saulwexa pue
S)ayJew uondluou pue uonall s,Aepol salojdxa asInod siyl

aoue|aal ‘Bunupn

,ouysiand

€6L°0

dMO

4M

‘s1ayew o1 Alljigerdepe
pue ainionis ‘sajf1s bunum saziseydw3 ‘Bunum
3JoIlIe puk ainjea} Jo SJUBWIS aY] SaulWeXad asIN0d SIY L

alnyea- ‘Bunupn

,ouysiand

€6L°0

dMO

4M

uonduosaqg 9sino)

311l 8sino) ajdwes

ajIL [eJaU9D)

"ON 9S4n09)H

apoH




Ly

"Juswabeuew [eloueul pue
Buidaay piooal ‘suononpap Buines xe) Buluue|d ‘suodal uonesedald xe uonesedald xe .
xe] [euosiad Bunajdwod 1o} sainpadold sapnjou| ‘Mme| pue : dxel L dxel /6.0 AMO | d4M
Sa|nJ xe) 81els pue [elapa) diseq adNpoiul [|IM 8SIN0I SIYL
‘uonesuadwo) S,uswIoN pue
uonexe] Auadolid jeuosiad pue [eal ‘©inoNAS Xe) sawooul SISATeUY Xe uonesedald xe .
a1 ‘saseq uoljexe) JuaIayIp SMaINDY 'Sle||op Xel a8y} JO ISAEUV XEL A dXell /60 | 4MO | dM
suoneoldde pue ‘sasn ‘spasau ayl yum sjuapnis sjurenboy
‘wayl A|dde 01
moy pue Jabeue buibeinoou3 ue Bulaq Joj S)daduod Aay
uiea ‘pajamoduwa 19e pue |99} way) djay 01 pasau noA pue labeue Loisiadn .
‘suonnqgriuod aziubodal 0] pasau noA ‘saakojdwa wioul 0} Buibeinoou3 ay L " S 96.°0 AMO | dM
paau noA ‘rey) op 0] ‘1s98q Jiay) op 01 9jdoad buibeinodua
pue Buimojfe o} saibarels siabeuew aAIb |IMm 8SIN09 SIYL
‘s19ad pue saalojdwa 6
. unuoJjuod :
113y} U1 1no 1saq ay1 Buug 01 moy uses| sespuany ‘siaad uoisiniadng 9620 | 4MDS
pue bBuiyoeo)
pue saakojdwsa J1Iay) yorod 0} MOy uled| [|IM SJuspnis
‘'ssauisng e buibeuew| pas2dnsg % Ssaulsng wswdojanag .
pue Buiziuehlo Jo sjeluswepuny ayl S|ielsp asINod SIYl| UMQ JNOA UelS 01 MOH |SSauisng |lews S6.0 | 4MO | d4M
‘Buip|ing areisa pue ‘Bunsaaul dnoib JUSWISBAU| B1e1ST [ea 51215 25 .
‘Aiadoud swoaul ‘sjuswisanul pue| Apnis [|Im Sjuapnis ! 3 €94 1€153 [B9d V6.0 AMOD | dM
‘ales ayj uo ureb 18u Aue Jo juawieal) patiasaid
Xe] aWodul ay] pue ‘gesal o) awoy ay) burredaud
, _ 19UMO3WOH .
suawanoidwi swoy Jo anjeA ay ‘awoy ybu ayl Buipuly aje1s] [eay ¥62°0 | AMO | 4AM
: 3y} 1o} a1e1sg |eay
sopnou| ‘Buiuue|d jeloueul) Ajiwey pue diysisaumo awoy
1O S108dse [eloueUl) SNOLIBA 83U} SaUlWexa 8SIN0d SIy L
uonduosag asino)n 3111 8sin0) a|jdwes | 331 |[esd3ud9) "ON 9S4n09H 9po9n




8y

"lo;uod yrealq Jo Jlamod ay) yum

puiw InoA 10} sanbiuyoal snooj [eluaw pue ‘Apog InoA 1oj sansAblauu| ssaullH 0S80 4 4H
Spoylaw Uone|os| pue aduelsisal Saulquiod sonsAblauul
"Yieasy
[eaisAyd Bulureiurew Aq abeuwli-J|as pue apnune [elusw mau
B S910Wold "doueinpua Alojelidsal pue JejndseAoIpied pue| Juswallay ul SSaull ssaull4 058°0 4 4H

sou0] ajasnw Buisealoul 1o} paubisap asioiaxa [ealsAyd
pue sulaned BulAll ‘uoiewloul Arelaip SI8A02 8SIN0J SIYL
*Apoq [N} s1y1 ul yibuans Jejndsenolpred

pue aoueeq ‘Aljigow ‘Aljigixal) aAocidwi s)uspnls ssaull4 ssaull4 0S80 4 4H
sd|ay 8s1n09 SIY1 ‘SSaull} [eUOIIAUN] UO SNI0J B YUAN
uondiiosag asino) 3]11L 8sino) ajdwes | 9L |[elauds "ON @sIn0) | apo)

S3SYNOID H1TVIH IATdINVS

uoninu pue ‘quawabeuew Jabue yljesH
_ : , ylresH 4H )
(uoneonpa sajagelp ‘uonuanaid sisolodoalso) saidol Yyeay ‘Ydo/pIv 1sii4 1UpPaI2-UON
S||IMs Bulwwims [ealnins ‘(eBoA ‘solgolar) ssaully [edisAyd annnadwod-uoN ssaullH 4H H_Mwhm%ww_z
uonduosag asino) ML apon  Aiobaje)

"awInajl| e 1an0 sajf1sayl] Ayeay a1owoud yey) s||s pue abpajmouy ayl Uo Sndoj S8sIN0d Yyijeay 1ipald-uop :uonduoasag
SS3NLId ANV HLTV3H



6v

‘A1oxoenb pue spej pooy buiziubodal pue Spooj Jo A1aLien
e Buisn ‘yieay Joj uoninu poob saziseydwas asIn0d SIYL

uonuINN

uonLINN

€680 H

dH

"9AlLIe |]Buuosiad
[ed1paw pasueApE |IuUN suoienys Bulualealyl-ayl ul S|Is
uonelosnsal Areuowndoipaed diseq sayodea) asinod Siyl

ddo

ddO/PIv 1sdi4

¢S80 H

dH

‘SaniAnoe

SSaull Ul BAI10R S[enpIAIpUl pue Saydeod 10} SI Uolew.olu|
‘salinful onajyre Jo uoneljiqeyal pue sisoubelp ‘uonuanaid
a1 Jo abpajmouy [euonouny sjuasald 9sIN09 SIYyL

‘qeysy

® ‘sisoubeiq ‘uonuanaid

:saunful ons|yv

ddO/PIv 1S4

dH

(‘o|gejrene uonduosap oN)

sonbiuyoa |

|0JuoD Bupjows

saoue)sqns
pa||01u0D

‘sjualed pajsalalul Jo) A18100Ss
Ino ul sBnup Jo asnge pue asn ayl SASAINS 8SIN0J ay |

.................................................................... ‘uonexejal
pue Buiyreaiq pasndoj Aq paiuedwodoe sasod eboA
ybnouayr yibuans pue Aljigixals ‘eouejeq sanoidwi e6oA

ssauasemy bBniQq

Ssaull{ 1ol eBOA

saauelsgns
pajjou0)

Ssaujl

"9SJN0J SSaull} pue Yyieay e si Syl ‘pulw [inbuel)
pue wjed e SIa1so) pue Apoq ayl 10} 9SI1019XD SANRIPaW
® SI]] "uoneupaw 1o eboA Jo wioy Buinow ay S 1Iyd re|

Yo el

Ssaull4

dH

‘Ainelb yum bunpiom Ag Ajigixals pue yibuans

S8Ssealou| ‘Sjusplode pue eolleIds ‘SIS01j09s ‘suolung

woJj ured pue ‘ured 3oeq pue ¥d8u aodnpal ‘Aljigow
alolsal ‘ainisod pue usawubije Apoq anoidwi |jIm SjUuspmIS

Buiwwrelbolday
[einonns

Ssaujl

0S80 d

dH

‘Juawubie

pue ainisod Buinoidwi yum Buore Aljiqixs) pue yibuais
dojonap 01 Allunuoddo ay siuedionted Buimoje ‘yibuans
Apog 8102 pue Bulyrealq uo si siseydwa syl ‘Iun auo se
Jay1abo1 yiom 01 Apoq pue puiw ay sarelbalul ‘sare|id ‘H
ydasor Aq paJaauold bBulures; jo poylaw Areijodwaiuod siy

sale|ld

Ssaull4

0S80 E |

dH

uondiosag 9sino)

311l 8sino) ajdwes

a|jIL |esauan

"ON 9S4n09)

apoH




TS

09

"S)OeUS pue S[eaw
Bulreadde pue aAnoeae aredald pue syonpoud annsqns
aseyaind 0] urea ‘9jA1sayl| Ayleay e aAl| pue adueI3|olul

Arelaip yum pareldosse saseasip abeuew 1o spasu

Arejalp [e1oads ayepowwodde 01 sAem alojdxa ||Im Ssjuspns

191Q 9914 TeayM

uonLINN

€680 H

dH

‘saonoeld Arejalp Jualind pue sjuswsalddns Jo asn

3U] pue S[elaulw pue SsulleliA JO 3]04 a8yl ‘ualp|iyd BunoA ul
suianed pooj Jo Juswdojaaap ‘syuaiinu Buionpoid-ABiaus
pue ABJaus ‘Spasu [euoniINU JISE( JSA0I ||IM SBIN103T
"UBJP|IYd pue Sjueul JO SPaau [euonlINU Inoge suonsanb
al19ads yse Aew syuedionred yoiym e doysyiom y

pooypIiyd
pue Aoueju| :uonuinN

uonuINN

€880 H

dH

uondiiosag 9sino)

9111 @sino) ajdwes

ajIL |esauan

"ON 9si1n0)

apo)




19

‘abuel

a[oA21010W 8y uo d2nodeid Yyim Apnis WOOISSe[D Saulquio)d
‘Buiuiny pue BuaAnauew aAISeAd ‘Bupjelq panoidwi pue
aoueplone ysel) "A1ajes pue sanbiuydal BuiALp aAIsSuajap
‘SIS Buipl 19a.1s dIseq saziseydw3 “s||iMs Bulpll aAnodaya
pue ajes 0] Jolesado 32421010W SIIAOU BY] S8INPOIIU|

Bunig
lanag Japry o|0A21010\

919421010\
‘uonesnp3
SIENIq

T06°0 )

‘Alojepuew s

douepuany Nwliad s,JaAlp uobalQ pifen INoA aneH ‘sse|d
Jo Aep 1S4} 3yl Uo awil [9aym-ayl-puiyaq JnoA 109|8s 01
pasedald ag 'S)unoasIp aduerINSUI J0) pue aINSUII| JO awil
e 921J0 AN 9Y) 01 UOISSIWQgNS 10} 81eJ1}11190 © aAI90al
[IIM S1uapnis ‘uonajdwod |nyssadons uodn ‘ssaupatedald
pue ‘enanbna ‘sanbiuydal BulALp ajes Jo abelanod

Z-V Soplnoid 8SIn02 3y "uoneAISsqo Jed-ul Jo Sinoy

XIS pue adusladxa [9aym-ayl-puiyaq Jo sinoy xis ‘awi
W00JSSe[D JO sInoy Qg Sapnjoul welboid uoneanp3 JaAlQg
ayl "si010nasul Buiaup reuolssajold Yyiim sAem aalreAouul
pue mau ul Bulurely JIaALIp aJes ul 1sare| ay) aiojdx3

uoleulwexg
19AuQ payied 10d0

a|lgowoiny
Hnpy
‘uoneonp3g
slaAnlQ

0060 )

uondiiosag asino)

9111 8sino) ajdwes

ajIL [elaudn

"ON 9s1n0)

apoH

"‘9suajap-J|as pue ‘(esn apionsad ajes ‘sjo01 Jamod Jo uoneiado

sasino) Ayojeg a|dwesg

, , INETEELS
aJes ‘asuodsal 10 ssaupaledald Jaisesip) saidor A1ajes ‘s||IS BulluwIMS [eAIAINS Aojes S 105.15-UD
‘ ‘uonesedald asuadl| pieog auleN ‘(BAIlY GG ‘A18es ajaAalolow) Bulures) J1aAug np N

uonduosaqg oL apony Aiobajen

"awInajl| e 1ano saonorid ajes ajowoid eyl s|jiys pue abpajmous 8yl U0 SNJ0J S8SIN0d A1ajes 1palo-uoN :uonduosaqg

AL34VS




¢S

'9SIN0J uonealdal e ou SI siyl "A1ajes uo sasndoH Buneogq oiseq .
5 g's°n/k1oses Buneog | \OYES BUUEN | S06°0 S S
"SUONIPUOID Jayream awalxa Buipnjoul e £oush .
suonenis Aouabiawa Jo AlaueA e BUIAIAINS 10} sanbluyda [EAIMNS AJUSbISWIT [EAIMNS v06°0 S S
‘Mes pueq
[erow pue mesyoey Jamod ‘sulydew Bulw ‘1apuub ‘ssaid f1818< 100 | JBMO s|oo| )
[Jup ‘ayre] youaq “*He ‘sj0o1 doys Jo A1oueA e aresado 0} 19JES |00L d pue juswdinb3 €06°0 S S
palinbal abpajmouy [ea1uyds) pue s||ixs ayl saressuowaq
‘lello1ew parejal
JO sinoy oM yum pajuawalddns asinod bulag aAisusjeq ynpy
lounod A1ajes [euoireN Jnoy-1ybis prepuels ay si siyL Buinl@ anisusjaq ‘uonednp3 2060 S S
"SUOISI||02 PIOAR 0] Sainseawl BUIALIP SAISUBBP SBSSaNs SENNIg
pue sanbiuydal 8ouepIOAR JUSPIJJR Dljjell SMIINSY
‘Slgey pue
apnie ‘s|iqs BulALIp JO JuswaAoidwl 8Y) Se [|oMm Se 9|2IYdA uoneonpg ynpy
ay1 Jo uonelado snoaunod ‘swes ay) Jo) Aljigisuodsal £ : ‘uoneonp3 2060 S S
. 19Jes dljel] pue JIaALQ
S, JaALp 8y} saziseydw3 “I18ALp paduauadxs ay o) S||IINS siaAuQ
BuinLp suadieys :s||i)s Buiaup 01 Jsuulbaq ay) seanpou|
uonduosag asino) 3111 8sIno) a|jdwes | 8L |eidudn) "ON 9S1n09H 9po9n




€

[WIyS ' Wwgqo/gd0/Sva/Aob uocbalo Aobaj/:dny ‘preog ssalboid uobalp ayl ©
/BI01820U MWW//-0NY ‘(DDVY) SabajjoD Allunwiwo)d
JO UONRID0SSY URdLIBWY 8y] JO [1Iouno) Jo areljiyje ue ‘Bulurel] pue uoneanp3 Buinunuo) Joj |IdDuUNo) [euoneN ayl o
/W02 830U MMAM//-d1IY ‘UoieID0SSY uoneonp3 Auunwwo) [euoneN ©
/610°10-2220° MWW //:dNly ‘uoneIdossy uoneonp3 Allunwwo) uobalp ayl ©
:S9JIS GO

00%-900-68S ¥VO S8sIN0D uoleanp3 JayiQ 1o} Aoyiny feaosddy
(s¥) uoneaday (£2) AqqoH 0S00-900-98S YVO :suomuyad
Wiy Nejap/Saldijod/Sn i0 a1els pMIIPO MAW//-dNY MUl SIY) 01 SIY] 09 Sajnjels pasiAdy pue sajny aAljelisiuiwupy uobaip

sn'1o°areIs@Asaouekoq-uesns :rew3 ‘G9ee-8/¢

-€0G :Xed 98¢ '1X® ‘8%98-8/€ (€03) :8uUoyd ‘5G€/6 UoBaIO ‘weles “3'N 1S |ouded GGz wuswdolaaaq 821010 pue sabs||0D
Alunwwo? jo usawuedaqg uobalQ siernads sweibold [euonanisu] ‘AYsaoueAog uesns :39ejuod ‘uoljewiojul diow 104

S30dN0OS3A



Section 1: Foundation and Basic Commitments (Admin Services)
Live Link as of February 1, 2012: http://www.socc.edu/admin/pgs/policies/foundation/index.shtml
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PROCEDURE # 3.000

PURCHASING
The value of a clear purchasing review and approval process that is consistently enforced includes:

¢ Adherence to institution review and approval rules as well as budgets
¢ Timely recordation of College commitments through the use of encumbrances
e All purchases will be made with requisitions unless it is a pre-approved situation

The general approval process is as follows:

1. End-users wanting to make a purchase must create a requisition after verifying budget availability
using WebAdvisor or Datatel.

2. The requisition will be fully completed. For specific details, see individual processes (i.e. Standard
Requisitions, Travel Requests, Credit Card Requisitions, etc.) If purchase is not addressed in
processes, please contact Business Services. All requisitions must include the following detailed
information:

a. Detailed description of items
i Iltem number listed if available
b. Delivery or pickup information
i Initiator will purchase and pick item up at vendor
ii.  Order will be delivered
c. Payment method
i.  Credit card or check
d. Initiator is required to give detailed instructions on what he/she requires from Business
Services:
i.  Vendor will need the original purchase order mailed
ii. Business Services needs to fax the purchase order once printed
iii. Business Services does NOT have to forward copy of the purchase order to the
vendors
e. Inventory Tag
i.  General Fund funded
ii.  Grantfunded

3. The College’s rules of procurement must be followed and includes but are not limited to the
following:
a. If the requisition is under $5,000, three competitive quotes are not required if not feasible
b. If the requisition is $5,000-574,999, three competitive quotes must be obtained
c. If the requisition is $75,000 or higher, a formal solicitation must occur and Invitations to Bid
and Requests for Proposal must be acquired

Page 1 of 3 Purchasing



4. The Accounting Technician will be the first check point for verifying that a requisition is charged to
appropriate account numbers and budget availability. Depending on the units being charged he/she
will then forward it to either:

VP of Administrative Services

VP of Instruction

Executive Director of ITS

Interim President and/or Dean of Students

5. These four will be able to give final approval on requisitions up to $10,000. Requisitions in excess of
$10,000 will require Presidential approval as well. Those in excess of $25,000 will require Board
approval; the department head or supervisor will create the required resolution. Once approved
that person is responsible for forwarding a copy of the approved resolution to Accounts Payable and
entering in the requisition through WebAdvisor.

Once all approvals are received, requisition will be finalized and amount will be reflected in WebAdvisor.
Accounts Payable will create the purchase orders in Colleague at which time the funds will be
encumbered against the budget. Switchboard will handle distribution, mailing and faxing of purchase
orders as required.

If items are delivered to Mail Services, items will be received individually and tagged, if applicable, by
Mail Services. For orders that have multiple small items, the initiator is responsible for receiving even if
items were delivered to Mail Services. When items are received or picked up by the initiator, he/she is
required to notify Business Services or accept them through WebAdvisor so payment may be made. If
an invoice and/or packing slip are received, they must be immediately forwarded to Business Services.

Two exceptions to the work flow outlined above have been identified:

1) For Athletics requests, the Athletic Director is an approver of the requisition.
2) For Clubs, the Coordinator of Student Life is the first check point. He/she will be the person to
submit the request to Business Services.

Travel requests will require the interim use of the existing travel request document and will follow the
same approval process. More information on how the travel expenses will be paid is required including
registration and hotel payment method.

TIMELY PROCESSING OF FINANCIAL DATA BY COLLEGE STAFF
The procedures outlined above will allow the College to have a clearer picture of its commitments to its
vendors and its budget position. The following timeframes apply to other financial information:

e Settlement of travel reimbursements and other personal reimbursements — within 15 days of
conclusion of travel or other event

¢ Submission of monthly travel expense reports — within 5 days after the conclusion of month

¢ Turnaround of invoices received directly from vendors or from Business Services — 5 days

e Submission of credit card receipts — 15 days following expenditure
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DEPARTMENT SUBMISSION CHANGES

¢ Daily processing of invoices by departments is mandatory

e Departments responsible for monthly cost allocations of Motor Pool, Bookstore, Print Shop and/or
postage charges will be responsible for submitting charge reports to Business Services within 5
business days after the conclusion of a month.

e [f grant year-end reporting requires shorter processing time, Grant Manager is responsible for timely
submission

Approved: May20, 2009
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PROCEDURE # 3.003

RULES AND PROCEDURES FOR PURCHASING AND PUBLIC CONTRACTING

It is the Administrative procedure of the Southwestern Oregon Community College District that the College
adopts the Community College Rules of Procurement effective February 28, 2005.

Adopted by Board of Education:

Procedure #3.003 June 26, 1995

Changed to Administrative Procedure January 22, 1996
Revised February 28, 2005




Live Link as of February 1, 2012:
http://www.socc.edu/admin/pgs/bm~doc/
gifts-donations--solicitations-of-funds-3-008. pdf

PROCEDURE # 3.008

|GIFTS, DONATIONS, AND SOLICITATION OF FUNDS

It is the Administrative procedure of the Southwestern Oregon Community College District to:

1. Accept cash donations up to $15,000 with the approval of the president and with notification to the Board
and to accept cash donations in excess of $15,000 or more with Board of Education approval.

2. Have the foundation accept all non-cash donations except for consumable supplies and materials that will
be used directly in instructional programs.

3. Allow cash solicitations up to $15,000 for the benefit of the College with the president's approval and in
excess of $15,000 or more with prior approval of the College Board.

4. Deposit, except for Title IV funds, student aid for scholarships, loans, and grant-in-aid with the Southwestern
Oregon Community College Foundation, Inc. The funds shall be administrated in accordance with Financial
Aid, the Business Office and the Financial Aid Committee procedures.

Adopted by Board of Education:
Reyisatlitem IR A B3, 19, 1986

Changed to Administrative Procedure January 22, 1996
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Amaral
Anderson
Ball
Barber
Benoit
Birskovich
Blake
Boak
Brown
Bunnell
Chavez
Chilson
Clements
Coles
Cook
Corriea
Croy
Davidson
Davila
Finney
Fisher
FitzHenry
Fletcher-Gordon
Flores
Foltz
Friesen
Gerisch
Gill
Hanlin
Harvey
Helland
Helland
Herbert
Inman
James
Jones
Kridelbaugh
Kubli

Christopher
Phill

Dean
Kathleen
Michelle
Daniel
Kathy
Marjorie
Sharilyn
Robin
Anna
James
Deanne
Christine
Jamie
Megan
Kyle
Patricia
Delia
John
Mary Jane
Leigh

Lisa
Katherine
Chris
Cari

Carl
Grant
Shawn
Jodi
Karen
Nathan
Michael
Michael
Margallee
Jeremy
Linda
Howard

Southwestern Oregon Community College

Position

Putting Education to Work Project Director

Interim V.P. of Instruction

Tecnhology Support Supervisor

Even Start Coordinator/Family Liaison

SSS Retention Specialist

Family Center Coordinator/Ece Practicum Instructor
Talent Search Interim Assistant Director

Education Talent Search Specialist

Education Talent Search/Upward Bound Director
Institutional Researcher

Administrative Assistant to VP of Instruction
Programmer/Training Specialist

Book Store Manager

Retired Senior Volunteer Program Director

OCCI Recruiting, Advising & Retention Specialist
Recreation Center Supervisor/Softball Coach
Resident Hall Director

Web System Administrator

Resident Hall Director

Upward Bound Education Specialist

Coos County Library Services Extended Service Director
Accounting Technician

Compensation/Benefits Coordinator

Executive Director Integrated Technology Services
Executive Chef of Dining Services

Associate System Information Specialist

Associate System Information Specialist/Supervisor
Educational Talent Search Specialist Part Time
Executive Director of Oregon Coast Culinary Institute
Curry Advisor/Student Services Coordinator
Commmunity Education and Workforce Development Director
In District High School Relations Coordinator
Athletic Director

Putting Education to Work Training Coordinator
Career Pathways/Perkins Coordinator

Assistant Director of Student Housing

Vice President of Administrative Services
Educational Talent Search Specialist

Administrative Positions

Degree and Credential

M.A., B.A., A.A
M.S., BA, A.A
AAS
A.A.S.
B.A., M.S.
B.S., B.S.
B.S., A.A.S.
B.S.S.
M.S., B.S., A.A
MBA, B.A.
Certificate
M.S., B.S.
MBA
M.S.

B.S.,, AA.O.T
B.S., AA
B.S., A AO.T
Certificate
B.A.
M.Ed., B.A., A.A.
AA.
AA.S.

Certificates / Certified
Associates Degree
AA, B.S., CCNA
AS.

B.A., AS.

A.S. Certificate
MA, BA
M.A., B.A.

B.A.

PhD, MS. BS

B.S.
M.E., B.A
MS , BS
B.S., AA.

Discipline

Physical Education, Biology, Liberal Arts

English

Network Dsgin and Administration

Early Childhood Education

French, Education

Sociology, Elementary Education

Liberal Studies, Human Services

Corrections

Social and Behaviorial Science, Human Services
Business, Political Science

Health Services/EMT

Computer Science, Mathematics and Comp. Science
Management

Political Science

Public Policy and Admin., Human Services
Kinesiology, Physical Education

Communication, Liberal Arts and Science

Website Fundamentals and IWA Web Technologies
Government/Spanish

Soc. Studies, Integrated Social Studies, Childhood Education
Liberal Arts

Business Management

HP Systems, IBM Programming, Design, and Supervision
Applied Science Pro cooking and baking

Information Technology

Math and Science

English, Business Management

Culinary Arts

Secondary & Post Secondary School Counseling/Personnel Administration, Psychology

Human Development, Sociology/Anthropology
Liberal Studies

Physical Education and Recreation - minor Educational Psychology, Kinesiology and Teaching & Coaching

Secondary Education

College Student Affairs, Liberal Studies
Computer Science, Mathematics
Secondary Education, General



La Plante
Lavoie
Liggett
Livingston
Mankamyer
Matson
Maxwell
Mc Cadden
McKiney
McClellan
McMichael
Miller
Nicholls
Nicholls
Olson
Parker
Platt

Potts
Poynter
Pretti
Pringle
Reynolds
Richards
Riley
Robison
Schab
Scott
Shumaker
Singh
Smith

Soto
Summerville
Taylor
Thomas
Walker
Whitey
Winberg
Wirth

Antione
Rocky
Shawn
Gerry
Aleta
Karen
Bonnie
Ann
David
Janet
Patricia
Barry
Debra
Thomas
Ronald
Patricia
James
Laurie
Sannon
Janet
Karen
Paul
Carol
Ellen
Kari
Diana
Patricia
Karim
Avena
Karina
Arlene
Rachele
John
Joseph
Susan
Jeffrey
Neil
Julee

Position
Putting Education to Work Training Coordinator
Director Technology Services
Student First Stop Coordinator/Supervisor
Educational Talent Search Specialist
Curry Instructional Prog Coordinator
Instructional Technology Specialist
Corrections Education Director/Transitional Education
Compensation/Benefits Coodinator
Plant Services Director
Interim Associate Dean Learning
Job Placement Internship/Externship Coordinator
Educational Talent Search Specialist
Executive Assistant to the President/Board Secretary
Executive Director of Enrollment Managment
Business Office Director
Transitional Education Director
Lead Advising Specialist
Childhood Education Director
Director of Catering/Sous Chef
Dean of Curry County
Executive Dir. of Resource Dev/College Foundation
Director of Public Safety Programs

Administrative Assistant to the VP of Administrative Services

Director Of Oregon Online NAHHA Training Initiative
Admissions/Recruitment Coordinator

Associate Dean of Learning

President

Gold Beach Center Coordinator

Financial Aid Director

Coordinator of Student Life & Events

BDC Director

Executive Director of Human Resources

Network Technician Specialist

Public Safety Director

Nursing Director

Exec Director Housing/ Student Activities Director
Upward Bound Education Specialist

Recruitment Analyst Interim

Degree and Credential

B.S., AS.

Certificates / Certified

MBA, B.S. AA.

B.S.

B.S.
M.S., B.S.
M.S., B.S.
Certificate

BA, MA, PhD
BA
M.Ed., B.S.
A.A.S.
B.S., B.S
B.A.
M.Ed., B.S., A.A
B.A.
M.A., B.S.
BS, Certificate
M.F.A., B.F.A.
B.A.

B.S., AAS,, AAS.
B.S., A.A.
M.A, B.A., AA.,
B.S., A.A.
M.S., B.S., B.S.
EDD, M.A,, B.S.
AS
MBA, B.S., AAOT
M.S., B.A.

M.A.M.S., B.A,, AA.

MBA, B.S., A.S, AS

M.S. B.S.
B.B.A.
M.F.A., B.A.

Discipline

Education, Industrial Mechanics- Welding
CCNA, Systems, Newtork, and Administration
Business Administration

Recreation/Community Ed

Graphic Communication

Information Studies, Psychology

Education, Inst. And Cur., Education Sec. Science
Bookkeeping

Government/Administration, Public Administration, Criminal Justice/Business Administration

English/European History

School and Community Counseling, Sociology
Office Admin.

History Economics, Education

Business Administration-Accounting

Adult Education, Psychology, Physical Therapy
Political Science

Human Development, General Studies

Finance and Int. Marketing, Culinary Arts
Sculpture, Sculpture and Graphic Design
Geography

Employee Training, Fire protection, Edu. and Training
Home Economics, General

Human Health and Services

Agriculture Business Mgmt., Transfer

Computer Science, Computer Science, Civil Eng.
Education, College Student Personnel, Sociology
Business Administration

Business Management - Marketing, Information Technology

Communication, Anthropology
Counseling, Management, Accounting

H.R management Emphasis, Business Management,Business Admin, Accounting

Public Health/School Health, Nursing
Business Administration
Creative Writing, Secondary Education



Position Degree and Credential Discipline



Southwestern Oregon Community College
FY11-12 Budgeted Transfers In

GL Account Amount
10-0000-48025 GENERAL FUND : TRANSFER FROM SPECIAL PROJECTS 185,000
10-0000-48057 GENERAL FUND : TRANSFER FROM BOOKSTORE 134,000
10-0000-48057 GENERAL FUND : TRANSFER FROM DINING SERVICES 133,774
10-0000-48057 GENERAL FUND : TRANSFER FROM OCCI 150,000
10-0000-48064 GENERAL FUND : TRANSFER FROM TRUST & AGENCY 20,000
622,774
25-6100-48010 BDC-G.F.SUPPORT : TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 45,000
25-6189-48010 LIBRARY EQUIP RESERVE : TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 2,000
25-0000-48064 SPECIAL PROJ. RSVP : TRANSFER FROM TRUST AND AGENCY RSVP 30,000
77,000
29-8805-48057 STU HOUSING RESERVE : TRANSFER FROM STUDENT HOUSING 52,084
29-8806-48057 OCCI RESERVE : TRANSFER FROM OCCI 95,000
147,084
36-8001-48010 PLANT FUND : TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 125,000
41-8901-48010 DEBT SERVICE : TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 306,584
41-8903-48010 DEBT SERVICE CURRY CAMPUS: TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 198,500
41-8904-48010 DEBT SERVICE STU REC CTR : TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 563,000
41-8905-48010 DEBT SERVICE DRYVIT : TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 17,500
1,085,584
53-3202-48010 PRINT SHOP : TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 60,171
53-3208-48010 MOTOR POOL : TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 101,509
53-3212-48010 MAIL CENTER : TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 15,650
177,330
57-8515-48010 NEWMARK CTR./OPERATING : TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 257,260
57-8521-48057 STUDENT HOUSING : TRANSFER FROM CONFERENCES/OTHER 6,234
57-8521-48057 STUDENT HOUSING : TRANSFER FROM CONFERENCES/PROJECTS 4,964
11,198
Total Enterprise 268,458
64-5005-48010 TRUST & AGENCY : TRANSFER %%@M GEN FUND 2,000
Grand Total m



GL Account

Southwestern Oregon Community College
FY11-12 Budgeted Transfers Out

Amount

10-0000-59041
10-0000-59053
10-1911-59025
10-2102-59025
10-3209-59057
10-3301-59036
10-4009-59064

25-7999-59010
57-8512-59010
57-8521-59029
57-8531-59010
57-8541-59057
57-8542-59057

57-8551-59010
57-8551-59029

64-5005-59010
64-5221-59025

GENERAL FUND: TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE

GENERAL FUND : TRANSFER TO INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

BUS. COMM. & WORKFORCE DEV: TRANSFER TO SPEC. PROJ. BDC
LIBRARY : TRANSFER TO SPECIAL PROJ. LIBRARY RESERVE
GENERAL FUND : TRANSFER TO NEWMARK CENTER

GENERAL FUND: TRANSFER TO PLANT FUND

GENERAL FUND STU GOV/ASG : TRANSFER TO TRUST AND AGENCY

SPECIAL PROJECTS : TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND
BOOKSTORE : TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND

STUDENT HOUSING : TRANSFER TO INSURANCE RESERVE
DINING SERVICES : TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND
CONFERENCES/OTHER : TRANSFER TO STUDENT HOUSING
CONFERENCES/PROJECTS : TRANSFER TO STUDENT HOUSING

OR COAST CULINARY : TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND
OR COAST CULINARY : TRANSFER TO INSURANCE RESERVE

Total Enterprise

TRUST & AGENCY : TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND
TRUST & AGENCY - RSVP : TRANSFER TO SPEC. PROJECTS RSVP

Grand Total

359

1,085,584
177,330
45,000
2,000
257,260
125,000
2,000

1,694,174
185,000
134,000

52,084
133,774

6,234
4,964

11,198

150,000
95,000

245,000

576,056

20,000
30,000

50,000

2,505,230



RESOURCES:

State Support

Federal Support

Local Support

Tuition and Fees (Net of Waivers)
Other Income

Loan Proceeds

Transfer from Other Funds

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance

Total Resources

REQUIREMENTS:
Personal Services
Personal Benefits
Materials and Services
Materials/Services Resale
Other Expenses (Net of Waivers)
Repairs
Debt Service
Capital Outlay
Transfers
Contingency

Unappropriated Fund Balance

Total Requirements

SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE

2011-2012 BUDGET - ALL FUNDS
General Financial Special Proj. Insurance Plant Debt Service Internal Enterprise Trust and

Fund Aid Fund Fund Reserve Fund Fund Fund Service Fund Fund Agency Fund Totals
$5,192,281 $1,000,000 $300,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,492,281
25,500 8,729,000 3,362,229 (0] 0] 161,000 (0] (0] 0 $12,277,729
4,918,100 0 527,888 0 0 0 0 0 0 $5,445,988
6,613,547 0 250,000 0 0 0 0 2,567,795 35,000 $9,466,342
360,026 0 718,356 29,000 5,860,000 851,000 353,000 5,220,982 140,700 $13,533,064
4,860,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $4,860,000
622,774 0 77,000 147,084 125,000 1,085,584 177,330 268,458 2,000 $2,505,230
2,000,000 0 400,000 454,000 0 0 0 0 120,000 $2,974,000
24,592,228 9,729,000 5,635,473 630,084 5,985,000 2,097,584 530,330 8,057,235 297,700 57,554,634
8,848,417 94,000 2,150,000 10,000 3,000 (0] 134,500 1,450,294 0] 12,690,211
3,812,752 0 773,646 5,000 0 0 80,020 639,324 (0] 5,310,742
3,096,634 0 1,593,627 320,084 1,132,000 0] 288,810 2,742,388 175,000 9,348,543
181,301 0 20,600 0 0 0 250 1,037,846 38,700 1,278,697
15,500 9,635,000 342,600 0 0 0 0 109,181 24,000 10,126,281
33,450 0 20,000 0 90,000 0 26,750 34,000 0 204,200
4,900,000 0 0 0 0 2,097,584 0 1,459,146 0 8,456,730
10,000 0 500,000 295,000 4,760,000 0 0 9,000 10,000 5,584,000
1,694,174 0 185,000 0 0 0 0 576,056 50,000 2,505,230
0 0 50,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 50,000
2,000,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,000,000
24,592,228 9,729,000 5,635,473 630,084 5,985,000 2,097,584 530,330 8,057,235 297,700 57,554,634

19



PLANT FUND

Plant Fund budget is used to account for financial resources that are used for acquisition or construction of major capital
facilities, the purchase of major equipment, or major remodeling. All resources for capital projects are receipted or
transferred into the Plant Fund. Earnings on investments, reallocations from other funds and lease proceeds are the primary
revenue sources. If the college sold bonds, the Plant fund would be used to account for the proceeds of those bonds and the
construction related costs, remodeling and/or equipment purchases designated for in the bond issue. The Plant fund has
separate units where it accounts for each project, and all capital project expenditures for the college are recorded in the Plant
Fund.
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SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

PLANT FUND SUMMARY
FY2011-2012

2010-11 2011-12 2011-12 2011-12

2008-09 2009-10 Adjusted Recommended Approved Adopted

Actual Actual Budget TITLE Budget Budget Budget

RESOURCES:
$736,126 $2,993,315 $3,241,000 State Revenues $0 $0 $0
$674,147 $0 0 Tuition & Fees 0 0 0
0 6,003,839 6,860,000 Other Revenues 5,860,000 5,860,000 5,860,000
0 0 0 Bond Issuance Proceeds 0 0 0
0 647,227 304,000 Transfers From Other Funds 125,000 125,000 125,000
748,129 1,019,624 1,500,000 Beginning Fund Balance 0 0 0
2,158,402 10,664,005 11,905,000 Total Resources 5,985,000 5,985,000 5,985,000
REQUIREMENTS:
$0 $0 $10,000 Personal Services $3,000 $3,000 $3,000
0 0 3,950 Personal Benefits 0 0 0
487,862 1,110,858 2,014,050 Material and Services 1,132,000 1,132,000 1,132,000
6,296 0 0 Other Expenses 0 0 0
84,880 943,196 90,000 Repairs 90,000 90,000 90,000
137,635 18,525 850,000 Equipment 500,000 500,000 500,000
422,105 2,070,257 8,937,000 Site/Facilities 4,260,000 4,260,000 4,260,000
0 0 Transfers to Other Funds

1,138,778 4,142,836 11,905,000 Total Requirements 5,985,000 5,985,000 5,985,000
$1,019,624 $6,521,169 $0 ENDING FUND BALANCE $0 $0 $0
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SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE
PLANNED PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT SUMMARY

EISCAL YEAR 2011-2012

Project Project Estimated Agency or
Number] Project Name Type Project Location Project Cost Contracted Work
1 Curry Building Completion (total cost) Building Brookings, OR $8,425,000 Contract Work
Total $8,425,000

ORS 289.023 generally states that not less than 30 days prior to adoption of its budget for the subsequent budget period, each public agency shall prepare and file with the Commissioner

of the Bureau of Labor and Industries a list of every public improvement known to that agency that the agency plans to fund in the budget period. If the agency decides to use its own equipment
and personnel for construction projects estimated to cost more than $50,000, the agency shall show that the decision conforms to the policy of the State of Oregon that public agencies

shall make every effort to construct public improvements at the least cost to the public agency, and the public agency shall cause to be kept and preserved a full, true and accurate

account of the costs of performing the work including all engineering and administrative expenses and a reasonable estimate of the cost, including investment cost, of the equipment used.

NOTE: This Improvement Summary together with the project estimate and least cost determination constitutes a public record available in the usual manner for public review

or copying. Mail a copy of this public improvement summary to: Wage and Hour Division, 800 NE Oregon St., #32, Portland, Oregon 97232.

280




Southwestern Oregon Community College
Three Year Facilities Maintenance Plan and Remodeling Projects
2011-2014

Priority | Project Description In-House or Contract
2011-2012
1 [ADA Compliance Contract/In-House
1 [Safety Issues Contract/In-House
1 Prosper Hall: Replace External Doors Contract
1 Prosper Hall: Lighting Contract
1 Empire Kitchen Loading Dock Extension Contract
1 Randolph Hall: AC in server room Contract
1 Inside Painting - Tioga, Empire, Lampa Contract/In-House
1 Prosper Hall and Rec Center: Seal Gym Floors and Classroom Floors Contract
1 Rec Center: new flooring in classroom Contract
1 Maintenance Building: Recoat Roof, Exterior Painting Contract/In-House
2 |Javlin Runway Resurfacing Contract
2 Rec Center: continue external railing Contract
1 Student Housing - storage shed [paid by Enterprise Account] Contract
1 Student Housing - 4 apartments flooring [paid by Enterprise Account] Contract
1 [OCCI - emergency generator [paid by Enterprise Account] Contract
1 Empire Hall - emergency generator [paid by Enterprise Account] Contract
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2012-2013

1 [ADA Compliance Contract/In-House
1 [Safety Issues Contract/In-House
1 Prosper Hall and Rec Center: Seal Gym Floors and Classroom Floors Contract
1 Empire Hall Glass Roof Repair Contract
1 Campus Wide: Miscellaneous Painting In-House
1 [Wireless locking system Contract
1 Centerlized Survellance System Contract
2 Flooring - miscellaneous Contract/In-House
2 Empire Hall Kitchen - replacement of prep room ceiling In House
2 Brookings Building lighting In House
2 Brookings Building bathroom remodel Contract
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2013-2014

1 [ADA Compliance Contract/In-House
1 [Safety Issues Contract/In-House
1 Prosper Hall and Rec Center: Seal Gym Floors and Classroom Floors Contract
1 Phase V: Access Control In-House
2 Parking Lot 1 Resurfacing Contract
2 Flooring - miscellaneous Contract
2 Campus Wide: Miscellaneous Painting In-House
2 Brookings Building - carpeting Contract
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Southwestern Oregon Community College

Prepared by Tim Dailey
Student Support Services (SSS)/Educational Support Services and Programs (ESPS)
November 29, 2011

Advising Progress Report

Southwestern is committed to providing accurate information regarding academic advising to its students.
Discussions began in fall term of 2010 on ways to review our advising processes at the college. The Vice President
of Instruction secured Title 11l funding that allowed the college to hire a consultant from National Academic
Advising Association (NACADA). The consultant spent two days at the college in April 2011, talking to advising
stakeholders who included students, faculty, advisors, financial aid, registration and administration. The final
report addressed the current state of advising at the college and recommendations to make the advising more
efficient at the college. Summary is collected from the NACADA consultant’s final report. Paragraphs in blue font
are follow-up documentation and activities outlined by Tim Dailey in SSS.

The Current State of Advising

| will identify the current state of undergraduate advising by indicating what areas of strengths | believe exist, as
well as areas of concern/room for improvement at SWOCC. The order of these strengths and areas of concern are
not listed any specific priority or seriousness.

Strengths:

e The fact that SWOCC has chosen to undergo this thorough, intensive review during a conservative
financial time is a testament to the dedication of this institution to improve academic advising for
students. Several SWOCC community members | interviewed are also extremely committed to improving
the academic advising, which will improve overall student success. | commend SWOCC, and hope this
process is beneficial and worthwhile.

e  Educational Support Programs & Services (ESPS) —Generally, feedback from students and other staff and
faculty were complimentary of the assistance and support provided by ESPS. This includes Student
Support Services (SSS). | have to admit that | am still a bit unclear as to how these two units are
connected, or not, organizationally. Many comments suggested that these offices provide much support
to the overall advising needs for SWOCC, and that much of it is “clean-up” to other advising on campus.
Comments also indicated that these services/offices are understaffed for the support they are provided.
Information | was given indicates over 3000 individual advising appointments take place in this area each
year.

0 Several comments also indicated the front level staff in ESPS is also very professional, friendly
and courteous towards students, making them feel welcome and appreciated.

O It was reassuring to hear ESPS & SSS staff members indicate they view academic advising as
much more than course scheduling, and as educators and teachers for students to become
successful members of the SWOCC community. The advising approach is a holistic approach to
address the multiple issues students are facing as college students.



Southwestern Oregon Community College

O ESPS & SSS advisors also make every effort to meet students where they are developmentally,
personally, and emotionally (family priorities, working part/full time, etc.). Students expressed
they do not feel like a number or a dollar sign when seeking assistance in these areas.

e Several comments were made regarding the effectiveness of the high school advising program at both the
Coos Bay and Curry campuses. This effort appears to help a great deal in recruiting local high school
students to attend SWOCC.

e Students and faculty advisors who have established advisor/advisee relationships based on similar
academic interests (academic major) expressed strong satisfaction regarding their academic advising
interactions and experiences. This was evident in both my interviews on the pre-visit surveys completed
by SWOCC.

e AAOT - Associate of Arts Oregon Transfer degree — The vast majority of students | spoke with are
completing the AAOT degree, and it appears that student believe this is a productive path to completing
their educational goals. | also received comments from staff and faculty that academic advising
improvements for the AAOT program is needed, in the form of advisors receiving continuous, updated
information regarding AAOT requirements and options.

e Several members of the SWOCC community expressed their satisfaction that program evaluations (degree
audits) are available through WebAdvisor, though there is a sentiment that WebAdvisor is due for
updates.

e Ageneral sentiment was that faculty advisors at SWOCC work hard to keep in touch with their advisees,
and that they want to do a good job advising. Issues must be addressed regarding training to keep
faculty updated so they have current information. Pre-visit surveys to advisors indicated an interest in
receiving updated information and training regarding advising strategies and practices.

e  Curry campus staff members appreciate their small environment which allows faculty and staff to get to
know students, and actually know their students’ names. This also allows for more timely, personal
contacts with students during times such as early alerts.

e During my meeting with student government leaders, they all indicated they have their student
organization coordinator as their academic advisor. They all indicated that she does not just clear them,
and she makes them think about their plans, future, etc. These students really expressed tremendous
appreciation for her style and strategies as their academic advisor.

e Some students indicated they never had trouble getting in touch with their advisor.

e  Faculty advisors expressed the satisfaction of working in a small community environment, and they
perceive they work well together, and back each other up when needed.

Recommendations

1. Mission Statement for Southwestern Oregon Community College Academic Advising Program:

SWOCC must create a common vision and understanding of what academic advising is, and who provides academic
advising at your institution. The primary strategy to accomplish this is to have all primary stakeholders involved in
campus-wide discussions regarding the mission and purpose of academic advising at SWOCC.
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After we, the college received, the advising assessment ESPS began meeting to discuss the development of a
mission statement. ESPS has reached out to other stakeholders to assist with the development of the mission
statement. This is planned for completion in March 2012.

2. Accountability for Academic Advising:

| perceived SWOCC to have a decentralized advising program (advisors are housed in various departments
across campus), yet there are also indications of some centralized functions and messaging. In such a setting,
it becomes even more critical that specifically identified leadership is established to answer the following basic
question. Who is responsible and accountable for academic advising at SWOCC? Once this question is
answered, | believe this individual or office will then be able to clearly articulate the specific expectations,
goals and outcomes of all academic advising at SWOCC. | am not suggesting that academic advising be
completely centralized and removed from the individual academic units. This is not necessary, however there
does need to be a centralized message of institution expectations regarding academic advising efforts. This
will result in more consistent, responsible academic advising program, and with appropriate continuous
assessment, will result in much higher student satisfaction, as well an increase in retention and graduation
rates.

At SWOCGC, it appears there are a couple of individuals and/or offices which could assume this leadership role
possibly at the vice president level, however these roles have been either vacant due to unfilled positions, or
absent due to other issues. | highly recommend this advising leadership role be identified and/or filled as
soon as possible.

SWOCC hired a Vice President of Instruction in July 2011. Shortly thereafter, the Director of ESPS began
reporting to the Vice President of Instruction. The Director attends weekly Instructional Management
meetings where the concerns of advising are brought to the table with other instructional state holders. In
addition, the Coordinator of Advising attends gby monthly Instructional Council meetings which are chaired by
the Vice President of Instruction. The role of the coordinator is to represent academic advising giving input into
how advising would be impacted by decisions made by the council and to bring back information from that
meeting to the ESPS advisors.

3. Develop an Advisor Training & Professional Development Curriculum:

One key component to a strong academic advising program is a consistent, comprehensive training and
development program which addresses the needs of academic advisors who are brand new to the profession, as
well as those who continue in the profession for years. Regardless of who provides academic advising on campus
(faculty, professional staff, peers, etc.), it should be an expectation that these individuals receive the training and
continuous development needed to maintain high quality academic advising. There is no evidence of anything
currently existing at SWOCC regarding a structured training curriculum, even though it was clearly identified as an
issue in the June 12, 2006 Retention committee memorandum to President Hansen. Therefore the following
strategies should be considered.
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e Develop a common training curriculum for anyone who will be performing academic
advising functions. Assemble a group of individuals representing various academic and
student affairs departments and critical offices to determine what the common, minimum
expectations or standards are for anyone performing academic advising duties at SWOCC.

e | recommend a joint subgroup of the currently existing faculty senate and ESSLT
committee members begin this process, under the direction of the individual/office
identified in recommendation #2. Training and development issues are critical for both
professional advisors as well as faculty advisors at SWOCC, and this group would be able
to address the various needs for training and development support.

e Training and development should be enhanced and supported by the creation of an
advising handbook, wiki, blog or other form of technology that identifies current advising
resources that are easily accessible to all academic advisors and consistently maintained
for appropriate updates.

e Training and development programs, strategies, and resources must be available, and
required, for all individuals performing academic advising roles at all SWOCC campuses.

The Director of ESPS and the Coordinator of Advising Services have been working with the Enrollment Student
Services Leadership Team (ESSLT) to develop policies related to enrollment and advisement. The Coordinator has
also been working with the Director of Athletics and has developed a plan for early advising for all new student
athletes. This program was piloted fall term 2011. The Director of ESPS and the Coordinator of Advising Services
are working on developing an online training that will support new academic advisors on both Coos and Curry
Campuses.

4. First Year Experience:

There does not appear to be a structured First Year Experience at SWOCC, meaning there are not common,
expected steps or procedures for new students entering your institution. The following are recommendations of
changes to specifically address the experience of your new students.

e  First semester academic advising required — SWOCC currently requires all students to receive academic
advising each quarter. | support this strategy for some student populations, however, the specific actions
or conversations needed during these advising connections are not consistent, nor valued by all advisors
and students. If these interactions were more clearly defined, | believe it would become a better
experience for both advisors and students. These interactions could have different topics or emphasis
conversations as the student progresses each quarter at SWOCC.

e Orientation — | recommend SWOCC enhance the current orientation experience for student and family
members. Interactions with academic advisors must be a key component of these programs. At the
present time, the orientation program is lacking in the advising that is offered to new students. A
recommendation for more faculty advising interactions at orientation was also suggested in the SWOCC
Retention Task Force report to President Hansen dated June 12, 2006.

The Counseling faculty at SWOCC teaches HD 100 courses, College Success and Survival. This fall term HD 100 was

mandated for all new first time freshmen living in student housing. The course will be evaluated for its
effectiveness winter term 2012. (Evaluation will be completed 3/12)



Southwestern Oregon Community College

Central Academic Advising Center:

SWOCC currently provides a decentralized faculty advising model, with the Educational Support Programs &
Services providing general academic advising in over 3000 advising appointments in each of the last three
years. However, it was clear to me that some student populations, especially the exploratory/undecided
students, are not all receiving the advising support needed. Several statements were made by students and
professional staff interviewed regarding the lack of attention to exploratory/undecided students, as well as
declared students seeking general assistance when their college/department advisors are not available or
accessible. | understand an argument could be made that students who choose not to seek academic advisors
during designated periods of the quarter are at fault for not following established process. However, in the
culture of higher education today, students and parents expect assistance throughout the calendar year,
regardless if it is convenient for faculty and staff. With the pressure of retention and graduation, it is no
longer appropriate to not have advising services and resources available all year long.

Therefore my recommendation is to enhance the current ESPS advising program to become a more official,
central advising office, serving as a general advising center for all students. This unit has several other key
academic support systems in place, and many students already get the advising assistance needed at this
location. | believe the current academic programs should do everything possible to provide faculty advising
for declared major/program students. Students and faculty in this scenario now appear to be satisfied with
this arrangement.

The college is well aware of the necessity to develop a One Stop Advising center at SWOCC. Currently
however given the current budget and staffing levels, this may not happen for several years. (Ongoing
discussions)

Technology:

After meeting with a representative from the campus technology support staff, it was good to hear that
SWOCC will be updating the current student information system in the near future. In our discussions
about transitioning to a new system, we spoke about the following topics:

e WebAduvisor, or whatever replaces this online system, should become a more user-friendly,
technologically enhanced tool. Students are looking for easy navigation, with quick, accurate
information and access to tools for registration, course availability, degree requirements and progress
towards degree completion.

e The new system must include an electronic advising notes/documentation system that all advisors
have access to, and have the ability to review any student records and documentation from previous
advising interactions. This will improve the communication flow between advisors, and diminish the
notion that students will shop for the answers they are looking for.

e Asthe new student information system, degree audit, etc. are being created, it is critical to have
representation from those who will be using the system (both professional and faculty advisors) as
part of the design team. If the new system design does not meet the critical needs of the users, it
will not be effective or as useful.
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e Adegree search, or electronic program review must be maintained, so that students are able monitor
their own academic progress towards degree completion with, or without, the assistance of their
advisor.

The College will switch to a new Learning Management System called Jenzabar. The ESPS staff has been meeting
with Jenzabar consultants in the development phase to give input into the advising needs of the college. (Fall 2012)

7. Formal Academic Advising Council/Network
Formal and informal communication among campus academic advisors, and those who support academic
advising efforts, must occur in a consistent, continuous manner. | recommend that SWOCC create a formal,
institution recognized council or network that meets minimally on a monthly basis. This group should have a
formal process for electing leadership which then may serve on other critical university committees. Initial
responses to this may be that faculty senate should play this role at SWOCC. However, all members of the
campus environment who serve in any academic advising capacity, or role that supports academic advising,
should have a voice, and be included in this advising council or network. | met many individuals at SWOCC
who were not faculty who provide academic advising, or advising support for students.

The Director of ESPS and the Coordinator of Advising Services attend weekly meetings with Instruction and
Student Services groups to represent the area of academic advising to both groups.

8. Assessment and Evaluation of Academic Advising — Learning Outcomes:

SWOCC provided surveys to both students and advisors prior to my arrival for this visit. These surveys did
provide some valuable information regarding satisfaction of advising, and perceptions of who provided
advising on campus. Students, generally, expressed good satisfaction regarding their advising experiences.
Individual comments did indicate varied experiences on campus regarding overall advising satisfaction.
Surveys of academic advisors indicated varied responses regarding the perceived role of advising, and student
commitment to the advising process.

Other than these surveys, | am not aware of any other process to gather feedback from campus community
members regarding the advising experience, or the evaluation of academic advisor performance. The lack of
a process to formally evaluate academic advisors was a common frustration.

SWOCC needs to identify a common, consistent academic advisor performance evaluation process. If there is
no process to evaluate the effectiveness, accuracy, and general knowledge of academic advisors, there will be
no reliable strategy to ensure academic advisors are performing the expected roles.

The faculty currently does the bulk of the academic advising on campus. The faculty contract has specific
language dealing with advising and workload credits. There is no evaluation tool for advising and will need to
be negotiated between administration and the faculty when the contract is opened. (No date at this time)
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9. Academic Advising Syllabi:

One strategy for effectively communicating academic advising objectives, goals, and learning outcomes to be
achieved is using an academic advising syllabus. Advising syllabi have become a common tool for advisors and
administrators to make a connection with academic advising to teaching and learning. It communicates that
academic advising has a purpose, and is intentional in efforts to help students achieve learning outcomes that

support student success. The advising syllabi also communicate to faculty, parents, and others that advising is
much more than registration.

The Coordinator of Advising Services is looking into resources to develop an advising curriculum and training. (No
date at this time)
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Policy # 8.018

ADVISORY COMMITTEES

It is the Administrative policy of the Southwestern Oregon Community College
District that the college shall have educational advisory committees.

The Office of Instructional and Student Services and members of the college
community shall develop guidelines delineating services to be provided by educational
advisory committees.

The establishment of an advisory committee shall be approved by the president.
Appointments to advisory committees shall be made by the president.

Adopted by Board of Education:
Policy #9.008
Changed to Administrative Policy January 22, 1996
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Health Occupations

These programs are designed to prepare students for employment in a variety of medical settings and as
skilled technical members of health occupations teams.

Nursing: This program is designed to prepare students with entry-level skills needed to assume the role of
a Registered Nurse. Students will need to successfully complete the licensure exam at the end of six
quarters or students may elect to replace the last term of the Associate of Applied Science degree with a
Bachelor’s in Nursing course and complete three more terms to achieve a Bachelor’s in Nursing degree.
Students who have completed an Associate of Applied Science degree would need to complete an
additional four quarters to receive a Bachelor’s in Nursing degree.

Employment Opportunities: Registered Nursing career opportunities range from good to excellent with
occupational titles that include Staff Nurse, Home Health Nurse (BSN preferred), Basic Nursing Assistant
Program Instructor (BSN preferred), Clinic Nurse (RN), Hospice Nurse (BSN preferred), School Nurse
(BSN), Specialty Nursing (Associate with in-hospital training after usually one year in Medical Surgical area,
BSN, MSN with clinical specialty), Public Health nursing (BSN preferred). The salary entry range for an
Associate of Applied Science degree RN ranges from $30,000 to $45,000 and for a BSN from $40,000 to
$55,000. There is great variability across the country.

Allied Health: These programs are designed to prepare students for employment in a variety of medical
settings. Rural hospitals serve as health care centers, often combining long-term skilled care with hospital
care. Rural health aides are prepared to transcribe physician's orders, assemble charts, and perform
medical clerical/medical records tasks as well as provide personal and basic patient care in homes,
hospitals, long term care, and assisted living facilities under the supervision of an RN or LPN. Basic nursing
assistants (when certified by the Oregon State Board of Nursing as Certified Nursing Assistants) provide
personal and basic nursing care to clients and patients in homes, clinics, assisted living facilities, skilled
and acute care settings under the supervision of licensed health care professionals.

Employment Opportunities: Rural health aide career opportunities range from fair to excellent with
occupational titles that include Home Health Aide, Nursing Assistant, Residence Assistant, Caregiver,
Personal Care Attendant, Certified Nursing Assistant, Ward Clerk, and Unit Secretary. Basic nursing
assistant career opportunities range from good to excellent with occupational titles that include Home
Health Aide, Nursing Assistant, Residence Assistant, Caregiver, Personal Care Attendant, and Certified
Nursing Assistant.

Medical Technical: These programs are designed to prepare students for employment as skilled technical
members of health occupations teams. Pharmacy technicians are trained to assist the pharmacist in
preparing and dispensing medications in hospitals, long-term care facilities, as well as independent and
chain store pharmacies connected to retail stores.

Employment Opportunities: Pharmacy technician career opportunities range from fair to excellent with
occupational titles that include Pharmacist Assistant and Pharmacy Technician.

Degree and Certificate Options

Associate of Applied Science Nursing
Basic Nursing Assistant Course

Basic Nursing Assistant Course Online
Certificate of Completion Pharmacy Technician

Certificate of Completion Phlebotomy Technician

Certificate of Completion Rural Health Aide
Certified Nursing Assistant (CNA) 2

Top of Page
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Contact Information

Institutional Accreditation

Robin Bunnell, Accreditation Liaison Officer
1988 Newmark

Coos Bay OR 97420

(541) 888-7339

rbunnell@socc.edu

Culinary Accreditation

Executive Director Shawn Hanlin, CEC
1988 Newmark

Coos Bay OR 97420

(541) 888-1546

shanlin@socc.edu

Early Childhood Education Accreditation

Cathy Meier, Early Child Education Instructor
1988 Newmark

Coos Bay OR 97420

(541) 888-7068

cmeier@socc.edu

Emergency Medical Technician Program

Paul Reynolds, Director Fire and Safety Development
1988 Newmark

Coos Bay OR 97420

(541) 888-7432 or

(541) 888-7296

preynolds@socc.edu

Nursing Self-Study

Susan Walker, Director of Nursing
1988 Newmark

Coos Bay OR 97420

(541) 888-7298

swalker@socc.edu

Home  About Academics Admissions  Athletics

SOCC Home | Maps | Calendar | Contact Us
\ | [(search |
ANGEL Login | Student Email | WebAdvisor

Campus Services  Distance Learning

Oregon Small Business Development Network

Southwestern Business Development Center Director
Arlene M. Soto, CMA

2455 Maple Leaf

North Bend, OR 97459

(541) 756-6866

asoto@socc.edu

Paramedic Program

Paul Reynolds, Director Fire and Safety Development
1988 Newmark

Coos Bay OR 97420

(541) 888-7432 or

(541) 888-7296

preynolds@socc.edu
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Transitional Education

Pat Parker

1988 Newmark

Coos Bay OR 97420
(541) 888-7000

pparker@socc.edu
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TRANSFER CREDITS

Transferring from Southwestern: Transfer students
are responsible for determining the requirements of
the institution and program to which they plan to
transfer.

Transferring to  Southwestern:  Southwestern
Oregon Community College accepts college level
credits earned in academic certificate and degree
programs from colleges and universities accredited by
one of the following regional Associations of Colleges
and Schools -- Middle States, North Central, New
England, Northwest, Southern or Western.

Official transcripts are processed after the student has
been formally accepted to the college. Send official
transcripts to the Student First Stop Center. Send
placement fest scores to Educational Support Programs

and Services (ESPS).

Credit may be granted for military courses based
upon The Guide to the Evaluation of Educational
Experiences in the Armed Services and if the courses
apply to the student’s Southwestern major. Three (3)
credit hours of PE185 credit may be granted toward
an Associate's Degree at Southwestern for completion
of military basic training.

ALTERNATIVE WAYS TO EARN COLLEGE CREDIT

Non-Traditional Credit credits can be applied toward a
Southwestern degree. The college provides a number
of ways a student may earn credit toward a degree
or certificate in addition to classroom experience:
APP  (Advanced Placement Program), Challenge,
CLEP (College Level Examination Program), Credit for
Prior Learning, International Baccalaureate, and High
School Dual Credit. The Student First Stop Center and
the Educational Support and Programs Services can
provide interested students with procedures.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT PROGRAM (APP). High school seniors
who participate in the College Entrance Examination
Board’s Advanced Placement Program may seek
advanced placement in a variety of disciplines. An
entering freshman who has taken the APP tests should
have the results sent to the Student First Stop Center.

Advanced placement and/or college credit may be
granted upon recommendation of the appropriate
party. Credit may be granted only if the student is
working towards a degree/certificate, enrolled and
completed a minimum of three credits at Southwestern
during the quarter. The Student First Stop Center and
the Educational Support and Programs Services can
provide interested students with procedures.

CHALLENGE. Students who believe that they have the
knowledge and skills from life experience, industry
training or professional certification, may request to
challenge a course by petition or by an examination
in lieu of class attendance. (Laboratory classes may be
challenged with the approval of the Associate Dean/
faculty.) Successful challenge results in grade and
credit on the Southwestern permanent record identified
as credit for challenge. Credit may be granted only if
the student is working towards a degree/certificate,
enrolled and completed a minimum of three credits
at Southwestern during the quarter the challenge
is assessed. The Student First Stop Center and the
Educational Support and Programs Services can
provide interested students with procedures.

A student may not drop or withdraw from a challenge.
Financial aid recipients CANNOT use financial aid
dollars to “challenge” classes.

COLLEGE LEVEL EXAMINATION PROGRAM (CLEP). Southwestern
is an official CLEP testing cenfer. Students enrolled
at Southwestern may receive credit for certain
college courses by submitting official scores from the
College Level Entrance Examination Program (CLEP).
Successful CLEP exam results in grade and credit on
the Southwestern permanent record identified as CLEP
The Student First Stop Center and the Educational
Support and Programs Services can provide interested
students with procedures.

EQUIVALENT COURSES CREDITS
BUSINESS QUARTER HOURS
BA211, 212 and BAOOO 1 crd 9

BA230 and BAOOO .5 crd 4.5

BA206 4.5

BA223 and BAOOO 1.5 crd 4.5

COMPUTERS

CIS120 and CS000 .5 crd
COMPOSITION

WR121, 122,123

LITERATURE

ENG253, 254, 255

ANALYZING & INTERPRETING LIT.
ENGO00*

ENG104, 105, 106

HUMANATIES

HUM204, 205, 206

FOREIGN LANGUAGES

FR101, 102 and FROOO 1 crd
FR103, 201, 202, 203

and FR 000 2 crd*

GER101, 102 and GEROOO 1 crd
GER103, 201, 202, 203

and GER 000 2 crd*

SPAN101, 102 and SPANOOO 1 crd
SPAN103, 201, 202, 203

and SPAN 000 2 crd*

HISTORY AND SOCIAL SCIENCES

HIST101 3 crd and HSTOOO 1.5 crd*
HIST102 3 crd and HSTO0O 1.5 crd*
HST101, 102, 103

HST201 3 crd and HSTOOO 1.5 crd*
HST202 3 crd and HSTOOO 1.5 crd*
HST201, 202, 203

SOCO000, HISTO00, PSYO0O0 3 crd each*
PS 201 and PSO00 1.5 crd*
ECONOMICS

ECON201 and ECON .5 crd*
ECON202 and ECON .5 crd*
PSYCHOLOGY

PSY201 and PSYO0O 1.5 crd*
PSY201 and PSYO0O 1.5 crd*
SOCIOLOGY

SOC204 and SOC000 1.5 crd*
SCIENCE

BIOOO**

CHEMOOO**

GS000**

MATHEMATICS

MTH251 and MTHOOO .5 crd*
MTH111 and MTHOOO .5 crd*
MTH95, 105 and MTHOOO 1 crd*

*can be used for distribution requirements

QUARTER HOURS
4.5

QUARTER HOURS
9

QUARTER HOURS
9

9
9
QUARTER HOURS
9
QUARTER HOURS
9

18
9
18
9

18

QUARTER HOURS
4.5

4.5

9

4.5

9

9

9

4.5

QUARTER HOURS
4.5

4.5

QUARTER HOURS
4.5

4.5

QUARTER HOURS
4.5

QUARTER HOURS
9

9

9

QUARTER HOURS
4.5

4.5

9

**non lab can be used to fulfill distribution requirements
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U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission

Titles | and V of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA)

EDITOR'S NOTE: The following is the text of Titles | and V of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (Pub.
L. 101-336) (ADA), as amended, as these titles will appear in volume 42 of the United States Code, beginning at
section 12101. Title | of the ADA, which became effective for employers with 25 or more employees on July 26,
1992, prohibits employment discrimination against qualified individuals with disabilities. Since July 26, 1994, Title
| has applied to employers with 15 or more employees. Title V contains miscellaneous provisions which apply to
EEOC's enforcement of Title .

The Civil Rights Act of 1991 (Pub. L. 102-166) (CRA) amended sections 101(4), 102 and 509 of the ADA. In
addition, section 102 of the CRA (which is printed elsewhere in this publication) amended the statutes by adding
a new section following section 1977 (42 U.S.C. 1981) to provide for the recovery of compensatory and punitive
damages in cases of intentional violations of Title VII, the ADA, and section 501 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973
(Rehab Act). The Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act of 2008 (Pub. L. 110-325) (ADAAA) amended
sections 12101, 12102, 12111 to 12114, 12201 and 12210 of the ADA and section 705 of the Rehab Act. The
ADAAA also enacted sections 12103 and 12205a and redesignated sections 12206 to 12213. The ADAAA also
included findings and purposes that will not be codified.

Most recently, the Lilly Ledbetter Fair Pay Act of 2009 (Pub. L. 111-2) amended Title VII, the Age Discrimination
in Employment Act of 1967, the ADA and the Rehab Act to clarify the time frame in which victims of
discrimination may challenge and recover for discriminatory compensation decisions or other discriminatory
practices affecting compensation.

ADAAA amendments and Lilly Ledbetter Fair Pay Act amendments appear in boldface type. Cross references to
the ADA as enacted appear in italics following each section heading. Editor's notes also appear in italics.

An Act to establish a clear and comprehensive prohibition of
discrimination on the basis of disability.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of the United States of America assembled, that this
Act may be cited as the “Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990".

* k%

FINDINGS AND PURPOSES
SEC. 12101. [Section 2]

(a) Findings. - The Congress finds that-

(1) physical or mental disabilities in no way diminish a person’s right to fully participate in
all aspects of society, yet many people with physical or mental disabilities have been
precluded from doing so because of discrimination; others who have arecord of a
disability or are regarded as having a disability also have been subjected to
discrimination;

(2) historically, society has tended to isolate and segregate individuals with disabilities, and,
despite some improvements, such forms of discrimination against individuals with disabilities
continue to be a serious and pervasive social problem;

(3) discrimination against individuals with disabilities persists in such critical areas as
employment, housing, public accommodations, education, transportation, communication,
recreation, institutionalization, health services, voting, and access to public services;

(4) unlike individuals who have experienced discrimination on the basis of race, color, sex,
national origin, religion, or age, individuals who have experienced discrimination on the basis of
disability have often had no legal recourse to redress such discrimination;

http://www1.eeoc.gov//laws/statutes/ada.cfm?renderforprint=1 1/30/2012
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(5) individuals with disabilities continually encounter various forms of discrimination, including
outright intentional exclusion, the discriminatory effects of architectural, transportation, and
communication barriers, overprotective rules and policies, failure to make modifications to existing
facilities and practices, exclusionary qualification standards and criteria, segregation, and
relegation to lesser services, programs, activities, benefits, jobs, or other opportunities;

(6) census data, national polls, and other studies have documented that people with disabilities,
as a group, occupy an inferior status in our society, and are severely disadvantaged socially,
vocationally, economically, and educationally;

(7) the Nation’s proper goals regarding individuals with disabilities are to assure equality of
opportunity, full participation, independent living, and economic self-sufficiency for such
individuals; and

(8) the continuing existence of unfair and unnecessary discrimination and prejudice denies people
with disabilities the opportunity to compete on an equal basis and to pursue those opportunities
for which our free society is justifiably famous, and costs the United States billions of dollars in
unnecessary expenses resulting from dependency and nonproductivity.

(b) Purpose. - It is the purpose of this chapter-

(1) to provide a clear and comprehensive national mandate for the elimination of discrimination
against individuals with disabilities;

(2) to provide clear, strong, consistent, enforceable standards addressing discrimination against
individuals with disabilities;

(3) to ensure that the Federal Government plays a central role in enforcing the standards
established in this chapter on behalf of individuals with disabilities; and

(4) to invoke the sweep of congressional authority, including the power to enforce the fourteenth
amendment and to regulate commerce, in order to address the major areas of discrimination
faced day to day by people with disabilities.

DEFINITION OF DISABILITY
SEC. 12102. [Section 3]

As used in this chapter:
(1) Disability. - The term “disability” means, with respect to an individual-

(A) a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities of
such individual;

(B) a record of such an impairment; or

(C) being regarded as having such an impairment (as described in paragraph (3)).
(2) Major life activities
A) In general

For purposes of paragraph (1), major life activities include, but are not limited to, caring for
oneself, performing manual tasks, seeing, hearing, eating, sleeping, walking, standing,
lifting, bending, speaking, breathing, learning, reading, concentrating, thinking,
communicating, and working.

(B) Major bodily functions

For purposes of paragraph (1), a major life activity also includes the operation of a major
bodily function, including but not limited to, functions of the immune system, normal cell
growth, digestive, bowel, bladder, neurological, brain, respiratory, circulatory, endocrine,
and reproductive functions.

(3) Regarded as having such an impairment
For purposes of paragraph (1)(C):
(A) An individual meets the requirement of “being regarded as having such an

impairment” if the individual establishes that he or she has been subjected to an action
prohibited under this chapter because of an actual or perceived physical or mental

http://www1.eeoc.gov//laws/statutes/ada.cfm?renderforprint=1 1/30/2012
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impairment whether or not the impairment limits or is perceived to limit a major life
activity.

(B) Paragraph (1)(C) shall not apply to impairments that are transitory and minor. A
transitory impairment is an impairment with an actual or expected duration of 6 months or
less.

(4) Rules of construction regarding the definition of disability

The definition of “disability” in paragraph (1) shall be construed in accordance with the following:

(A) The definition of disability in this chapter shall be construed in favor of broad coverage
of individuals under this chapter, to the maximum extent permitted by the terms of this
chapter.

(B) The term “substantially limits” shall be interpreted consistently with the findings and
purposes of the ADA Amendments Act of 2008.

(C) An impairment that substantially limits one major life activity need not limit other major
life activities in order to be considered a disability.

(D) An impairment that is episodic or in remission is a disability if it would substantially
limit a major life activity when active.

(E)(i) The determination of whether an impairment substantially limits a major life activity
shall be made without regard to the ameliorative effects of mitigating measures such as—

(I) medication, medical supplies, equipment, or appliances, low-vision
devices (which do not include ordinary eyeglasses or contact lenses),
prosthetics including limbs and devices, hearing aids and cochlear implants
or other implantable hearing devices, mobility devices, or oxygen therapy
equipment and supplies;

(I) use of assistive technology;
(Il reasonable accommodations or auxiliary aids or services; or

(IV) learned behavioral or adaptive neurological modifications.

(ii) The ameliorative effects of the mitigating measures of ordinary eyeglasses or contact
lenses shall be considered in determining whether an impairment substantially limits a
major life activity.

(iii) As used in this subparagraph—

() the term “ordinary eyeglasses or contact lenses” means lenses that are
intended to fully correct visual acuity or eliminate refractive error; and

(I1) the term “low-vision devices” means devices that magnify, enhance, or
otherwise augment a visual image.

ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS
SEC. 12103. [Section 4]

As used in this chapter:

(1) Auxiliary aids and services. - The term “auxiliary aids and services” includes—

(A) qualified interpreters or other effective methods of making aurally delivered materials available
to individuals with hearing impairments;

(B) qualified readers, taped texts, or other effective methods of making visually delivered
materials available to individuals with visual impairments;

(C) acquisition or modification of equipment or devices; and

(D) other similar services and actions.

(2) State. - The term “State” means each of the several States, the District of Columbia, the Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico, Guam, American Samoa, the Virgin Islands of the United States, the Trust Territory of the Pacific
Islands, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands.

http://www1.eeoc.gov//laws/statutes/ada.cfm?renderforprint=1 1/30/2012
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SUBCHAPTER I [TITLE I] - EMPLOYMENT

DEFINITIONS
SEC. 12111. [Section 101]

As used in this subchapter:

(1) Commission. - The term “Commission” means the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission established
by section 2000e-4 of this title [section 705 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964].

(2) Covered entity. - The term “covered entity” means an employer, employment agency, labor organization, or
joint labor management committee.

(3) Direct threat. - The term “direct threat” means a significant risk to the health or safety of others that cannot be
eliminated by reasonable accommodation.

(4) Employee. - The term “employee” means an individual employed by an employer. With respect to
employment in a foreign country, such term includes an individual who is a citizen of the United States.

(5) Employer. -

(A) In general. - The term “employer” means a person engaged in an industry affecting commerce
who has 15 or more employees for each working day in each of 20 or more calendar weeks in the
current or preceding calendar year, and any agent of such person, except that, for two years
following the effective date of this subchapter, an employer means a person engaged in an
industry affecting commerce who has 25 or more employees for each working day in each of 20
or more calendar weeks in the current or preceding year, and any agent of such person.

(B) Exceptions. - The term “employer” does not include-

(i) the United States, a corporation wholly owned by the government of the United
States, or an Indian tribe; or

(i) a bona fide private membership club (other than a labor organization) that is
exempt from taxation under section 501(c) of Title 26 [the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986].

(6) lllegal use of drugs. -

(A) In general. - The term “illegal use of drugs” means the use of drugs, the possession or
distribution of which is unlawful under the Controlled Substances Act [21 U.S.C. 801 et seq.].
Such term does not include the use of a drug taken under supervision by a licensed health care
professional, or other uses authorized by the Controlled Substances Act or other provisions of
Federal law.

(B) Drugs. - The term “drug” means a controlled substance, as defined in schedules | through V of
section 202 of the Controlled Substances Act [21 U.S.C. 812].

(7) Person, etc. - The terms “person”, “labor organization”, “employment agency”, “commerce”, and “industry
affecting commerce”, shall have the same meaning given such terms in section 2000e of this title [section 701 of
the Civil Rights Act of 1964].

(8) Qualified individual. - The term “qualified individual” means an individual who, with or without
reasonable accommodation, can perform the essential functions of the employment position that such individual
holds or desires. For the purposes of this subchapter, consideration shall be given to the employer’s judgment as
to what functions of a job are essential, and if an employer has prepared a written description before advertising
or interviewing applicants for the job, this description shall be considered evidence of the essential functions of
the job.

(9) Reasonable accommodation. - The term “reasonable accommodation” may include-

(A) making existing facilities used by employees readily accessible to and usable by individuals
with disabilities; and

(B) job restructuring, part-time or modified work schedules, reassignment to a vacant position,
acquisition or modification of equipment or devices, appropriate adjustment or modifications of
examinations, training materials or policies, the provision of qualified readers or interpreters, and
other similar accommodations for individuals with disabilities.

(10) Undue hardship. -
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(A) In general. - The term “undue hardship” means an action requiring significant difficulty or
expense, when considered in light of the factors set forth in subparagraph (B).

(B) Factors to be considered. - In determining whether an accommodation would impose an
undue hardship on a covered entity, factors to be considered include-

(i) the nature and cost of the accommodation needed under this chapter;

(i) the overall financial resources of the facility or facilities involved in the provision
of the reasonable accommodation; the number of persons employed at such
facility; the effect on expenses and resources, or the impact otherwise of such
accommodation upon the operation of the facility;

(iii) the overall financial resources of the covered entity; the overall size of the
business of a covered entity with respect to the number of its employees; the
number, type, and location of its facilities; and

(iv) the type of operation or operations of the covered entity, including the
composition, structure, and functions of the workforce of such entity; the
geographic separateness, administrative, or fiscal relationship of the facility or
facilities in question to the covered entity.

DISCRIMINATION
SEC. 12112. [Section 102]

Page 5 of 16

(a) General rule. - No covered entity shall discriminate against a qualified individual on the basis of disability in

regard to job application procedures, the hiring, advancement, or discharge of employees, employee
compensation, job training, and other terms, conditions, and privileges of employment.

(b) Construction. - As used in subsection (a) of this section, the term “discriminate against a qualified
individual on the basis of disability” includes-

(2) limiting, segregating, or classifying a job applicant or employee in a way that adversely affects
the opportunities or status of such applicant or employee because of the disability of such
applicant or employee;

(2) participating in a contractual or other arrangement or relationship that has the effect of
subjecting a covered entity’s qualified applicant or employee with a disability to the discrimination
prohibited by this subchapter (such relationship includes a relationship with an employment or
referral agency, labor union, an organization providing fringe benefits to an employee of the
covered entity, or an organization providing training and apprenticeship programs);

(3) utilizing standards, criteria, or methods of administration-

(A) that have the effect of discrimination on the basis of disability; or

(B) that perpetuate the discrimination of others who are subject to common
administrative control;

(4) excluding or otherwise denying equal jobs or benefits to a qualified individual because of the
known disability of an individual with whom the qualified individual is known to have a relationship
or association;

(5) (A) not making reasonable accommodations to the known physical or mental limitations of an
otherwise qualified individual with a disability who is an applicant or employee, unless such
covered entity can demonstrate that the accommodation would impose an undue hardship on the
operation of the business of such covered entity; or

(B) denying employment opportunities to a job applicant or employee who is an
otherwise qualified individual with a disability, if such denial is based on the need
of such covered entity to make reasonable accommodation to the physical or
mental impairments of the employee or applicant;

(6) using qualification standards, employment tests or other selection criteria that screen out or
tend to screen out an individual with a disability or a class of individuals with disabilities unless the
standard, test or other selection criteria, as used by the covered entity, is shown to be job-related
for the position in question and is consistent with business necessity; and

(7) failing to select and administer tests concerning employment in the most effective manner to
ensure that, when such test is administered to a job applicant or employee who has a disability
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that impairs sensory, manual, or speaking skills, such test results accurately reflect the skills,
aptitude, or whatever other factor of such applicant or employee that such test purports to
measure, rather than reflecting the impaired sensory, manual, or speaking skills of such
employee or applicant (except where such skills are the factors that the test purports to measure).

(c) Covered entities in foreign countries. -

(2) In general. - It shall not be unlawful under this section for a covered entity to take any action
that constitutes discrimination under this section with respect to an employee in a workplace in a
foreign country if compliance with this section would cause such covered entity to violate the law
of the foreign country in which such workplace is located.

(2) Control of corporation

(A) Presumption. - If an employer controls a corporation whose place of
incorporation is a foreign country, any practice that constitutes discrimination
under this section and is engaged in by such corporation shall be presumed to be
engaged in by such employer.

(B) Exception. - This section shall not apply with respect to the foreign operations
of an employer that is a foreign person not controlled by an American employer.

(C) Determination. - For purposes of this paragraph, the determination of whether
an employer controls a corporation shall be based on-

(i) the interrelation of operations;
(ii) the common management;
(i) the centralized control of labor relations; and

(iv) the common ownership or financial control, of the employer and
the corporation.

(d) Medical examinations and inquiries. -

(2) In general. - The prohibition against discrimination as referred to in subsection (a) of this
section shall include medical examinations and inquiries.

(2) Pre-employment. -

(A) Prohibited examination or inquiry. - Except as provided in paragraph (3), a
covered entity shall not conduct a medical examination or make inquiries of a job
applicant as to whether such applicant is an individual with a disability or as to the
nature or severity of such disability.

(B) Acceptable inquiry. - A covered entity may make pre-employment inquiries into
the ability of an applicant to perform job-related functions.

(3) Employment entrance examination. - A covered entity may require a medical examination
after an offer of employment has been made to a job applicant and prior to the commencement of
the employment duties of such applicant, and may condition an offer of employment on the
results of such examination, if-

(A) all entering employees are subjected to such an examination regardless of
disability;

(B) information obtained regarding the medical condition or history of the applicant
is collected and maintained on separate forms and in separate medical files and is
treated as a confidential medical record, except that—

(i) supervisors and managers may be informed regarding necessary
restrictions on the work or duties of the employee and necessary
accommodations;

(i) first aid and safety personnel may be informed, when
appropriate, if the disability might require emergency treatment; and

(iii) government officials investigating compliance with this chapter
shall be provided relevant information on request; and (C) the
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results of such examination are used only in accordance with this
subchapter.

(4) Examination and inquiry. -

(A) Prohibited examinations and inquiries. - A covered entity shall not require a
medical examination and shall not make inquiries of an employee as to whether
such employee is an individual with a disability or as to the nature or severity of the
disability, unless such examination or inquiry is shown to be jobrelated and
consistent with business necessity.

(B) Acceptable examinations and inquiries. - A covered entity may conduct
voluntary medical examinations, including voluntary medical histories, which are
part of an employee health program available to employees at that work site. A
covered entity may make inquiries into the ability of an employee to perform job-
related functions.

(C) Requirement. - Information obtained under subparagraph (B) regarding the
medical condition or history of any employee are subject to the requirements of
subparagraphs (B) and (C) of paragraph (3).

DEFENSES
SEC. 12113. [Section 103]

(a) In general. - It may be a defense to a charge of discrimination under this chapter that an alleged application
of qualification standards, tests, or selection criteria that screen out or tend to screen out or otherwise deny a job
or benefit to an individual with a disability has been shown to be job-related and consistent with business
necessity, and such performance cannot be accomplished by reasonable accommodation, as required under this
subchapter.

(b) Qualification standards. - The term “qualification standards” may include a requirement that an individual
shall not pose a direct threat to the health or safety of other individuals in the workplace.

(c) Qualification standards and tests related to uncorrected vision. — Notwithstanding section 12102(4)
(E)(ii) of this title, a covered entity shall not use qualification standards, employment tests, or other
selection criteria based on an individual’s uncorrected vision unless the standard, test, or other
selection criteria, as used by the covered entity, is shown to be job-related for the position in question
and consistent with business necessity.

(d) Religious entities. -

(1) In general. - This subchapter shall not prohibit a religious corporation, association, educational
institution, or society from giving preference in employment to individuals of a particular religion to
perform work connected with the carrying on by such corporation, association, educational
institution, or society of its activities.

(2) Religious tenets requirement. - Under this subchapter, a religious organization may require
that all applicants and employees conform to the religious tenets of such organization.

(e) List of infectious and communicable diseases. -

(1) In general. - The Secretary of Health and Human Services, not later than 6 months after July
26, 1990 [the date of enactment of this Act], shall-

(A) review all infectious and communicable diseases which may be transmitted
through handling the food supply;

(B) publish a list of infectious and communicable diseases which are transmitted
through handling the food supply;

(C) publish the methods by which such diseases are transmitted; and

(D) widely disseminate such information regarding the list of diseases and their
modes of transmissibility to the general public. Such list shall be updated annually.

(2) Applications. - In any case in which an individual has an infectious or communicable disease
that is transmitted to others through the handling of food, that is included on the list developed by
the Secretary of Health and Human Services under paragraph (1), and which cannot be
eliminated by reasonable accommodation, a covered entity may refuse to assign or continue to
assign such individual to a job involving food handling.
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(3) Construction. - Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to preempt, modify, or amend any
State, county, or local law, ordinance, or regulation applicable to food handling which is designed
to protect the public health from individuals who pose a significant risk to the health or safety of
others, which cannot be eliminated by reasonable accommodation, pursuant to the list of
infectious or communicable diseases and the modes of transmissibility published by the Secretary
of Health and Human Services.

ILLEGAL USE OF DRUGS AND ALCOHOL
SEC. 12114. [Section 104]

(a) Qualified individual with a disability. - For purposes of this subchapter, a qualified individual with a
disability shall not include any employee or applicant who is currently engaging in the illegal use of drugs, when
the covered entity acts on the basis of such use.

(b) Rules of construction. - Nothing in subsection (a) of this section shall be construed to exclude as a qualified
individual with a disability an individual who-

(1) has successfully completed a supervised drug rehabilitation program and is no longer
engaging in the illegal use of drugs, or has otherwise been rehabilitated successfully and is no
longer engaging in such use;

(2) is participating in a supervised rehabilitation program and is no longer engaging in such use;
or

(3) is erroneously regarded as engaging in such use, but is not engaging in such use; except that
it shall not be a violation of this chapter for a covered entity to adopt or administer reasonable
policies or procedures, including but not limited to drug testing, designed to ensure that an
individual described in paragraph (1) or (2) is no longer engaging in the illegal use of drugs.

(c) Authority of covered entity. -

A covered entity-

(1) may prohibit the illegal use of drugs and the use of alcohol at the workplace by all employees;

(2) may require that employees shall not be under the influence of alcohol or be engaging in the
illegal use of drugs at the workplace;

(3) may require that employees behave in conformance with the requirements established under
the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988 (41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.);

(4) may hold an employee who engages in the illegal use of drugs or who is an alcoholic to the
same qualification standards for employment or job performance and behavior that such entity
holds other employees, even if any unsatisfactory performance or behavior is related to the drug
use or alcoholism of such employee; and (5) may, with respect to Federal regulations regarding
alcohol and the illegal use of drugs, require that-

(A) employees comply with the standards established in such regulations of the
Department of Defense, if the employees of the covered entity are employed in an
industry subject to such regulations, including complying with regulations (if any)
that apply to employment in sensitive positions in such an industry, in the case of
employees of the covered entity who are employed in such positions (as defined in
the regulations of the Department of Defense);

(B) employees comply with the standards established in such regulations of the
Nuclear Regulatory Commission, if the employees of the covered entity are
employed in an industry subject to such regulations, including complying with
regulations (if any) that apply to employment in sensitive positions in such an
industry, in the case of employees of the covered entity who are employed in such
positions (as defined in the regulations of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission);
and

(C) employees comply with the standards established in such regulations of the
Department of Transportation, if the employees of the covered entity are employed
in a transportation industry subject to such regulations, including complying with
such regulations (if any) that apply to employment in sensitive positions in such an
industry, in the case of employees of the covered entity who are employed in such
positions (as defined in the regulations of the Department of Transportation).

http://www1.eeoc.gov//laws/statutes/ada.cfm?renderforprint=1 1/30/2012



Titles | and V of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) Page 9 of 16

(d) Drug testing. -

(1) In general. - For purposes of this subchapter, a test to determine the illegal use of drugs shall
not be considered a medical examination.

(2) Construction. - Nothing in this subchapter shall be construed to encourage, prohibit, or
authorize the conducting of drug testing for the illegal use of drugs by job applicants or employees
or making employment decisions based on such test results.

(e) Transportation employees. - Nothing in this subchapter shall be construed to encourage, prohibit, restrict, or
authorize the otherwise lawful exercise by entities subject to the jurisdiction of the Department of Transportation
of authority to-

(1) test employees of such entities in, and applicants for, positions involving safety sensitive
duties for the illegal use of drugs and for on duty impairment by alcohol; and

(2) remove such persons who test positive for illegal use of drugs and on duty impairment by
alcohol pursuant to paragraph (1) from safety sensitive duties in implementing subsection (c) of
this section.

POSTING NOTICES
SEC. 12115. [Section 105]

Every employer, employment agency, labor organization, or joint labor management committee covered under
this subchapter shall post notices in an accessible format to applicants, employees, and members describing the
applicable provisions of this chapter, in the manner prescribed by section 2000e-10 of this title [section 711 of
the Civil Rights Act of 1964].

REGULATIONS
SEC. 12116. [Section 106]

Not later than 1 year after July 26, 1990 [the date of enactment of this Act], the Commission shall issue
regulations in an accessible format to carry out this subchapter in accordance with subchapter Il of chapter 5 of
title 5 [United States Code].

ENFORCEMENT
SEC. 12117. [Section 107]

(a) Powers, remedies, and procedures. - The powers, remedies, and procedures set forth in sections 2000e-4,
2000e-5, 2000e-6, 2000e-8, and 2000e-9 of this title [sections 705, 706, 707, 709 and 710 of the Civil Rights Act
of 1964] shall be the powers, remedies, and procedures this subchapter provides to the Commission, to the
Attorney General, or to any person alleging discrimination on the basis of disability in violation of any provision of
this chapter, or regulations promulgated under section 12116 of this title [section 106], concerning employment.

(b) Coordination. - The agencies with enforcement authority for actions which allege employment discrimination
under this subchapter and under the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 [29 U.S.C. 701 et seq.] shall develop procedures
to ensure that administrative complaints filed under this subchapter and under the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 are
dealt with in a manner that avoids duplication of effort and prevents imposition of inconsistent or conflicting
standards for the same requirements under this subchapter and the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. The Commission,
the Attorney General, and the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs shall establish such coordinating
mechanisms (similar to provisions contained in the joint regulations promulgated by the Commission and the
Attorney General at part 42 of title 28 and part 1691 of title 29, Code of Federal Regulations, and the
Memorandum of Understanding between the Commission and the Office of Federal Contract Compliance
Programs dated January 16, 1981 (46 Fed. Reg. 7435, January 23, 1981)) in regulations implementing this
subchapter and Rehabilitation Act of 1973 not later than 18 months after July 26, 1990 [the date of enactment of
this Act].

[42 USC § 2000e-5 note]

(@) AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990. — The amendments made by section 3 [Lilly
Ledbetter Fair Pay Act of 2009, PL 111-2, 123 Stat. 5] shall apply to claims of discrimination in
compensation brought under title | and section 503 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42
U.S.C. 12111 et seq., 12203), pursuant to section 107(a) of such Act (42 U.S.C. 12117(a)), which adopts
the powers, remedies, and procedures set forth in section 706 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C.
2000e-5).
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SUBCHAPTER IV [TITLE V] - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

CONSTRUCTION
SEC. 12201. [Section 501]

(a) In general. - Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, nothing in this chapter shall be construed to apply
a lesser standard than the standards applied under Title V of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 790 et
seq.) or the regulations issued by Federal agencies pursuant to such title.

(b) Relationship to other laws. - Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to invalidate or limit the remedies,
rights, and procedures of any Federal law or law of any State or political subdivision of any State or jurisdiction
that provides greater or equal protection for the rights of individuals with disabilities than are afforded by this
chapter. Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to preclude the prohibition of, or the imposition of restrictions
on, smoking in places of employment covered by subchapter | of this chapter [title I], in transportation covered by
subchapter Il or 11l of this chapter [title Il or III], or in places of public accommodation covered by subchapter Il of
this chapter [title III].

(c) Insurance. - Subchapters | through Il of this chapter [titles | through IlI] and title IV of this Act shall not be
construed to prohibit or restrict-

(1) an insurer, hospital or medical service company, health maintenance organization, or any
agent, or entity that administers benefit plans, or similar organizations from underwriting risks,
classifying risks, or administering such risks that are based on or not inconsistent with State law;
or

(2) a person or organization covered by this chapter from establishing, sponsoring, observing or
administering the terms of a bona fide benefit plan that are based on underwriting risks,
classifying risks, or administering such risks that are based on or not inconsistent with State law;
or

(3) a person or organization covered by this chapter from establishing, sponsoring, observing or
administering the terms of a bona fide benefit plan that is not subject to State laws that regulate
insurance.

Paragraphs (1), (2), and (3) shall not be used as a subterfuge to evade the purposes of subchapter | and Il of
this chapter [titles | and Il1].

(d) Accommodations and services. - Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to require an individual with a
disability to accept an accommodation, aid, service, opportunity, or benefit which such individual chooses not to
accept.

(e) Benefits under State worker’s compensation laws

Nothing in this chapter alters the standards for determining eligibility for benefits under State worker’s
compensation laws or under State and Federal disability benefit programs.

(f) Fundamental alteration

Nothing in this chapter alters the provision of section 12182(b)(2)(A)(ii) of this title, specifying that
reasonable modifications in policies, practices, or procedures shall be required, unless an entity can
demonstrate that making such modifications in policies, practices, or procedures, including academic
requirements in postsecondary education, would fundamentally alter the nature of the goods, services,
facilities, privileges, advantages, or accommodations involved.

(g) Claims of no disability

Nothing in this chapter shall provide the basis for a claim by an individual without a disability that the
individual was subject to discrimination because of the individual's lack of disability.

(h) Reasonable accommodations and modifications

A covered entity under subchapter | of this chapter, a public entity under subchapter Il of this chapter,
and any person who owns, leases (or leases t0), or operates a place of public accommodation under
subchapter lll of this chapter, need not provide a reasonable accommodation or a reasonable
modification to policies, practices, or procedures to an individual who meets the definition of disability
in section 12102(1) of this title solely under subparagraph (C) of such section.

STATE IMMUNITY
SEC. 12202. [Section 502]
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A State shall not be immune under the eleventh amendment to the Constitution of the United States from an
action in Federal or State court of competent jurisdiction for a violation of this chapter. In any action against a
State for a violation of the requirements of this chapter, remedies (including remedies both at law and in equity)
are available for such a violation to the same extent as such remedies are available for such a violation in an
action against any public or private entity other than a State.

PROHIBITION AGAINST RETALIATION AND COERCION
SEC. 12203. [Section 503]

(a) Retaliation. - No person shall discriminate against any individual because such individual has opposed any
act or practice made unlawful by this chapter or because such individual made a charge, testified, assisted, or
participated in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under this chapter.

(b) Interference, coercion, or intimidation. - It shall be unlawful to coerce, intimidate, threaten, or interfere with
any individual in the exercise or enjoyment of, or on account of his or her having exercised or enjoyed, or on
account of his or her having aided or encouraged any other individual in the exercise or enjoyment of, any right
granted or protected by this chapter.

(c) Remedies and procedures. - The remedies and procedures available under sections 12117, 12133, and
12188 of this title [sections 107, 203 and 308] shall be available to aggrieved persons for violations of
subsections (a) and (b) of this section, with respect to subchapter |, subchapter Il and subchapter I,
respectively, of this chapter [title 1, title Il and title 111, respectively].

[42 USC § 2000e-5 note]

(&) AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990. — The amendments made by section 3 [Lilly
Ledbetter Fair Pay Act of 2009, PL 111-2, 123 Stat. 5] shall apply to claims of discrimination in
compensation brought under title | and section 503 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42
U.S.C. 12111 et seq., 12203), pursuant to section 107(a) of such Act (42 U.S.C. 12117(a)), which adopts
the powers, remedies, and procedures set forth in section 706 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C.
2000e-5).

REGULATIONS BY THE ARCHITECTURAL AND TRANSPORTATION
BARRIERS COMPLIANCE BOARD
SEC. 12204. [Section 504]

(a) Issuance of guidelines. - Not later than 9 months after July 26, 1990 [the date of enactment of this Act], the
Architectural and Transportation Barriers Compliance Board shall issue minimum guidelines that shall
supplement the existing Minimum Guidelines and Requirements for Accessible Design for purposes of
subchapters Il and Il of this chapter [titles 1l and IIl]. (b) Contents of guidelines. - The supplemental guidelines
issued under subsection (a) of this section shall establish additional requirements, consistent with this chapter, to
ensure that buildings, facilities, rail passenger cars, and vehicles are accessible, in terms of architecture and
design, transportation, and communication, to individuals with disabilities.

(c) Qualified historic properties. -

(1) In general. - The supplemental guidelines issued under subsection (a) of this section shall
include procedures and requirements for alterations that will threaten or destroy the historic
significance of qualified historic buildings and facilities as defined in 4.1.7(1)(a) of the Uniform
Federal Accessibility Standards.

(2) Sites eligible for listing in National Register. - With respect to alterations of buildings or
facilities that are eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places under the National
Historic Preservation Act (16 U.S.C. 470 et seq.), the guidelines described in paragraph (1) shall,
at a minimum, maintain the procedures and requirements established in 4.1.7(1) and (2) of the
Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards.

(3) Other sites. - With respect to alterations of buildings or facilities designated as historic under
State or local law, the guidelines described in paragraph (1) shall establish procedures equivalent
to those established by 4.1.7(1)(b) and (c) of the Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards, and
shall require, at a minimum, compliance with the requirements established in 4.1.7(2) of such
standards.

ATTORNEY'’S FEES
SEC. 12205. [Section 505]
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In any action or administrative proceeding commenced pursuant to this chapter, the court or agency, in its
discretion, may allow the prevailing party, other than the United States, a reasonable attorney’s fee, including
litigation expenses, and costs, and the United States shall be liable for the foregoing the same as a private
individual.

Rule of construction regarding regulatory authority
SEC. 12205a. [Section 506]

The authority to issue regulations granted to the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, the
Attorney General, and the Secretary of Transportation under this chapter includes the authority to issue
regulations implementing the definitions of disability in section 12102 of this title (including rules of
construction) and the definitions in section 12103 of this title, consistent with the ADA Amendments Act
of 2008.

TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE
SEC. 12206. [Section 507]

(a) Plan for assistance. -

(2) In general. - Not later than 180 days after July 26, 1990 [the date of enactment of this Act], the
Attorney General, in consultation with the Chair of the Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission, the Secretary of Transportation, the Chair of the Architectural and Transportation
Barriers Compliance Board, and the Chairman of the Federal Communications Commission, shall
develop a plan to assist entities covered under this chapter, and other Federal agencies, in
understanding the responsibility of such entities and agencies under this chapter.

(2) Publication of plan. - The Attorney General shall publish the plan referred to in paragraph (1)
for public comment in accordance with subchapter Il of chapter 5 of title 5 [United States Code]
(commonly known as the Administrative Procedure Act).

(b) Agency and public assistance. - The Attorney General may obtain the assistance of other Federal agencies
in carrying out subsection (a) of this section, including the National Council on Disability, the President’s
Committee on Employment of People with Disabilities, the Small Business Administration, and the Department of
Commerce.

(c) Implementation. -

(1) Rendering assistance. - Each Federal agency that has responsibility under paragraph (2) for
implementing this chapter may render technical assistance to individuals and institutions that
have rights or duties under the respective subchapter or subchapters of this chapter for which
such agency has responsibility.

(2) Implementation of subchapters. -

(A) Subchapter | [Title I]. - The Equal Employment Opportunity Commission and
the Attorney General shall implement the plan for assistance developed under
subsection (a) of this section, for subchapter | of this chapter [title I]. (B)
Subchapter Il [Title I1]. -

(i) Part A [Subtitle A]. - The Attorney General shall implement such
plan for assistance for part A of subchapter Il of this chapter
[subtitle A of title I1].

(i) Part B [Subtitle B]. - The Secretary of Transportation shall
implement such plan for assistance for part B of subchapter Il of
this chapter [subtitle B of title II].

(C) Subchapter Ill [Title 1l1]. - The Attorney General, in coordination with the
Secretary of Transportation and the Chair of the Architectural Transportation
Barriers Compliance Board, shall implement such plan for assistance for
subchapter Il of this chapter, except for section 12184 of this title [section 304],
the plan for assistance for which shall be implemented by the Secretary of
Transportation.

(D) Title IV. - The Chairman of the Federal Communications Commission, in
coordination with the Attorney General, shall implement such plan for assistance
for title IV.
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(3) Technical assistance manuals. - Each Federal agency that has responsibility under paragraph
(2) for implementing this chapter shall, as part of its implementation responsibilities, ensure the
availability and provision of appropriate technical assistance manuals to individuals or entities
with rights or duties under this chapter no later than six months after applicable final regulations
are published under subchapters I, Il, and Il of this chapter [titles I, II, and 1] and title IV.

(d) Grants and contracts. -

(1) In general. - Each Federal agency that has responsibility under subsection (c)(2) of this
section for implementing this chapter may make grants or award contracts to effectuate the
purposes of this section, subject to the availability of appropriations. Such grants and contracts
may be awarded to individuals, institutions not organized for profit and no part of the net earnings
of which inures to the benefit of any private shareholder or individual (including educational
institutions), and associations representing individuals who have rights or duties under this
chapter. Contracts may be awarded to entities organized for profit, but such entities may not be
the recipients or grants described in this paragraph.

(2) Dissemination of information. - Such grants and contracts, among other uses, may be
designed to ensure wide dissemination of information about the rights and duties established by
this chapter and to provide information and technical assistance about techniques for effective
compliance with this chapter.

(e) Failure to receive assistance. - An employer, public accommodation, or other entity covered under this
chapter shall not be excused from compliance with the requirements of this chapter because of any failure to
receive technical assistance under this section, including any failure in the development or dissemination of any
technical assistance manual authorized by this section.

FEDERAL WILDERNESS AREAS
SEC. 12207. [Section 508]

(a) Study. - The National Council on Disability shall conduct a study and report on the effect that wilderness
designations and wilderness land management practices have on the ability of individuals with disabilities to use
and enjoy the National Wilderness Preservation System as established under the Wilderness Act (16 U.S.C.
1131 et seq.).

(b) Submission of report. - Not later than 1 year after July 26, 1990 [the date of enactment of this Act], the
National Council on Disability shall submit the report required under subsection (a) of this section to Congress.

(c) Specific wilderness access. -

(2) In general. - Congress reaffirms that nothing in the Wilderness Act [16 U.S.C. 1131 et seq.] is
to be construed as prohibiting the use of a wheelchair in a wilderness area by an individual whose
disability requires use of a wheelchair, and consistent with the Wilderness Act no agency is
required to provide any form of special treatment or accommodation, or to construct any facilities
or modify any conditions of lands within a wilderness area in order to facilitate such use.

(2) Definition. - For purposes of paragraph (1), the term “wheelchair” means a device designed
solely for use by a mobility-impaired person for locomotion, that is suitable for use in an indoor
pedestrian area.

TRANSVESTITES
SEC. 12208. [Section 509]

For the purposes of this chapter, the term “disabled” or “disability” shall not apply to an individual solely because
that individual is a transvestite.

COVERAGE OF CONGRESS AND THE AGENCIES OF THE LEGISLATIVE
BRANCH
SEC. 12209. [Section 510]

(a) Coverage of the Senate. -

(1) Commitment to Rule XLII. - The Senate reaffirms its commitment to Rule XLII of the Standing
Rules of the Senate which provides as follows:

“No member, officer, or employee of the Senate shall, with respect to employment
by the Senate or any office thereof-
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“(a) fail or refuse to hire an individual;
“(b) discharge an individual; or

“(c) otherwise discriminate against an individual with respect to promotion,
compensation, or terms, conditions, or privileges of employment on the basis of
such individual’s race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, or state of physical
handicap.”

(2) Matters other than employment. -

(A) In general. - The rights and protections under this chapter shall, subject to
subparagraph (B), apply with respect to the conduct of the Senate regarding
matters other than employment.

(B) Remedies. - The Architect of the Capitol shall establish remedies and
procedures to be utilized with respect to the rights and protections provided
pursuant to subparagraph (A). Such remedies and procedures shall apply
exclusively, after approval in accordance with subparagraph (C).

(C) Proposed remedies and procedures. - For purposes of subparagraph (B), the
Architect of the Capitol shall submit proposed remedies and procedures to the
Senate Committee on Rules and Administration. The remedies and procedures
shall be effective upon the approval of the Committee on Rules and
Administration.

(3) Exercise of rulemaking power. - Notwithstanding any other provision of law, enforcement and
adjudication of the rights and protections referred to in paragraph (2)(A) shall be within the
exclusive jurisdiction of the United States Senate. The provisions of paragraph (1), (2) are
enacted by the Senate as an exercise of the rulemaking power of the Senate, with full recognition
of the right of the Senate to change its rules, in the same manner, and to the same extent, as in
the case of any other rule of the Senate.

(b) Coverage of the House of Representatives. -

(1) In general. - Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter or of law, the purposes of this
chapter shall, subject to paragraphs (2) and (3), apply in their entirety to the House of
Representatives.

(2) Employment in the House. -

(A) Application. - The rights and protections under this chapter shall, subject to
subparagraph (B), apply with respect to any employee in an employment position
in the House of Representatives and any employing authority of the House of
Representatives.

(B) Administration. -

(i) In general. - In the administration of this paragraph, the remedies
and procedures made applicable pursuant to the resolution
described in clause (ii) shall apply exclusively.

(i) Resolution. - The resolution referred to in clause (i) is House
Resolution 15 of the One Hundred First Congress, as agreed to
January 3, 1989, or any other provision that continues in effect the
provisions of, or is a successor to, the Fair Employment Practices
Resolution (House Resolution 558 of the One Hundredth Congress,
as agreed to October 4, 1988).

(C) Exercise of rulemaking power. - The provisions of subparagraph (B) are
enacted by the House of Representatives as an exercise of the rulemaking power
of the House of Representatives, with full recognition of the right of the House to
change its rules, in the same manner, and to the same extent as in the case of any
other rule of the House.

3) Matters other than employment. -
ploy
(A) In general. - The rights and protections under this chapter shall, subject to

subparagraph (B), apply with respect to the conduct of the House of
Representatives regarding matters other than employment.
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(B) Remedies. - The Architect of the Capitol shall establish remedies and
procedures to be utilized with respect to the rights and protections provided
pursuant to subparagraph (A). Such remedies and procedures shall apply
exclusively, after approval in accordance with subparagraph (C).

(C) Approval. - For purposes of subparagraph (B), the Architect of the Capitol shall
submit proposed remedies and procedures to the Speaker of the House of
Representatives. The remedies and procedures shall be effective upon the
approval of the Speaker, after consultation with the House Office Building
Commission.

(c) Instrumentalities of Congress. -

(2) In general. - The rights and protections under this chapter shall, subject to paragraph (2),
apply with respect to the conduct of each instrumentality of the Congress.

(2) Establishment of remedies and procedures by instrumentalities. - The chief official of each
instrumentality of the Congress shall establish remedies and procedures to be utilized with
respect to the rights and protections provided pursuant to paragraph (1). Such remedies and
procedures shall apply exclusively, except for the employees who are defined as Senate
employees, in section 201(c)(1) of the Civil Rights Act of 1991.

(3) Report to Congress. - The chief official of each instrumentality of the Congress shall, after
establishing remedies and procedures for purposes of paragraph (2), submit to the Congress a
report describing the remedies and procedures.

(4) Definition of instrumentalities. - For purposes of this section, instrumentalities of the Congress
include the following: the Architect of the Capitol, the Congressional Budget Office, the General
Accounting Office, the Government Printing Office, the Library of Congress, the Office of
Technology Assessment, and the United States Botanic Garden.

(5) Construction. - Nothing in this section shall alter the enforcement procedures for individuals
with disabilities provided in the General Accounting Office Personnel Act of 1980 [31 U.S.C. 731
et seq.] and regulations promulgated pursuant to that Act.

ILLEGAL USE OF DRUGS
SEC. 12210. [Section 511]

(a) In general. - For purposes of this chapter, the term “individual with a disability” does not include an individual
who is currently engaging in the illegal use of drugs, when the covered entity acts on the basis of such use.

(b) Rules of construction. - Nothing in subsection (a) of this section shall be construed to exclude as an individual
with a disability an individual who-

(1) has successfully completed a supervised drug rehabilitation program and is no longer
engaging in the illegal use of drugs, or has otherwise been rehabilitated successfully and is no
longer engaging in such use;

(2) is participating in a supervised rehabilitation program and is no longer engaging in such use;
or

(3) is erroneously regarded as engaging in such use, but is not engaging in such use; except that
it shall not be a violation of this chapter for a covered entity to adopt or administer reasonable
policies or procedures, including but not limited to drug testing, designed to ensure that an
individual described in paragraph (1) or (2) is no longer engaging in the illegal use of drugs;
however, nothing in this section shall be construed to encourage, prohibit, restrict, or authorize
the conducting of testing for the illegal use of drugs.

(c) Health and other services. - Notwithstanding subsection (a) of this section and section 12211(b)(3) of this title
[section 512(b)(3)], an individual shall not be denied health services, or services provided in connection with drug
rehabilitation, on the basis of the current illegal use of drugs if the individual is otherwise entitled to such
services.

(d) Definition of illegal use of drugs. -

(1) In general. - The term “illegal use of drugs” means the use of drugs, the possession or
distribution of which is unlawful under the Controlled Substances Act (21 U.S.C. 812). Such term
does not include the use of a drug taken under supervision by a licensed health care professional,
or other uses authorized by the Controlled Substances Act or other provisions of Federal law.
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(2) Drugs

The term “drug” means a controlled substance, as defined in schedules | through V of section 202
of the Controlled Substances Act [21 U.S.C. 812].

DEFINITIONS
SEC. 12211. [Section 512]

(a) Homosexuality and bisexuality. - For purposes of the definition of “disability” in section 12102(2) of this title
[section 3(2)], homosexuality and bisexuality are not impairments and as such are not disabilities under this
chapter.

(b) Certain conditions. - Under this chapter, the term “disability” shall not include-

(1) transvestism, transsexualism, pedophilia, exhibitionism, voyeurism, gender identity disorders
not resulting from physical impairments, or other sexual behavior disorders;

(2) compulsive gambling, kleptomania, or pyromania; or

(3) psychoactive substance use disorders resulting from current illegal use of drugs.

ALTERNATIVE MEANS OF DISPUTE RESOLUTION
SEC. 12212. [Section 514]

Where appropriate and to the extent authorized by law, the use of alternative means of dispute resolution,
including settlement negotiations, conciliation, facilitation, mediation, factfinding, minitrials, and arbitration, is
encouraged to resolve disputes arising under this chapter.

SEVERABILITY
SEC. 12213. [Section 515]

Should any provision in this chapter be found to be unconstitutional by a court of law, such provision shall be
severed from the remainder of the chapter, and such action shall not affect the enforceability of the remaining
provisions of the chapter.

[Approved July 26, 1990]
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2009 ORS § 341.709¢
Annual audit required

(1) The board of a community college district shall cause to have prepared an
annual audit of the books and accounts of the district, including but not
limited to student body funds, athletic funds, cafeteria funds, and other similar
funds collected by the college. The audit statements must be filed with the
administrative office for the district on or before December 31 of the year in
which the audit is conducted.

(2) Accountants employed under this section must be selected from the roster of
authorized municipal accountants maintained by the Oregon Board of
Accountancy under ORS 297.670 (Board of Accountancy to prepare and
maintain roster). [1971 ¢.513 8§51; 1987 ¢.159 81]

(No annotations for this section.)

! Legislative Counsel Committee, CHAPTER 341—Community Colleges, http://www.leg.state.or.us/-
ors/341.html (2009) (last accessed Mar. 8, 2010).

2 OregonLaws.org contains the contents of Volume 21 of the ORS, inserted alongside the pertinent
statutes. See the preface to the ORS Annotations for more information.

3 OregonLaws.org assembles these lists by analyzing references between Sections. Each listed item
refers back to the current Section in its own text. The result reveals relationships in the code that may
not have otherwise been apparent.

Currency Information
by WebLaws.org
www.oregonlaws.org
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Message trom the President

Dr. Patty Scott, Ed.D.

President

Southwestern Oregon
Community College

Go Lakers!

To our colleagues and members of our communities,

2011 was an important year for the college. Fifty years
after starting the college by the vote of the people on
May 1, 1961, we celebrated the college history with
alumni, community members, faculty, staff, and digni-
taries. We unveiled a “50 years of SWOCC” history book
written by Foundation Chair, Bill Lansing. The Board
of Education honored the founding Chairman and
Longshoremen Henry Hansen by naming the grassy
area on campus between several of the original build-
ings, Henry Hansen Union Square commemorating his
contribution to the community college movement in
Oregon and specifically for his work at getting SWOCC
chartered.

On October 8, in recognition of a long-time staff mem-
ber who worked at the college for 38 years, the court in
Prosper Hall was been named - John Speasl Court. John
Speasl was a faculty member, coach and athletic director
who coached numerous All-Conference and All-Amer-
ican athletes in volleyball and wrestling. He also was
voted by the SWOCC student body as the life sciences
professor of the year for three years in a row.

We also recognized the 50 previous student presidents
and distinguished alumni at a Foundation event. It was
wonderful to hear the stories of 50 years of previous
graduates and learn how their experience at SWOCC
shaped and impacted their lives. The event truly was an
evening of inspiration.

The new campus in Curry County will be open for busi-
ness in January 2012. Like the longshoremen 50 years
ago, many foundations, trusts, businesses, individu-

als, and even the state legislature have contributed to
the project to ensure the nearly 20-year-old dream of

a state-of-the-art educational facility in Curry County
came true. This 24,920 square foot two-story northwest
lodge style structure, designed as a “College in a Build-
ing” will serve the needs of the Curry citizen for years to
come.

The College is accredited by the Northwest Commission
on Colleges and Universities. In 2010, NWCCU ap-
proved new standards. Moving from a process that in-
volved a self-study report every 10 years, we are now on
a seven year cycle where we have a visit or report each
year. Our Year One report was submitted on March 1
and we received confirmation that our accreditation
was reaffirmed in August. The college is now preparing
for a comprehensive visit in April, 2012.

The college continues to plug along in a very tough
economy. State funding has dropped 25% in the last
three years while the cost to provide quality education
continues to increase as we struggle to keep current with
technology and the latest techniques in instructional
delivery. Enrollments continue to be strong as we help
students achieve their goals and dreams.

The college appreciates the support it receives from our
communities from Reedsport to the California border
and East to Myrtle Point and all places in between. We
look forward to the next 50 years of delivery of quality
programs and services to our community.

Sincerely,
Dr. Patty Scott, Ed.D.



2010-11 Strategic Plan Highlights

SWOCC is committed to a practice
of evaluating and assessing the
effectiveness of the college. The
following illustrates Strategic Plan
goals outcomes achieved through
program reviews that occurred at all
levels of the college:

1. Ensure access to diverse learn-
ing opportunities:

* Many changes related to fi-
nancial aid processing have
been implemented for the
2011-12 academic year.

2. Provide access to support
services for students, staff, and
the community:

* Increased offerings were
made available to in-dis-
trict high school students
through College Now and
High School Credit Recov-
ery through Transitional
Education.

3. Maintain and develop qual-
ity learning opportunities to

encourage student success and

achievement:

* The Allied Health Pathway
is being expanded to of-
fer additional certificates.
SWOCC participated in de-
velopment of the statewide
Green Tech Certificate. The
Business Management/En-
trepreneurship program has
been updated to align with
the National Entrepreneur-
ship Standards and can now
be earned entirely online.

4. Support student lifelong learn-

ing and goal attainment:

* Two career exploration
courses are being added to
the curriculum: Intro to
Natural Resources (NR 199A)
and Intro to Healthcare
Careers (AH 100). Intro to
Entrepreneurship (BA 150),
a three credit course, was
also added.

5. Create the vision and structure
for long-term college sustain-
ability and growth:

* Board members continue to
actively advocate for com-
munity colleges at the state
and federal level through
participation in OCCA.

6. Support college growth
through appropriate planning,
budgeting, and assessment:

* All enterprise units had a
positive ending fund bal-
ance.

7. Allocate resources to support
continuous improvement

for a strong infrastructure of

employees, technologies, and

facilities:

* SWOCC now streams video
of graduation, seminars,
athletics, and other college
events online.

* The new welding mobile lab
visited facilities and events
throughout Oregon.

Southwestern’s Accreditation Report

Southwestern Oregon Community
College is accredited by the
nationally recognized regional
accrediting agency Northwest
Commission on Colleges and
Universities (NWCCU). The
NWCCU reatfirmed SWOCC'’s
accreditation following a 2002 full
review, 2007 Fifth Year Interim
Visit, and 2009 Focused Interim
Visit. A handful of individual
programs — Culinary, Early

Green Jobs

Childhood Education, Emergency
Medical Technician, Nursing,

and Transitional Education — are
accredited by other agencies.

The NWCCU shifted last year

from a ten-year cycle of reports

and visits to a seven-year process

of more frequent systemic self and
peer evaluation. The NWCCU
accreditation process contains

five reporting standards. SWOCC
completed and submitted Standard

One in February 2011. The NWCCU
Board of Commissioners sent

their conclusions to SWOCC in
August. The Accreditation Steering
Committee continues to make
progress toward the other four
standards scheduled for completion
by March 2012, seeking feedback
from employees, students, and
other stakeholders. A full-scale
accreditation visit will follow in
April 2012.

College administrators, recognizing an increasing demand for green jobs, have created an Oregon Green Technician
Certificate. The program offers training for occupations in energy efficiency and renewable energy industries,
including occupations that have long-term demand, offer the potential for high wage, career pathway jobs, and
support local sourcing and innovation. The certificate has been designed to offer a broad-based technician program
infused with sustainable topics and considerations. Classes began Fall Term of 2011.

www.tocowa.org/Projects-and-Programs/Green-Technician-Certificate



50th Anniversary

Southwestern Oregon Community College began a
yearlong celebration of its 50th birthday in April. The
Prefontaine Masters Track Meet, May 1 dedication of
Legacy Bricks, and a special graduation ceremony all
were held in the 2010-11 school year.

The first annual Prefontaine Masters Track Meet was
held at the SWOCC track and field complex in April.
The college hosted Masters athletes from Oregon,
California, Idaho, and Washington. The attendance
of Elfrieda Prefontaine, mother of legendary runner
Steve Prefontaine, made the event extra special for
participants and spectators.

Southwestern Oregon Community College officially
celebrated its 50th birthday on a delightfully sunny
Sunday afternoon on May 1. Board members from

the Laker Club Alumni Association assembled the
event to unveil sections of Legacy Bricks purchased by
students, alumni, employees, community members,
and organizations to commemorate their experience at,
or support of, Oregon’s first community college district.
Organizers estimated more than 60 people attended the
presentation honoring our past and paving our future.
All Legacy Brick proceeds support students and alumni
through the Laker Club Alumni Association.

Peter Hansen, son of SWOCC founding father Henry
Hansen, spoke at the college’s 50th graduation June

10 in the Prosper Hall gymnasium on the Coos
Campus. SWOCC was the vision of Peter’s father,
longshoreman Henry Hansen. With the support of his
local International Longshore and Warehouse Union
(ILWU), Henry Hansen lobbied extensively in Salem
for a community college on the South Coast of Oregon.
His effort culminated in the birth of Southwestern
Oregon College, as it was known then, on May 1, 1961.
The college district originally stretched along the coast
from Florence to Port Orford and Henry was the chair
of its first Board of Education. The first graduation
ceremonies were held in 1962 at the old navy
gymnasium at the North Bend airport. The college
awarded one Associate in Arts Degree, eight Electronics
Certificates, six Automotive Technology Certificates,
eleven Stenographic Certificates, and three General
Office Certificates.

HONORING OUR PAsT, LIGHTING THE FUTURE

1961-2011

Later in June, the College Board voted unanimously
to name same grassy quad where the Legacy Bricks
will be placed as Henry Hansen Union Square to
honor the college’s founding father and the many
historical contributions of the Local 12 chapter of the
International Longshoreman’s and Warehouse Union
(ILWU).

A full schedule of activities is planned to continue
through June 2012. The highlight of the anniversary
year was a community celebration on October §,

2011. Many from the community, as well as alumni
and students, joined in the festivities, food, and
entertainment in recognition of the college’s first 50
years. A commemorative book and video documenting
the college’s first 50 years was also unveiled and Henry
Hansen Union Square was dedicated.

People throughout the college district are also invited

to attend the January 2012 grand opening of the new
Curry Campus in Brookings. The year of celebration will
conclude with the 51st annual commencement which
will recognize the 50th class of nurses, the longest
running continuous program of study among Oregon’s
community colleges.

A schedule and other information are also available at
www.socc.edu/50th.

Visit our web site and share your memories.

www.socc.edu/50th




CURRY CAMPUS CONSTRUCTION UPDATE

Opening January 4, 2012

On July 1, 2010, Southwestern’s
Board of Education, staff, elected
officials and members of the
community gather at the site of
the new Curry Campus for the
official ground breaking. On June
26, 2011, the Board of Education
returned to tour the construction
project before their annual board
meeting at the Brookings Center.
The building was well on its

way to becoming a “campus in a
building.” Much of the exterior
was complete and insulation

and sheet rock were beginning

to define the interior rooms. But
outside the rock removal was still
a working in progress and the
rock breaker was still hard at work
carving the center of the parking
lot into a bioswale, part of the
rainwater runoff management
system designed to filter rainwater
runoff before returning it to the
surrounding wetlands.

The project is scheduled for
completion November 18, 2011,
with a projected opening for
classes Winter Term, 2012. The
Curry Campus Dedication is
scheduled for January 27, 2012, at
2 pm.

The new Curry Campus

was designed with wireless
connectivity, video conferencing,
and SMART technology in
classrooms and convening spaces.
The community wing includes a
catering/ demonstration kitchen,
dividable community room,
dividable art room, lobby, and
after-hours entrance. The lobby
and hallway will be used to

rotate art and cultural displays.
Community events can utilize

the nearby two-story
commons area, outside
commons, and upstairs
meeting room for
networking and planning
with minimal disruption
to the day-to-day
operations of the college.

The facility offers many
informal indoor and
outside places to gather
for study, networking,
and collaboration. 21st
Century technology will
allow the college to host
local workforce trainings,
small conferences,
community gatherings,
and regional workshops
and link students and
communities to the
SWOCC Coos Campus
and beyond. A fully
equipped allied health
training center, computer
and science labs make
training in Brookings
possible and accessible.

Building construction has been
largely funded through the sale

of Recovery Zone Economic
Development bonds and a $2.3
million matching grant from the
State of Oregon. Fundraising has
been ongoing for the furniture,
fixtures and equipment. In May,
The Ford Family Foundation,
based in Roseburg, awarded

the College $300,000 toward
furniture, fixtures, and equipment
for the multiuse areas available for
community use. On June 30th,
the College received a $400,000
appropriation at the close of

the legislative session in thanks

July 2010

July 2011

to the efforts of Representative
Wayne Krieger. Individuals and
businesses from Curry and Coos
counties, and beyond, have
contributed well over $200,000 in
donations and pledges.

Future donations will help
support the growth of academic
and student support programs,
purchase additional educational
equipment, and provide student
scholarships. Those interested
in making a tax-deductible
contribution can still do so by
visiting the college website at
www.socc.edu. Click on the red
“Donate Now” button on the right
side of the screen and select the
designation program you prefer.



Message from the Executive Director

of the College Foundation

Through the gifts from alumni,
faculty and staff, retirees,

and community supporters,
Southwestern has for fifty years
evolved into an exceptional
educational facility. We have been
hearing from the alumni loud
and clear that their lives were
transformed by their educational
experience here. And those stories
of gratitude are showing all of

us the reasons for continuing to
support this place where people
gather to teach and to learn.

I had the pleasure of working
with the people in Curry County,
gathering their gifts to fulfill their
vision for a new campus. Now it is
my duty and honor to work with
Coos and Curry people who want
to see that Southwestern and our
regional economy thrive.

The Foundation added many
new members to the board of
directors this year with the goal
of building stronger engagement
with the business community.
The board is comprised of a very
good cross-section of men and
women dedicated to the mission
of friendraising and fundraising.
Dick Vigue, who had served as
Chairman of the Foundation
through many years remains on
the Board and passed the torch
to allow the board to elect the
new Chairman, Bill Lansing. We
still seek board members from
Curry County to continue the
philanthropy which grew during
the Curry County Campus
Campaign.

The Foundation received funding
for three new endowed scholarship

e 122 scholarships were
awarded to 89 students.

funds this year. Read on to

learn more about the families
establishing these permanent
funds including: Bill and Ann
Lansing (Ann Lansing Endowed
Scholarship), Jean Sorenson
(Vernon C. and Jean G. Sorenson
Endowed Scholarship), Carol
Baughman (Gerald Baughman
Memorial Fund).

The Foundation received $50,000
from new local sources to match
$50,000 donated through

the James and Marion Miller
Foundation. Thanks to all who
helped Southwestern reach the
match for this challenge grant
from the Miller Foundation. Many
of the fifty students who were
awarded this scholarship may not
have attended if this match was
not met.

It seems like a miracle that the
new Curry Campus is about to
open its doors, but it is the result
of many years of planning, the
determination of President Scott,
the College and Foundation
Boards, and the fundraising team
including Janet Pretti, Dean of
Curry Campus, Peggy Goergen,
the former dean of Curry Campus,
Cherie Mitchell, College Board
Member and both fundraising
chairs: Representative Wayne
Krieger and Gary Milliman. Ford
Family Foundation is the largest
private sector donor contributing
$300,000. The appropriation
from the Oregon Legislature

of $2.3 million and the recent
appropriation of $400,000 were
due to the unwavering leadership
of Wayne Krieger.

e $400,000 in tuition waivers
offered to qualifying
students and to high school
students having a 3.75 GPA
or higher.

Karen Pringle

The smaller gifts and grants
matter too, such as the generosity
of a local doctor that enabled

the purchase of three heart
defibrillators to be located close to
the outdoor track and ball fields.
The Bay Area Hospital offered a
grant to properly store this special
equipment. Our hats are off to
Umpqua Bank, Dick Vigue and
Northwestern Mutual Financial,
and the Mill Casino and RV Park
for underwriting an inspiring
lecture on leadership and a dinner
to thank our donors. The board
would like to welcome you to
campus for events and we hope
you will accept our invitations
throughout the year.

The Southwestern Oregon Community College
Foundation is a tax-exempt 501(c)(3) public
foundation organized exclusively for the purpose
of supporting higher education in connection
with Southwestern Oregon Community College
(http://www.socc.edu/). The Foundation

was incorporated in 1962 and has assets of
approximately $3, 039,554 (June 30, 2011),
including endowments, temporarily restricted
funds and unrestricted funds. It accepts gifts of
cash, stocks, bonds, real estate, personal property,
life insurance and equipment. It accepts and
manages charitable remainder trusts and lead
trusts and is licensed to issue gift annuities in the
State of Oregon. The Foundation accepts lifetime
gifts and gifts by bequest. The federal ID number
15 93:6031563.

* 160 students qualified
for scholarships but
Southwestern was unable to
extend scholarship support
to all who applied.



Miller Foundation Scholarship Challenge:
We met the Miller Challenge!

For the third and final year, the Southwestern Community College Foundation will receive $50,000 in
matching scholarship funds from the James F. and Marion L. Miller Foundation.

Forty more students this year will receive the financial support they need to pursue their education. Thanks
to SWOCC Foundation supporters, we have met the challenge every year by donors increasing their gifts or
giving for the first time. Thank you to the following donors, you are awesome:

Vicki L. Anderson Dr. John Floxel Roseburg Forest Products
Marion E. Babcock Kat Flores Smullin Foundation
Carol J. Baughman Sylvia B. Giustina Jean Sorenson

Books By The Bay, LLC Bill & Ann Lansing Soroptimist of Brookings
Brookings Anonymous Donor Bruce S. Locker Ed & Judy Swenson
Patricia A. Borcher Judy A. Mogan Gary & Shirley Tonn

Coos Bay Vision Center Barbara E. Knudsen Foundation Richard & Janice Vigue

Timothy W. Dailey Craig & Susan Nelson Foundation Wells Fargo Bank

Ray & Dora Daniels Ron Olson James W. Young
Randy Z. Rema

What does this mean for our students and our community? Let’s hear from a few students who received the

Miller Scholarship in 2010-2011:

Mark Burnapp: “Thank you for the generous scholarship. This past summer | interned on the South Slough National
Estuarine Research Reserve to reestablished native Olympia Oysters to Coos Bay. My interest is science and my goal is to
manage natural resources.”

Sarah Cooney: “I grew up in Coos Bay where | participated in sports. Thank you for the scholarship, it is a big help and
allows me to attend school. | plan to earn a degree in human services.”

Justin Thomas: “I was born in Coos Bay, and plan to obtain my AS/OT in business, and transfer to SOU. | dream of
owning my own business. My most sincere gratitude for your generous gift.”

Kristy Watson: “I grew up in Gold Beach. | have a strong desire to be a nurse. Thank you for your support and kindness.”

Gifts, Grants, and Contributions

It is the policy of Southwestern
Oregon Community College Board
of Education that there will be no

$800,000 discrimination or harassment on
the grounds of race, color, gender,
$700,000 marital status, sexual orientation,
7

religion, national origin, age,
political affiliation, parental status,

$600,000 veteran status or disability in any
educational programs, activities
$500,000 or employment. Persons having

questions about equal opportunity
and nondiscrimination should

$400,000 contact the Vice President of
Administrative Services in Tioga
$300,000 511. Phone 541-888-7206 or TDD
7

541-888-7368. All other issues,
concerns, and complaints should

$200,000 also be directed to the Vice President
of Administrative Services for referral
$100,000 to the appropriate administrator.
’

This publication is courtesy of
Southwestern Oregon Community
$0 College and the Southwestern

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Foundation.



Ann Lansing Scholarship Fund

Late last

year, the
Southwestern
Oregon
Community
College
Foundation
received a gift
that creates

a sustainable
scholarship
for students
in need of
financial help
to return to
college. That gift came in the form of an endowment in
the amount of $25,000 from Ann and Bill Lansing that
established the Ann Lansing Scholarship Fund. They
stipulated that they wanted the principal to be invested
and the earnings to be awarded

Bill and Ann Lansing

annually to the financially disadvantaged to assist their
efforts to seek a post-secondary education.

There were several reasons leading to this decision

to endow the scholarship at Southwestern. In Bill’s
words: “All too often the underprivileged, displaced
workers and single parents are left out of the vision for
financial support to return to college and [ wanted to
focus on this population. While Ann was not officially
prepared at Smith College to teach reading and study
skills at SWOCC, she found a niche and got a sense of
satisfaction in helping students along the path to better
education which in turn opened options for them in
the future.”

Further, Bill was motivated by the timing of the Miller
Foundation pledge to match 1:1 every dollar of new
contributions to Southwestern. He added: “I hoped
that this small effort would encourage others to make
contributions to the SWOCC Foundation for other
worthy causes.

Vernon C. and Jean G. Sorenson Memorial Scholarship

Jean G. Sorenson, wife of the late Vernon C. Sorenson,
former instructor at Southwestern, gifted $10,000 to
begin the Vernon C. and Jean G. Sorenson Memorial
Scholarship fund. The
scholarship is for students

from the college district with
an interest in the arts, music

or languages. This is fitting
because Vernon taught French,
German and Photography
between 1962 and 1982. He was
head of the Arts Division and
president of both of the Faculty
Senate and the American
Federation of Teachers Local
Union. Jean, now age 90,
recalls that Vernon was a big
advocate of a comprehensive
community college. Back in
those days, the instructors on
the “vocational” side and the “college transfer” side
worked together. Students were encouraged to sign
up for welding and art, forestry and conversational
German, and surveying and geography. It was a
very exciting time.” Pete, Vernon and Jean’s son,

Vernon and Jean Sorenson

Southwestern’s distinguished alumnus, tells of his
mother’s participation at Southwestern. “Mom took
calligraphy and she volunteered with the ‘faculty wives
club’ to help students. Jean and
Vernon’s other son, John, is

also a Southwestern alumnus.
Jean has recently loaned the
Foundation twenty of Vernon’s
photographs taken in 1971-

72 while he was traveling in
Europe and studying French
language and literature in

Paris. Seven of these photos are
on display in the Foundation
Office including one of the
Canterbury Cathedral with Jean
pictured in the lower right hand
corner. A photograph of Vernon
and Jean Sorenson is displayed
as well. We celebrate this new
memorial scholarship and hope you will visit the
Foundation Offices in Tioga Hall to see the photo legacy
that brought the European landscape and streetscape to
the students of the rural South coast.



Gera

Southwestern has many heroes and one of them is
Carol Baughman who honored her late husband by
establishing an endowed fund through a gift to the
Foundation. Carol’s husband, Gerald (Jerry) Baughman,
passed away last January. Carol’s daughter, Penny,
suggested that the family honor their husband,

father and grandfather with a fund to support what
Jerry believed in - that is the opportunity for an
apprenticeship. Carol started an endowed fund at
Southwestern with the gift of $10,000. This year Carol
added more to the endowment to speed up the earnings
to be large enough to begin a significantly sized fund for
now and in perpetuity. Carol shared a few illustrations
about Jerry’s full life, and why he would have wanted to
give back through a gift. Jerry was dedicated and fully
engaged for the long term in many aspects of his life. He
was a member of the Coos Bay Fire Department from

d Baughman Endowed Fund

1938 to 1960. He joined the U.S. Coast Guard Reserve
during WWII and spent the weekends patrolling locally
on both land and at sea. Jerry worked as a carpenter
with his father and became owner and partner of
Baughman & Son Inc. For 40 years he worked on

many projects throughout the state, including homes,
schools, warehouses, state parks, Job Corp camps,
bridges, sewer plants and on Southwestern’s campus.
He was national director of the Associated General
Contractors for 16 years. For forty years he was an active
member of the Pacific Orchid Society of Coos Bay and
traveled extensively hosting groups of orchid lovers
who attended World Orchid conferences throughout
the world. We honor Carol and her family for planting
a seed at Southwestern that will grow opportunities for
students, and thus more enriched and fulfilled lives like
Jerry’s.

2011 DISTINGUISHED ALUMN!I
Linda Prefontaine

Linda Prefontaine is the
2011 recipient of the
Distinguished Alumni
Award. The honor
recognizes a Southwestern
Oregon Community College
alumnus who impacts those
people around them with
their contributions of excellence in their professional
and personal life.

Linda Prefontaine

Linda attended SWOCC from 1971-73, earning an
Associate’s degree. An excellent tennis player and
overall athlete, she was a three-time district doubles
champion, State of Oregon quarter finalist, and State
semifinalist in high school. Linda played tennis for the
SWOCC Lakers, voted Team Captain and Most Valuable
Player as a sophomore. Following her academic
transfer to the University of Oregon, she earned a

PAC 8 Northern Division Doubles Championship.
Linda graduated in 1975 with a Bachelor’s degree in
Elementary Education from the University of Oregon.

Following college, Linda learned the game of
racquetball, winning the 1978 Oregon State Singles
Championship, placing second in the Amateur

National, and placing third in the International
Racquetball Championships. She turned professional in
1979, maintaining a top ten ranking throughout most
of her career.

In 1981, Linda retired from professional racquetball

to pursue a career in teaching and coaching. She also
has devoted much energy to keeping alive the spirit of
her brother Steve Prefontaine, using his memory and
legacy to illustrate to others the value of hard work and
dedication to achieve goals and dreams. Linda created
Prefontaine Productions LLC in 2006 to create items

to inspire runners in the spirit of her brother. She also
helped author a children’s book in Steve’s name with all
royalties given to Blossom Gulch Elementary School in
Coos Bay.

An active person in the community, Linda established
the Linda Prefontaine Fund with the Oregon
Community Foundation in 2009.

“My intentions are to help fund animal shelters in Coos
Bay and Eugene and to set up a scholarship program to
help young females who have demonstrated a talent

in music, arts, or athletics but do not have the funds to
pursue their dreams,” Linda said.



Student and Campus Data
2010-2011 Budget

ACTUALS

Local Support

Repairs
Debt Service
Other
Equipment

Personnel Services

RESOURCES EXPENDITURES
B State Support $5,210,358 B Personnel Services $9,115,537
B Tuition and Fees $5,862,532 B Moaterials and Services $3,126,668
B Local Support $4,867,125 H Personnel Benefits $2,957,138
B Transfers from Other Funds $1,443,476 B Transfers to Other Funds $1,386,106
B Beginning Fund Balance $1,303,717 B Materials/Services for Resale $141,855
[ Other Income $340,582 Il Equipment $48,022
[ Federal Support $38,745 I Debt Service on Line-of-Credit $15,500
[ Line-of-Credit/Lease Proceeds $25,500 I Other Expenses (Net of Waivers) $15,266
Repairs $7,335
TOTAL $19,092,035
State Funding reduced by $1,715,801 after adoption of the ENDING FUND BALANCE $2,278,608
2010-2011 budget.
Student Headcount 10,265 Acres Owned 174
Full-Time Equivalent 3,389 Number of Buildings 52
Gender Programs of Study
Male Female Undisclosed Number of degrees and one-year certificates 34
43% 56% 1% Pathways Certificates 15
Average Class Size 15 2010-11 Adopted Budget $58,742,156
Student Majors Southwestern Foundation Holdings $ 3,057,492
Career Transter or Undecided Employees
[0) [0)
35% 65% 222 183
. Full-Time Part-Time
Residency (By Headcount)
Students attending Southwestern who live in Coos, Curry 87% . . .
or Western Douglas counties (known as In-District Students) Library Holdings 59,521 physical

In terms of electronic holdings, the library provides access to the
full-text of more than 29,700 digitized periodicals, 7,300 essays,
12,600 e-books, 9,700 downloadable audio books, and 600 online
reference books.

Students attending Southwestern who live outside
Coos, Curry or Western Douglas counties
(known as Out-of-District Students) 13%



History of General Fund Revenue

18000000
16000000
14000000
12000000
10000000
8000000
6000000
4000000

2000000

B State Support B | ocal Support B Tuition and Fees

LAKER CLUB
Southwestern’s Alumni Association

The Laker Club is the alumni association of Southwestern Oregon Community College. Inaugurated
in 2007, the Laker Club has over 850 members. The alumni association is free (no membership fees
or dues) to all who have taken at least one class. Being a member of the Laker Club entitles
members to free admission to Laker Club events. The Laker Club will also keep
you informed of Southwestern Oregon Community College news via email
and give you an opportunity to connect with other Southwestern Alumnus.

If you are a graduate of Southwestern, or know someone who is, please
provide current contact information by filling out our online Laker Club
membership form.

Laker Club Association Vision/Mission Statements

VISION STATEMENT

The Laker Club Alumni Association will provide opportunities to
promote, support, serve, reconnect and celebrate Southwestern
students and community.

MISSION STATEMENT
The purpose of the Laker Club is to develop a network to honor Southwestern’s
history, to instill pride and to create a legacy.

Contact the Southwestern Foundation at 541-888-7211 or lakerclub@socc.edu.
Sign up online at: https://www.socc.edu/forms/laker_club.cfm



Oregon Coast Culinary Institute Highlights

The Oregon Coast Culinary Institute (OCCI) youth

team received a gold medal August 4 at the American

Culinary Federation

(ACF) National
Convention in

Anaheim, California.

As a result, the group i
will compete against »’
the best in the world ™
at the 2012 IKA/

Culinary Olympics

in Erfurt, Germany.

The pinnacle

competition in

culinary art takes

place once every four

years.

The members of the gold medal
team are Edalyn Gazrcia, Reilly
Meehan, Alfonso Mendoza, Maddie
Cutts, and Brittney Cummings. All
are OCCI students and each member
had to try out for the team. The
students are coached by Chef Randy
Torres. The group trained together
for five months, practicing several
versions of chosen concepts until
the end result was perfected. Fach
team had to prepare a four course
meal, three separate plated desserts,
and a cold garde manger platter
with portions for eight at the August

of Oregon Dungeness Crab, Oregon pink shrimp, and
local Albacore tuna. The event was filmed by the Food

Network and co-hosted
by conservationist Jeff
Corwin and Certified
Master Chef John Folse.

OCCI also offered many
educational programs
throughout the 2010-11
academic year including:
* Cooking up a Storm in
July, a culinary camp for
16-years-and-older high
school students.
* Taste of the Northwest
on November 19, an
exotic menu of
wild game, local
mushrooms,
fresh seafood,
and rustic breads,
topped-off with
tanciful desserts.
* The addition
of a spring term
cohort.
* 5th Annual
East Meets West
dinner on May
13, offering a
delicious variety
of international

event.

Also in August, OCCI Chef Woojay

Poynter CSC represented the

state of Oregon at the 2010 Great
American Seafood Cook-Off. The
7th annual event was held at the
Morial Convention Center in New
Orleans. He was among fourteen
accomplished and up-and-coming
chefs from the United States vying
for the national title. Participating

chefs created unique dishes

utilizing seafood native to their home state. Poynter
produced seven entrée plates in one hour consisting

dishes reflective of their studies in
regional and international cuisine.

Fundraisers were plentiful, including
many new ventures. A Masquerade Ice
Ball celebrated the arrival of the New
Year and the sale of gourmet snacks
made of a much more appetizing

Super Bowl Sunday. OCCI also held a
Valentine’s Day Dinner to raise money
for Team USA’s trip to the Culinary
Olympics and student charity bake sales
raised $3,061 for South Coast Food Share

and the American Red Cross Japan Relief Fund.



Students Give Back

Southwestern Oregon Community College students

are actively involved in many facets of our community.
They also regularly reach out to people in need across
the nation and the world. Here are some of their stories
from the 2010-11 academic year.

The SWOCC Gaming Club organized an event called
Gaming for Life on November 13. The 24-hour gaming
marathon donated more than $700 to Portland’s
Doernbecher Children’s Hospital. Each participant
found people to sponsor a certain amount for every
hour they played during the event.

SWOCC'’s basketball teams united January 2 in a battle
against cancer. The teams are sold black and pink “Fight
like a Girl” t-shirts with all proceeds helping women
prevent, diagnose, and fight breast cancer. Those who
wore the official t-shirts received free admission to both
basketball games January 2. The annual event raised
$2,000 for Bree’s Boutique. The resale shop uses money
raised through retail sales to cover breast exam and
mammogram expenses.

On February
21, SWOCC
students, led by
student Sara
Smith, kicked
off a fundraising
campaign
for the new
Curry Campus.
Proceeds from
the Pennies
from Campus
to Campus
fundraising drive
help furnish and
equip the new
facility offering the services of an entire campus under
one roof. The goal was to collect enough pennies to
symbolically stretch the 110 miles between SWOCC'’s
Coos Campus and the location of the new Curry
Campus. The students calculated it would take over
9.3 million pennies to accomplish this feat, roughly
$93,000. As of June 2011, the students has raised an
impressive $3,000 in change and other contributions.
Those wishing to contribute can still contact Karina
Smith, SWOCC'’s Coordinator of Student Life, at 541-
888-7316.

The SWOCC Rugby Club, in its first year, played

an exhibition game in Florence April 3. The game,
scheduled against Western Oregon University (WOU),
raised money for the Siuslaw Boosters Ian Foster Fund
supporting athletic participation fee assistance for
student athletes.

Oregon Coast Culinary Institute (OCCI) students held
their annual charity bake sales in May. The event serves
as the students’ capstone project and proceeds provided
food and shelter through the local Oregon Coast Food
Share program and the American Red Cross Japanese
Tsunami Relief program. Each dollar donated to
Oregon Coast Food Share is equivalent to seven pounds
of food. The bake sales raised a total of $3,061 for the
two charities.

SWOCC students Sabrina
Andrews and Jumpei liyama
brought together a showcase

of musicians and bands May

21 to raise funds and awareness
for the survivors of the Japan
earthquake and tsunami. The
event, held in the Hales Center for
the Performing Arts on the Coos
Campus, raised $377 for Coos
Bay'’s sister city of Choshi, Japan.

Students from a Coos Campus speech class organized
a marathon event called Hoop-a-Palooza where
participants played basketball over a 24-hour period
beginning June 3 to raise money for Special Olympics
to help offset the expense of a local track event and
the SWOCC Foundation for a student scholarship
during the upcoming academic year. The group of
students raised $250 for a student scholarship and
$200 for Special Olympics. Another group in the same
class raised $300 through the planning of a Relief
Run (5K/10K) for victims of Alabama’s spring tornado
outbreak.



Creating Opportunities

Thank You Foundation Donors 2010-2011

Harry & Francie Abel

Abel Insurance Agency

Access Rehabilitation, LLC

George & Eva Ahuna

Gary &Jill Alford

Mary E. Allen

Pat & Huntley D. Alvey

Dorothy L. Anacleto

Phill Anderson & Baxter Baird

Susan L. Anderson

Associated Oregon Loggers, Inc.

Robert & Wendy Barber

Richard & Mary Bateman

Bay Area Chamber of Commerce

Bay Area Health District

Paula M. Bechtold

Michelle R. Benoit

John & Pamela Berman

Elizabeth M. Berndt

Robert Black

Sandra M. Blodgett

Susan A. Boal

Hans A. Boettcher

Books By The Bay, LLC

Bob Braddock

John D. Breuer

David Bridgham

Kenneth F. Brooke

Brookings Harbor Education
Foundation

Terry L. Brueckner

Corky & Bets Byrtus

Patricia Cagley

Paige Cannon

Carl & Camilla Rietman
Charitable Foundation

Carpenter Foundation

Dana D. Casey

Jill E. Christiana

Nancy M. Clarke

Coastal Auto Center

Roz Cohen

Andrew E. Combs

Confrerie De La Chaine Des Rot

Molly Cooley

Coos ATV & Cycle Center, Inc.

Coos Bay Toyota

Coos County Sheriff Posse

Coos County Voiture 40 Ets

Coos Head Builders Supply

Coquille Economic Development

Coquille School District 8

Charles E. & Beverly Couture

Craig & Susan Nelson Foundation

Chetco Federal Credit Union

Melissa Cribbins

Howard W. Crombie

Carolyn K. Cronberger

Curry Board of Realtors

Patricia Davidson

James B. Davison

Margaret Dean

Mary A. Debolt

Jan Dilley

Roger Dixon, DMD

Barbara R. Dodrill

Dyer Partnership Engineers

Karl A. & Kristie Easttorp

Tracey L. Eckley

Electrical Workers #932

Elkton High School

Robert Emmons

Eric E. Farm

Guy Faust

Dr. John Flaxel

Kat Flores

Barbara Emily Knudson
Foundation

Steven D. Fowler

Freeman Marine Equipment

George Gabriel

IdaJo Gates

Gordon W. Gates

Bill & Peggy Goergen

Gordon Elwood Foundation

Steven & Joan Greif

Kim S. Griffin

William & Linda Grile

Kip Gumm

Francis Guthridge

Mark C. Hamlin

Jim V. Hankins

Peter Hansen & Clarinda Hanson

Norman S. Hansen

Dale E. Harris

Robert F. Hart

Karen Helland

Bonnie Henderson

Faye L. Hopkins

Trevor ]. & Katherine Hoppe

Dr. Hosack

Hough Macadam & Wartnik, LLC

Rick Howell

ILWU Coast Longshore Division

ILWU Local 14

ILWU Local 40

ILWU Local 92

ILWU Women’s Auxiliary No. 1

Ron Steffens & Zita Ingham

Innovative Physical Therapy

International Longshore &
Warehouse Union

Donald B. Ivy

Jill S. Jacobson

James F. & Marion L. Miller
Foundation

Marcia E. Jensen

James P. Johnson

Kampfer Brothers

Frances & Iain Dennis Karroll

Michael & Rosalind Keiser

Diane L. Kinney

Steve & Linda Kridelbaugh

Thomas & Jean Kyle

Bill & Ann Lansing

John C. Liggett

Local 21 General Fund

Lyle Lundquist

Steve Maine

Anna M. Marca

Gayle ]. Martin

Philip Matthews Construction,
LLC

Charles P. McKay

Dave McKiney

Maryanne McKinley

Jeffrey & Catherine McKeown

Catherine R. Meier

Kathleen D. Mickelson

The Mill Casino & RV Park

Jennifer Miller

Gary & Caroline Milliman

Judy A. Mogan

Joni & Dutch Mostert

Tom & Deb Nicholls

Ben Nolan

North Bend Volunteer Fire
Department

Northwestern Mutual
Financial Services

James A. Okonek

Ron & Alison Olson

ORCA Communications

Oregon Community Foundation

Oregon Federal Credit Union

Oregon Resources Corporation

Oregon State Sheriffs Association

Don G. Perkins

Marit K. Pierce

Patricia A. Piper

Toni Poole

Porters RVs

Roland F. Potts

Powers Community Scholarship

Shannon W. Poynter

Prefontaine Memorial Run

Verna B. Pretti

Lonnie & Janet Pretti

TroyJ. Rambo

Ray’s Charitable Foundation

Reese Electric

Robert L. Reeves

Randy Z. Rema

Mill Resort & Casino

Wallace C. Robbins

Dorman Robbins

Lori G. Robertson

June Roby-Bloom

Roseburg Forest Products

Sause Brothers

Dennis & Debra Schade

Carolyn B. Self

Caspar W. Sharples

Barbara J. Shreckengost

Karim Shumaker

Marjorie A. Simmons

Timm Slater

Mowry Smith

Smullin Foundation

South Coast Employer’s Council

South Coast ILWU Federal
Credit Union

Southern Coos Foundation

Southwestern Oregon
ILWU Pension

Duffy & Veneita G. Stender

Mary-Margaret Stockert

Joe P. Stoneburg

Don F. Strahan

Leal Sundet

Dana L. Sweatt

Ed & Judy Swenson

Alan A. Taylor

Susan E. Thornton

Gary & Shirley Tonn

Lysbeth Toribio

Coquille Indian Tribe

Umpqua Bank

Unified Grocers, Inc.

Carol L. Ventgen

Joanne Verger

Richard & Janice Vigue

John C. Vincent

Susan K. Walker

Kathleen M. Walsh

Adam P. Whitlatch

Alan L. Whitney

Frank Williams

Carolyn M. Williams

Tina L. Woodworth

James W. Young



Donations in Honor or Memory of Others

IN MEMORY OF
GERALD BAUGHMAN
Carol J. Baughman

IN MEMORY OF
VERNON BRECKE
Richard C. Brecke
Brenda Brecke
Jetfrey Brenner

Ron Eachus

Stanley E. Erickson
Chris J. Flammang, II1
Robert B. Fondren
Gayline L. Johnson
Mark & Judith Lucas
Lyle Lundquist
John A. Mackey
Pamela Odell

Jon C. Richards
Jerry M. Scott
Rhonda G. Starelli
Mary M. Troy
Gregory Williams
Lionel D. Youst

IN MEMORY OF

RANDY CARPENTER

Randy Carpenter Memorial
Foundation

IN HONOR OF

MIKE GROBEN

Harry & Francie Abel

Associated Oregon Loggers,
Inc.

Elizabeth M. Berndt

Jim Churchill

Clarence Jensen Trust

Nancy M. Clarke

Coos Foundation, Inc.

Roger Dixon, DMD

Douglas Timber Operators

Friends of Minerology

Charles & Linda Goodwin

Jim & Sue Graves

Rodney F. Grene

John S. Griffith, Jr.

Sharleen Harvey

Dorothy M. Heagy

Tom Hoesly

Ken & Diane Hoffine

Marcia E. Jensen

Robert W. Jones

Kampfer Brothers

Bill & Ann Lansing

Janice E. Lyon

McCarthy Brothers, Inc.

McCarthy Estates, Inc.

Kenneth C. Messerle

R.A. Pettey Jr.

J. Gerald Phillips
Stan Potter

Ragon & Sons, Inc.
Richard H. Rickson
Jason W. Smith
Scott & Kim Starkey
Gregory L. Stone
Joe P. Stoneburg
Maxine N. Stout
Ronald & Joyce Stuntzner
Jack P. Taylor, III
Tower Motor Co.
John Warjone

Bob Wyatt

IN MEMORY OF

TYLER HOFFMAN

William A. Burget

Charleston Volunteer
Firefighters Association

Judy M. Cooper

Vincent Mackey

North Bend Volunteer
Fire Dept.

Dean

IN MEMORY OF
CHRISTINE SCHOLEY
Ronald P. Bell

Jane L. Briggs

Robin Bunnell

Cheryl]. Davies

Lisa A. Fletcher-Gordon
Ron Steffens & Zita Ingham
Anna M. Marca
Jennifer Miller

Rob & Diana Schab

IN MEMORY OF
VERNON SORENSON
Barbara Arandet

Anita Cowling

Lodene Grace

Jennifer Leitner

Greta Sorenson
Janelle Sorenson

Jean Sorenson

Peter Sorenson

IN MEMORY OF
VIRGINIA SMITH

VAN DUZER
Judith Rae Van Duzer Uno

Margaret

Margaret Dean made a gift
of $25,000 to the new Curry
Campus of Southwestern
Oregon Community
College. The gift comes
just in time because the
new campus still needs
donations to purchase
furnishings, fixtures and
equipment. The computer
lab and the allied health
classrooms will need
equipment comparable to
that found in workplace settings where students will
be headed after graduation. The college will show their
thanks by naming a room in honor of Jack and
Margaret Dean.

At 101 years of age, Maggie, as many of her friends call
her, attributes her long life to being happy. She says
she believes in education, and especially the need for a
college to be close enough for students to attend. This
isn’t the first gift Maggie has made to Southwestern.
Her attorney, a financial advisor and the gift planner at
Southwestern talked with Maggie in 1998 and showed
her the benefits of setting up a Charitable Remainder
Trust. The gift to Southwestern was invested and grows
enough to compound and to offer a fixed income

paid quarterly. Maggie has also gifted many of those
quarterly payments back to Southwestern. When this
trust matures, the remainder will continue to fund

the Jack and Margaret Dean Scholarship Fund. Many
students will receive the bounty of Jack and Margaret
Dean’s generosity.
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ASSOCIATE OF SCIENCE DEGREE

REQUIREMENTS

20

The AS degree is designed for students who plan to
transfer and complete a Bachelors of Science degree at
a four-year institution. The degree requirements allow
students more flexibility in course selection, allowing
them to focus on their discipline requirements.

NOTE : Completion of this degree does not guarantee that all
lower-division General Education requirements have been met for a
baccalaureate degree (i.e., this is not a block transfer degree as is
the AA/QT ). In selecting courses for this degree, students are highly
encouraged fo consult the specific transfer curriculum pages in this
catalog, the faculty advisor, and the institution to which they intend
fo transfer to defermine if it is an appropriate choice.

GENERAL EDUCATION OUTCOMES

Upon successful completion of this program the
student will be able to:

WRITING

* Read actively, think critically, and write
purposefully, capably, and ethically for a variety
of audiences.

* Use appropriate reasoning and artful
communication to address complex issues in the
service of learning, discovery, reflection, justice,
and self expression.

* Focus, organize, and logically develop the ideas
in their written work.

SPEECH/ORAL COMMUNICATION

* Engage in ethical communication processes that
allow people to accomplish goals.

* Respond to the needs of diverse audiences and
contexts.

* Build and manage personal and community
relationships.

MATHEMATICS

* Perform calculations and algebraic
manipulations at a college mathematics level.

* Apply mathematics to successfully formulate
and solve real-world problems.

* Understand and correctly use mathematical
notation and terminology.

SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE 2011-2012

HEALTH, WELLNESS AND FITNESS

* Evaluate and assess current and future physical
fitness needs.

* Create and perform an effective physical
conditioning program for lifetime wellness.

* Understand how muscular strength and endurance,
muscular flexibility, cardiorespiratory fitness, and
body composition affect lifetime wellness.

DISTRIBUTION REQUIREMENTS OUTCOMES

Upon successful completion of this program the
student will be able to:

ARTS AND LETTERS

* Inferpret and engage in the Arts and Letters,
making use of the creative process to enrich the
quality of life.

* Critically analyze personal values and ethics
within the stream of human experience and
expression to engage more fully in local and
global issues.

(“Arts and Letters” refers to works of art, whether
written, crafted or designed, and performed,
and documents of particular poignancy and
significance in statement or design.)

SOCIAL SCIENCES

* Apply analytical skills to historical and
contemporary social phenomena so as to
explain, evaluate, and predict human behavior.

* Apply knowledge and experience critically
so as to realize an informed sense of self,
family, community, and the diverse social world
in which we live.

SCIENCE, COMPUTER SCIENCE, MATH

* Use scientific modes of inquiry, individually and
collaboratively, to critically evaluate diverse
ideas, solve problems, and make evidence-
based decisions for self, family, community, and
the world.

e Gather, comprehend, and communicate
scientific and technical information to generate
new ideas, solutions, models, and further
questions confidently, and creatively.

The following curricula are governed by a formal
transfer agreement with a four-year university and
must be followed specifically to satisfy Associate of
Science Degree requirements: Childhood Education
and Family Studies Emphasis, Criminal Justice
Administration Emphasis, Athletic Training Emphasis,
Physical Education Emphasis, Engineering Emphasis,
Mathematics  Emphasis, and  Natural ~ Science
Emphasis.

GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS

Complete a minimum of 90 credit hours of specified
courses with a minimum Grade Point Average (GPA)
of 2.0 (‘C’) average or better. Complete 30 of the last
45 credits at Southwestern before the AS is awarded.

Complete elective courses to reach a total of 90
credits. The courses must be numbered 100 or above.
Career-technical courses may only be applied to
the AS degree in the following curricula which are
governed by formal transfer agreements with four-year
universities and are part of a current, formal transfer
agreement with a four-year institution (see specific
catalog transfer pages). Career-technical courses
offered at community colleges in Oregon are identified
by specific alpha prefixes, see page 104.

Childhood Education & Family Studies Emphasis
Criminal Justice Emphasis

Athletic Training Emphasis

Physical Education Emphasis

Engineering Emphasis

Mathematics Emphasis

Natural Science Emphasis

Complete the graduation application process one

term prior to the term of completion (i.e., spring term
graduates must apply during winter term).

www.socc.edu



DISTRIBUTION REQUIREMENTS

GENERAL EDUCATION
Courses must be at least three (3) credits each complete six (6) credits each from the following ELECTIVES
REQUIREMENTS ) .
Related Area of Instruction Requirements.

WRITING ARTS AND LETTERS SOCIAL SCIENCES SCIENCE/MATH/ Students may take any
Nine (9) credit hours at a | Six (6) credit hours. Six (6) credit hours. COMPUTER SCIENCE college-level course that
level equivalent to WR121, Note: A second year foreign language Six (6 dit h ’ would bring total credits to
WR129 o S R123 o | moy be included, but not frt year ANTH101, 102, 103, 221, | Six (6) credithours 90 quarter hours.  Caroer
WR227. (Must complete 222,223,230, 231, 232 LABORATORY COURSES: and Technical Education
with a grade of 'C or | apr115, 116, 117, 131, | 107 81101, 102, 103; 142; 201, ;:ouTrPs]es r/zgy any be o.pplike]d
better) 132,133, 191, 192, 204, 205, | ECON201, 202 202, 203; 231,232,233, 234 | gusicesiod omohois. arome

206,225, 244,250,251,252, | £p149 258 esignaied empnasis [reas
SPEECH/ 253,254, 255,281, 282, 283, ' CHEM 221, 222, 223 which are  govered by
ORAL COMMUNICATION | 284, 285, 286, 291, 292 GEOG105 G201, 202, 203 agreements m‘horf;gfg;
One course taken from
SP100, SPT11, SP112, ASL201, 202, 203 HDFS140, 222, 229, 247 GS104, 105, 106, 107, 108 a current, formal transfer

SP217, SP218 or SP219

(Must complete with a grade
of 'C' or better)

MATHEMATICS

Four (4) credit hours of
college level mathematics
from MTH105 or higher,
excluding MTH211. (Must
complete with a grade of
'C' or better)

HEALTH, WELLNESS AND
FITNESS

PE185 (3 courses) or
One (3 credit course)
HE250 or PE231

(Must complete with a grade
of 'C' or better)

ENG104, 105, 106, 107,
108,109, 201, 202, 203, 204,
205, 206

GER201, 202, 203

HUM204, 205, 206

J 203, 205, 215, 217
MUP105

MUS101, 102,103, 111, 112,
113,201, 202, 203, 205, 206,
211,212,213, 261, 262, 263

PHL10T, 102, 103

SP100, 111, 112, 217, 218,
219, 220

SPAN201, 202, 203
WR214, 214T, 241, 242, 243

HST101, 102, 103, 104, 201, PH201, 202, 203; 211, 212,

202, 203, 240 213

PS201, 202, 203 OTHER APPROVED COURSES:
PSY100, 201, 202, 203, 228, | BI140, 149
231,237,239, 240 BOT201

SOC105, 204, 205, 206, 208, CHEM110

210, 213, 221, 243
CS160, 161, 162, 261

WS101
ENGR111, 112,201, 202, 203,
211,212,213
G146, 207, 220, 221, 246,
291

MTHT105, 111, 112, 212, 213,
231, 232, 241, 242, 243, 251,
252, 253, 254, 255, 256, 260,
265

agreement with a four-year
institustion  (see  specific
catalog  program  page).
Career technical courses
offered  at  community
college are identified by a
specific alpha prefixes, see
page 104.

Note: A maximum of nine (9) credits
of PE185 may be applied to the AS
degree.

Three (3) credit hours of PE185 may
be granted toward an Associate
Science degree for completion of
military basic training. A copy of
the military transcript or DD-214 is
required.

Courses numbered 199/299 will
qualify as elective credit only.

Under federalfinancial aid guidelines
a maximum number of 45 credits is
allowed for basic, developmental, or
supportive courses.

www.socc.edu
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Associated Student Government
Southwestern Oregon Community College
By-Laws

Section [
Implementation, Adoption, and Repeal of By-Laws:

1. The By-laws shall be the means whereby the precepts of the Constitution are
implemented.

2. All the By-laws are subject to revisions at any time deemed necessary and shall be
subject to the approval of the ASGSWOCC.

3. In order to be passed, the By-laws must be approved by a three fourths vote of the
ASGSWOCC. Once a by-law is passed, it shall take effect immediately, except in the
case of Section VIII.

a. When a change is made to Section VIII, Duties and Responsibilities of the
Executive Cabinet and Directors, it shall take place after the last day of classes
spring term.

Section I1
Quorum:
1. Quorum is defined as fifty percent of the voting members of ASGSWOCC plus one.
a. Voting members are those who are executives, directors, and senators.

Section 11
Appropriations:
1. No funds or monies of the ASGSWOCC are to be donated, spent, or contributed to
any organization or concern not directly affiliated with the Southwestern Oregon
Community College district, students, faculty, staff, or campus.

Section IV
Student Body Office Eligibility:

1. All compensated members of ASGSWOCC shall be registered for, and maintain, at
least 12 credits for each term that he/she is in office.

2. All members of ASGSWOCC shall maintain a 2.5 accumulative GPA while in office.

3. No current member of the Southwestern Oregon Community College classified staff
bargaining unit, faculty bargaining unit, supervisor, administrator, or confidential
employee shall be allowed to run for or hold any student body office.

Section V
Terms of Office:
1. The term of office of members of ASGSWOCC shall be defined as the last day of
classes spring term through the last day of classes of the following spring term.
2. A single person can only hold a compensated ASGSWOCC position for two years.
3. All compensated members of ASGSWOCC shall be required to serve a minimum of
twelve office hours a week.

Last updated September 2011 Page 1



Section VI
Judicial, Administrative, and Legislative Actions:
1. Judicial
a. The Judicial Board is responsible for deciding if the by-laws and/or election
code have been violated, or any other misuse of student resources.
b. The President, Vice President, and Secretary will make all judicial

interpretations.
1. A two-thirds majority of ASGSWOCC can over-rule the judicial
decision.

2. Administrative
a. Administrative actions are to enforce the decisions made by the Judicial
Board.
b. Administrative Actions are to be enforced by the Executive Cabinet.
3. Legislative
a. Legislation may be drawn to the attention of ASGSWOCC by any member of
ASGSWOCC through petitions bearing the signatures of 25 regularly enrolled
students of SWOCC.
Section VII
Executive Cabinet:
1. The Executive Cabinet will set into operations the duties and tasks directed by the
President, in accordance with the goals established for the year.
2. The Executive Cabinet shall consist of the President, Vice President, and Secretary.

Section VIII
Duties of the President shall include but not be limited to:
1. The President shall be an advocate for all students on campus.
2. The President shall preside at all meetings of the ASGSWOCC
a. The President is responsible for preparing the agenda prior to the weekly
ASGSWOCC meeting.
3. The President is responsible for being the liaison between the students, the
administration, and the Board of Education.
4. The President is an ex-officio member of the Board of Education and is responsible
for keeping the board informed of students’ needs and rights
The President shall be the Faculty Senate Representative from ASGSWOCC
6. The President shall exercise all right of the office including:
a. Appointing and dissolving committees;
b. Vetoing actions not in the best interest of the students
1. The President cannot veto his or her removal from office.
ii. A presidential veto can be over-ridden by a three-fourths vote of the
ASGSWOCC
7. The President shall provide the leadership in the development and maintenance of all
ASGSWOCC activities.
The President shall supervise and evaluate the work of the Executive Cabinet.
9. The President shall assume other duties as needed.

b

>
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Duties of the Vice President shall include but not be limited to:

1.
2.

3.

hd

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.
17.

The Vice President shall be an advocate for all students on campus.

The Vice President shall assume the office of the President if the office is vacated
before the term has expired.

The Vice President shall assume the responsibilities of the Secretary if the office is
vacated before the term has expired, until a new Secretary is put into office.

The Vice President shall preside at ASGSWOCC meetings and all other functions at
the request of the President.

The Vice President shall be the liaison between the OCCSA and ASGSWOCC
Attend the monthly OCCSA board meetings and report back to ASGSWOCC what is
going on.

a. Has the authority to make decisions at these meetings that are in the best
interest of Southwestern Oregon Community College.

b. Stay up to date with what is going on around the state between OCCSA board
meetings.

The Vice President shall be the official Southwestern Oregon Community College
student representative and contact regarding Federal and State legislative issues, the
Oregon Community College Student Association, statewide concerns, and business
relating to community college students in general.

The Vice President shall work to promote voter registration and civic activism within
the student body.

The Vice President shall coordinate all election and selection committees.

a. The President shall assign another member of ASGSWOCC to coordinate the
election or selection committee if the Vice President is running for office or is
being screened by the selection committee

The Vice President shall be responsible for reviewing the ASGSWOCC constitution
and by-laws over the course of the year to see if there are changes that should be
made to benefit ASGSWOCC.

The Vice President shall study ASGSWOCC policy and make recommendations for
amendments, addendums, and new policy to facilitate the effective operation of
Associated Student Government.

The Vice President shall be the ASGSWOCC representative on the Student Affairs
Committee.

The Vice President shall be knowledgeable of Roberts Rules of Procedure.

The Vice President shall assume other duties as needed.

Duties of the Secretary shall include but not be limited to:

1.
2.

3.

The Secretary shall be an advocate for all students on campus.

The Secretary shall be responsible for recording and publishing minutes and official
documents for the ASGSWOCC.

The Secretary shall keep a record of documents in the office in a location which the
public can view and utilize.

The Secretary shall be responsible for attending to all necessary ASGSWOCC
correspondence.
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10.

11.

12.

The Secretary shall comprise a binder containing written and photographic
documentation of all events sponsored by ASGSWOCC, as well as all minutes,
agendas and any flyers created for events.

The Secretary shall deposit all monies collected from recreational equipment and
shall initial the receipt.

The Secretary is responsible for making all necessary bank deposits regularly and
intact to the college cashier.

The Secretary is responsible for maintaining and presenting finance reports to the
ASGSWOCC at the beginning of every month during the school year.

The Secretary is responsible for preparing the fiscal budget for the ASGSWOCC for
the year following his/her term of office with the assistance of the ASGSWOCC
Advisor.

The Secretary must consult with the ASGSWOCC Advisor for the purpose of having
all financial records reviewed each year.

The Secretary shall be the ASGSWOCC representative on the Academic Affairs
Committee.

The Secretary shall assume other duties as needed.

Duties of the Sustainability Director shall include but not be limited to:

1. Shall be an advocate for all students on campus

2. The Sustainability Director shall be an advocate for all students on campus.

3. The Sustainability Director shall be in charge of the up-keep of the campus
recycling bins.

4. The Sustainability Director shall be in charge of the proper disposal of recyclable
goods on campus.

5. The Sustainability Director shall be in charge of the collection of funds from
recyclables.

6. The Sustainability Director shall be an advocate for campus and community
sustainability.

7. The Sustainability Director shall be knowledgeable in community recycling
efforts.

8. The Sustainability Director shall be the ASG spokesperson to the Sustainability
Committee.

9. The Sustainability Director will serve as a voice for the student body.

10. The Sustainability Director shall assume other duties as needed.

Duties of the Clubs Director shall include but not be limited to:

1.
2.
3.

4.
5.

Shall be an advocate for all students on campus

The Clubs Director shall be the liaison between campus clubs and ASGSWOCC
The Clubs Director shall attend at least one meeting or activity of each recognized
club.

The Clubs Director shall be responsible for all campus club functions that occur.
The Clubs Director shall be responsible for communicating with all clubs.
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1.

12.

13.

14.

The Clubs Director shall be responsible for working with the ASGSWOCC Advisor
to create a training session during fall term.

The Clubs Director shall be responsible for organizing a Clubs Rush by the third
week of fall, winter, and spring term.

The Clubs Director shall be responsible for having Clubs Charter/Renewal forms
available for those who want them.

The Clubs Director shall be responsible for filing all paper work of Campus Clubs.

. The Clubs Director shall be responsible to maintain a record of all financial

transactions between clubs.

The Clubs Director shall be responsible for maintaining the club’s board in the
Empire Hall lobby.

The Clubs Director shall be responsible for reviewing the clubs formation and
funding process yearly, to see if any revisions need to be made.

The Clubs Director shall be responsible for organizing a thank-you for all club
advisors and 1 member of the club.

The Clubs Director shall assume other duties as needed.

Duties of the Activities Director shall include but not be limited to:

1

2.
3
4,

W

8.

Shall be an advocate for all students on campus

The Activities Director shall plan and organize events.

The Activities Director shall plan and organize annual events.

The Activities Director shall coordinate with campus entities regarding campus
events.

The Activities Director shall sit on the Arts and Lectures Committee.

The Activities Director shall work in conjunction with the Coordinator of Student
Life and Events.

The Activities Director shall supply a tentative monthly activity calendar to be
distributed at the beginning of each month.

The Activities Director shall assume other duties as needed.

Duties of the Communications Director shall include but not be limited to:

1.
2.

Shall be an advocate for all students on campus
The Communications Director shall be responsible for the publicity of all events
sponsored by ASGSWOCC.

a. Publicity needs to be done at least two weeks in advanced.

b. Ifan event is planned within two weeks of the date of the event, publicity

should happen as soon as the date is set.

The Communications Director shall be the liaison between ASGSWOCC and the
press.
The Communications Director shall be the spokesperson for ASGSWOCC.
The Communications Director shall work in conjunction with the person in charge of
outside media.
The Communications Director shall update the ASGSWOCC website appropriately
and promptly.
The Communications Director shall take written and photographic documentation of
all events sponsored by ASGSWOCC.
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8. The Communications Director shall be the liaison between the departments.
9. The Communications Director shall assume other duties as needed.

Duties of the Volunteer Service Director shall include but not be limited to:

1. Shall be an advocate for all students on campus

2. The Volunteer Service Director shall be responsible for coordinating community
service type activities.

3. The Volunteer Service Director shall be responsible for developing at least one
Volunteer Service Project per term.

4. The Volunteer Service Director shall be responsible for partnering with Coos Bay
Community non-profit and charity organizations.

5. The Volunteer Service Director shall create and maintain a list of all non-profit and
charity organizations in the community.

6. The Volunteer Service Director shall work in conjunction with the Service Learning
coordinator or the Coordinator for Student Life and Events.

7. The Volunteer Service Director shall assume other duties as needed.

Duties of the Curry Campus Director but not be limited to:

1. Shall be an advocate for all students on campus
. The Curry Campus Director shall be an advocate for all students on campus.

3. The Curry Campus Director is responsible for being the liaison between the Curry
Campus and the Coos Campus. Ensuring both campuses are kept abreast of what
each is doing.

4. The Curry Campus Director shall provide the leadership in the development and
maintenance of all ASGSWOCC activities on the Curry Campus.

5. The Curry Campus Director shall assume other duties as needed.

Section IX
Senators:

Senators do not receive a tuition waiver. Therefore they cannot be held to the same high
expectations as the officers and the directors. However, they are still required to carry themselves
in a professional manner that would best represent ASGSWOCC and SSWOCC. They also must
continue to be an active member of ASGSWOCC if they wish to continue to hold the title of
Senator. Senators may be an officer of any club. A senator may resign at any time without the
need for replacement.

1. In order to become a Senator you must complete all of the following.

a. Attend two or more consecutive meetings.

b. Be enrolled in a minimum of one class at SWOCC.

c. Be voted in by a majority of ASGSWOCC after previous stated requirements
have been met.

2. The Senators responsibilities are, but not limited to:

a. Shall be an advocate for all students on campus
b. Senators shall be voting members of ASGSWOCC
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c. Senators will assist other ASGSWOCC members as needed

d. Senators shall help promote ASGSWOCC and ASGSWOCC related events

e. Senators shall complete one project per term that has been approved by both
the ASGSWOCC Advisor and President.

Section X
Non-Participation:
1. Definition of Non-Participation.
a. Not meeting the requirements in section VIII of the by-laws.
b. Missing two consecutive ASGSWOCC meetings in any one term without
legitimate excuse.

c. Missing three ASGSWOCC meetings in a term.
d. Not making an attempt to help with or attend ASGSWOCC sponsored events.
e. Consistently missing office hours.
f. Failing to maintain a 2.5 accumulative GPA.
g. Failing to maintain at least 12 credits during the term.
h. Violating the ASGSWOCC constitution, by-laws, or any other ASGSWOCC
policy or guideline.
2. Non-Participation can be reason to put an ASGSWOCC member on probation.

Section X1
Probation:
1. An ASGSWOCC can be placed on probation for:
a. Violating the Constitution or by-laws
b. Falling under the category of Non-Participation
c. Not carrying one’s self in a matter befitting an ASGSWOCC member
2. Process for putting someone on probation:
a. Make a motion at an ASGSWOCC meeting citing why you feel someone
should be placed on probation.
b. If the motion receives a second then discussion ensues
c. Following discussion a vote takes place and a majority vote of the
ASGSWOCC can place a person on probation
d. If the motion did not receive a second then the motion is considered dead
e. Ifan ASGSWOCC member is placed on probation then they are to be given
written notice within 48 hours of being placed on probation
1. The notice should contain the reason for probation and what the person
needs to do to have the probation lifted
3. Once on probation you must:
a. Attend all ASGSWOCC functions and events
b. Address your probation for review at all ASG meetings until the probation has
been lifted
4. Failure to meet the requirements in sec XI.3 can lead to your dismissal from ASG.

Section XII
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Dismissal:
1. Reasons for dismissal
a. Being placed on probation twice in a term
b. Being placed on probation three times in a year
c. Missing three consecutive ASGSWOCC meetings
d. Missing four ASGSWOCC meetings in a term
e. Engages in behavior that is unbecoming of an ASGSWOCC officer
2. Dismissal process
a. Dismissal is automatic for section XII.1.a-d. No vote is needed just written
notification sent to the dismissed party.
i. The written notification shall contain reason for dismissal and a copy
of the appeals process.
b. Dismissal for section XII.1.e is to be handled by the ASGSWOCC advisor
i. Ifit comes to the attention of the ASGSWOCC advisor that a member
of ASGSWOCC is behaving in a matter that is unbecoming of
someone in the office then the advisor well have a meeting with this
person and decide if they should be dismissed. A written notification
must be given with a copy of the appeals process in the notification.
3. If someone feels they have been wrongfully dismissed, they have the right to appeal.
See section XIV.
Section XIII
Replacement:
1. If for any reason there is a position that’s office is vacated before the end of its term
then ASGSWOCC has the right to fill the vacated position
a. A vacated position does not have to be filled
2. If the position of President is vacated then you turn to the order of succession to fill
that position.
a. The order of succession goes Vice-President, Secretary, Clubs Director,
Communications Director, Volunteer Service Director, and Activities Director
3. If the Vice-President Position is vacated then you would use the same order of
succession starting with the Secretary.
4. The filling of all other positions are to follow the same process used for selection
directors

Section XIV
Appeals:

1. If amember of ASGSWOCKC feels that they have been wrongfully dismissed then
they have the right to appeal their case.

2. The first step is to write a letter to the Judicial Board stating why you were dismissed
and why you feel that you should be reinstated. This letter must be submitted within
48 hours of dismissal.

3. The Judicial Board well then review your letter and set up a meeting with all the
Judicial Board, ASGSWOCC advisor, and the person who submitted the appeal.

4. During the meeting the dismissed can plead their case and the judicial board is to
make a decision on whether or not to reinstate. For more information on the Judicial
Board refer to section VI.
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5. If the dismissed member is reinstated then they are again a member of ASGSWOCC,
if the appeal is declined then they are no longer a member of ASGSWOCC and
ASGSWOCC can now fill the vacant position.

Section XV
Admissions to ASGSWOCC Events:

1. All students and employees of the College have free entry into ASGSWOCC events
unless stated otherwise.

2. ASGSWOCC has the right to charge and entry fee into events if they choose

Section XVI
Election Procedure:

1. The Vice President shall establish an Election Committee consisting of at least three
members of ASGSWOCC.

a. If the Vice President is running for office then the President shall appoint
someone else as the head of the election committee.

b. No person running for office or working on a candidate’s campaign may be a
member of the election committee.

2. Election dates, times, and locations:

a. Election dates, times, and locations set by the Elections Officer (Vice
President or other person in charge) must be approved by the Elections
Committee and posted prior to making the nomination forms available.

b. The Elections Officer must abide by the following timeline when setting
election dates:

i. Nomination forms will be open for a period of two weeks.
ii. Campaigning will begin the following Monday and close that Friday.

3. Briefing:

a. After the candidate application deadline, the Elections Officer shall hold an
election briefing to inform all applicants on the elections code and elections
procedures. Each applicant shall receive a copy of the pertinent by-law
sections. The Elections Officer must make a reasonable attempt to inform
candidates of any changes made to the By-laws which will go into effect prior
to the announcement of the winners.

4. Voting: At least one polling place shall be open to voters a minimum of five hours per
day for three consecutive days and shall be under the supervision of the Student
Activities Office and the Elections Officer.

a. No person who is running for office will be allowed to work in the polling
area(s).

5. Poll workers must follow the following procedures

a. Confirm that the voter is a registered student at Southwestern Oregon
Community College.

b. Check off person’s name on the list obtained from the Registration Office.

c. Instruct voter to place ballot into ballot box (ballots may not be touched after
being marked until the time of counting.)

d. Be on the Elections Committee or selected by the Elections committee.
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6. Any write-in vote shall be considered valid if the vote is cast for an ASGSWOCC
student.
7. Counting Ballots:

a. The ballots will be counted by the Ballot Tallying Board, which will consist of
a minimum of two Election Committee members and a representative of the
Student Activities Department.

b. Each candidate may have one observer present during vote counting.

1. Observers must be silent and must not obstruct the counting process in
any way. Suspected violations should be reported to the Elections
Officer. Final tabulations must be validated by each member of the
Ballot Tallying Board obtaining the same results.
Section XVII
Election Code:
1. Nomination Petition/Candidate Status:

a. [Each applicant for an Executive Cabinet position is required to submit a
nomination petition containing 50 ASGSWOCC student signatures by the
deadline established by the Elections Officer.

b. The nomination petition must be an official ASGSWOCC elections form.
Upon the submission and validation of the nomination petition, applicants
become official candidates for ASGSWOCC elected offices.

¢. Nomination signatures collected prior to the elections briefing shall be declared null
and void.

2. Campaigning:
a. In campaigning for office, a candidate shall not spend more than $50.00 on
his/her campaign.
b. Campaign material must follow the southwestern posting policy.
1. Posters shall be no larger than 28 inches by 22 inches
il. A maximum of fifty posters per candidate will be permitted.
iii. Printed flyers will be allowed.
c. No outside sound equipment (including horns or other noise-making devices)
will be used on or in cars by the candidates or on behalf of the candidates.
d. No campaigning will be done on election days within visibility of the voting
booths so as not to impede the voting process in any way.
e. All campaign materials must be removed from the polling area prior to
opening the election booths
f. Candidates are responsible for removing all publicity on campus within one
week of the election results being announced.
3. Those Running Non-Official (Write-in) Campaigns:
a. Individuals who are not officially recognized candidates may not use the word
“candidate” in their publicity. All such publicity will be taken down.
b. Those running non-official campaigns are responsible for following all By-
laws except those pertaining to submission of a nomination petition.
4. Violations:
a. Violations of the Elections Code by a candidate may disqualify him or her
from the election.
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i.  Written complains must be submitted to the Elections Officer and will
be addressed by the Elections Committee.

Section XVIII
Election Challenge Process:
1. The Elections Committee will conduct a hearing upon submission of a written

complaint.
a. For this to occur, one of the following two rules must be met with no
exceptions:
i. Challenge of the voting process must be filed prior to the beginning of
the tallying process

ii. Challenge of the tallying process must be filed prior to the
announcement of the winner.
b. Any challenge of the election process must be registered in writing to a
member of the Elections Committee.
2. The Elections Committee will convene as soon as possible thereafter to make a ruling
on the challenge.
3. The Elections Committee must determine the following by a simple majority vote:
a. If aviolation has occurred.
b. What the violation is.
c. If apenalty is appropriate.
d. What, if any, should the penalty be.
4. A written copy of the Elections Committee decision must be submitted to the person
accused of the violation.
a. The accused person may request a hearing if he/she is not satisfied with the
Elections Committee decision.
i. The hearing would then go before the Judicial Board

Section XIX
Filling of Directors Positions:

1. The first order of business for the Executive Cabinet is to select their directors for the
following year.
2. The selection process is as follows
a. Applications have to be made available and ASGSWOCC has to do what they
can to promote the fact that they are looking to fill a position.
b. Those interested in the position must have at least 10 days to turn in their
applications.
c. Every person who fills out an application, and meets the requirements of the
term of office, is entitled to an interview
1. Interviews are to take place the week following application deadline.
d. Following the interviews the Executive Cabinet shall decide on which
directors to add onto ASGSWOCC.
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The Sports Teams Fiscal Impact on the Institution

Updated: February 12, 2011

2010-2011 Constants:
Tuition/credit 73 Full-time credits per athlete 45 Housing/Food Service Average 6,445
Fee/credit 18 Full-time classes per athlete 15 Books per Year 1,200
Fee/class 26 Online class per athlete 1
Fee / online class 20 Tuition Waiver - 15 credits 1,095 CCSF per FTE 1,774
Discretionary Spending/month 237
Dual
One Soccer Soccer Basketball Basketball Cross Sport
Data per Sport Athlete Volleyball Men Women Men Women Softball Baseball Wrestling Track Country Cheer Golf Athletes Total
Number of Athletes 1 13 22 18 24 15 17 32 46 43 20 8 14 (22) 250
Credits for sport 45 585 990 810 1,080 675 765 1,440 2,070 1,935 900 360 630 (990) 11,250
Terms Tuition Waivers - count 1 24 33 33 24 24 33 33 48 42 30 12 24 N/A 360
Number of Housing Students 1 11 21 9 24 12 15 29 27 22 16 1 11 (17) 181
Calculations:
Tuition 3,285 42,705 72,270 59,130 78,840 49,275 55,845 105,120 151,110 141,255 65,700 26,280 45,990 (72,270) 821,250
Fees (per credit fee) 810 10,530 17,820 14,580 19,440 12,150 13,770 25,920 37,260 34,830 16,200 6,480 11,340 (17,820) 202,500
Fees (per class fee) 390 5,070 8,580 7,020 9,360 5,850 6,630 12,480 17,940 16,770 7,800 3,120 5,460 (8,580) 97,500
Fees (per online class) 20 260 440 360 480 300 340 640 920 860 400 160 280 (440) 5,000
Tuition Waivers - Value (1,095) (26,280) (36,135) (36,135) (26,280) (26,280) (36,135) (36,135) (52,560) (45,990) (32,850) (13,140) (26,280) N/A (394,200)
Housing/Food Service 6,445 70,895 135,345 58,005 154,680 77,340 96,675 186,905 174,015 141,790 103,120 6,445 70,895 (109,565) 1,166,545
Books 1,200 15,600 26,400 21,600 28,800 18,000 20,400 38,400 55,200 51,600 24,000 9,600 16,800 (26,400) 300,000
Estimated Value of CCSF FTE 1,774 23,062 39,028 31,932 42,576 26,610 30,158 56,768 81,604 76,282 35,480 14,192 24,836 (39,028) 443,500
2010-2011 Budget for Sport: (44,781) (40,750) (37,160) (46,414) (44,815) (36,382) (44,308) (40,347) (46,540) (24,489) (7,847) (15,559) N/A (429,392)
Total: 12,829 97,061 222,998 119,332 261,482 118,430 151,301 345,790 425,142 370,857 195,361 45,290 133,762 (274,103) 2,212,703
Discretionary Spending 2,370 30,810 52,140 42,660 56,880 35,550 40,290 75,840 109,020 101,910 47,400 18,960 33,180 (52,140) 592,500
10-months
Summary Information: Summary Information without Housing/Food/Books: Sports Program Total Budget:
Total Tuition & Fees: 1,126,250 Total Tuition & Fees: 1,126,250 Total of Sports Budgets: 429,392
Total Tuition Waivers (394,200) Total Tuition Waivers (394,200) Athletic Supervision: 212,813
Total Housing/Food Service 1,166,545 NWAACC Playoffs: 50,000
Total Books 300,000 Total: 692,205
Total Value of CCSF FTE 443,500 Total Value of CCSF FTE 443,500
Total Budget for Sports (429,392) Total Budget for Sports (429,392)
Athletic Supervision & Playoff Budget (262,813) Athletic Supervision & Playoff Budget (262,813)
Total Value to Institution: 1,949,890 Total : 483,345
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INTRODUCTION

This handbook has been prepared by the Director of Athletics for the purpose of
clarifying the policies, procedures, and guidelines of the Athletic Department as they
relate to coaches and individuals involved in the Athletic program. Hopefully it will
clarify areas of maximum concern and provide a better understanding of the Athletic
policies at Southwestern Oregon Community College.

IT'S EVERY ATHLETES RESPONSIBILITY TO
READ THIS HANDBOOK THROUGHL Y

~
S

——/
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ATHLETIC DEPARTMENT STAFF
2010-2011

**All numbers dial 541-888-#### (ext)**

Administration
Athletic Director John Speasl Ext. 7208 jspeasl@socc.edu
Athletic Secretary Tina Woodworth 7452 twoodworth@socc.edu
Athletic Trainer Kelly Leavitt 7157 kleavitt@socc.edu
Equipment Room Glenda Cottrell 7346 gcottrell@socc.edu
Coaching Staff
Volleyball John Speasl 7208 jspeasl@socc.edu
Women’s Soccer Cole Brandeburg 7801 cbrandeburg@socc.edu
Men’s Soccer Ray Fabien 7347 rfabien@socc.edu
Cross Country Dan Neal 7334 dneal@socc.edu
Women'’s Basketball Mike Herbert 7705 mherbert@socc.edu
Men'’s Basketball Trevor Hoppe 7279 thoppe@socc.edu
Cheer / Dance Kallie Mill none kmill@socc.edu
Wrestling Adam Whitlatch 7228 awhitlatch@socc.edu
Softball Megan Corriea 7207 mcorriea@socc.edu
Baseball Daniel Esposito 7348 desposito@socc.edu
Track & Field Dan Neal 7334 dneal@socc.edu
Golf Ray Fabien 7347 rfabien@socc.edu
Other Numbers
First Stop 7352
Counseling & Testing 7405
Driving Test 7250
Switchboard 2525
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This is important information that you may have turned in with your Athletic Packet:

This packet of materials contains several forms that need to be completed so you may participate in the
athletic program at the college. Please be sure all forms are complete and returned to your coach on or
before the first day of practice.

THE PACKET INCLUDES:

PAGES 1-7 to ATHLETIC DEPARTMENT

Page Description Instructions (IMPORTANT—READ!!!)

1 Index (Athletic Dept.) Index with instructions for completing each page. PLEASE COMPLETE BASIC
INFORMATION BELOW. This information MUST be completed in order
to qualify to be eligible.

2 Eligibility Rules / Read ALL information and sign. Sign bottom for release of transcript

Required Signatures information.

3-4 Questionnaire READ BOTH SIDES, COMPLETE and SIGN both areas on bottom-

NOT WRESTLERS!!! | reverse page. EVERYONE MUST SIGN/DATE BOTH SPACES ON PAGE 4!

5 NWAACC Tracer To be completed by students who attended another school(s) after graduation.

NOT WRESTLERS!!! | Please complete one form for each school. MUST COMPLETE IF YOU ARE A
TRANSFER EVEN IF YOU DID NOT PLAY SPORTS!!
6-7 NJCAA Forms Wrestlers Only! (Not for NWAACC sports)

YOU MUST ALSO REQUEST AN OFFICIAL TRANSCRIPT (for each college attended)

TO BE MAILED HERE:

ATTN: TRANSCRIPT EVALUATOR
SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE
1988 NEWMARK AVE. COOS BAY, OR 97420

Pages 8-16 to Athletic Trainer
8

INDEX Index with instructions for completing each page.

9 Risks and Hazards Read and sign.

10 Immunization Record Complete, sign and ATTACH IMMUNIZATION RECORD!

11 Verification of Read and sign.
Coverage

12 Acknowledgment of Complete and be sure to have insurance policy holder sign if other than
Athletic Injuries Policy | yourself.

13-15 | Health History & Complete ALL areas. ATTACH front and back of INSURANCE CARDS!
Physical PHYSICAL must be completed AFTER July 1% by a licensed medical provider.

16 HIPAA Read and sign.

Remember: All forms must be completed and returned to the athletic dept. on or before the
first day of practice.

¢ If you have any questions about the physical, please contact your coach.

e If you have any questions about the insurance information or coverage, contact the Athletic
Trainer at (541) 888-7157.

e Any other general questions about your Athletic Packet, please contact the Athletic Secretary at
(541) 888-7452.
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NOTICE

Anyone caught falsifying departmental information will be dealt with accordingly up to
ineligibility and/or expulsion at Southwestern Oregon Community College.

Examples of departmental information:

1. Athletic Redbook Forms
2. Tracer Reports
3. Registration and Add/Drop Forms —c C €
4.  Transcripts @ l — ‘
_
5. Grade Reports T
—®
(
o——

Make sure you don’t repeat the same

classes to count for credit. All classes must
have different numbers and titles.
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VIOLATION OF ATHLETIC DEPARTMENT & NWAACC / NJCAA RULES
***Qverview but not comprehensive***

If the coach alleges a violation of the Athletic Department rules and regulations, or of
his/her own rules and regulations, he/she may suspend or expel the student/athlete from
the team.

General Department Rules:

1. Attend all practice sessions.

2. Maintain 12 credits per term with a 2.0 GPA.

3. Comply with all team training and conduct rules at home and while
traveling.

4. Must perform all team and individual athletic duties designated by the

coaching staff.

5. Must get coaches permission to drop a class.

6. Must notify coach within one day of any missed classes.

7. Must report and file an accident report to the Athletic Trainer after an
injury.

8. Must coordinate medical coverage with Administrative Services after an
injury.

Each individual coach may have their own set of rules, in addition to the above
stated rules.

If an athlete does not meet the following NWAACC rules, they will become ineligible for
competition.

Termed the 12-12-12-36+rule, NWAACC athletes must be enrolled for 12 credits
during each quarter when participating, complete 12 credits in the quarter prior to
participating, and complete 36 credits prior to competing in a second year in the
same sport. In addition, to participate a second season, they must maintain a 2.00
cumulative GPA.

Summer School:

Students completing less than 12 credits in the spring may add completed summer credits
to a preceding quarter to accumulate a minimum of 12 quarter credit hours and/or may us
them towards their accumulation of their 36 quarter credit hours for the 2" year of
participation. Summer school credits can also be used to increase the GPA to a 2.00 GPA.
However, the grade point for ALL summer school quarter credit hours attempted must be calculated into
the cumulative grade point average.

Red Shirt Years:
1. Red Shirt years are not automatic if you are injured during season.
. The code book is very specific as to who can qualify for a red shirt year.
. See your coach and the Athletic Director as soon as possible after your injury.
. Find out if you qualify to get your eligibility reinstated.
. DO NOT WAIT! It is important to get this process started as soon as possible

2
3
4
5
Violation.stu/Student Handbook/08.06.09
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ACADEMIC RESPONSIBILITY

It is important that all student-athletes accept the responsibility for their class work and

grades.

Suggestions:
1.

Attend all of your classes. (Go to bed then get up and go to class.)
College is drastically different than high school, your mom and dad are not
here to get you going.

Attendance does matter! Even if the instructor doesn’t take roll,
attendance is important. Attending class is one of the factors that
improves student success.

Turn in assignments. Dedicate the right amount of time in your
day/evening to get tomorrow’s work done.

When traveling for athletic contests, let your instructors know ahead of
time that you will be gone. Attend all of your classes possible on the day
you leave.

If you are going to be gone, get the assignments ahead of time and get
them turned in ahead of time. Instructors will appreciate your concern for
their class.

Instructors are not required to give you an excused absence for games,
go to them before you miss their class and see if you can arrange a
make-up situation.

Know your standing in each class. Keep track of your assignment grades,
tests, points, etc., so that you know what your current grade is. Too
many students think that they are doing ok and end up finding out too
late that they are getting a low grade.

**REGISTER FOR CLASSES AS SOON AS POSSIBLE EACH TERM SO
YOU DON’T RISK BEING WAIT LISTED.

**WAIT LISTED CLASSES DO NOT COUNT TOWARDS REGISTERED
CREDITS FOR ELIGIBILITY PURPOSES.
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12.

10.

11.

**MUST READ**

ELIGIBILITY INFORMATION FOR ATHLETES

You must be registered in a minimum of 12 credit hours. If you start the season
registered for 12 credits then drop below 12 credits you are immediately ineligible. If
you participate in a game while you are below 12 credits, you will cause your team to
have to forfeit the game and the school will go on probation with the NWAACC.

If you enroll in a class but do not attend the instructor has the right to have you
administratively withdrawn without notifying you to let you know about the withdrawal.

You must have passed a minimum of 12 credit hours the last quarter you were enrolled
in college.

Fall term athlete’s: (if you didn’t pass 12 credits—you can enroll in summer school!
See page 5 for details!)

You may not participate in one sport more than two seasons.
You must be registered within 20 days from beginning of the quarter.

To qualify for eligibility to participate in a second (2"") season of any sport, you must
have earned a minimum of 36 credit hours and maintain a cumulative GPA of 2.00
during any quarter of participation.

You must be a high school graduate or the class of which you were a member has
graduated.

You may be declared ineligible if during the sport season you represent any athletic
club, organization or team other than your college team.

If you are a transfer student, you must have an official transcript on file at
Southwestern from all previous colleges. You must complete the Tracer Form in
the Athletic Packet. Depending on your individual situation, you may need to petition
the NWAACC for eligibility. Make an appointment with Tina Woodworth in the Athletic
Department to find out if you need to petition.

If convicted for the use or sale of illicit drugs, including anabolic steroids, you will be
disqualified from participation in a NWAACC sponsored athletic event or activity for a
period of one year.

If you enter a game at any point in the season (pre-season included), you will be
charged with one year of competition and will have used one year of eligibility. There is
NO point after the initial entry in a contest that a student may change to a red shirt. If
you intend to red shirt for a year you must declare your intent before the competition
season begins.

Students may participate in athletic contests after the athletic department
has submitted an eligibility form to the league office. Check with your coach
to make sure you are eligible to compete.
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Driving Requirements

1. Must complete an Application to Operate Personal or College Vehicle for College
Business form and submit to Athletic Department at least 7 days prior to date
needed to drive. This must be done on an annual basis and resubmitted after
July 1% of each year. Forms are then forwarded to Administrative Services for
approval.

2. Students need to obtain a copy of their driving record from their home state and
attach it to their application.

3. Attach a copy of your driver’s license.

4. You must complete and pass a driver training with an authorized Southwestern
Public Safety Officer. After the application has been approved, Plant Services will
contact you to schedule your driver training. The training is only required to be
taken once and approval is kept on file.

5. Generally students may not transport other students in personal vehicles.

6. All drivers under the age of 25 will not be permitted to operate a rental vehicle.
(This is the rental company’s policy.)

7. You are not automatically approved to operate a college vehicle upon turning in
an application.

=0 ~

N0
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NWAACC & NJCAA ALCOHOL AND TOBACCO POLICY

O Alcoholic Beverages. The use or possession of alcoholic beverages by
any student participant during any NWAACC or member college practice,
game or athletic activity is prohibited and will result in the participant
being removed from that activity or road trip. (Also possible removal from
the team and expulsion from school.)

O Tobacco Use. The use or possession of any form of tobacco by any
participant (student, coach, faculty, staff or official) during any NWAACC
or member college practice, game or athletic activity is prohibited and will
result in the participant being removed from that activity.

THESE ARE SOME OF THE GENERAL RULES. THESE ARE NOT ALL OF THE
RULES. THESE ARE RULES THAT ARE FREQUENTLY INQUIRED ABOUT.

THERE 1S ALSO A SOUTHWESTERN OREGON CONDUCT CODE, REFER TO THE
SOUTHWESTERN STUDENT-HANDBOOK FOR COMPLETE DETAILS.
Drug and Alcohol Use Policy

Any use of alcohol or drug during an athletic season will subject the student athlete to
repercussions including but not limited to the foIIowing:

1. Extra work 15 Offense

2. Diversion program Minimum #1, 2
3. Treatment program 2" Offense

4. Game suspension Minimum #3, 4, 5
5. Reduction of athletic financial aid 3" Offense

6. Release from the team “#6

Individual programs may have additional policies for a particular team. Such policies will
be approved by the college and given to the student athlete in written form. The coach
will retain a copy of the policy signed by the student on file. The Athletic Department
reserves the right to random drug testing.

***THE ATHLETIC DEPARTMENT RESERVES THE RIGHT
TO DRUG TEST AT ANY TIME.***
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AFFILIATION

Southwestern Oregon Community College (SOCC) is a member of the Northwest
Athletic Association of Community Colleges (NWAACC) - Southern Region.

NWAACC address:
1800 E. McLoughlin Blvd
Vancouver, WA 98663

E-mail: nwaacc@clark.edu
Web site: www.nwaacc.org

Also, we are members of the National Junior College Athletic Association (NJCAA).
NJCAA address:
PO Box 7305
Colorado Springs, CO 80933-7305

Web site: www.njcaa.org

Affiliation.stu/Student Handbook/06.08.09 Page 11


mailto:nwaacc@clark.edu�

EQUIPMENT ROOM RULES

Each student is checked out equipment for games and practices. This equipment
belongs to the college. It needs to be returned within the time limit specified by each
coach. If equipment is not returned, you will be put on a hold list and will have to
return the items or pay for them. As long as you are on hold, you will not be able to
register and later will not be able to get a copy of your transcript.

Any piece of travel gear, vehicle, or motel room checked out to you, the team, or
rented for you or the team, is college property and may be subject to search by college
personnel or law enforcement officials at any time.

Student-Athletes are not allowed to enter the equipment room.

Check your own equipment back in to the equipment room. DO NOT ask someone
else to check it in for you. YOU are responsible for your equipment and YOU will be
charged if it is lost.

At the end of the season if you do not return everything checked out to you, you will be
put on a PE HOLD. If this occurs, you will be unable to obtain your official transcripts
and you will not be able to register until you return the items or the bill for all items is
paid in full.

Return items to the Equipment Room or Athletic Department and the PE HOLD will be
removed. If you do not have the items, you will need to pay your balance at the First
Stop and the PE HOLD will be removed.
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TUTORING /7 MATH /7 WRITING LABS

The coach for each sport will have rules that determine the amount of time students
are required to attend study labs.

TALENT GRANTS

1. The number of talent grants are limited per sport by the NWAACC and NJCAA.
Grants will be given to athletes at the coaches discretion. Athletic talent grants
are institutional financial aid, if the students do not meet financial aid office
standards, the grants can be withdrawn by the financial aid office and the
athletic department has no ability to stop the action.

2. If you transfer from another college, your grades from that college apply to
Southwestern’s financial aid requirements.

3. Talent Grants only cover SOUTHWESTERN online classes that have
tuition. They DO NOT cover FEES. On-line courses from other colleges

are not covered with Talent Grants.
4. Talent Grants are provided to the athletic
department by the college, therefore all
talent grant money is institutional money and ‘
is administered by the college financial aid
office. Student/Athletes must comply with all

financial aid office requirements and regulations. 6
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ATHLETIC WORK STUDY
If you were awarded an athletic job, you are required to do the following:
ERESHMAN:
e Go to: www.socc.edu, Campus Services, Financial Aid, Federal Work Study
e Click on FORMS, print and complete.
e Click on FEDERAL WORK-STUDY SEMINAR, complete and submit.

e Take your completed paperwork to the Financial Aid Office. (Remember to
bring your ID, Social Security Card, or Birth Certificate.)

RETURNING SOPHOMORES:

e Please go to the Financial Aid window to update your information and
paperwork... you do not need to do the quiz on-line again.

The Financial Aid Dept. will get you set up and will contact the Athletic Dept. when the
process is complete. The Athletic Dept. will then contact your coach giving you permission to
work. YOU ARE NOT ALLOWED TO WORK UNTIL THE ATHLETIC DEPT. GIVES YOU OR YOUR
COACH THE PERMISSION TO WORK. NO EXCEPTIONS.

e e e e e e e e e e s P s s e s P s s P s P s Pt s Pt P s Pt P Pt P s Pt s, Pt P s P Pt Pt P s, Pt Pt Pt P s P ot Pt

NOTES (**REQUIRED TO READ AND UNDERSTAND BEFORE YOU CAN WORK*%*):
v’ Athletic jobs are serious, as all jobs are. Please treat them as real jobs. You can be fired.
v If you are scheduled to work and refuse, you're job will be taken away.

v If a student can't work, they are required to contact the Athletic Department to give at least a
24-hour notice.

v" YOU ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR COMPLETING YOUR OWN TIMESHEET EACH DAY YOU
WORK!

v' Time sheets are due in the athletic department office the second to last day of each
month.

v' Pay day is the 10™. You may take a payroll advance. Payroll advances need to be turned in
by the 20™ and you can pick up your check on the 25™. Dates may change due to weekends
or holidays. See Tina on payroll advance slips and dates.

v/ Once a job is given out to a student and they leave the college for whatever reason, their job
will be abolished and will not be re-issued.

v Athletic Jobs will be assigned by the Athletic Department. They are scholarship
awarded and can’t just be applied for.

v Please also follow all rules in your STUDENT EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK!
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ATHLETIC AWARDS NIGHT
The athletic department will host an Athletic Awards Night each term, excluding
summer term. The awards night will be held in either the Lakeview Rooms in Empire
Hall or the Lobby of the Oregon Coast Culinary Institute the Tuesday before finals
week*. It will start at 4:00 pm* and refreshments will be served.

All student-athletes are encouraged to attend to see their fellow athletes receive
awards.

*Dates and times are subject to change - as much notice will be given as possible.
LETTER AWARDS

Letter awards will be given per coach’s discretion.
A Letter award is a certificate from the athletic department declaring athlete has earned
a letter in a particular sport.

SECOND YEAR ENGRAVED CROSS PEN
Each student lettering a second year in a particular sport will receive an engraved cross
pen. The fact that cross pens have a lifetime warranty is symbolic in that the athletic

department hopes that each student has had lessons/experiences that are with them
for life. “ONCE A LAKER ALWAYS A LAKER!”
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Policy # 9.042

STUDENT ATHLETE INSURANCE

It is the administrative policy of the Southwestern Oregon Community College
District that all students and all participants in intercollegiate athletics shall have primary
medical insurance.

The College's accident insurance shall be secondary coverage with a $1000
deductible.

INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETIC PROGRAM

Southwestern Oregon Community College (SOCC) provides secondary medical insurance
coverage to supplement a student athlete’s primary medical coverage in the event of
injury incurred during participation in SOCC's athletics program. Participation in
SOCC's athletics program includes competitions, practices, and classes specifically
required or associated with team membership.

SOCC shall not cover any individual who is not:

1 On acurrent team roster with proper clearance, and
2. A properly enrolled student of SOCC at the time of injury.

SOCC'’s secondary coverage begins when a student athlete's incurred injury care costs
exceed $1000 in one school year. The student athlete is responsible for paying the
deductible amount of hig’her insurance plan. SOCC'’s insurance will act as a secondary
plan only after $1000 of costs have been paid for by the student/primary insurer.

SOCC shall not provide coverage for expenses that exceed those defined as customary
and normal in-plan expenses. If an individual’s primary insurance carrier reduces
benefits below that which SOCC requires due to “out of plan” care, the individua will be
responsible for al additional charges.

SOCC requires that a student athlete maintain primary medical coverage:

That specifically includes coverage of intercollegiate athletics,

With a deductible of no more than $500,

That pays at least 70% of costs after deductible,

With a coverage cap of at least $25,000,

Until he or she ceases participation in SOCC athletics, or until fully cleared to
resume athletic activity if injured, whichever islonger.

aghrwdNPE
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SOCC permits a two-day period for the purposes of trying out for SOCC'’s athletics
teams. No prior medica clearance shall be required for purposes of trying out, and no
medical insurance coverage shall be extended by SOCC to an individual trying out.

SOCC reserves the right to refuse coverage of an injury if, upon joining ateam, an athlete
(intentionally or otherwise) fails to disclose a preexisting injury or any medical condition
found to contribute to the injury.

Adopted by Board of Education:

Policy #7.018 August 28, 1962

Revised: November 19, 1990

Changed to Administrative Policy January 22, 1996
Revised by Southwestern Administration:_June 2, 1997
Revised May 31, 2005
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Succeeding in college
10 common mistakes
to avoid

The secret to getting through
college isn’t so much brainpower
as will power and time
management, says E. Glenn Griffin,
professor emeritus of English at
Purdue University, who lists 10
common mistakes made by college
students.

Griffin encourages students to
view their college years as an
investment. “And it’s important to
protect that investment of both
time and money,” he remarks.

Griffin warns students never to
forget.

Mistake No. 1: Always being a
nice guy. “When your roommate
pops in and asks you to go see a
movie, and vyou are studying
according to schedule, you've got
to be able to say, ‘Tomorrow—
Maybe.””

Mistake No. 2: Cramming. “So
many students save it all up for the
night before the test. It's a
hazardous, illogical approach,”
Griffin cautions. Because repetition
is the heart of learning, he
recommends keeping up on every

class assignment. “There is no
substitute for daily preparation.”
No. 3: Going to class unprepared.
“If you haven’t read and reviewed
the material, you won’t be able to
appreciate the lecture. Instead of
integrating the lecture material
with what you already know, you’ll
just be trying to keep up.” Griffin
notes. He recommends getting
acquainted with the material to be
discussed before going to class.

No. 4: Reading chapters cold.
“Before reading a chapter, survey
it. Take 5 minutes to get the basic
idea, to have questions in mind as
you being to read.” This technique
ensures that the student becomes
involved.

No. 5: Missing daytime study
opportunities. “If you have an hour
between classes, use it. That’s one
hour less you’ll have to spend at
night.” Scattered study, Griffin
notes, is often better than
concentrated study. “The more
times you play with something, the
better you’ll remember it.”

.

No. 6: Failing to get help quickly. If
you're having problems
understanding a subject, go for
help immediately, Griffin
recommends. “Too often we
hesitate to ask for help because we
don’t want to appear ignorant.
That’s nonsense—the sooner you

go for help, the better.”

No. 7: Understanding the
importance of listening. “Students
often allow themselves to become
distracted—either by the
idiosyncrasies of the instructor or
by somebody’s purple ties. This
cuts your listening efficiency—and
college is 40 percent listening.”

No. 8: Failing to review or even
rewrite and organize lecture notes
dafter class. “Take advantage of
your thought power when the
material is fresh in your mind.”

No. 9: Underscoring passages
indiscriminately. “A  common
mistake is to underscore as you go
along; never underline until after
you're read the chapter and have
the big picture. Then go back and
underscore, selectively.”

No. 10: Neglecting to review.
Griffin recommends spending five
to ten minute at day’s end
reviewing what you’ve learned—
and devoting at least an hour to
review the prior week’s work. “This
is also a good time to plan the
following week’s study schedule.”

And while you’re studying, Griffin
adds, don’t forget to study your
professors are alike—get to know
their style, preferences and
idiosyncrasies, if possible.” If, for
instance, a professor is a stickler
for promptness, it helps to know
this before handling in a late
paper.
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These points were taken from an athletic publication at Montana State University.

( GO TO CLASS. IF YOU ARE REALLY ILL, NOTIFY YOUR INSTRUCTOR PRIOR TO
CLASS. BEING TIRED IS NOT ILL!

( MEMORIZE YOUR FAVORITE POEM.

( CALL YOUR MOM OR DAD JUST TO SAY HELLO.

( WHO IS YOUR ACADEMIC ADVISOR?

( THINK POSITIVE THOUGHTS!

( HOW OFTEN DOES YOUR STUDY GROUP MEET?

( APPRECIATE AND BE THANKFUL FOR WHAT YOU HAVE.
( DO YOUR LAUNDRY AND CLEAN YOUR ROOM.

( TAKE A SHORT STUDY BREAK, RELAX AND HAVE FUN!

( DON'T BELIEVE ALL YOU HEAR, SPEND ALL YOU HAVE, OR LOAF ALL YOU
WANT.

( IS YOUR DAILY PLANNER UP TO DATE?
( GOOD STUDY SKILLS ARE ESSENTIAL FOR SUCCESS.
( NEVER INTERRUPT WHEN YOU ARE BEING FLATTERED.

( GO TO CLASS!

Good Points.stu/Student Handbook/08.10.05 Page 18
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ATLAS

Articulation Transfer Linked Audit System

ATLAS (Articulation Transfer Linked Audit System)

ATLAS (Articulation Transfer Linked Audit System) is Oregon’s initiative to create a centralized degree audit and articulation program
that eases students’ progress from one Oregon school to another. Students can use this statewide system to see how course credits
transfer among community colleges and OUS universities, and to conduct degree audits online. This site provides information for the
development of Atlas.

Each public university and several community colleges have signed up to use the u.select software in order to create a
comprehensive statewide transfer system. To access the transfer tool, click here.

http://atlas.ous.edu/ 12/14/2011
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
’January 14,2011

- To the Southwestern Oregon-Community College District Board of Education: o

' .We have audited the accompanymg basrc fmancral statements of Southwestem Oregon Communlty College'
" District, the dlscretely presented component unit, and the aggregate remaining fund information, as of and for the
“year ended. June 30, 2010, as listed in the table of contents.” These-financial statements are the respon3|b|I|ty of

Southwestern Oregon Community College District's management Our respon3|blllty is to express. op|n|ons on; R

: these ﬁnanctal statements based on.our audlt e

" We conducted our audlt in accordance W|th audltlng standards generally accepted in the United States of Amenca R
“and the standards applicable to_ financial audits contained in -Government. Auditing: Standards issued by the .
- Comptroller General. of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain . ..
< reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes - -~
+ éxamining, on a test basis, evidence supportlng the amounts and disclosures in the ﬁnanmal statements An audlt,
also includes assessing the accountlng prmcnples used and significant estimates made by management, as well as

: ’evaluatlng the overall fmanmal statement presentatlon We belleve that our audlt provrdes a reasonable baS|s for’ B

,‘ln our oplnlon the fmanmal statements referred to above present falrly, in-all matenal respects the respectlve;

t_flnanCIal position of Southwestern Oregon Communlty College District,, the dlscretely presented component unit,.. - .

" and the aggregate remaining. fund information as of Jung 30, 2010, and the respective changes in financial posrtlon‘ o
.~ “and cash flows; where apphcable thereof for the year then ended in. conformlty wrth accountmg pnncrples generally;
o .vaccepted in the Unlted States of Amenca , S

‘In accordance WIth Government Audrtmg Standards we. have also |ssued our report dated January 14 2011 on’
. our con3|derat|on of Southwestern Oregon Communlty College District's lnternal control over financial- reportlng ‘and;

" our tests of its compliance with certaln provrsnons of laws, regulatlons contracts and grants, .and other atters. The e Q,

- purpose of’ that report is to descnbe the scope of our. testmg of mternal confrol- over financial reportmg and
. compliance and. the results of that testing, and not to provide an .opinion on the lnternal control over financial ' -
.-~ réporting or on’ compllance *That report is an. mtegral part of .an audit performed in accordance with Government’ .
o Audltlng Standards and should be read in conjunctlon w1th thls report ln consrdenng the results of our’ aud|t )

o Management’s Dlscus510n and Analysrs |s not a reqmred part of the basnc financial statements but is supplementat o
; mformatlon required by accounting prlncrples ‘generally accepted in the United ‘States of America. We applied "
certain limited . procedures, which consisted’ principally of inquiries of management regarding the ‘methods of .

, measurement -and presentatlon of the reqwred supplementary lnformatlon However we d|d not audlt the fv' L
'lnformatlon and express no oplmon on it. . . '

2
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Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the basic financial statements of Southwestern
Oregon Community College District, the discretely presented component unit and the aggregate remaining fund
information taken as a whole. The supplemental financial information, as listed in the table of contents, is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as listed in the table of contents, is also presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The supplemental financial information and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. Such supplemental financial information and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

&W&w /\/\ob//%//w é“S:M/

Hough, MacAdam & Wartnik, LL
Certified Public Accountants



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

This discussion and analysis of the Southwestern Oregon Community College District's (Southwestern)
financial activities for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010 should be read in conjunction with the financial
statements and the notes thereto, which follow this section.

Accounting Standards

The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial Statements
and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments” requires a comprehensive
look at the entity as a whole, along with recognition of depreciation on capital assets. GASB Statement
No. 35, “Basic Financial Statements and Management'’s Discussion and Analysis for Public Colleges and
Universities” requires that a comparative analysis be presented in the Management's Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A).

Financial Highlights

e A reduction in funding from the Community College Support Fund and other budgetary
considerations necessitated mid-year budget strategy revisions. Reducing spending for payroll
and materials and services below the budgeted amounts resulted in the College ending the year
in a relatively strong financial position.

e The total assets of Southwestern exceeded its liabilities at the close of fiscal year 2010 by
$16,704,640 (net assets). Of this amount, $3,877,123 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to
meet the college’s ongoing obligations to citizens, creditors, and employees.

e The College’s total net assets increased by $ 8,228,728. This increase was due to an investment
gain on net pension asset, capital improvements funded by “Go Oregon” Stimulus Projects for
Deferred Maintenance and Capital Renewal, principal payments on debt, and restraints on
expenditures.

e Southwestern’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $9,386,338.
The increase of $5,005,067 over the prior year is primarily due to borrowing for construction that
increased long term debt.

e Atthe end of the fiscal year, the General Fund had an unreserved fund balance of $1,303,717.

e The College’s student enroliment as measured by FTE increased for the 2009-2010 academic
year by approximately 2.5%. There was an 11% increase in full-time student FTE and a 23%
increase in part-time student FTE. A gap analysis was conducted during the winter of 2010 which
resulted in new and renewed efforts in the areas of Transitional Education and Community
Education and Workforce Development to build enrollment in these areas.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Southwestern’s basic financial
statements. The statements are comprised of the government-wide financial statements, fund financial
statements, and notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.




The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of
Southwestern’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. These financial statements
focus on the financial condition of the College, the results of operations, and cash flows of the College as
a whole. They are prepared on the full accrual basis of accounting. The government-wide financial
statements are comprised of the following:

e The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of Southwestern’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two being reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assets are indicators of the improvement or erosion of the Coliege’s financial
health, when considered along with other factors such as enrollment levels or condition of the
facilities.

e The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets presents the revenues earned
and the expenses incurred during the fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as
the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, i.e. the full accrual basis of accounting,
regardless of the timing of when the cash is received or disbursed. Thus revenues and expenses
are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods
(e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation). The utilization of long-lived assets is
reflected as depreciation, which amortizes the cost of the capital asset over the expected useful life.
Revenues and expenses are reported as either operating or non-operating, with operating revenues
primarily coming from tuition, grants, and contracts. State appropriations and property taxes are
classified as non-operating revenues. Because of the College’s dependency on state aid and
property tax revenue, this statement presents an operating loss, although net assets remain
positive.

e The Statement of Cash Flows presents information on cash flows from operating activities,
noncapital financial activities, capital financing activities and investing activities. It provides the net
increase or decrease in cash between the beginning and end of the fiscal year. This statement
assists in evaluating financial viability and the College’s ability to meet financial obligations as they
become due.

e The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide financial statements.

The fund financial statements are similar to what Southwestern has presented in the past. A fund is a
grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over the resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. Southwestern, like other state and local governments,
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All
of the funds at Southwestern can be grouped into three categories: governmental, proprietary, and
fiduciary. : ,

e Governmental funds. These are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund statements focus on near-term inflows
and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term
financing requirements. Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the
government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information. By doing so, readers
may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions.

Southwestern maintains six individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balance for the general fund, special revenue funds, debt
service fund, and the plant fund. Individual fund data for each of the special revenue funds is
provided elsewhere in this report.



Southwestern adopts an annual appropriated budget for all of its funds. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

e Proprietary funds. The College maintains two different types of propriety funds. Enterprise funds
are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements. Within this fund there are separate cost centers for the Bookstore, Newmark
Center Operations, Newmark Center Tenants, Student Housing, Dining Services, Conferencing,
Culinary Program, and Neighborhood Facility building. Internal service funds are an accounting
device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the College's various functions.
Southwestern uses internal service funds to account for its print shop, motor pool, and mail center.
Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type activities,
they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements.

e Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the College. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the College’s programs. The
accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

Financial Analysis of the College as a Whole

Analysis of the Statement of Net Assets

Southwestern's financial position at June 30, 2010 shows assets of $61,884,428, liabilities of
$45,179,788, and net assets of $16,704,640. The largest portion of Southwestern’s net assets reflects its
investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire
those assets that is still outstanding. The College uses these capital assets to provide services to. its
students; consequently these assets are not available for future spending. Although the College’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.




%

Assets 2010 2009 Change
Current:
Cash & cash equivalents $ 8,370,341 $ 852,689 881.6
Receivables 3,958,906 3,955,561 0.1
Prepaid expenses 131,522 42,491 209.5
Inventory 169,529 209,867 -19.2
Noncurrent:
Restricted cash 5,205 5,837 -10.8
Taxes receivable 445,038 218,549 103.6
Unamortized bond issuance costs 398,980 175,466 127 .4
Net pension asset 11,346,289 10,144,000 11.9
Capital assets (net of accum. Depreciation) 37,058,618 34,443,668 7.6
Total assets $ 61,884,428 $ 50,048,128 23.6
Liabilities
Current liabilities $ 3,269,155 $ 6,038,698 -45.9
Noncurrent liabilities, net of current 41,910,633 35,533,518 17.9
Total liabilities $ 45,179,788 $ 41,672,216 8.7
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 8,551,965 $ 10,714,743 -20.2
Restricted for pension bond obligations (1,658,711) (2,916,000) 43.1
Restricted for capital projects 5,934,262 1,019,624 482.0
Unrestricted 3,877,124 (342,455) 1232.2
Total net assets $ 16,704,640 $ 8,475,912 97.1

Current assets include cash and investments, accounts receivable from students, the State of Oregon,
and others, property taxes, prepaid expenses, and inventory. The College’s current assets of
$12,630,298 were sufficient to cover its current liabilities of $3,269,155. This represents a ratio of 3.86; a
key factor looked at by creditors to help determine an institution’s creditworthiness. The net pension
asset represents a prepayment to PERS on the College’s unfunded actuarial liability (UAL). This has
result in lower future employer payroll benefits rates. Southwestern’s largest noncurrent asset is its
investment in capital assets of $37,058,618 net of accumulated depreciation.

Current liabilities consist primarily of accounts payable, payroll and payroll taxes payable, deferred
revenues, compensated absences, and the current portion of long term debt.

The College’s investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, and equipment), less any related
outstanding debt used to acquire those assets, reflects approximately 51% of its total net assets. Those
assets are used to provide services to students; consequently they are not available for future spending.
Restricted net assets consist of amounts set aside for capital projects, student financial aid, grants and
contracts, and cash earmarked to pay capitalized interest on bonded indebtedness. Unrestricted net
assets are available for the continuing operation of the college.



The following graph shows the allocation of net assets at 6/30/10:

Net Assets as of June 30, 2010

Restricted
Assets
26%

Unrestricted
Invested in Assets
Capital 23%

Assets, net of
related debt
519%

Analysis of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets present the operating results of the
College as well as the non-operating revenues and expenses. Annual State appropriations and property
taxes, while budgeted for operations, are considered non-operating revenues according to generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP).



%

Operating Results for the year ended June 30 2010 2009 Change
Operating Revenues:
Tuition & fees (net of scholarship allowances) $ 4,408,164 $ 4,760,480 -7.4
Federal, state, and local grants & contracts 8,562,775 6,072,309 41.0
Auxiliary enterprises, including tuition and fees 5,929,829 4,291,463 38.2
Donations 283,528 35,526 698.1
Other operating revenue 688,940 657,254 4.8
Total operating revenues 19,873,236 15,817,032 256
Operating Expenses:
Instruction 8,708,763 8,722,834 -0.2
Instructional support 1,586,974 1,865,563 -14.9
College support 2,353,611 3,183,345 -26.1
Plant operations & maintenance 3,624,082 2,401,262 50.9
Student services 2,258,807 2,865,948 -21.2
Community services 2,143,776 2,680,627 -20
Student financial aid 1,711,492 1,506,549 13.6
Auxiliary enterprises 5,658,430 4,495,214 23.7
Early retirement costs 340,140 317,674 7.1
Depreciation 1,281,213 1,193,755 7.3
Total operating expenses 29,567,288 29,232,771 1.1
Net operating gain (loss) (9,694,052) (13,415,739) 27.7
Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):
State community college support 10,334,510 6,357,357 62.6
Other state sources 2,993,315 2,075,186 442
Property taxes 5,307,651 5,145,330 32
Investment gain (loss) on net pension asset 1,202,289 (2,894,096) 141.5
Disposal loss - (33,794) -
Interest and net investment income (loss) 46,595 57,273 -18.6
Interest expense (1,747,331) (1,794,657) 2.6
Total net non-operating revenues (expenses) 18,137,029 8,912,599 103.5
Net change in net assets 8,442,977 (4,503,140) 287.5
Net assets, beginning of year 8,475,912 12,377,807 -31.5
Prior period adjustments (214,249) 601,245 -135.6
Net assets, beginning of year, as restated 8,261,663 12,979,052 -36.3°
Net assets, end of year '$ 16,704,640 $ 8,475,912 97.1



The most significant sources of operating revenues for the College are federal, state, and local grants and
contracts (including financial aid), student tuition and fees, and auxiliary services such as Student
Housing or the Bookstore. Revenue from grants and contracts (including financial aid) were $8,562,775,
from tuition and fees were $4,408,164, from auxiliary enterprises were $5,929,829. The College received
a $250,000 donation of land for the Curry campus in 2010.

The largest non-operating revenue source is from the State of Oregon. Annually, the State appropriates
funding for community colleges. The College received $10,334,510 (including $2,262,731 related to fiscal
year 2009) for FTE reimbursement during fiscal year 2010. State funding for community colleges has
been decreasing in recent years, and it will decrease further for the next few years.

The following graph shows the allocation of revenues, both operating and non-operating, for the College:

Revenue Sources for Fiscal Year 2010

Auxiliary Other
Enterprises
15%

Property Taxes

13%
Investment

Gain
3%

Danations
1%

State
Community
College

Tuition & Fees
11%

Other State
Sources Federal, State,
7% Local Grants &
Contracts

22%

Operating expenses totaling $25,567,288 include salaries and benefits, materials and supplies, utilities,
scholarships, and depreciation. Instruction and instructional support represent the largest portion of total
expenses. The most significant non-operating expense is interest on long term debt.
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The following graph shows the allocation of expenses at the College:

Expenses for Fiscal Year FY10
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Analysis of the Statement of Cash Flows

This statement provides an assessment of the financial health of the college. Its primary purpose is to
provide relevant information about the cash receipts and cash payments of the college during a specific
period. The statement of cash flows also helps users assess the ability of the college to meet obligations

as they become due and the need for external financing.

%

2010 2009 Change

Cash Provided By (Used In):

Operating Activities $ (8,697,492) $(12,295,822) 342

Non-capital Financing Activities 18,567,079 13,496,416 31.6

Capital Financing Activities (2,399,162) (2,604,281) -4

Investing Activities 46,595 57,273 -18.6
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 7,517,020 (1,346,414) 658.3
Cash - Beginning of Year 858,526 2,204,940 -61.1
Cash - End of Year $ 8,375,546 3 858,526 875.6
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The major sources of funds included in operating activities include student tuition and fees, federal/state
financial aid, grants and contracts, and auxiliary enterprises. Major uses were payments made to
employees and suppliers, and student financial aid. State FTE reimbursement and property taxes are the
primary sources of noncapital financing. The GASB accounting standards require that we reflect these
sources of revenue as non-operating, even though the College’s budget depends on these revenues to
continue the current level of operations. The primary financing activities were the payment of principal
and interest on long term debt.

Budgetary Highlights

Southwestern adopts an annual budget at the fund level, which is under the modified accrual method of
accounting for governmental funds, and on the accrual basis of accounting for proprietary and fiduciary
funds. Transfers of appropriations between existing budget categories can be authorized by Board
resolution. The only significant changes between the original or Adopted Budget and the Adjusted
Budget include adjustments for transfers and for dining services.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The College’s investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2010 amounts to $37,058,618 net of
accumulated depreciation.  Investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements,
equipment, and art & historical treasures.

Long Term Debt
At the end of the fiscal year, Southwestern’s outstanding long term debt amounted to $43,141,355. Of

this amount, $196,355 represents capital leases payable, $42,745,000 is bonds payable, and $200,000 is
payable to the Foundation.

Southwestern borrowed $13,075,000 during fiscal year 2004 to reduce its unfunded actuarial liability
(UAL) with PERS. The monies were promptly given to PERS, and will result in lower employer rates in
the future.

The College advance refunded $8,815,000 of leases payable for the Newmark Center, Student Housing,
and the Performing Arts Center in fiscal year 2004 to take advantage of lower long term interest rates.

In June 2004 Southwestern borrowed $9,855,000 to construct a Culinary Arts building and a Student
Recreation center. Both projects have independent income streams available to pay principal and
interest on the obligations.

In March 2005 Southwestern borrowed $4,800,000 to construct Student Housing Phase IV. Student
Housing enables the Coliege to increase its student population from out of district, and support its
strategy of increased enroliments. As with the other student housing borrowings, rental payments from
the student occupants completely pay operations, maintenance, and debt service on the units.

The College advance refunded $9,290,000 of bonds payable for the Culinary Arts building, Student
Housing, Student Recreation Center, Dryvit, and the Performing Arts Center in fiscal year 2009 to take
advantage of lower long term interest rates. Bonds in the amount of $9,950,000 were issued.

In June 2010 Southwestern borrowed $6,115,000 using Federally Taxable Recovery Zone Economic
Development Bonds. These funds along with $2,300,000 from the Department of Community Colleges
and Work Force Development are being used to construct a new campus in Brookings, Oregon to be
completed Fall 2012. This is in response to increasing demand for educational services in Curry County
which encompasses the southern portion of the College District.
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Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 341 limits the amount of general obligation bonds which an Oregon
community college may have outstanding at any time to 1.5% of the true cash value of the taxable
property within the community college district. Southwestern has no general obligation bonds outstanding
at this time. However, it could issue approximately $90,000,000 of general obligation bonds and stay
within the limit. Obligations secured by lease payments and other non-general obligations are not subject
to the debt limitations described in this section.

The College has promptly met principal and interest payments on indebtedness when due. Additionally,
the College has no authorized but unissued bonds outstanding.

Component Unit

Included in the financial report is information for Southwestern Oregon Community College Foundation,
inc. The Foundation was incorporated on January 3, 1962, and registered as a separate non-for-profit
corporation with the State of Oregon. Their Articles of Incorporation establish that the purpose of the
Foundation is to support the college. The Foundation has a 501 (c)3 status under the provisions of the
internal Revenue Code, and is exempt from Federal Income Tax. Contributions to the Foundation are tax
deductible as defined by the IRS regulations. Bylaws govern the internal affairs of the Foundation. A
Board of Directors sets policies for Foundation operations.

The Foundation operates within a written agreement with the College that clearly defines Foundation
activities and establishes College support of the Foundation.

The Foundation receives, administers, and disposes of property given to benefit the College, coordinates
fundraising efforts, and assists in promoting the College to the public.

Financial information for the component unit is found in the financial statements in a discrete column.

Summary component unit information:

2010 2010
Current assets $ 257,148 Operating revenues $ 779,883
Non-current assets 2,267,053 Operating expenses 715,912
Total assets $ 2,524,201 Operating gain (loss) 63,971
Current liabilities $ 58,604  Non-operating revenue 201,242
Restricted net assets 1,356,664 Increase in net assets 265,213
Unrestricted net assets 1,108,933 Net assets - beginning of Year 2,200,384
Total liabilities & net assets $ 2,524,201 Net assets - End of Year $ 2,465,597

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget

The economic downturn has had a major impact on the College. The funds available to community
colleges from the Community College Support Fund have decreased dramatically. In addition, enroliment
has increased at Southwestern, but not as dramatically as at the community colieges in the more densely
populated areas of the state. FTE is a factor in the formula used to determine the distribution of the funds
from the Support Fund. As a result of smaller growth in FTE Southwestern has received a smaller
proportion of a smaller Support Fund. If the economy continues to be sluggish or worsens the State may
reduce funding even further mid-biennium. Budgeting challenges are exacerbated by diminishing,
unstable, and unpredictable funding from the Community College Support Fund.
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During one of the five special legislative sessions in calendar year 2002, in an attempt to balance the
State budget, the legislature passed SB1022. It cancelled the portion of the appropriation that it had
intended to pay to the seventeen community colleges in the last quarter of the fiscal year. This same
scenario is repeated at the end of each biennium. The State will withhold the April payment for the fiscal
year 2011. It will be paid to Southwestern on July 15, 2011. According to GAAP, the College must
recognize this as revenue in fiscal year 2011. This mechanism will put added pressure on the College’s
cash flow. Southwestern will continue to enhance revenues through enterprise activities in order to
provide funding stability to fulfill its vision statement which is “Southwestern leads and inspires lifelong
learning”.

Unfunded actuarial liability (UAL) in the Oregon Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) continues
to be an issue. Since Southwestern borrowed $13,075,000 to pay down its UAL to PERS, the employer
rate decreased dramatically. However, rates will rise in the foreseeable future because of PERS
investments and stock market fluctuations.

A new simplified tuition and fee structure was implemented FY07. This was done to enable students to
more accurately estimate the cost of attending Southwestern Oregon Community College while
generating approximately the same amount of revenue for the College. An assortment of class and
registration fees, including the technology fee, was replaced in FY07 by the new fee structure. Feedback
has indicated that students appreciate the fee structure because it is easier to calculate what their
charges will be.

Tuition and fees have been increased because of economic pressures on the College. Tuition increased
from $69 to $73 per credit. The per credit fee increased from $17 to $18. The per course fee increased
from $25 to $26. Tuition for the culinary program increased from $23,000 to $24,000 and housing rates
were increased.

In FYO7 the State of Oregon gave Southwestern $2,300,000 in capital construction monies for an
educational facility in Curry County and the State is holding the funds for the College until the facility is
constructed. Construction began in June 2010. This project will enhance educational opportunities for
students in Curry County.

Student Housing has reached full capacity and Oregon Coast Culinary Institute (OCCI) has experienced
enrollment growth nearly reaching capacity. Dining Services and Catering became part of OCCI
education program in FY10. These enterprise accounts are self-sustaining and showing a profit to be
shared with the general fund.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide an overview of Southwestern Oregon Community College’s
financial status. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report, or requests for
additional information, should be addressed to:

Business Office Director

Southwestern Oregon Community College
1988 Newmark Avenue

Coos Bay OR 97420
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SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2010

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Taxes
Accounts
Pledges
Prepaid expenses
Inventory

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash - pension and refunding bonds
Pledges receivable
Interest receivable
Long-term investments
Taxes receivable
Loan to primary government
Unamortized bond issuance costs
Net pension asset
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities
Compensated absences payable
Accrued interest payable
Nonrefundable deposits
Deferred revenues
Accrued early retirement benefits

Total current liabilities

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Primary Component
Government Unit

$ 8,370,341 $ 245,298
60,457 -
3,898,449 -
- 11,850
131,522 -
169,529 -
12,630,298 257,148
5,205 -
- 38,360
- 5,333
- 2,013,810
445,038 -
- 200,000
398,980 -
11,346,289 -
37,058,618 9,550
49,254,130 2,267,053
61,884,428 2,524,201
889,913 58,604
681,018 -
641,273 -
92,384 -
164,334 -
457,592 -
342,641 -
$ 3,269,155 $ 58,604




SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (Continued)
June 30, 2010

Noncurrent liabilities:

Portion due and payable within one year:
Bonds payable
Capital leases payable

Portion due and payable after one year:
Bonds payable
Capital leases payable
Loan payable to component unit
Unamortized bond discounts and premiums

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Investment in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted assets
Restricted for pension bond obligations
Restricted for capital projects

Temporarily restricted

Permanently restricted

Unrestricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets
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Primary Component
Government Unit

$ 1,150,000 $ -
103,686 -

41,595,000 -
92,669 -
200,000 -
(1,230,722) -

41,910,633 -

45,179,788 58,604

8,651,965 -

(1,658,711) -
5,934,262 -
- 870,636

- 486,028
3,877,124 1,108,933

16,704,640 2,465,597

$ 61,884,428 $ 2,524,201




SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLL.EGE DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Operating Revenues

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Student tuition and fees, net of scholarship allowances of $1,238,066

Federal grants and contracts

State and local government grants and contracts
Nongovernment grants, contracts, and special fees
Auxiliary enterprises, including tuition and fees

Food services

Bookstore, net of scholarship allowances of $235,633
Student housing, net of scholarship allowances of $599,848

Newmark center
Conferences

Culinary arts, net of scholarship allowances of $553,675

Other auxiliary enterprises
Donations
Other operating revenues

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses

Education and general

Instruction

Instructional support

College support

Plant operations and maintenance
Other support services

Student services

Community services

Student financial aid
Auxiliary enterprises

Food services

Bookstore

Student housing

Newmark center

Conferences

Culinary arts

Other auxiliary enterprises
Early retirement costs
Depreciation expense
Foundation operating expenses

Total operating expenses

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenses

(carried forward to next page)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Primary

Government

Component
Unit

4,408,164
7,025,279
1,158,004

379,492

897,949
1,077,627
1,833,387
340,741
78,393
1,671,831
30,001
283,528

688,940

756,736
23,147

19,873,236

779,883

9,258,664
1,683,269
2,487,518
3,711,458

2,461,953
2,266,758
1,711,492

795,563
1,181,158
1,637,377

261,570

82,181
1,598,694
1,887

340,140

1,281,213

715,912

30,760,895

715,912

$ (10,887,659)

63,971




SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Primary Component
Government Unit

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenses

(carried forward from previous page) $ (10,887,659) $ 63,971
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

State community college support 10,334,510 -

Other state sources 2,993,315 -

Property taxes 5,307,651 -

Investment gain on net pension asset 2,395,896 -

Interest and net investment income (loss) 46,595 201,242

Interest expense (1,747,331) -
Total net non-operating revenues (expenses) 19,330,636 201,242
Net change in net assets 8,442 977 265,213
Net Assets

Net assets - beginning of the year 8,475,912 2,200,384

Prior period adjustment (214,249) -

Net assets, beginning of year, as restated 8,261,663

Net assets - end of year $ 16,704640 $ 2465597
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SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Tuition and fees $ 5,302,955

Federal student financial aid grants 3,556,293

Federal grants and contracts 3,522,647

State and local governments grants and contracts 1,237,045

Payments to suppliers for goods and services (9,825,789)

Payments to employees (12,065,566)

Payments for student financial aid and other scholarships (4,338,714)

Payment for early retirement (340,140)

Other operating revenues 688,940

Auxiliary enterprises:

Cash received from customers 7,319,354
Paid to suppliers : (3,754,517)

Net cash (used) by operating activities $ (8,697,492)
Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities

Cash received from property faxes 5,239,254

Cash received from state community college support 10,334,510

Cash received from other state sources 2,993,315
Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 18,567,079
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities

Purchase of capital assets (3,986,489)

Proceeds from short-term debt 3,340,000

Proceeds from long-term debt 6,115,000

Principal payments on short-term debt (4,740,000)

Principal payments on long-term debt (1,348,846)

Interest payments on long-term debt (1,738,439)

Administrative payments : (40,388)
Net cash (used) by capital and related financing activities (2,399,162)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Interest on investments 46,595
Net increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,517,020
Cash and Cash Equivalent, July 1, 2009
(including restricted cash of $5,837) 858,526
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30, 2010 ‘
(including restricted cash of $5,205) $ 8,375,546
Reconciliation to Amounts Shown on Statement of Net Assets

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents $ 8,370,341

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 5,205
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 8,375,546

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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SOUTHWESTERN OREGON CONMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Reconciliation of Net Income to Net Cash
(Used) By Operating Activities

Operating (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation
PERS transfers to employer reserves
Change in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Inventories
Unamortized bond issuance costs
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Due to other agencies
Deferred revenue
Compensated absences payable
Unamortized discounts & premiums
Early retirement benefits

Net cash used by operating activities

Noncash Capital and Related Financing Activities
Donation of capital assets
Investment gain on net pension asset

Net pension asset

Total net noncash capital and related financing activities

17

$

(10,887,659)

1,281,213
1,193,607

(229,835)
(89,031)
40,338 -
(20,777)
(84,867)

7,561
8,892
53,670

(255,486)
93,015
38,322

153,545

(8,697,492)

283,528
2,395,896
(2,395,896)

$

283,628




SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUND
June 30, 2010

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other agencies
Deferred revenues - on-line fees

Total liabilities

Net Assets - held in trust for benefits and other purposes

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Trust and

Agency Fund

$ 128,014

874

128,888

3,074
116,472
9,342

128,888



SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Additions:
Tuition and fees
Other

Total additions

Deductions
Personal services
Materials and services
Other

Total deductions

Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning of year

Net assets - end of year

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Trust and

Agency Fund

$ 33,661

107,275

140,936

2,344
135,181
3,411

140,936



SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The Southwestern Oregon Community College District (the College District), the primary government and
municipal corporation, is a post-secondary institution, which was established in 1961 to provide educational
courses and programs to citizens on the south coast of Oregon. The College District currently serves all of
Coos County, western Douglas County, and Curry County.

In evaluating how to define the College District for financial reporting purposes, management has
considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the
reporting entity was made by applying the criteria as established by GASB. The accompanying financial
statements present the government and its component unit entity for which the government is considered
to be financially accountable. This discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate column in
the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the government.

Discretely presented component unit

Southwestern Oregon Community College Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) is an Oregon non-profit
corporation exempt from income tax under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and, as such, is
a separate legal entity. In order to comply with generally accepted reporting practices throughout the State
of Oregon, and in accordance with GASB criteria, this unit is included in the College District’s reporting
entity as a component unit for the year ended June 30, 2010.

The Foundation’s summarized financial activity and financial position for the current year are discretely
presented in a separate column in the College District's basic financial statements; however, GASB does
not require a Statement of Cash Flows presentation for the Foundation within the primary government's
financial information. The objective and activities of this corporation are to aid and promote the
educational, cultural, and recreational needs of citizens of the College District. More specific current goals
are to provide additional student financial assistance and to provide funds for development and
improvement of any Southwestern Oregon Community College program. The College District provides
services to the Foundation in the form of processing receipts and disbursements, upon approval by the
Foundation Executive Director, through the College District's Business Office Director and the College
District's Accounts Payable Department. The Foundation’s major sources of revenue are donations and
investment income. The Foundation is governed by a twenty-two member Board plus two College District
Board Members who serve as non-voting ex-officio members of the Foundation’s Board.

Separate financial statements for Southwestern Oregon Community College Foundation, Inc. may be
obtained through request of the Foundation Executive Director located at the Southwestern Oregon
Community Coliege District Coos Bay campus.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America as prescribed by the GASB, including Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statement — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments, and
Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis of Public
College and Universities, issued in June and November 1999. The College District follows the “business-
type activities” reporting requirements of GASB Statement No. 35 that provides a comprehensive one-
column look at the College District’s financial activities. As a general rule, the effect of internal transactions
between the College District’s functions has been eliminated.
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Basis of Accouhting

The basic financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the years for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the grantor have been met.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally
are followed in the College District's basic financial statements to the extent that those standards do not
conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The
Coliege District has elected not to follow subsequent private sector standards.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that effect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
basic financial statements, and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, the State of Oregon
Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), and short-term investments with original maturities
of three months or less from the date of acquisition. The LGIP is stated at cost, which approximates fair
value. Fair value of the investment in the LGIP is the same as the value of the pool shares.

Investments

State statutes authorize the College District to invest in banker's acceptances; time certificates of deposits;
repurchase agreements; obligations of the US. Treasury and its agencies; the agencies and
instrumentalities of the United States and the States of Oregon, Washington, Idaho, and California; the
Oregon State Treasury’s Local Government Investment Pool; demand deposits; and fixed or variable: life-
insurance or annuity contracts for funding deferred compensation. The College District's investment policy
is more restrictive than state statutes.

Receivables

All accounts, student loans, grants, and property taxes receivable are shown net of an allowance for
uncollectible accounts.

Property taxes are levied and become a lien on all taxable property as of July 1. Taxes are payable on
November 15, February 15, and May 15. Discounts are allowed if the amount due is received by
November 15 or February 15. Taxes unpaid and outstanding on May 16 are considered delinquent.

Student loan receivables are recorded as tuition is assessed or as amounts are advanced to students
under various federal student financial assistance programs.

Unreimbursed expenses qualified from grantor agencies are reflected in the basic financial statements as

receivables and revenues. Grant revenues are recorded at the time eligible expenses are incurred. Grant
funds received prior to the occurrence of qualifying expenses are recorded as deferred revenue.

Inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the retail cost method for the
Bookstore and first-inffirst-out method for all inventory.
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Capital Assets

Capital assets include land and land improvements, buildings and building improvements; equipment,
vehicles, and machinery; works of art and historical treasures; infrastructure, which includes utility systems;
leasehold improvements; and construction in progress. The College District has defined capital assets as
having an initial value or cost of at least $5,000 and an expected life of more than two years. Such assets
are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Library books are
capitalized. Donated capital assets are recorded at fair market value at the date of donation. The costs of
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value or functionality of the assets’ lives are not
capitalized, but are expensed as incurred.

Buildings, equipment, vehicles, machinery, leasehold improvements, and land improvements of the College
District are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following lives:

Buildings and building improvements 20-60 years
Equipment, vehicles, and machinery 5-25 years
Land improvements 10-30 years
Library books 43 years

Compensated Absences

It is the College District's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation pay. There
is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since the College District does not have a policy to pay any
amounts when employees separate from service. For government-wide financial reporting, unused
vacation pay is recognized as an expense and accrued when earned, however it is not reported in the
individual fund financial statements except when matured, as the result of resignation or retirement.

Long-term Obligations, Bond Discounts, and Issuance Costs

Long-term obligations and rebatable arbitrage are reported in the government-wide financial statements as
liabilities. The governmental individual fund financial statements do not report long-term obligations or
rebatable arbitrage because they do not require the use of current financial resources.

Bond discounts and issuance costs, net of premiums, are deferred and amortized over the term of the
bonds using the bonds-outstanding method in the government-wide financial statements, but are
recognized during the current period in the individual fund financial statements. The bonds-outstanding
method does not differ significantly from the effective interest rate method.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services to students. Principal operating
revenues include tuition, federal and state grants, charges for services, and sale of educational material.
Operating expenses include the costs of faculty, administration, sales, and services for food services and
bookstore operations and depreciation. All other revenues, including state educational support, and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Scholarship Allowances

Financial aid to students is reported in the basic financial statements under the alternative method as
prescribed by the National Association of College and University Business Officers (NACUBO). Certain aid
such as loans, funds provided to students as awarded by third parties, and Federal Direct Lending is
accounted for as a third party payment (credited to the student's account as if the student made the
payment). All other aid is reflected in the basic financial statements as operating expense, or scholarship
allowances, which reduce revenues. The amount reported as operating expense represents the portion of
aid that was provided to the student in the form of cash. Scholarship allowances represent the portion of
aid computed on a college-wide basis by allocating the cash payments to students, excluding payments for
services, on the ratio of total aid to the aid not considered to be third party aid.
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Federal Student Financial Assistance Programs

The College District participates in the federally funded Pell Grant Program, Work-Study Program,
Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants program, and Academic Competitiveness Grants program.
The College District also participates in Federal Stafford and Plus loan programs. Federal programs are
audited in accordance with the Single Audit Act, the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the related Compliance
Supplement.

Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets,
net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets, then
offset by the unamortized amount of premiums, discounts, and issuance costs. Net assets are reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by
the College District (including self-imposed legal mandates) or through external restrictions imposed by
creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments.

GASB Statement No. 34 reports equity as “Net Assets” rather than “Fund Balance”. Net assets are
classified according to external donor restrictions or availability of assets for satisfaction of College District
obligations. Expendable restricted net assets represent funds held in federal financial aid programs. The
restricted net assets of $5,205 represents cash from the pension bond issuance held in restricted cash
accounts and PERS side accounts to be utilized for debt service (Note Il D). Restricted net assets for
capital projects of $5,934,262 represents unexpended loan proceeds obtained for construction at the Curry
County Campus.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the College District's policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources to meet its ongoing operations and debt service
obligations as they are needed.

2010

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt: :

Net capital assets $ 37,058,618
Less:

Full faith and credit obligations (29,740,000)

Loan payable to component unit (200,000)

Capital leases payable (196,355)

Unamortized debt issuance costs, premiums, and discounts 1,629,702

$ 8,551,965

Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that
are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose.

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Information

In accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes, the College District adopts annual budgets and makes
appropriations on a fund basis, using either the modified accrual or accrual basis of accounting depending
on the fund.
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A budget is prepared for all College District funds in the main categories required by Oregon Local Budget
Law — personal services, materials and services, capital outlay, other financing used, and debt service.
However, the College District's legal spending authority is defined by a resolution passed by the Board of
Education making the appropriations and adopting the budget. The legally adopted appropriations are by
object class, such as personal services, materials and services, capital outlay, debt service, transfers, and
contingency.

The College District begins its budget process each year with the establishment of the budget committee.
Recommendations are developed through early spring and the budget committee approves the budget in
late spring. Public notices of the budget committee meetings and the public hearing prior to adoption are
published in accordance with Oregon Local Budget Law. The Board of Education may amend the budget
prior to adoption; however, budgeted expenditures for each fund may not be increased by more than 10

percent. The budget is then adopted, appropriations are made, and the tax levy is declared no later than
June 30.

Expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriation levels, which are adopted by Board resolution. The
Board of Education can change the budget throughout the year by appropriation transfers between levels
of control and supplemental budgets as authorized by Oregon Revised Statutes. The budget basis
financial schedules reflect the original budget plus all approved supplemental appropriations and
appropriation transfers. Annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end on June 30.

B. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

Expenditures exceeded appropriations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 in the following amounts:

General Fund
Transfers out $ 274,691

Financial Aid Fund
Other financial aid $ 496,714

Ili. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Deposits and Investments

Deposits

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has adopted accounting principles generaily accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP), which include standards to categorize deposits to give an indication
of the level of custodial credit risk assumed by the College District at June 30, 2010. If bank deposits at
year end are not entirely insured or collateralized with securities held by the College District or by its agent
in the College District's name, the College District must disclose the custodial credit risk (below) that exists.
Deposits with financial institutions are held in the name of the College District and are comprised of bank
demand deposits. For deposits in excess of federal depository insurance, Oregon Revised Statutes require
the depository institution to participate in the Public Funds Collateralization Program. The Public Funds
Collateralization Program is a multiple financial institution collateral pool administered by the Oregon State
Treasurer's Office. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the carrying amounts of the College District
deposits in various financial institutions were $8,418,369 and the bank balances were $8,702,933. Of the
bank balance, $611,932 was insured by Federal Depository Insurance Corporation and $8,091,001 was
insured by the Public Funds Collateralization Program.

Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, a

government’s deposits may not be returned to it. The College District does not have a formal deposit policy
for custodial credit risk.
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Effective July 1, 2008, the Oregon State Treasurer became responsible for monitoring public funds held by
bank depositories in excess of FDIC insured amounts, and for assuring that public funds on deposit are
collateralized to the extent required by Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter 295. ORS 295 requires
depository banks to place and maintain on deposit with a third party custodian bank securities having a

" value of 10, 25, or 110 percent of public funds on deposit depending primarily on the capitalization level of

the depository bank. The $8,091,001 in Coliege District deposits covered by the state collateral pool is not
exposed to custodial credit risk because the collateral is considered to be held by a third party custodian
bank and also in the College District's name.

Investments

The College District has invested funds in the State Treasurer's Oregon Short-term Fund Local
Government Investment Pool during fiscal year 2010. The Oregon Short-Term Fund is the local
government investment pool for local governments and was established by the State Treasurer. [t was
created to meet the financial and administrative responsibilities of federal arbitrage regulations. The
investments are regulated by the Oregon Short-Term Fund Board and approved by the Oregon Investment
council (ORS 294.805 to 294.895). The Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) is an external
investment pool managed by the State Treasurer's office, which allows governments within the state to
pool their funds for investment purposes. The amounts invested in the pool are not classified by risk
categories because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form as defined
by GASB Statement No. 40.

In addition, the Oregon State Treasury LGIP distributes investment income on an amortized cost basis and
participants’ equity in the pool is determined by the amount of participant deposits, adjusted for withdrawals
and distributed income. Accordingly, the adjustment to fair value would not represent an expendable
increase in the College District's cash position.

Investment in the Oregon State Treasury LGIP is made under the provisions of ORS 294. These funds are
held in the College District's name and are not subject to collateralization requirements of ORS 295.015.
Investments are stated at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.

Credit Risk

State statutes authorize the District to invest primarily in general obligations of the U.S. Government and its
agencies, certain bonded obligations of Oregon municipalities, bank repurchase -agreements, bankers’
acceptances, certain commercial papers, and the State Treasurer's investment pool, among others. The
District has no formal investment policy that further restricts its investment choices.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The College District is required to provide information about the concentration of credit risk associated with
its investments in one issuer that represent 5 percent or more of the total investments, excluding
investments in external investment pools or those issued and explicitly guaranteed by the U.S.
Government. The District has no such investments.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The Oregon Short-Term Fund Board manages this risk by limiting the maturity of the
investments held by the fund. The College District's investment policy includes only those investments
authorized by statute, but places no limits on the amount of each type in the investment portfolio. Further,
the College District has no formal investment policy that explicitly limits investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value loss arising from increasing interest rates.
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As of June 30, 2010, the College District had the following investments:

Percentage
Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio Fair Value
Oregon State Treasury
Local Government Investment Pool 1 day 100% $ 11,810

A reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as shown on the Statement of Net Assets is as follows:

Cash on hand and petty cash $ 7,913
Deposits with financial institutions 8,418,369
Local Government Investment Pool 11,810
Carrying amount of cash with county treasurer 65,468
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 8,503,560
Primary Government $ 8,375,546
Fiduciary Fund 128,014
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 8,503,560
. Receivables

Intergovernmental receivables are considered to be fully collectible. Accounts receivable include an
allowance for uncollectible accounts for tuition and fees of $930,705. All non-current property taxes
receivable are treated as deferred revenue in the budgetary fund schedules.

Property taxes are assessed and attach as an enforceable lien on property as of July 1. Taxes are levied
on July 1 and are payable on November 15. They may be paid in installments due November 15, February
15, and May 15. Taxes are billed and collected by the County of Coos, County of Douglas and County of
Curry and remittance to the College District is made at periodic intervals. For fiscal year 2009-2010, the
College District imposed a tax rate of $.7017 per $1,000 of assessed value. This resulted in a net levy of
$4,852,167 after reduction for compression loss due to constitutional limits, and after increases due to
additional taxes, penalties, and other adjustments.

Property taxes are recorded on the accrual basis in the basic financial statements. No allowance for
uncollectible property taxes is shown in the financial statements since unpaid property taxes are a
permanent lien and the amount of property taxes ultimately not collected is immaterial. Interest on
delinquent property taxes is recognized when received.
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Following is a summary of property tax transactions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010:

Coos County:

2009-10
2008-09
2007-08
2006-07
2005-06
Prior years

Subtotal

Douglas County:

2009-10
2008-09
2007-08
2006-07

- 2005-06

Prior years

Subtotal

Curry County:

2009-10
2008-09
2007-08
2006-07
2005-06
Prior years

Subtotal

Total all counties

Collections
Receivable 2009-2010 and Receivable
7/1/2009 Net Levy Adjustments 6/30/2010
- $ 2,895,814 $ 2,714,605 $ 181,209
171,793 - 83,709 88,084
70,530 - 30,301 40,229
33,830 - 19,676 14,154
13,299 - 10,464 2,835
7,120 - 1,101 6,019
296,572 $ 2,895,814 $ 2,859,856 $ 332,530
Collections
Receivable 2009-2010 and Receivable
7/1/2009 Net Levy Adjustments 6/30/2010
- $ 277,572 $ 253,853 $ 23,719
13,887 - 5,559 8,328
5,867 - 2,406 3,461
2,944 - 2,135 809
1,192 - 1,120 72
750 - 407 343
24,640 $ 277,572 $ 265,480 $ 36,732
_ Collections
Receivable 2009-2010 and Receivable
7/1/2009 Net Levy Adjustments 6/30/2010
- $ 1,678,781 $ 1,699,540 $ 79,241
72,894 - 40,682 32,212
25,418 - 10,139 15,279
10,774 - 4,860 5,914
4,781 - 3,204 1,677
2,019 - 9 2,010
115,886 1,678,781 1,658,434 136,233
437,098 $ 4,852,167 $ 4,783,770 $ 505,495
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C. Capital Assets

Balance Balance
7/1/2009 Increases Decreases 6/30/2010

Capital assets not being depreciated

Land 768,939 $ 250,000 $ - % 1,018,939

Construction in progress 709,053 2,903,784 (816,697) 2,796,140

Art works collection 145,000 - - 145,000
Total capital assets not

being depreciated 1,622,992 3,153,784 (816,697) 3,960,079
Capital assets being depreciated

Land improvements 1,008,521 - - 1,008,521

Library books 623,774 127,459 (6,308) 644,925

Buildings 39,961,776 1,006,303 - 40,968,079

Equipment and vehicles 4,833,521 634,313 (159,987) 5,307,847
Total capital assets being depreciated 46,427,592 1,668,075 (166,295) 47,929,372
Less accumulated depreciation for

Land improvements (867,719) (21,758) - (889,477)

Library books (250,456) (14,998) 2,532 (262,922)

Buildings (9,648,438) (919,927) - (10,568,365)

Equipment and vehicles (2,840,303) (324,530) 54,764 (3,110,069)
Total accumulated depreciation (13,606,916) (1,281,213) 57,296 (14,830,833)
Total capital assets being

depreciated, net 32,820,676 386,862 (108,999) 33,098,539
Total capital assets, net $ 34443668 $ 3,540,646 $ (925,696) $ 37,058,618

. Long-Term Debt

Limited Tax Bonds

The College District issues limited tax bonds in governmental and business-type activities. Limited tax
bonds include limited tax revenue bonds, full faith and credit obligations, and limited tax pension bonds.
The limited tax revenue bonds financed the following:

Pension Bonds — The College District issued limited tax pension bonds in February 2004 (the “Pension
Bonds”). Net proceeds of the Pension Bonds were deposited into a lump sum payment account at PERS
for the benefit of the College District. This Pension Bond was issued as part of a larger pool of pension
obligations. The College District's Pension Bonds refinanced a portion of the Unfunded Actuarial Liability
allocated to the College District in the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (see “Pension
System” herein). The Pension Bonds were issued in the principal amount of $13,075,000. Such lump sum
payment reduced the College District's current payroll contribution rates (see “Pension System” herein),
and, if returns on the account exceed the cost of the borrowing, will result in a net benefit to the College
District. Payment of debt service on the Pension Bond is primarily from the College District's General
Fund, the same fund from which the College District would have made pensions plan contributions for the
Unfunded Actuarial Liability. Payments are due semi-annually and mature in June 2028.
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Limited

tax pension bonds financed a portion of the estimated unfunded actuarial liability with the Oregon

Public Employees Retirement System. All limited tax bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the
College District, within the limitations of Article X1 of the Oregon Constitution, and are to be repaid from
existing revenue sources.

The future debt maturity requirements are as follows at June 30, 2010:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2011 $ 100,000 $ 701,420 $ 801,420
2012 150,000 697,059 847,059
2013 200,000 690,228 890,228
2014 260,000 680,734 940,734
2015 320,000 668,262 088,262

2016-2020 2,745,000 3,024,265 5,769,265
2021-2025 5,340,000 2,026,158 7,366,158
2020-2028 3,890,000 390,695 4,280,695

Total

$ 13,005,000 $ 8,878,821 $ 21,883,821

Other Limited Tax Obligations — The College District originally issued other Full Faith and Credit
Obligations for a variety of projects as described below:

(1)

@)

3)

(4)

()

(6)

Student Services Center/Bookstore — Financed by the College District's Full Faith and Credit
Obligations, Series 1995 (“Series 1995 Obligations”).

One-Stop Career Center and Family Center — Financed by the College District’s Full Faith and
Credit Obligations, Series 1995B (“Series 1995B Obligations”), partially refunded in 2003. Lease
revenues and grants are generated from the One-Stop Center and Family Center.

Student Housing Projects — Were financed by the College District's (i) Full Faith and Credit
Obligations, Series 1996 (“Series 1996 Obligations”) refunded in 2003; (ii) Full Faith and Credit
Obligations, Series 1998 (“Series 1998 Obligations”); and (iii) Full Faith and Credit Obligations,
2000 Series A (“2000 Series A Obligations”) refunded 2003; the housing was constructed for on-
campus student living and to generate rental income.

Student Housing Projects — Series 2005, $4,800,000 Housing Phase IV for new student housing
facilities — limited tax full faith and credit revenue bonds. The housing was constructed for on-
campus student living and to generate rental income.

Performing Arts Center, Stensland Hall and the Newmark Center — The College District issued its
Full Faith and Credit Obligations, Series 2002 (“Series 2002 Obligations”) to finance repairs to
Stensland Hall and the Newmark Center and to complete construction of the Performing Arts
Center. The portion of the 2000 Series A Obligations and the Series 2002 Obligations used to
finance the Performing Arts Center and the repairs to Stensland Hall and the Newmark Center will
not generate rental income. The Series 2002 Obligations represent ownership interests in lease
payments due from the College District.

Culinary Institute and Student Recreation Center — The College District issued its Full Faith and

Credit Obligations, Series 2004 to finance a culinary institute and a student recreation center. The
culinary institute and student recreation center generate tuition and fee revenues.
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(7) Curry Campus Project — The College District issued its Fuil Faith and Credit Obligations, Series
2010 to finance costs of construction of new Curry Campus facilities (Series 2010 Obligations).
The Series 2010 Obligations are Federally Taxable Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds
that qualify for American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 Direct Interest Subsidy Payment
rebates of 45 percent of the interest payable on such Series 2010 Obligations. Each cash rebate is
to be paid from the United States Treasury to an escrow agent for the College District, and held in
escrow for credit against the next interest payment required to be made. The College District will
not have to repay the cash rebates if at least 75 percent of the Series 2010 Obligation proceeds
are spent on construction expenditures in accordance with a required schedule through June 30,
2012.

Repayment of principal and interest on the College District's outstanding full faith and credit obligations are
secured by lease payments. A summary of the Full Faith and Credit Obligations, as issued, is shown
below.

Full Faith and Date of Interest Amount

Credit Obligations Issue Rates (%) Issued
Series 2002 Obligations (a) 1/1/2002 4.0-5.25% $ 910,000
Series 2003 Refunding Obligations (b) 10/1/2003 2.0-4.60% 9,980,000
Series 2004 Obligations 6/1/2004 2.0-5.00% 9,855,000
Series 2005 Obligations 3/29/2005 3.0-5.00% 4,800,000
Series 2006 Obligations 9/13/2006 4.0-4.20% 2,500,000
Series 2007 Refunding Obligations (c) 9/17/2007 4.0-4.30% 9,995,000
Series 2010 Obligations (d) 6/15/2010 4.6-6.38% 6,115,000
44,155,000
Series 2004 Pension Bonds 2/24/2004 3.348-5.53% 13,075,000
Total Full Faith and Credit Obligations $ 57,230,000

A summary of the principal payments made and outstanding amounts related to the Full Faith and Credit

Obligations is shown below.

Beginning Ending
Full Faith and Balance Principal Balance Amount Due
Credit Obligations 7/1/2009 Paid 6/30/2010 Within 1 Year
Series 1995 Obligations $ 30,000 $ 30,000 $ - $ -
Series 2002 Obligations (a) 130,000 65,000 65,000 65,000
Series 2003 Refunding Obligations (b) 7,335,000 545,000 6,790,000 565,000
Series 2004 Obligations 2,880,000 190,000 2,690,000 215,000
Series 2005 Obligations 2,355,000 135,000 2,220,000 140,000
Series 2006 Obligations 2,285,000 65,000 2,220,000 70,000
Series 2007 Refunding Obligations (c) 9,765,000 60,000 9,705,000 60,000
Series 2010 Obligations (d) - - 6,115,000 -
24,780,000 1,090,000 29,805,000 1,115,000
Series 2004 Pension Bonds 13,060,000 55,000 13,005,000 100,000
Total Full Faith and Credit Obligations $37,840,000 $1,145,000 $42,810,000 $ 1,215,000
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Note

a. Financed through ownership interests in lease payments of the College Districf, which principal

amounts due are included in capital leases payable in the Statement of Net Assets.

b. The College District's Full Faith and Credit Refunding Obligations, Series 2003 refunded all of the
Series 1996 Obligations and 2000 Series A Obligations in order to realize a savings on debt service

payments.

c. The College District's Full Faith and Credit Refunding Obligations, Series 2007 refunded all or portions
of the Series 1998, 2002, 2004 and 2005 Obligations In order to realize a savings on debt service

payments.

d. Interest rates disclosed are the coupon rates, before application of the direct interest rate subsidy cash
rebate of 45 percent of interest payable. The combined effective interest rate will be approximately

3.36% upon application of all rebates.

In October 2003, the College District issued $9,980,000 Series 2003 (Note b. above) of limited tax full faith
and credit refunding obligation bonds to refinance all or part of previously issued obligation bonds. Bonds

outstanding at year-end are as follows:

Budgetary Fund Outstanding Amount
Responsible Interest Original Balance Due Within

Purpose For Repayment Rates Amount at 6/30/10 1 Year
Performing Arts Center Debt Service 2.00-460% $ 1,286668 $ 932,097 $ 45,973
Newmark Center Enterprise 2.00-4.60% 3,379,500 1,987,878 290,256
Student Housing Enterprise 2.00-4.60% 5,313,832 3,870,025 228,771
Total activity $ 9,980,000 $ 6,790,000 $ 565,000

The future debt maturity requirements are as follows at June 30, 2010:
Fiscal Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total

2011 $ 565,000 $ 267,093 $ 832,093
2012 595,000 248,730 843,730
2013 620,000 227,905 847,905
2014 655,000 205,585 860,585
2015 685,000 181,350 866,350
2016-2020 2,160,000 578,005 2,738,005
2021-2025 1,510,000 176,655 1,686,655
Total $ 6,790,000 $ 1,885,323 $ 8,675323
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In June 2004, the College District issued of Full Faith and Credit Obligations Series 2004 where the
College District pledges income derived from the acquired or constructed assets to pay debt service. The
bonds were issued to finance construction projects for the Culinary Arts facility and construct a Student
Recreation Center facility. Bonds outstanding at year-end are as follows:

Budgetary Fund Outstanding Amount
Responsible Interest Original Balance Due Within

Purpose For Repayment Rates Amount at 6/30/10 1 Year
Student Recreation Center  Debt Service 2.00-5.00% $ 6,257,925 $ 1,.708,150 $ 136,525
Culinary Arts Institute Enterprise 2.00-5.00% 3,597,075 981,850 78,475
Total activity $ 9,855,000 $ 2,690,000 $ 215,000

The future debt maturity requirements are as follows at June 30, 2010:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Total

2011 $ 215,000 $ 112,980 $ 327,980

2012 235,000 105,025 340,025

2013 255,000 95,860 350,860

2014 280,000 85,660 365,660

2015 310,000 . 74,180 384,180
2016-2020 1,395,000 150,643 1,545,643

Total $ 2,690,000 $ 624,348 $ 3,314,348

In March 2005, the College District issued $4,800,000 of Full Faith and Credit Obligations Series 2005 for
the purpose of financing capital construction and improvements, including designing, constructing,
equipping, and furnishing student housing and facilities, and paying issuance costs. The College District
expects to make the financing payments through rent derived from the housing units.

The future debt maturity requirements are as follows at June 30, 2010:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Total

2011 $ 140,000 3 91,703 $ 231,703

2012 145,000 86,977 231,977

2013 150,000 81,903 231,903

2014 155,000 76,427 231,427

2015 160,000 70,615 230,615
2016-2020 340,000 268,950 608,950
2021-2025 1,130,000 151,380 1,281,380

Total $ 2,220,000 $ 827,955 $ 3,047,955

In September 2006, the College District issued $2,500,000 of Full Faith and Credit Obligations Series 2006
for the purpose of financing capital construction and improvements, including completion of a student
housing center and a student recreation center, reimbursing the College District for costs of acquisition of
the existing Neighborhood Facility Building, and payment of the costs of issuance of these series 2006
obligations. The College District's payments are secured by, and payable from, general revenues and other
funds that may be available for that purpose.
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The future debt maturity requirements are as follows at June 30, 2010:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2011 , $ 70,000 $ 90,985 $ 160,985
2012 70,000 88,185 158,185
2013 75,000 85,385 160,385
2014 80,000 82,385 162,385
2015 80,000 79,385 159,385

2016-2020 460,000 345,525 805,525
2021-2025 555,000 244,163 799,163
2026-2030 675,000 119,606 794,606

2031 155,000 6,510 161,510

Total $ 2,220,000 $ 1,142129 $ 3,362,129

During the 2009-2010 fiscal year $65,000 principal and $93,585 of interest was paid on this debt of which
72 percent was previously allocated to the governmental budgetary funds and 28 percent to the enterprise
fund based on allocation of utilization of the bond proceeds ($1,800,000 for the student recreation center,
governmental, and, $300,000 for the Neighborhood Facility Building and $400,000 for student housing,
these last two enterprise activities).

In September 2007, the College District issued, at a premium, $9,995,000 Series 2007 (Note c. above) of
limited tax full faith and credit refunding obligation bonds to refinance all or part of previously issued
obligation bonds. Bonds outstanding at year-end are as foliows:

Budgetary Fund Qutstanding Amount
Responsible Interest Original Balance Due Within

Purpose For Repayment Rates Amount at 6/30/10 1-Year
Dryvit Project Debt Service 450-540% $ 2,600,000 $ 2,716,146 $ 16,792
Performing Arts Center Debt Service 4.50-5.40% 2,301,325 2,404,129 14,863
Student Recreation Center Debt Service 4.50-5.40% 277,970 290,392 1,794
Student Housing Enterprise 4.50-5.40% 107,030 111,807 692
Culinary Arts Institute Enterprise 4.50-5.40% 4,003,675 4,182,526 25,859
Total activity $ 9,290,000 $ 9705000 $ 60,000

The future debt maturity requirements are as follows at June 30, 2010:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Total

2011 $ 60,000 $ 396,137 $ 456,137

2012 140,000 393,738 533,738

2013 145,000 388,137 533,137

2014 145,000 382,338 527,338

2015 155,000 376,538 531,538
2016-2020 ’ 1,705,000 1,778,288 3,483,288
2021-2025 3,370,000 1,253,543 4,623,543
2026-2030 3,985,000 405,691 4,390,691

Total $ 9,705,000 $ 5,374,410 $ 15,079,410
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In June 2010, the College District issued $6,115,000 of Full Faith and Credit Obligations Series 2010 (Note
d. above) for the purpose of financing capital construction of the Curry Campus Project including designing,
constructing, equipping, and furnishing of an approximate 27,000 sq. ft. building and related facilities.
Classroom and community-use rooms will be equipped with smart boards and other meeting amenities.

The future debt maturity requirements are as follows at June 30, 2010:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest® Total

2011 $ - $ 328615 $ 328,615

2012 - 357,406 357,406

2013 - 357,406 357,406

2014 - 357,406 357,406

2015 : - 357,406 357,406
2016-2020 2,040,000 1,644,192 3,684,192
2021-2025 3,695,000 867,115 4,562,115

2026 380,000 24,259 404,259

Total $ 6,115,000 $ 4,293,805 $ 10,408,805

* [Interest payable is the interest payment amount due before application of the direct interest rate subsidy
cash rebate of 45 percent of interest payable, which will be applied in escrow as a credit to each interest
payment due. Expected cash rebates to be applied as credits to interest payments due total $1,932,212.

Note Payable

On November 1, 2007, the College District borrowed $300,000 from the Southwestern Oregon Community
College Foundation, its discretely presented component unit, for the purpose of acquiring vacant real
property. Total cost of the property was $495,000, including all fees. This 4% annual interest loan is to be
repaid at a rate of $100,000 per year, plus accrued interest, over the next three fiscal periods, beginning
November 1, 2008. The note was not discounted due to immaterial results.

The payoff schedule is as follows:

Scheduled*

Payment Date : Principal Interest Total
11/1/2010 $ 100,000 $ 8,000 $ 108,000
11/1/2011 100,000 4,000 104,000

Total $ 200,000 $ 12,000 $ 212,000

* In April 2010, the Foundation agreed to delay the payment due November 1, 2010 indefinitely, and this
note is therefore classified as noncurrent on the Statement of Net Assets.
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Short-term Borrowings

Line of Credit - From July 1, 2009 through October 19, 2009, the College District had a short-term financing
credit agreement with a local financial institution to incur credit line debt not to exceed $3,000,000, at an
interest rate of prime plus 1.25% with a floor of 4.50%, and secured by the anticipated revenue from the
2009-2010 Oregon Community College Support Fund Allocation. The following short-term borrowing
transactions took place related to this line of credit:

July 1, 2009 1,400,000  Opening balance

July 7, 2009 850,000 Borrowed

July 17, 2009 2,261,172  Paid back (interest paid of $8,422, and fees paid of $2,750)
August 5, 2009 1,200,000 Borrowed

August 17, 2009 1,202,100  Paid back (interest paid of $2,100)

September 8, 2009 675,000 Borrowed

October 7, 2009 615,000 Borrowed

October 16, 2009 1,293,898  Paid back (Interest paid of $3,898)

2010 Tax and Revenue Anticipation Note (TRAN) - On March 1, 2010 the College District entered into a
short term borrowing program Series 2010 for operating advances not to exceed $4,860,000 of principal in
total, with the principal amount outstanding at any time not to exceed $4,000,000. TRAN advances are to
assist in cash flows until property tax revenues are received and the TRAN is secured by the College
District’s ad valorem property taxes. Interest on the TRAN is payable quarterly at prime rate plus 1.25% or
4.50% per annum, whichever is greater. The TRAN matures on December 15, 2010. As of June 30, 2010,
no amounts had been advanced to the College District under this arrangement.

Leases — Primary Government

Capital Leases

During the fiscal year 2001-2002, the College District financed the completion of the Performing Arts
Center, and various building repairs, known as the Dryvit Project. The College District borrowed $910,000,
with interest payments due every December and June. Principal payments are due in June through the
year 2011. The interest rates vary from 4.0% to 5.25%.

The future maturities of the debt retirement obligation pertaining to the Dryvit Project at June 30, 2010 are
as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2011 $ 46,904 $ 2,345 $ 49,249
Total $ 46,904 $ 2,345 $ 49,249

The future maturities of the debt retirement obligation pertaining to the Performing Arts Center at June 30,
2010 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2011 $ 18,096 $ 905 $ 19,001
Total $ 18,096 $ 905 $ 19,001
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On August 19, 2003, the College District financed the acquisition of a telephone system through a capital
lease with NEC Financial Services, Inc. in the amount of $207,612. The net capitalized cost and
accumulated depreciation of the phone system was $207,612 and $145,328, respectively, as of June 30,
2010. The present value of the future net minimum lease payments at June 30, 2010 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total

2011 $ 2,986 $ 14 $ 3,000

On January 17, 2006, the College District financed the acquisition of a van through a capital lease
agreement with Umpqua Bank Leasing in the amount of $56,639. The net capitalized cost and
accumulated depreciation of the van was $62,607 and $31,304, respectively, as of June 30, 2010. The
present value of the future net minimum lease payments at June 30, 2010 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2011 $ 12,306 $ 431 $ 12,737
2012 2,112 12 2,124
Total $ 14,418 $ 443 $ 14,861

On October 30, 2008, the College District financed the acquisition of an additional van through the same
capital lease agreement as the capital lease above with Umpqua Bank Leasing in the amount of $53,997.
The net capitalized cost and accumulated depreciation of the van was $59,980 and $24,590, respectively,
as of June 30, 2010. The present value of the future net minimum lease payments on this second van at
June 30, 2010 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2011 $ 11,637 $ 506 $ 12,143
2012 4,008 39 4,047
Total $ 15,645 $ 545 $ 16,190

On September 29, 2006, the College District entered into a capital lease agreement with Umpqua Bank
Leasing to acquire athletic and fitness equipment for the new student recreation center in the amount of
$137,429. Of this amount, $130,000 was disbursed by the bank for the equipment and $7,429 represents
annual interest accruing at 5.8% from the time of disbursement capitalized through the first payment due
date. The present value of future net minimum lease payments at June 30, 2010 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2011 $ 11,756 $ 5,776 $ 17,532
2012 12,447 5,085 17,5632
2013 13,178 4,354 17,5632
2014 13,953 3,579 17,532
2015 14,772 2,760 17,632
2016 15,640 1,892 17,532
2017 16,560 972 17,532
Total $ 98,306 $ 24,418 $ 122,724
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During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, total capital lease payments of $186,385 were made
comprised of $168,846 in principal and $17,539 of interest. Of these payments during the year, several
were final payments in full including Stensland Hall, a network core upgrade, and an HP Mainframe
Computer.

F. Operating Leases (College District as Lessor)

1.

The College District leases office and common space facilities (of which the total base monthly lease
amounts currently include a $5,151 payment for utilities and custodial fees) to the State of Oregon
Department of Human Services. The agreement of which continues through December 2011 and
includes the following future rent schedule:

Fiscal Year Ending Base Total
June 30 Net Rents Expenses Base Rents
2011 $ 230,183 $ 61,808 $ 291,991
2012 116,157 30,904 147,061
Total $ 346,340 $ 92,712 $ 439,052

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, total rental income of $287,730 was recognized by the
College District, as lessor, under this arrangement. If lessee is not in default at the end of the above
lease term, options exist for two year then five year renewals with adjusted rent schedules.

The College District leases office and warehouse space to Oregon Coast Community Action (ORCCA)
recognizing monthly rent payments of $6,916 for an annual total rent income of $82,992 recorded
under this operating lease through June 30, 2010.

Subsequent to June 30, 2010 new leases were entered into. One lease is on an open-ended. year-to-
year basis, with the other three leases in effect for one year with a single automatic one year renewal.
The future rent payments schedule is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30 Total Rents
2011 $ 103,072
2012 86,800
2013 36,000
2014 39,000
2015 42,000
Total 3 306,872

Various other provisions are also stipulated within the lease agreements including lease improvement

allowances, lessor providing additional available space, options to extend, escalation clauses, and
other contract provisions.
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G. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the following changes occurred in the amounts reported in the
general long-term debt account group type liabilities:

Full Faith & Credit Obligations
Capital Leases/Refundings:
Mainframe Computer Lease
Turtletop Vans Leases
Performing Arts Center:

Refunding Bonds 10/07 -
Dryvit Project:

Refunding Bonds 10/07
Telephone System Lease
Network Core Switch Lease
Rec Center Equipment Lease

Advance Refunding Bonds - PAC
Revenue Bonds:
Student Recreation Center
Pension Bonds (PERS)
Curry Campus Bonds
Loan Payable - Foundation
Accrued Early Retirement Benefits
Compensated Absences Payable
Capital Lease/Refundings:
Bookstore - Series 1995 - Lease
Refunding Bonds 10/07 - Housing
Advance Refunding Bonds:

Newmark - FY04

Student Housing - FY04
Limited Tax Revenue Bonds:

Neighborhood Facility Building

Student Housing
Revenue Bonds - Culinary

Total Debt

Less: Deferred discounts
and premiums

Total

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
7/1/2009 Additions Deletions 6/30/2010
$ 6,865 $ - % (6,865) $ -
52,868 - (22,805) 30,063
36,192 - (18,096) 18,096
112,499 - (692) - 111,807 -
93,808 - (46,904) 46,904
292,186 - (1,794) 290,392
40,549 - - (37,563) 2,986
25,508 - (25,508) -
109,409 - (11,103) 98,306
977,197 - (45,100) 932,097
7,682,384 - (193,308) 7,489,076
13,060,000 - (55,000) 13,005,000
- 6,115,000 - 6,115,000
300,000 - (100,000) 200,000
189,096 153,545 - 342,641
548,258 98,887 (5,872) 641,273
30,000 - (30,000) -
646,445 - (3,972) 642,473
2,262,787 - (274,909) 1,987,878
4,095,016 - (224,991) 3,870,025
274,200 - (7,800) 266,400
4,807,093 - (158,220) 4,648,873
3,470,192 - (84,213) 3,385,979
39,112,552 6,367,432 (1,354,715) 44,125,269
(1,269,043) (53,506) 91,827 (1,230,722)
$ 37,843,509 $ 6,313,926 $ (1,262,888) $ 42,894,547
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H. Deferred Revenues

Certain payments received for tuition, fees, and student housing represent revenues applicable to future
accounting periods and are recorded as deferred items. As of June 30, 2010, the Enterprise Fund had
deferred revenues recorded in the following amounts:

Tuition $ 437,500
Fees 7,342
Security deposits 12,750
Total deferred revenues $ 457,592

. Interfund Transfers

Transfer out Transfer in
General Fund $ 2,359,293 $ 530,294
Special Projects Fund - 14,902
Plant Fund , - 647,227
Debt Service Fund - 918,079
Internal Service Fund - 168,344
Enterprise Fund 632,780 708,352
Trust and Agency Fund 3,411 8,286
Total $ 2,995,484 $ 2,995,484

A transfer from the General Fund to the Enterprise Fund was made to close a negative fund balance in one
of the Enterprise Fund’s activities in the amount of $342,152.

J. Contributed Capital

The College District’s policy is to record and report the construction and improvement of major facilities’
projects in the Capital Projects Fund. At the time the building is completed the portion of use attributable to
the Enterprise Fund is “contributed” to that fund from the Capital Projects Fund. The respective related
debt, however, is recorded and reported, from inception, directly in the Enterprise Fund due to the intention
of debt servicing by fees or user revenue sources. The government-wide statements, however, match the
asset and related long-term debt as one business-type activity under GASB Statement Nos. 34 and 35.
During recent fiscal periods the contributed capital within the proprietary funds has remained at $545,132.

IV. OTHER INFORMATION
A. Contingent Liabilities

The amounts of grant revenue reflected in the financial statements are subject to audit and adjustment by
grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any costs which are guestioned or recommended to
be disallowed claims may become a liability of the College District.

Various claims are pending against the College District, in the opinion of the College District management

after consultation with legal counsel, which potential loss on these claims will not materially affect the
College District’s financial position.
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. Commitments

The College District had a contract during the entire fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, with a private firm to
provide food service. Under the contract, the College District reimbursed the contractor for all direct food
service costs, plus a management fee based on the number of meals served. Effective September 1,
2009, the College District became its own service provider having its Culinary Arts program provide these
services.

In June 2010, the College District accepted a bid of $6,061,000 for the construction of the new Curry
campus facilities, and the foundation was poured in September 2010.

. Risk Management

The College District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the College District carries commercial
insurance. Worker's compensation insurance is also provided through a commercial carrier. There has
been no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the prior year and the Coliege District has not
been required to pay any settlements in excess of insurance coverage during the past three fiscal years.

. Current Vulnerability Due to Certain Concentrations

The College District's operations are concentrated in Coos, Douglas, and Curry Counties within Oregon. In
addition, a significant portion of the College District’'s revenues for continuing operations are from federal,
state and local government agencies. In the normal course of operations, the College District receives
grant funds from various federal and state agencies. The grant programs are subject to audit by agents of
the granting authority, the purpose of which is to ensure compliance with conditions precedent to the
granting of funds. Any liability for reimbursement which may arise as the result of these audits is not
believed to be material.

Economic Dependency

The State Community College Support funding provided by the State of Oregon to all community colleges
in Oregon is based on the State allocation formula and other factors. The State of Oregon Office of
Community College Services provided $8,071,779 (including $752,811 of PERS intercept agreement
allocation) in current year support to the College District, which represents approximately 25.5 percent of
the College District's total general revenues for the year. Due to continued funding uncertainties at the
State level, future funding for the College District may be reduced, The ultimate effect of this possible
reduction in funding on the College District’ future operations is not yet determinable.

Related Party

A College District Board of Education Member is a principal in the insurance agency that is the College
District's Insurance Agent of Record. However, the member declares a potential conflict of interest and
abstains from College District decision making involvement in that regard. For the fiscal year ended June
30, 2010 amounts paid directly to the Insurance Agency during the fiscal year totaled $22,327, and
payments to other carriers for various insurance premiums, coverages, and commissions totaled $139,272.
No amounts were owed as June 30, 2010. '

. Employee Retirement System
Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)

PERS Plan Description. The College District contributes to the Oregon Public Employees Retirement
Fund (OPERF), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of
Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS). PERS provides retirement and disability benefits,
annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Oregon Revised
Statutes 238 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the PERS Board of
Trustees.
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During the 2003 legislative session, the Oregon Legislative Assembly created successor plans for PERS.
The Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan (ORSRP) is effective for all new employees hired on or after
August 29, 2003, and applies to any inactive PERS members who return to employment following a six
month or greater break in service. The new plan consists of a defined benefit program (the Pension
Program) and a defined contribution portion (the Individual Account Program or 1AP). The Pension
Program portion of OPSRP provides a life pension funded by employer contributions. Benefits are
calculated by a formula for members who attain normal retirement age. The formula takes into account

final average salary and years of service and a factor that varies based on the type of service (general
versus police or fire).

Beginning January 1, 2004 all PERS member contributions go into the IAP portion of OPSRP. PERS
members retain their existing PERS account, but any future member contributions are deposited into the
member's IAP, not into the member's PERS account. Those employees who had established a PERS

membership prior to creation of OPSRP will be members of both the PERS and OPSRP system as long as
they remain in covered employment.

Both PERS and OPSRP are administered by the Oregon Public Employees Retirement Board (OPERB).
The comprehensive annual financial report of the funds administered by the OPERB may be obtained by
writing to Oregon Public Employees Retirement System, PO Box 23700, Tigard, Oregon 97281-3700; by
calling (503) 598-7377; or by accessing the PERS web site at http://www.oregon.gov/PERS.

PERS Funding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute 6% of their annual covered salary and
the College District is required by ORS 238.225 to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. For the
College District's portion, the current rate is 0.91% of annual covered payroll for Tier | and Tier Il
employees. The rate for OPSRP is set at 1.55% of annual covered payroll.

The contribution requirements of plan members and the College District may be amended by the PERS
Board of Trustees. The College District's contributions to PERS for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009,

and 2008, were $798,859, $435,080, and $535,118, respectively, equal to the required contributions. for
each year.

As a result of the issuance of the $13,075,000 limited tax pension obligation bonds discussed in Note Il F,
the College District has reported a Net Pension Asset in the Statement of Net Assets.

The Net Pension Asset is equal to the initial payments made to PERS from the bond proceeds, less
amounts contributed to the cost sharing plan thereby reducing the College District contribution rate, plus
investment earnings. The College District reported annual pension cost and pension assets for the year
ended June 30, 2010 as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 798,859
Earnings on pension assets 2,395,896
Administrative fees (1,000)
Amount transferred to employer reserves (1,192,607)
Annual pension cost 2,001,148
Contributions made (798,859)
Increase (decrease) in pension asset 1,202,289
Pension asset, beginning of year 10,144,000
Pension asset, end of year $ 11,346,289

. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

The OPEB Plan and Stipend Plan (further below) are comprised of two agreements between the College
District and separate groups of employees. The first agreement covers those employees hired before
March 1, 2002 (“the 1997 Plan”), and the second agreement covers all other employees (“the 2002 Plan”).
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OPEB Plan Description. The College District participates in the Oregon Educators Benefits Board
(OEBB), a state-wide agent multi-employer benefit plan as defined in GASB Statement No. 45, to provide a
post retirement health benefits program. This program covers all full-time certified, classified, and eligible
administrative personnel of the College District. This program was established in accordance with ORS
243.303, which requires that all eligible retirees be allowed to continue receiving health insurance benefits,
at their cost, until age 65 or they become otherwise eligible for Medicare. The statutory requirement under
ORS 243.303 can result in an “implicit subsidy” (the difference between expected early retiree claim costs
and the premium paid for the retiree) requiring additional cost and liability recognition under GASB
Statement No. 45. In OEBB, the individual employer health plans are rated collectively, rather than
individually by employer, and the same blended premium rate is charged to all active employees and non-
Medicare-eligible retirees. In situations like OEBB, GASB Statement No. 45 allows “smaller” employers to
use the blended premium rate for actuarial projections as opposed to using age-adjusted premiums for the
projections. The blended premiums are used for the GASB Statement No. 45 actuarial projections and the
College District does not have an implicit employer OPEB subsidy. There are currently 250 peopie enrolled
in this program. The College District does not issue a stand alone report for this plan.

OPEB Funding Policy. The College District finances the plan on a “pay as you go” basis and pays for all
the benefits. For the year ended June 30, 2010, the College District recognized approximately $141,000 in
expenditures in the fund financial statements for the amount paid, and approximately $201,000 in the full
accrual Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets for the post-employment
healthcare benefits.

The Plan is established pursuant to two early retirement policies: the 1997 Plan and the 2002 Plan. Each
policy stipulates a cap limiting the total amount of early retiree healthcare benefits the College District will
pay each year. Annual healthcare benefits for the 1997 Plan shall not exceed $150,000. Similarly, annual
healthcare benefits for the 2002 Plan are capped at $250,000. Benefits paid for sick leave hours are not
counted toward Plan caps. Requests for early retirement under an early retirement policy will not be
granted if the total annual healthcare benefits are expected to exceed the policy’s cap in the next academic
year. Requests are considered in order based on years of service.

1997 Plan - $150,000 Annual Cap on Healthcare Benefits

Eligibility For employees hired prior to July 1, 1997

e Age 55 with 10 years of employment with the College District at 0.5 FTE or more; and
« Eligible to retire under PERS

For employees hired between July 1, 1997 and March 1, 2002
¢ Age 58 with 20 years of full-time employment with the College District; and
e Eligible to retire under PERS

Medical Benefits Benefits before age 65
Payment for full medical, dental, and vision for retiree, spouse, and eligible

children until retiree turns 65 or dies. Payment limited to 75% of cost if hired after
July 1, 1997.

Benefit after age 65
Payments up to $62 each per month for retiree and spouse until age 70 or retiree’s
death. Retiree and spouse must show proof of Medicare Supplemental insurance.

All benefits to the spouse end upon the retiree’s death. The spouse may continue
coverage on a self-pay basis.

2002 Plan - $250,000 Annual Cap on Healthcare Benefits
Eligibility
o Hired on or after March 1, 2002; and

e Age 58 with 20 years of full-time employment with the College District; or
e 30 years of full-time employment with the College District
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Medical Benefits Benefit before age 65

Contribution toward family medical and vision insurance until retiree turns age 65
or dies. Contribution amounts below are as of the 2002 Calendar year.
Contribution amounts are increased each year on January 1 by 3% or the July-
June Portland Consumer Price Index, whichever is less.

Regquirement Contribution
20-25 YOS or 41,600-51,999 hours $250/month
25-30 YOS or 52,000-62,399 hours $300/month
30+ YOS or 62,400+hours $350/month
Benefit after age 65

Payment of up to $62 per month until retiree turns 70 or dies. Retiree must show
proof of Medicare Supplemental insurance.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The College District's annual OPEB cost (expense) is reflected on the Statement of Net Assets on the
accrual basis, and is calculated on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year
and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years.

The following table shows the components of the College District's annual OPEB cost for the year ending
June 30, 2010, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the College District's net OPEB

obligations.

For the Fiscal
Yeah Ending
June 30, 2010

Normal cost at year end $ 77,831
Amortization of UAAL 119,745
Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 197,576
ARC - 1997 Plan $ 175,740
ARC - 2002 Plan 21,836
197,576
Interest on prior year net OPEB obligation 3,713
Annual OPEB cost 201,289
Contributions made (1997 Plan only) (141,209)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 60,080
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 106,089
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ 166,169

The College District's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan and
the net OPEB obligation for 2009 and 2010 are:

Fiscal Year

2009
2010

Annual OPEB Annual OPEB Net OPEB
Cost Cost Contributed Obligation

$ 197,576 46.30% $ 106,089

$ 201,289 70.15% $ 166,069
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OPEB Actuarial Assumptions

Part of the long-term assumption regarding the future cost of the retiree health plan is that it will retain its
current relationship to the cost of the active plan, and that the active plan cost will maintain a reasonable
relationship to direct compensation. Key assumptions include the following:

1. Investment Return Assumption (Interest Discount): 3.5%.

2. Medical Premium Annual Trend Rate: 11% initial increase, reducing to 5.0% over 12 years.

3. Dental and Vision Premium Annual Trend Rate: 9.0% initial increase, reducing to 3.0% over 12
years.

4. Annual Cost-of-living Increase: 2.5%.

The investment return assumption is the estimated long-term investment yield on the assets that are
expected to be used to finance the payment of benefits. Since the Plan is currently unfunded, the
investment return assumption is set equal to the expected long-term return on the College District's own
investment funds. The assumption is that 3.5% is a reasonable proxy for that investment return over the
long-term.

Disability Rates Disability rates are assumed to be immaterial for purpose of this OPEB actuarial
valuation.

Covered Spouse 50% of future retirees are assumed to cover a spouse, and male spouses are
assumed to be 3 years older than female spouses when date of birth is not
provided.

Sick Leave Accrual Employees are assumed to use 50% of the sick leave that they accrue each year.

Entry Age Normal Method

The Entry Age Normal Cost Method (EAN) is used to determine the Actuarial Accrued Liability and the
Normal Cost.

Under this method, the actuarial present value of the projected benefits of each active employee included
in the valuation is allocated on a level dollar basis over the service of the active employee between
assumed entry age (date of hire) and assumed exit age(s). The portion of this actuarial present vaiue
allocated to the valuation year is called the normal cost for that active employee. The sum of these
individual normal costs is the Pian’s Normali Cost for the valuation year.

The present value of benefits for current retirees plus the accumulated value of all prior Normal Costs is the
Actuarial Accrued Liability. The excess of the Actuarial Accrued Liability over Plan Assets is the Unfunded
Accrued Actuarial Liability (UAAL). The UAAL for the OPEB Plan is amortized over a 30-year open
amortization period.

Under this method, the actuarial gains (losses), as they occur, reduce (increase) the Unfunded Accrued
Actuarial Liability while leaving the Normal Cost unchanged.

Actuarial Method, Funding, and Expense

The EAN method is used to develop an annual required contribution (ARC) in accordance with accepted
actuarial methods.

The ARC is the basic building biock of cost recognition and is equal to the sum of the Normal Cost and a
payment to amortize the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability over a period not to exceed 30 years. Total
annual contributions may or may not be equal to the Annual Required Contribution in any given year. In
the event that the College District contributes more or less than the Annual OPEB/Pension Cost in any
year, a credit or debt is made to an interest bearing OPEB/Pension funding account. The balance in the
funding account is either a net asset or a net liability on the College District’s balance sheet and amortized
through a corresponding increase or decrease to the ARC in the following valuation. An “unfunded liability”
is calculated as the excess of the Actuarial Accrued Liability over Plan Assets.
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Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of events far into the future, and that actuarially determined amounts, such as the funded status
of the plan and the annual required contribution of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual
results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Actuarial
calculations reflect a long-term perspective. The schedule of funding progress presents multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of the plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. The schedule of funding progress is required to
report the last three actuarial valuations, however the June 30, 2009 valuation is the only full valuation
prepared to date, with an actuarial roll-forward of the valuation information as of June 30, 2010.

Funded Status and Funding Progress.

As of June 30, 2010 the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $2.34 million, and the actuarial value of
assets was $0, resulting in @ UAAL of $2.34 million. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active
employees covered by the plan) was $12.06 million for fiscal year 2010 and the ratio for the UAAL to the
covered payroll was 19.37%. Using a 30-year amortization period the ARC for 2010 has been actuarially
determined to be $197,576.

STIPEND PLAN

Stipend Plan Description. The College District also provides a single-employer defined early retirement
supplement (Stipend) program. This program covers certain eligible retirees or personnel! of the College
District as stipulated under both 1997 and 2002 Plans. There are currently 250 people enrolled in this
program comprised of 134 active and 14 retired in the 1997 Plan and 102 active in the 2002 Plan. The
College District does not issue a stand alone report for this plan.

1997 Plan

Stipend Benefits Payout of % of unused sick leave at the rate of pay at date of retirement. Payment
may be made with final paycheck or in 12 monthly instailments. FICA taxes apply to
this benefit.

Spouse Benefits If a retiree over 70 has a spouse younger than 70, the College District will continue
to make the payments described above for the spouse until the spouse turns 70 or
the retiree dies.

All benefits to the spouse end upon the retiree’s death.
2002 Plan
Stipend Benefits Payout of % of unused sick leave at the rate of pay at the date of retirement

multiplied by the adjustment rate below. Payment may be made with final paycheck
or in 12 monthly instaliments. FICA taxes apply to this benefit.

Continuous employment with the District Adjustment Rate
20 but less than 25 50%
25 but less than 30 75%
30+ YOS 100%

Stipend Plan Funding Policy

The College District finances the plan on a “pay as you go” basis and pays for all the benefits. For the year
ended June 30, 2010, the College District recognized approximately $30,000 in expenditures in the fund
financial statements for the amount paid, and approximately $123,000 in the full accrual Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets for the early retirement supplement program.
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Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation

The College District's annual Stipend Plan pension cost (expense) is reflected on the Statement of Net
Assets on the accrual basis, and is calculated on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC),
an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 27. The
ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each

year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30
years.

The following table shows the components of the College District's annual pension cost for the year ending
June 30, 2010, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the College District's net
Stipend Plan obligation.

Normal cost at year end $ 53,081
Amortization of UAAL 67,017
Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 120,098
ARC - Stipend Plan $ 120,098
interest on prior year net Stipend Plan obligation 2,905
Annual Stipend Plan cost 123,003
Contributions made (29,538)
Increase in net Stipend Plan obligation 93,465
Net Stipend Plan obligation - beginning of year 83,007
Net Stipend Plan obligation - end of year $ 176,472

The College District's annual pension cost, the percentage of annual pension cost contributed to the plan
and the net pension obligation for 2009 and 2010 are:

Fiscal Year Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
2009 $ 120,098 30.88% $ 83,007
2010 $ 123,003 24.01% $ 176,472

Stipend Plan Actuarial Assumptions.

Part of the long-term assumption regarding the future cost of the retiree health plan is that it will retain its
current relationship to the cost of the active plan, and that the active plan cost will maintain a reasonable
relationship to direct compensation. Key assumptions include the following:

1. Investment Return Assumption (Interest Discount): 3.5%.
2. Medical Premium Annual Trend Rate: 11% initial increase, reducing to 5.0% over 12 years.
3

Dental and Vision Premium Annual Trend Rate: 9.0% initial increase, reducing to 3.0% over 12
years.

4. Annual Cost-of-living Increase: 2.5%

46



The investment return assumption is the estimated long-term investment yield on the assets that are
expected to be used to finance the payment of benefits. Since the Plan is currently unfunded, the
investment return assumption is set equal to the expected long-term return on the College District's own
investment funds. The assumption is that 3.5% is a reasonable proxy for that investment return over the
long-term.

Disability Rates Disability rates are assumed to be immaterial for purposes of this Stipend Plan
actuarial valuation.

Covered Spouse 50% of future retirees are assumed to cover a spouse, and male spouses are
assumed to be 3 years older than female spouses when date of birth is not
provided.

Sick Leave Accrual Employees are assumed to use 50% of the sick leave that they accrue each year.

Entry Age Normal Method

The Entry Age Normal Cost Method (EAN) is used to determine the Actuarial Accrued Liability and the
Normal Cost.

Under this method, the actuarial present value of the projected benefits of each active employee included
in the valuation is allocated on a level dollar basis over the service of the active employee between
assumed entry age (date of hire) and assumed exit age(s). The portion of this actuarial present value
allocated to the valuation year is called the normal cost for that active employee. The sum of these
individual normal costs is the Plan’s Normal Cost for the valuation year.

The present value of benefits for current retirees plus the accumulated value of alf prior Normal Costs is the
Actuarial Accrued Liability. The excess of the Actuarial Accrued Liability over Plan Assets is the Unfunded
Accrued Actuarial Liability (UAAL). The UAAL for the Stipend Plan is amortized over a 30-year open
amortization period.

Under this method, the actuarial gains (losses), as they occur, reduce (increase) the Unfunded Accrued
Actuarial Liability while [eaving the Normal Cost unchanged.

Actuarial Method, Funding, and Expense

The EAN method is used to develop an annual required contribution (ARC) in accordance with accepted
actuarial methods.

The ARC is the basic building block of cost recognition and is equal to the sum of the Normal Cost and a
payment to amortize the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability over a period not to exceed 30 years. Total
annual contributions may or may not be equal to the Annual Required Contribution in any given year. In
the event that the College District contributes more or less than the Annual Pension Cost in any year, a
credit or debt is made to an interest bearing Pension funding account. The balance in the funding account
is either a net asset or a net liability on the College District's balance sheet and amortized through a
corresponding increase or decrease to the ARC in the following valuation. An “unfunded liability” is
calculated as the excess of the Actuarial Accrued Liability over Plan Assets.

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the

probability of events far into the future, and that actuarially determined amounts, such as the funded status

of the plan and the annual required contribution of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual

results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Actuarial .
calculations reflect a long-term perspective. The schedule of funding progress presents multiyear trend

information about whether the actuarial value of the plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time

relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. The schedule of funding progress is required to

report the last three actuarial valuations, however the June 30, 2009 valuation is the only full valuation

prepared to date, with an actuarial roll-forward of the valuation information as of June 30, 2010.
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Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of June 30, 2010 the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $1.38 million, and the actuarial value of
assets was $0, resulting in a UAAL of $1.38 million. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active
employees covered by the plan) was $12.06 million for fiscal year 2010 and the ratio of the UAAL to the
covered payroll was 11.40%. Using a 30-year amortization period the ARC for 2010 has been actuarially
determined to be $120,098.

Schedule of Funding Progress

As of June 30, 2009, the most recent full actuarial valuation date with an actuarial roll-forward of the
valuation information as of June 30, 2010, the College District's OPEB and Stipend Plans are currently
“unfunded” in accordance with the relevant GASB statements. The table below presents a schedule of
funding progress for the most recent actuarial valuation of the College District's postretirement plans.

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial AAL UAAL UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of Actuarial Unfunded Percentage
Valuation Plan Accrued Accrued Funded Covered of Covered
Date Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Payroll
OPEB Plan:
6/30/2009 $ - $ 2,279,427 $ 2,279,427 0% $10,227,554 22.29%
6/30/2010 - 2,335,368 2,335,368 0% 12,059,133 19.37%
Stipend Plan:
6/30/2009 - 1,275,723 1,275,723 0% 10,227,554 12.47%
6/30/2010 - 1,375,312 1,375,312 0% 12,059,133 11.40%

Prior Period Adjustment

The District's beginning net assets have been restated to reflect a correction in reporting of bond discounts
and the related amortization. During the drafting of the 2009-2010 financial statements for external
reporting purposes, it was discovered that an error had been made in prior years' financial statements in
preparation of financial statements for external reporting. The error, in the amount of $212,242, is related
to the 2008 bond refunding. The result was that net assets were overstated. Properly recording the bond
discounts and related amortization is considered a correction of an error. This did not result in a correction
of the College District’s accounting records.

Inclusion of this adjustment in the 2009-2010 externally issued financial statements resulted in a prior
period adjustment. The result is a decrease in net assets at June 30, 2010 by $212,242.

J. Subsequent Events

As discussed in Note Il F 2 above, the College District entered into several new lease agreements as
lessor to rent building and facilities space to Oregon Coast Community Action.
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION




GENERAL FUND

The general fund is used to account for resources and activities directly associated with carrying out those
operations related to the College District's basic educational objectives. Inciuded are all resources and activities
which are not required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in another fund.

Resources are primarily from state operational support, local property taxes and student tuition and fees. The
majority of general fund expenditures are salaries, fringe benefits and supplies used to provide student instruction,
instructional support and general operations for the College District.
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SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
GENERAL FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Revenues:
Local support
State support
Federal support
Tuition and fees
Other

Total revenue
Expenditures:
Personal services
Materials and services
Debt service

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in

Transfers out

Issuance of debt, short-term
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

See auditor's report.

Budget

Original Final Actual Variance
$ 4649481 $ 4649481 $ 4,718,020 $ 68,539
7,253,563 7,253,563 7,318,968 65,405
33,500 33,500 30,317 (3,183)
5,086,598 5,086,598 5,351,341 264,743
291,450 291,450 364,713 73,263
17,314,592 17,314,592 17,783,359 468,767
12,203,968 12,568,972 12,078,416 490,556
3,590,022 3,390,022 3,105,963 284,059
6,050,000 5,550,000 4,785,605 764,395
21,843,990 21,508,994 19,969,984 1,639,010
(4,529,398) (4,194,402) (2,186,625) 2,007,777
369,000 534,004 530,294 (3,710)
(1,584,602) (2,084,602) (2,359,293) (274,691)
6,000,000 6,000,000 3,340,000 (2,660,000)
4,784,398 4,449 402 1,511,001 (2,938,401)
255,000 255,000 (675,624) (930,624)
545,000 545,000 1,979,341 1,434,341

$ 800,000 $ 800,000 $ 1,303,717 $ 503,717
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used to account for resources and activities that are required legally or by sound
financial management to be accounted for in separate funds.

Financial Aid — This fund is used to account for federal and state loans, grants, stipends, or other aid to

enrolled students. Pell grants, Perkins Loans, SEOG funds and FWS funds are the primary revenue
sources.

Special Projects — This fund is used to account for proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally
restricted to specific purposes other than direct student financial aid. Special projects, grants, and other
contracts for designated purposes are the primary revenue sources. Expenditures are restricted to those
items designated or stipulated for in the agreements by each grant, project or contract.

Insurance Reserve — This fund is used to account for resources set aside to provide additional protection

for the College District in case of uninsured losses. Earnings on investments and transfers from other
funds are the primary revenue sources.
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SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
FINANCIAL AID FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budget
Original Final Actual Variance

Revenues:

State support '$ 733,000 $ 733,000 834,986 $ 101,986

Federal support 3,203,000 3,203,000 3,578,084 375,084
Total revenues 3,936,000 3,936,000 4,413,070 477,070
Expenditures:

Personal services : 94,000 94,000 74,356 19,644

Other financial aid 3,842,000 3,842,000 4,338,714 (496,714)
Total expenditures 3,936,000 3,836,000 4,413,070 (477,070)
Net change in fund balance - - - -
Fund balance at beginning of year - - - -
Fund balance at end of year $ - 9 - - $ -

See auditor's report.
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SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

SPECIAL PROJECTS FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Revenues:
Local support
State support
Federal support
Tuition and fees
Other '

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Personal services
Materials and services
Capital outlay
Contingency

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Issuance of debt
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

See auditor's report.

Budget
Original Final Actual Variance

$ 569951 $ 569951 $§ 521,235 $ (48,716)
600,000 600,000 323,018 (276,982)
3,930,904 3,930,904 3,416,878 (514,026)
600,000 600,000 199,881 (400,119)
923,493 923,493 777,808 (145,685)
6,624,348 6,624,348 5,238,820 (1,385,528)

3,591,745 3,591,745 2,816,968 774,777

2,114,022 2,114,022 1,508,040 605,982

1,020,000 1,020,000 933,154 86,846

50,000 50,000 - 50,000

8,775,767 8,775,767 5,258,162 1,517,605

(151,419) (151,419) (19,342) 132,077
41,491 41,491 14,902 (26,589)

(125,000) (125,000) - 125,000

- - 180,738 180,738

(83,509) (83,509) 195,640 279,149

(234,928) (234,928) 176,298 411,226

234,928 234,928 939,133 704,205

$ -3 - % 1115431 $ 1,115431
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SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
INSURANCE RESERVE FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Revenues:
Other

Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Personal services
Materials and services
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

See auditor's report.

Budget
Original Final Actual Variance
$ 36,000 $ 36,000 $ 13,105  § (22,895)
36,000 36,000 13,105 (22,895)
15,000 15,000 - 15,000
574,424 574,424 10,257 564,167
435,364 435,364 - 435,364
1,024,788 1,024,788 10,257 1,014,531
(988,788) (988,788) 2,848 991,636
546,788 546,788 - (546,788)
(442,000) (442,000) 2,848 444 848
442,000 442,000 443,174 1,174
$ -9 - $ 446,022 $ 446,022
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DEBT SERVICE FUND

Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources and payment of general long-term debt
principal and interest.

Bonded Debt - This fund is used to account for principal and interest on lease and bond indebtedness. The
primary source of revenue is transfers from the General Fund.
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SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Revenues:
' Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Debt service

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

See auditor's report.

DEBT SERVICE FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

.Budget

Original Final Actual Variance

$ 762,000 $ 762,000 $ 752811 $ (9,189)

762,000 762,000 752,811 (9,189)
1,685,000 1,685,000 1,670,890 14,110
(923,000) (923,000) (918,079) 4,921
923,000 923,000 918,079 (4,921)
$ -3 -3 -3 -
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities.

Plant - This fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for acquisition or construction of major
capital facilities, the purchase of major initial equipment, and major remodeling. Borrowed funds, state support,
earnings on investments, and transfers from other funds are the primary revenue sources.
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SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

PLANT FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budget
Original Final Actual Variance

Revenues:

State support _ _ % 6,300,000 $ 6,300,000 $ 2993315 $ (3,306,685)

Other income 3,300,000 3,300,000 69,577 (3,230,423)
Total revenues 9,600,000 9,600,000 3,062,892 (6,537,108)
Expenditures:

Personal services 13,950 13,950 - 13,950

Materials and services 2,879,277 2,879,277 2,054,054 825,223

Capital outlay 8,354,000 8,354,000 2,088,782 6,265,218
Total expenditures 11,247,227 11,247,227 4,142,836 7,104,391
Excess (deficiency) of revenues (1,647,227) (1,647,227) (1,079,944) 567,283

over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in 147,227 147,227 647,227 500,000

Transfers out (62,896) (62,896) - 62,896

Issuance of debt - - 5,934,262 5,934,262
Total other financing sources (uses) 84,331 84,331 6,581,489 6,497,158
Net change in fund balance (1,562,896) (1,562,896) 5,501,545 7,064,441
Fund balance at beginning of year 1,562,896 1,562,896 1,019,623 (543,273)
Fund balance at end of year 3 - 9% - $ 6521168 $ 6,521,168

See auditor's report.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Enterprise Fund - Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises - where the intent to the College District's Board is that the costs of providing
goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges; or where the College District's Board of Education has decided that periodic determination of net income
is appropriate for accountability purposes.

Enterprise - This fund is used to account for the operations of the College District's Bookstore, the
Newmark Center, student housing, food service, conferencing, and culinary arts. Sales of books and
supplies and lease rental payments are the primary revenue sources.

Internal Service Fund — Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided
by one department of the College District to the other departments on a cost reimbursement basis.
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SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Operating revenues:
Tuition and fees
Other
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Personal services
Materials and services
Debt service
Total operating expenses
Income before transfers
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net income (loss)

Beginning retained earnings

Ending retained earnings

See auditor's report.

ENTERPRISE FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budget
Original Final Actual Variance
$ 3,114,947 $ 3,114,947 2,331,165 § (783,782)
4,074,301 4,930,537 4,990,413 59,876
7,189,248 8,045,484 7,321,578 (723,908)
1,634,679 1,844,641 1,593,201 251,440
3,667,227 4,148,497 3,965,230 183,267
1,432,991 1,432,991 1,408,895 24,096
6,734,897 7,426,129 6,967,326 458,803
454,351 619,355 354,252 (265,103)
490,580 490,580 708,352 217,772
(944,931) (1,109,935) (632,780) 477,155
(454,351) (619,355) 75,572 694,927
- - 429,824 429,824
- - (80,713) (80,713)
$ - % - 349,111 § 349,111
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SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Operating revenues:
Charges for services

Operating expenses:
Personal services
“Materials and services

Total operating expenses

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in

Net income (loss)
Beginning retained earnings

Ending retained earnings

See auditor's report.

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budget
Original Final Actual Variance
$ 353000 $ 353,000 $ 326150 % (26,850)
228,893 228,893 227,629 1,264
345,150 345,150 266,865 ‘ 78,285
574,043 574,043 494,494 79,549
(221,043) (221,043) (168,344) 52,699
221,043 221,043 168,344 (52,699)
$ - 3 - 9 -8 -
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TRUST AND AGENCY FUND

The trust and agency fund is used to account for assets held by the College District as an agent for individuals,
private organizations, other governmental units, and/or other funds (e.g. student clubs and service organizations).

Expenditure of funds is determined by the organization for whom the funds are held. Contributions and club
receipts are the primary revenue sources.
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SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL

BUDGET AND ACTAUL (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
TRUST AND AGENCY FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Revenues:
Tuition and fees
Other

Total revenues

Operating expenses:
Personal services
Materials and services
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning of year

Fund balance - end of year

See auditor's report.

Budget
Original Final Actual Variance

$ 35000 $ 35,000 33,661 § (1,339)
140,700 140,700 98,989 (41,711)
175,700 175,700 132,650 (43,050)
20,000 20,000 2,344 17,656
244,000 244,000 135,181 108,819
10,000 10,000 - 10,000
274,000 274,000 137,525 136,475
(98,300) {98,300) (4,875) 93,425
8,300 8,300 8,286 (14)
(30,000) (30,000) (3,411) 26,589
(21,700) (21,700) 4,875 26,575
(120,000) (120,000) - 120,000
120,000 120,000 - (120,000)

$ -3 - - 9 -
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JIM HOUGH, CPA . LAURAFISHER, CPA
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JOE COLO CPA . KARL M_AXQN, CPA:

REPORT ON lNTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
'BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
. IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

January 14, 201 1
vTo the Southwestern Oregon Com.mu’nity‘Co_Ilege District Board of Education:

- We have audited the accompanymg flnanC|al statements of the busmess -type. activities, the dlscretely presented- .

- .component unit, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Southwestern Oregon Community College District.

as.of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise Southwestern:Oregon Community - College
District's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon ‘dated January 14, 2011. ‘We conducted. .

- . our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the

. standards applicable to. financial audits contamed m Govemment Audn‘/ng Standards |ssued by the Comptrollerfz_""

B .General of the United States

‘lnternal Control Over Fmanclal Reportmg

I plannlng and performmg our audlt we, conS|dered Southwestern Oregon Comrnumty College Dlstrlct’s mternal
" control over financial reporting as a basis- for designing our auditing. procedures for the purpose .of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose. of expressing.an opinion -on ‘the effectiveness of =

\Southwestern Oregon Community’ College District's internal control over financial reporting. Accordmgly, ‘we do not L o

' - express an opinion on the effectlveness of Southwestern Oregon Communlty College Dlstrlct’s mternal control over B

e fmanmal reportmg

“A deﬁcrency in mternal control exrsts when the deS|gn or operat|on of a control does not allow management or -

" .employees, .in. the. normal coursé of -performing, their assngned functions, to prevent or detect and correct’ ™ - -
‘misstatements on.a tlmely ba3|s A materlal weakness is a deftcrency, ora comblnatlon of deficiencies, in internal - FUNEN
control such that.there is @ reasonable p053|b|lrty that a material mlsstatement of the entltys fi nanmal statementsf

L wnII not be prevented or detected and corrected ona tlmely baS|s

{Our conSIderatlon of mternal control over fmanCIal reportlng was. for. the’ llmlted purpose descrlbed in- the flrst. :
E paragraph of this section and was not designed to |dent1fy all deficiencies in mternal control over fmancral reporting..-

B .,'that might be deficiencies, .significant, deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any’ deﬂcnenCles ln, v o

SO |nterna| control over flnanCIal reportmg that we consrder to be materlal weaknesses as deflned above

] fCompllance and Other Matters

As part of obtalnlng reasonable assurance about whether Southwestern Oregon Communlty College Dlstrlct' S -
“financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain. provisions .
of laws, regulatrons contracts and- grant‘agreements, noncompllance with which could have a dlrect and material

- effect on the determination of financial statéement amounts. . However, providing an opinion on compliance with .
those provisions was not ‘an objective of our. audit, and- accordlngly, ‘we do not-express such ‘an opinion. - The -
~ results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompllance or other mattérs that are required to be reported under’. . -
~ Government Auditing Standards and which are déscribed in the accompanying schedule of fi ndlngs and questloned“

costs as |tem 2010-1. :
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We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of Southwestern Oregon Community College
District in a separate letter dated January 14, 2011.

Southwestern Oregon Community College District’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit Southwestern Oregon Community
College District's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management; the Board of Education; the State of
Oregon, Secretary of State, Division of Audits; and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

MM )/I/M/OC///W 'g/

Hough, lacAdam & Wartnik, LLC
Certified Public Accountants
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SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S COMMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

Audit Report Requirements

Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-0000 through 162-10-0330 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon
Municipal Corporations, prescribed by the Secretary of State in cooperation with the Oregon State Board of
Accountancy, enumerate the financial statements, schedules, comments, and disclosures required in audit reports.
The required schedules, comments, and disclosures not included in the preceding section of this report are set forth
following:

Accounting Systems and Internal Controls

The College District's accounting and internal controls systems are adequate and the accounting records are
properly maintained. The internal controls for the College District are operating as designed and no material
weaknesses were noted. :

Collateral

Based on the results of our tests, balances on deposit with financial institutions were secured in accordance with
the requirements of ORS 295.015.

Indebtedness
Based on the results of our tests, the College District has not exceeded its legal debt limitation as provided by ORS
328.245. The College District was in compliance with all debt covenants and all payments were made on a timely

basis.

Budget

We reviewed the preparation, adoption, and execution of the budget for the current year and the preparation and
adoption of the ensuing year's budget.

Based on the results of our tests, the College District has complied with statutory requirements for the current and
ensuing year's budgets except as follows:

Expenditures exceeded appropriations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 in the following amounts:

General Fund
Transfers out $ 274,691

Financial Aid Fund
Other financial aid $ 496,714

The resolution authorizing appropriations for each fund sets the level by which expenditures cannot legally exceed
appropriations. Total personal services, materials and services, capital outlay, debt service, transfers, and
contingency are the levels of control.
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Insurance and Fidelity Bonds

The College District is in compliance with the legal requirements pertaining to insurance and fidelity bond coverage.
We are not competent by training to state whether the insurance policies covering College District owned property
in force at June 30, 2010, are adequate.

Based on the results of our tests, the College District has complied with the provisions of ORS 332.525 regarding
the bonding of College District personnel.

Investments

Based on the results of our tests, the College District is in compliance with legal requirements of ORS 294
pertaining to investment of public funds.

Public Contracts and Purchasing

Based on the results of our tests and our review of the minutes, the College District is in compliance with the
provisions of ORS 279 pertaining to the awarding of public contracts and the construction of public improvements.

Programs Funded from Outside Sources

We selected and tested, to the extent deemed appropriate, transactions, records, and reports relative to programs
funded wholly or partially by other governmental agencies.

The results of our tests indicate, for the items tested, the College District complied with the laws, rules, and
regulations pertaining to programs funded wholly or partially by other governmental agencies, and for the items
tested, financial reports and related data were in agreement with and supported by the accounting records.

Separate reports have been issued to report on compliance with appropriate laws and regulations pertaining to
Federal Financial Assistance.

ADM Formula
The provisions of ORS 327.013 are not applicable to the College District.
Statement of Accountability for Independently Elected Officials

This statement is not applicable to the College District.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND.
"MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVERCOMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

January 14, 26’1‘1
~ To the Southwestern OregonCommunity College,Distrlct B'oard'of Educatio’n:‘, ‘

Compllance

e We have audlted the compllance of Southwestern Oregon Communrty College: Dlstnct wrth the types of compllance ST
- requirements described in the U: S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance .
-Supplement that could have a direct and- material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended
~ June 30,.2010. "Southwestern Oregon Community College District's major, federal. programs are identified in the
. summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Complrance' P
- with the requrrements of laws; regulatlons contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is
- the responsrblllty of Seuthwestern Oregon Communrty College District's management Our responsrblllty is. to]
_ express an oprnlon on College Dlstrict's complrance based on our audlt .

’ : We conducted our audlt of compllance in accordance wrth audltlng standards generally accepted in the. Unlted‘.\. -

States of America; the standards appllcable to financial audits contained in_ Government Auditing Standards, issued - .

. by the- Comptroller- General ‘of the United States; and OMB Circular- A-133, Audits of States; Local Governments, . .
- Land Non-Profit Organlzat/ons Those standards. and OMB Clrcular A-133 require that we, plan and. perform the .
- audit to. obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncomplrance with’ ‘the. types of compliance requrrements, B

s referred to above- that could have a difect and material effect-on a major federal program in. the accompanying, -
: schedule of flndlngs and questroned costs occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basrs ‘evidence about -

o Southwestern Oregon Community College District's compliance-with those requiremerits and' performrng such other " : A o
. .procedures as. we- consrdered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit prowdes a'reasonable = ‘¢

: - basis -for-our opinion.’ Our audit does not provide a Iegal determlnatron of Southwestern Oregon Commumtyv ‘
College Dlstnct 'S. complrance wrth those requrrements .

g In. our oplnron Southwestern Oregon Communrty College Drstnct complred in all matenal respects with the

‘ complrance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on-each. ofits: major federal

o programs identified ln the accompanylng schedule of findings and questroned costs for the year ended June 30,
: 2010 : . . t . ,

lnternal Control Over Compllance -

‘Management of Southwestern Oregon Communrty College Dlstnct is' responsible for establrshrng and. marntalnrng i

“effective - internal control over compliance - with the requrrements of 'laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to each of its major federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered
Southwestern-Oregon Community .College District's internal control over compliance with, the requrrements that .
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for

‘ the purpose of expressing our opinion on complrance and to test and report on internal contro! over compllance in
~accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressmg an opinion on the effectiveness of -

o _internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the ef‘fectlveness of Southwestern v

Oregon Communlty Coliege Drstnct s.internal control over complrance
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be deficiencies, significant
deficiencies, or material weaknesses in internal control over compliance. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be significant deficiencies as
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2010-1. A significant deficiency
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Southwestern Oregon Community College District's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit Southwestern Oregon Community
College District's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management; the Board of Education, the State of
Oregon, Secretary of State, Division of Audits; and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Hough, MgcAdam & Wartnik, LLC
Certified Public Accountants
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SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

SECTION | SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

Financial Statements

1.

The auditor’s report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of Southwestern Oregon
Community College District (College District).

No significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control were disclosed by the audit of the
basic financial statements of the College District.

No instances of noncompliance material to the basic financial statements of the College District were
disclosed during the audit.

Federal Awards

4.

8.

9.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance with compliance requirements of major federal
award programs disclosed during the audit is reported in the Report on Compliance with Requirements
Applicable to Each Major Program and Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular
A-133. The deficiency is not reported as a material weakness.

The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal awards programs for the College District
expresses an unqualified opinion.

Audit findings that are required to be reported under Section 510(a) of Circular A-133 are reported in this
schedule.

The programs tested as major programs were:

CFDA
Program/Cluster Number
Student Financial Assistance Cluster:
Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063
Federal Supplemental Education Opportunity Grants 84.007
Academic Competitiveness Grants 84.375
Federal Work-Study Program 84.033
Employment and Training Administration
Career Pathways Innovation Fund Grant 17.269

The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,000.

Southwestern Oregon Community College District did not qualify as a low-risk auditee.

SECTION Il FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None
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SECTION Ill FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY
2010-1. Disclosure and dissemination of institutional information

CONDITION: Certain required dissemination and distribution requirements related to Student Consumer
information were not fully met. While certain instances of noncompliance within a requirement were noted, the
instances pertained to the location and form of availability, or notification of availability of certain reports and
information, but overall requirements fulfiled. There have been no known reported or recorded complaints to
management from Students or Consumers pertaining to the required information.

CRITERIA: The Higher Education Act of 1965 (the Act), as amended, includes requirements for dissemination and
distribution of reports and information specified in the Act, notices of availability, or the availability of such reports
and information that can largely be described as Student Consumer Information.

CAUSE AND EFFECT OF CONDITION: College District website revisions were made such that information, whiie
ultimately available, was not always easily found or available at the intended location. Also, responsibility for
preparation and distribution of required Student Consumer Information was spread across several departments at
the institution. This resulted in certain material not being linked or referenced to completely, although information
and requirements were ultimately found and met.

RECOMMENDATION: It was recommended the College District implement the National Postsecondary Education
Cooperative (NPEC) Suggestions for Dissemination.

CLIENT RESPONSE: The Coilege District responded immediately by assembling a steering committee to
successfully address information form and location and to resolve all link and availability issues. An assessment of
compliance with Act requirements was made by management, and responsibility assigned for ongoing periodic
review by the steering committee for continued compliance with Student Consumer Information dissemination
requirements. The auditor recommendation was accepted and the College District will be implementing NPEC
Suggestions as soon as practicable

SECTION IV PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS —~ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT YEAR
END JUNE 30, 2009

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY
2009-1. Accounting Procedures

CONDITION: The College District does not have adequate and documented accounting, reconciliation, and review
procedures in place, nor technical accounting personnel on staff, to prepare accurate financial statements and note
disclosures and schedules in compliance with GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles) and GASB
(Government Accounting Standards Board) Statement No. 34 requirement. During the current fiscal year
significant and material audit adjustments were required to be made to certain accounts such as the PERS Side
Account, the net prepaid pension assets, the pension bonded debt and obligations, the GASB Statement No. 45
implementation requirement for the new other postemployment benefits (OPEB) presentations schedules and
disclosures, and other required financial statement preparation procedures in order for the College District's
government-wide recording and reporting to be in compliance with GAAP and GASB provisions. The complex
nature of these procedures and accounts require qualified review and analysis to correctly record, present,
disclose, reconcile and report these activities and account balances in the year-end financial statements in
accordance with GAAP and GASB requirements. 4

CRITERIA: Several material adjustments were required to be made as a result of the audit in order to report and

present the basic financial statement in accordance with GAAP, and the audit firm also compiled the basic financial
statements, note disclosures, and required schedules for the 2008-2009 audit year.
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CAUSE OF CONDITION: The College District does not have adequate or documented accounting reconciliation
and review procedures in place, nor technically qualified and knowledgeable personnel on staff, to record and
report the certain required transactions in compliance with GAAP. This became pronounced with the elimination
and understaffing of key accounting positions at the start of, and during, the previous fiscal period and during the
fiscal year under audit.

EFFECT OF CONDITION: The Coilege District retained the services of an outside CPA firm to assist with their
GASB Statement Numbers 34 and 35 conversion and government-wide financial presentation requirements and
certain necessary schedules, however, year end government-wide financial statements were not initially in full
compliance with GAAP or GASB requirements, and the audit firm compiled required financial statements,
schedules, and note disclosures.

RECOMMENDATION: The audit firm encourages management to take special precaution to ensure that all
accounts are reviewed, reconciled, and appropriately adjusted as required and needed throughout the fiscal year.
We also recommend a further staffing needs’ assessment of the business office to determine that it has adequate
resources, knowledge, staff, training, and expertise needed to proactively manage and report the College District's
required financial and reporting activity.

CLIENT RESPONSE: In the guidance materials, American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA)
Statement on Auditing Standard (SAS) No. 112 stipulates that the College District may execute the option of hiring
a third party (not the auditor) to prepare the required financial statements. Alternately, SAS 112 specifies that the
College District could opt to have the auditor prepare the financial statements knowing that it will result in a finding.

The College District acknowiedges that the elimination of the Business Manager position at the start of FY08 (July
2007) created a deficiency of knowledge, experience or staffing in the Business office that was not adequately
backfiled by the hiring of additional staff or consulting expertise. Management is evaluating the current
organizational structure and staffing requirements of the Business Office, acknowledging the impact of the
elimination of the Business Manager position. The College District will continue to engage consultants (for
example, CPA firm and actuarial firm) to add specific expertise as needed to address GAAP and GASB
requirements.
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SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Agency
Federal Grantor/pass-through Grantor/Program Title CFDA # Number Expenditures
U. S. Department of Education:
Direct programs:
Student Financial Assistance Programs Cluster:
Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063 * P063P092071 $ 3,381,613
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 84.007 * PO07A093511 73,934
Federal Academic Competitiveness Grants 84.375 * P375A092071 31,099
Federal Work-Study Program 84.033 * P033A083511 91,438
Trio Program Cluster: o o _ _ ‘
Educational Talent Search 84.044A P044A070624-09 531,910
Student Support Services 84.042A P042A070416-09A 319,623
Upward Bound 84.047A P047A071168-09 253,900
Higher Education Institutional Aid (Title 11I) 84.031A P031A060194-09 365,514
CREATED (Collaborative Relevent Education & Applied
Technologies for Economic Development) 84-116Z P116Z2090269 71,300
Pass-through programs from:
Oregon Department of Education: :
Family Literacy - Even Start 84.213 17701 163,741
Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 84.048 15357 106,175
Tech Prep Education 84.243 15357 33,715
Oregon Department of Community Colleges and Workforce Development:
Adult Education - Basic Grants to States 84.002A EE91019 118,889
Career and Technical Education-Basic Grants to States 84.048 IGRAQ304 12,049
Career and Technical Education-Basic Grants to States 84.002 IGRAQ287 2,673
Total U.S. Department of Education 5,657,573
U. S. Small Business Administration
Pass-through programs from:
Oregon Small Business Development Network:
Small Business Development Center 59.037 09155/10155 36,889
U.S. Department of Health and Human Service
Pass-through programs from:
Coos County, Commission on Children and Families:
Child Care and Development Biock Grant 93.658 10,072
Child Care Resouce and Referral Network: '
Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575 119,283
ARRA - Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.713 ARRA09-10RR08 26,627
South Coast Business Employment Corporation:
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families TANF 93.558 TANF 09-101 97,607
Oregon Depariment of Human Services:
Medical Assistance Program 93.778 128225 24,850
Community-Based Child Abuse Prevention 93.590 122775 73,841
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Service 352,280
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SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Federal Grantor/pass-through Grantor/Program Title

CFDA #

Agency
Number

Expenditures

U.S. Department of Labor

Direct programs:

Employment and Training Administration

Pass-through Programs:

Oregon Department of Community Colleges and Workforce Development:
ARRA - WIA Youth Activities

Del Norte Workforce Center:
Employment and Training Adminstration, Community-Based Job Training

Total U.S. Department of Labor

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Pass-through programs from:

State of Oregon, Dept of Education:
Child & Adult Care Food Program
Summer Food Service Food Program for Children

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

Corporation for National and Community Service

Direct programs:
Retired and Senior Volunteer Program

Total Federal Assistance

*Major Programs

See notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 74

17.269 * CB-18238-08-60-A-41

17.259

17.269

10.558
10.559

94.002

IGRA0287

08SRPOR002

682,085

1,146

7,165

690,396

298,304
2,826

301,130

64,386

$ 7,002,654



SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 1 - Significant Accounting Policies
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of
Southwestern Oregon Community College District and is presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic
financial statements.

NOTE 2 —- Federal Family Education Loan Programs

The amounts of new Federal Family Education Loan Program student loans disbursed by individual outside
lending institutions during the year ended June 30, 2010 are as follows:

Federal Stafford Loans $ 3,423,634
Federal Plus Loans $ 304,620

Interest subsidies and other costs related to these loans are not listed on the schedule since these amounts go
to the lender and not the College District.

NOTE 3 — Subrecipients

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the College District did not provide any financial awards to subrecipients.
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Oregon Community Colleges Articulation Agreements

Blue Mountain Community College = www.bluecc.edu/students_transfer Articulation

University of Idaho
Agriculture

Boise State
Construction Management, Civil Engineering

Wenatchee Valley College
Med Lab Tech Program

Portland State University
Master of Social Work

osu
Oregon State College Agriculture

Eastern Oregon University
Teach Education Program
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Oregon Community Colleges Articulation Agreements

Central Oregon Community College Articulation

OSU - Cascade Campus

Bachelor of Arts or Science in Art, options in Fine Arts, Bachelor of Arts or Science in Business Administration, Bachelor of Science
in Human Development and Family Studies, options in Early Childhood Education, Gerontology or Human Services, Bachelor of
Science in Tourism and Outdoor Leadership, options in Tourism and Commercial Recreation Managemnet, International
Ecotourism, or Outdoor and Experiential Education (All pending approval)

OIT

COCC'S Associate of Applied Science in Manufacturing is articulated with OIT's Manufacturing Engineering Technology bachelor's
degree program. Specific COCC coursework is aligned with requirements for OIT's Medical Imaging Technology program. COCC's
AAS in Aviation Science is aligned ith OIT's Bachelor of Science degree in Operations Mangement. Bachelor of Science in
Operations Management: Automotive Management, Business Administration, Computer and Information Systems (Computer
Support Option), Sturctural Fire Science, Wildland Fire Science

Humboldt State University

COCC's Associate of Applied Science in Forestry Resources Technology is articulated directly with HSU's bachelor's degree in
forestry.

Eastern Oregon University

Business Administration, Business Economics, English/Writing, Fire Science Administration, Physical Activity and Health,
Philosophy, Politics and Economics, Psychology, Liberal Studies: Small Cityand Rural County Management, Environmental
Studies, Business and Health Promotion, Business Psychology.

Linn-Benton CC
Diagnostic Imaging

Portland Community College
Portland Community College offers an Associate of Applied Science degree in Medical Laboratory Technology.
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Oregon Community Colleges Articulation Agreements

Chemeketa Community College Articulation

Art Institute of Portland
AAS in Vis Com Graphic Design

Capella University
Transfer agreement Bachelors completion program

Marylhurst University
AAOQOT Junior Standing

OIT

Medical Imaging Technology, Geomatics program, Bachelor in Electronic Engineering, Electronics Engineering Tech to Bachelor of
Science in Operational Management, Network Tech to Bachelor of Science in Operational Management, Bachelor os Science degree
in Information Technology-Health Information Option, Bachelor of Science degree in Dental Hygiene

osu

Dietetics, Early Childhood Education to BS in Human Development and Family Sciences program, Environmental Science, Forestry,
Horticultural Science, Associate of Applied Science degree in Human Services, Addiction Studies Option to BS in Human
Development and Family Sciences with option in Human Services, Human Services, Social Services Option to BS in Human
Development and Family Sciences with an Option in Human Services program, Education double degree.

Otemae Junior College
International Articulation agreement

Portland State University
Criminal Justice, Early Childhood Education, Instructional Assistant AGS degree program to BS degree in General Studies, Human
Services, Visual Communications

Linfield College
RN to BSN, Bachelor's degree for adult students in the CCC Service District combining with CCC coursework

University of Phoenix
Transfer of an associate degree conferred students to a baccalaureate degree prgram, Math & English Competency
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Oregon Community Colleges Articulation Agreements

Chemeketa Community College Articulation

Washington State University
Hosptality & Tourism Management Program

wou

Associate in Art, BA or BS in Business, BA or BS Computer Science, BA or BS in Criminal Justice, Early Childhood Education to
Early Childhood Teacher Prep Program, Early Childhood/Elementary/Middle School Teacher Prep Program, Human Services
Program with Addiction Studies to Sohomore status in BS psychology, Building Inspection BA/BS in Public Policy and
Administration, Psychology with intent of entering in master's degree in Rehab Counseling, Dance Programs

University of Wisconsin
Applied Nursing Program to BSN-LINC National Online RN to BSN program.

Western Governor's University
Associate of Arts, Associate of Science, Associate of Applied Science, Associate of Science Oregon Transfer Business into
baccalaureate, Competency-based degree programs.
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Oregon Community Colleges Articulation Agreements

Clackamas Community College -nttp://depts.clackamas.edu/advising/articulations.htm Articulation

Art Institute of Portland
General Education Requirements, Gen Ed Advising Guide

Clatsop CC

DPSST Basic Police Course, DPSST Basic Corrections Course

George Fox University

AAS Accounting, CC Business Management, AAS Criminal Justice, AAS Early Childhood Education & Family Studies, AAS
Geographic & Information Systems (GIS), AAS Human Services, AAS Landscape, AAS Marketing & Management, AAS Water &
Envrionmental Technology

Marylhurst University
AAOT, AAS Industrial Technology, AAOT/Co-Admission/English, AAS Project Management, AAS Retail Management

OoIT

BS in Information Technology, Health Informatics Option: AGS Associate of General Studies, AAS Website Design Specialty, AAS
Computer Support Specialist, BS Operations Management: AAS Web Development Specialist, AAS Computer Support Specialist,
Associate of Science Oregon Transfer-Business, BS in Electronics Engineering Technology: AAS Microelectronics Systems
Technology, BS Manufacturing Engineering Technology (Course Articulations)

osu

Horticulture

Portland State University
Energy & Resource Management, Paraeducator

sou

Criminal Justice
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Oregon Community Colleges Articulation Agreements

Clatsop Community College Articulation

Linfield

Nursing
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Oregon Community Colleges Articulation Agreements

Columbia Gorge Community College Articulation

OIT

AAS in Accounting, Business Management (both to their BS in Operatins Management)
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Oregon Community Colleges Articulation Agreements

Klamath Community College Articulation

OoIT

Criminal Justice to Applied Psychology, AAOT Education to Applied Psychology, General Studies to Management-Marketing Option,
General Studies to Management-Small Business/Entrepreneurship Option, General Studies to Operations Management, Human
Services Education to Applied Psychology, Human Services Protection to Applied Psychology, Natural Resources to Environmental
Science, Preparatory Health Courses to Medical Imaging Technology

osu

Natural Resources to Agriculture
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Oregon Community Colleges Articulation Agreements

Lane Community College Articulation

Oregon State University
Liberal Studies Pre-Elementary, Language Arts II, Behavioral Science, Social Science, Spanish Language and Latino/a Studies,
Fine Arts, Biochemistry, Botany, Chemistry, Double-degree Education, Zoology, Dietetics, Pharmacy, Business, Baccalaureate Core

Portland State University
Business, Criminology (update in process), General Education

Southern Oregon University
General Education, Business, Criminology, Criminal Justice

University of Oregon

Biology, Biochemistry, Business, Chemistry, Computer Science, Economics, Educational Studies, English, Environmental Science
and Studies, Ethnic Studies, Family and Human Services. General Education, Geography, Geology, History, Human Physiology,
Mathematics, Philosophy, Physics, Psychology, Socoiology, Educational Studies: Integrated Teaching & Education Foundations

Western Oregon University
Liberal Arts Core Curriculum

Linfield College
General Education Requirements, Business

NW Christian College
Degree Completion Program; Health Administration; Accounting; Business Administration, Elementary Education; Human
Services; Management Information Systems; Psychology; Secondary Education

Eastern Oregon University
General Education ( in progress )

OHSU

Nursing

OIT

General Education ( in progress )
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Oregon Community Colleges Articulation Agreements

Lane Community College Articulation

Chemeketa Community College
Speech-Language Pathology Assistant AAS

Pacific University
Elementary Education, Pre-Health (Physician's Assistant, Optometry, Occupational Therapy and Physical Therapy), Pre-Pharmacy
(in progress), Dental Hygiene

Western States Chiropractic College
Pre-Chiropractic Admission Requirments
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Oregon Community Colleges Articulation Agreements

Linn-Benton Community College Articulation

Ashford University

Accounting, Business Administration, Communitcation Studies, Early Childhood Education, Early Childhood Education
Administration, Health Care Administration, Organizational Management, Psychology, Public Relations & Marketing, Social &
Criminal Justice, Social Science, Social Science w/Education Concentration, Sociology, Sport & Recreation Management

cocc

Engineering

Lane Community College
Flight Technology, Dental Hygiene

Linfield

Nursing

Montana State University-N
Diesel Technology

OIT
Manufacturing Engineering Technology, Medical Imaging Technology

Oregon State University
AS Direct Transfer Degree, Restaurant/Foodservice Management

Western Oregon University
Elementary Education
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Oregon Community Colleges Articulation Agreements

Mt. Hood Community College Articulation

OoIT

Selected MHCC courses (Machine Tool, Welding, Engineering) to BS Manufacturing Engineering Technology-State-wide agreement.
Selected courses from Business Management to BS Operations Management. Selected courses from Computer Information
Systems to BS Operations Management. Selected courses from Office Management/Administrative Assistant to BS Operations
Management. Selected courses in Dental Hygiene to BS in Dental Hygiene. Selected MHCC courses (Civil Engineering Tech)
applied to BS in Civil Engineering. Selected MHCC courses (Mechanical Engineering Tech) applied to BS in Mechanical Engineering.

PSU

AAS: Selected Mental Health/Himan Services (Youth Worker Track) Courses to BA or BS in all majors-suggested majors: Liberal
Studies, Arts and Letters, Psychology, Sociol Science or Sociology. Selected Mental Health/Human Services courses to BA or BS in
all majors: Administration of Justice, Liberal Studies, Arts and Letters, Psychology, Social Science or Sociology. Selected Early
Childhood Education courses to BS or BA in Children and Family Studies. Selected Environmental Health and Safety courses to BA
or BS in Envirionmental Studies. AS: Selected Hospitality & Tourism courses transfer to BA in Business Administration.

UofoO
AAOQOT: Specific MHCC courses applied to BA in Journalism.

Warner Pacific
AAS: Selected courses in Early Childhood Education to BA in Early Childhood Education.

wou
Direct Transfer: Selected MHCC courses applied to BA/BS Criminal Justice.

osu
Selected MHCC courses (Architectural Engineering) applied to BS in Housing Studies. Outdoor Recreation/Tourism to BS Outdoor
Recreation Leadership/Tourism. Selected MHCC Natural Resources/Forestry applied to BS in Forest Resources/forest Engineering.

Concordia
AAS: Selected courses from Mental Health/Human Services to BA/BS in Social Work. AAOT.

Marylhurst College
AAS: Selected courses in Environmental Health and Safety to BA in Environmental Science, AAOT with specific courses applied to
BA Fine Arts, AAOT with specific MHCC courses applied to BA Religious Studies. AAOT.

Eastern Oregon university
AAOT with specific courses applied to BA in Education

Willamette University
AAOT.
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Oregon Community Colleges Articulation Agreements

Oregon Coast Community College Articulation

osu
Environmental Science, Human Development & Family Studies, Early Childhood Education, Food & Nutrition Management,
Dietetics, Fisheries & Wildlife
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Oregon Community Colleges Articulation Agreements

Portland Community College - www.pcc.edu/programs/university-transfer/ Articulation

Art Institute of Portland
Graphic Design

Marylhurst University
Sign Language Interpretation

Concordia University
Alcohol and Drug Counselor Program

Eastern Oregon University
Fire Protection Technology

University of Idaho
Landscape Technology

OIT

Auto Service Technology, Aviation Science, Building Construction Technology, Buidling Construction Technology: Operations
Management, Construction Management Option, Computer Information Systems: Business/Systems Analysis, Applications
Development, Diesel Service Technology, Electronic Engineering Technology, Machine Manufacturing Technology, Mechanical
Engineering Technology, Microelectronics Technology: Manufacturing Engineering Technology, Electronics Engineering Technology

PSU
Alcohol and Drug Counselor, Early Education and Family Studies (Child and Family Studies) (Degree Completion), Engineering;
Gerontology, Graphic Design, Management and Supervisory Development, Paraeducator

Linfield University
Nursing
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Oregon Community Colleges Articulation Agreements

Portland Community College - www.pcc.edu/programs/university-transfer/ Articulation

Warner Pacific College
Alchohol & Drug Counselor, Management and Supervisory Development

Western Oregon University
Fire Protection Technology

University of Phoenix
All PCC Career Technical AAS degree

Embry-Riddle University
Aviation Science, Aviation Maintenance

ITT Technical Institute

Computer Information Systems: Data Communication Systems Technology, Data Communication Systems Technology CIS
Network Administration Option, Information Systems Security, Information Systems Security CIS Network Administration Option,
Electronic Engineering Technology

Montana State University-Northern
Automotive Service Technology
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Oregon Community Colleges Articulation Agreements

Rogue Community College Articulation

sou

AS Business, AS Degrees-Computer Programming & Software, Computer Information Science, Computer Security & Information
Assurance, Multimedia, Sociology, History, Communication, AS Human Services, AS Degree-Criminology, AS Degree-Early
Childhood Education, AS Elementary Education

OHSU
ADN Nursing

OIT

Medical Imaging Technology Programs, Radiological Sciences, AS Degree-Manufacturing Engineering Technology, Dual Enrollment
Program/Respiratory Care, Gematics, Dental Hygiene, Information Technology/AS Health Informatics

Portland State University
Human Services

OUS System
ASOT-Business, AAOT, OTM
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Oregon Community Colleges Articulation Agreements

Southwestern Oregon Community College Articulation

EOU

Education, Teacher Licensure, Physical Education

Linfield
Athletic Training and Fitness Mgt

sou
Fitness Mgt, Athletic Training, Criminal Justice

osu

Engineering/Computer Science, Math, Natural Science

Portland State University
Early Childhood and Family Studies

wou

Business, Computer Science, Criminal Justice

EWU
Athletic Training

OoIT
Manufacturing Technology, Dental Hygene, Medical Imaging

OHSU
Nursing, Registered
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Oregon Community Colleges Articulation Agreements

Tillamook Bay Community College Articulation

osu

Data enrollment, General Transfer

OIT

Dual Enroliment, General Transfer, Business Administration

Portland State University
Co-admission, Early Childhood Education, Education, General Transfer, Graphic Design, Instructional Assistant Program,
Paraeducator, Professional Technical Writing

Concordia University
Alcohol/Drug Counselor Program, AA, Oregon Transfer (AAOT)

Marylhurst College
Alcohol & Drug Counselor, Associate of Arts, Early Childhood Education, Various other courses accepted without restrictions

UofoO
Block Transfer, Certain Vocational/Technical Credits Counselor

Warner Pacific
Applied Science, Alcohol & Drug, Early Childhood Education

Western Governor's University
General

Western Oregon State Univ
Criminal Justice, General Transfer
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Oregon Community Colleges Articulation Agreements

Treasure Valley Community College Articulation

University of Phoenix
Bachelor of Science in Management

College of Idaho
Will transfer up to 106 credits.

Boise State
AAOQT, Criminal Justice, Social Work, Elementary Education, Early Childhood Education, Bilingual Education

osu
Ag Buiness, General Ag, Teacher Prep, Ag Resource Economics, Animal Science, Crop Science, Soil Science, Animal Science: Pre-
Vet, Environmental Economics, Ag Education, Ag Science & Tech

University of Idaho
Ag Economics, Ag Education, Ag Science & Tech, Animal Science
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Oregon Community Colleges Articulation Agreements
Umpqua Community College Articulation

sou

Business Administration, Criminal Justice, Early Childhood Education, Human Services

EOU

Online Business Administration, Online Liberal Studies, Online English Film/Literature

OIT

Online Operations Management
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